
Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, Devon TQ1 3DR 

Main Switchboard (01803) 201201 
Fax (01803) 207006  DX 59006 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

June Gurry, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207012 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(i) 

 

 
 

Tuesday, 4 February 2014 
 
 

Meeting of the Adjourned Council 
 
Dear Member 
 
I am pleased to invite you to attend the adjourned meeting of Torbay Council which will be held 
in Rosetor Room, Riviera International Conference Centre, Chestnut Avenue, Torquay, 
TQ2 5LZ on Thursday, 13 February 2014 commencing at 5.30 pm 
 
The items to be discussed at this meeting are attached.   
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Steve Parrock 
Executive Director of Finance and Operations 
 
 
(All members are summoned to attend the meeting of the Council in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and Standing Orders A5.) 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 

 
 
 



(ii) 

Meeting of the Council 
Agenda 

 
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

3.   Revenue Budget Proposals 2014/15  
 To consider the recommendations of the Mayor on the Revenue 

Budget Proposals for 2014/15 (appendices attached in items 3a to 
3??). 
 

(a)   Fees and Charges 
 

(Pages 1 - 76) 

(b)   Consultation and Equality Impact Assessments 
 

(Pages 77 - 633) 

(c)   National Non Domestic Rates Return 1 
 

(Pages 634 - 641) 

(d)   Draft Budget Digest 
 

(Circulated 
separately) 

(e)   Riviera International Conference Centre - Business Plan 
 

(Pages 642 - 658) 

(f)   Corporate Capital Strategy - Recommendation of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board 
 

(Page 659) 



PLANNED AND PROPOSED CHARGES FOR HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT 

 September 2013 September 2014 September 2015 Notes 

Discretionary 

pass for 

attendance at 

St Cuthbert 

Mayne 

 

£505 

Second child 

£252.50 

Third child free 

Stagecoach ticket 

less £25 * 

Full cost (pass to 

be purchased 

directly from 

operator) 

*No second or 

subsequent 

sibling subsidy 

from September 

2014 

Discretionary 

pass for 

attendance at 

a selective 

school 

£505 

Second child 

£252.50 

Third child free 

Stagecoach ticket 

less £25 * 

Full cost (pass to 

be purchased 

directly from 

operator) 

*No second or 

subsequent 

sibling subsidy 

from September 

2014 

Post-16 

students 

attending a 

school sixth 

form 

£505 

Second child 

£252.50 

Third child free 

Stagecoach ticket 

less £25 * 

Full cost (pass to 

be purchased 

directly from 

operator) 

*No second or 

subsequent 

sibling subsidy 

from September 

2014 

Post-16 

students 

attending 

school sixth 

form on low 

income 

£250 £400 Full cost (pass to 

be purchased 

directly from 

operator) 

 

Subsidy for 

post-16 

students 

attending 

South Devon 

College 

£40,000 (pay 

06.04.14) 

£20,000 0  

SEN Post-16 

students 

studying SEN 

courses 

Free £600 (or 

stagecoach ticket 

less £25 if less) 

£600 Aligned with cost 

of bus pass in 

future years 

SEN Post-16 

students 

studying SEN 

courses on low 

income 

Free £400 £600 Aligned with cost 

of bus pass in 

future years 

 

N.B. Charges in red are subject to consultation and agreement by Council 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 1



 

Extract from report to council where proposals were agreed: 

An alternative set of proposals has therefore been drawn up to phase out all discretionary 

transport assistance over a three year period.  Specifically, this would involve: 

a) ceasing discretionary support towards the costs of transport for pupils attending St 

Cuthbert Mayne because of parental preference. The proposal is to phase this in by 

removing sibling subsidies for both existing and new pupils in September 2014 and 

ceasing all subsidies in September 2015. The subsidy for 2014-15 will continue to be at 

the same level as 2012/13 - £25. Estimated savings would be in the region of £4,000 per 

year. 

b) ceasing discretionary support towards the costs of transport for pupils attending 

selective schools. The proposal is to phase this in by removing sibling subsidies for both 

existing and new pupils in September 2014 and ceasing all subsidies in September 

2015. The subsidy for 2014-15 will continue to be at the same level as 2012/13 - £25. 

Estimated savings would be in the region of £2,500 per year. 

c) from September 2014, supporting all new low income applicants to the nearest 3 

suitable secondary schools between 2-6 miles. From September 2015 Torbay’s policy to 

come into line with the legal requirements so that all support for pupils attending a 

secondary school that is not one of the three nearest suitable secondary schools 

ceases. Estimated savings would be in the region of £15,000 per year. 

d) ceasing discretionary support towards the costs of transport for post-16 students 

attending school sixth forms . The proposal is to phase this in by removing sibling 

subsidies for both existing and new pupils in September 2014 and ceasing all subsidies 

in September 2015. The subsidy for 2014-15 will continue to be at the same level as 

2012/13 - £25. Estimated savings would be in the region of £22,000 per year. 

e) increasing the contribution that parents of post-16 students from low income 

households pay towards a bus pass (currently £100) to £250 in September 2013, £400 

in September 2014 and ceasing this subsidy in September 2015.  

f) reducing the Council’s contribution to the joint scheme run with South Devon College 

by £30,000 in September 2013 and by a further £20,000 in September 2014. The 

Council will cease its funding completely for this scheme in September 2015. Whilst the 

Council is reducing its contribution the scheme will still be available for students in the 

2013/14 and 2014/15 academic years. Savings in total will be £70,000 per year. 

 

Page 2



Schools, Children & Communities 
 
Parkfield – My Place 
Indicative 2014/15 Prices 
 
 

Half Hall - £15 per hour 
Full Hall - £30 per hour 
 
Sports Hall 

  

Badminton Court 
Adults - £8 per hour 
Juniors (under 18's) - £5 per hour 

 
 

Retractable Seating £30 per hour (seats 250) 

Ground Floor Training Room £10 per hour (max 20 people) 

First Floor Meeting Room £10 per hour (max 10 people) 

Recording Room £10 per hour + £10 per hour for staff 

Apple IT Suite £40 per hour (to include technician) 

 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 1

Page 3



R
O

O
M

 

B
a

si
c 

C
h

a
rg

e
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
r 

in
c.

 V
A

T
 

M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

 8
.3

0
 a

m
 t

o
 9

 p
m

 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y

 1
0

 a
m

 t
o

 6
 p

m
 

N
o

n
 p

ro
fi

t 
p

e
r 

h
o

u
r 

in
c.

 V
A

T
 

In
c.

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l/
N

H
S

 e
tc

. 

S
a

m
e

 h
o

u
rs

 

O
u

t 
o

f 
H

o
u

rs
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
r 

P
a

st
 9

 p
m

 M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

/P
a

st
 6

 p
m

 S
a

t 

A
ll

 d
a

y
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 

B
a

si
c 

C
h

a
rg

e
 

N
o

n
 P

ro
fi

t 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 R
o

o
m

 
£

1
0

 
£

9
 

£
2

0
 

£
1

8
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 R

o
o

m
 

£
1

0
 

£
9

 
£

2
0

 
£

1
8

 

H
a

lf
 S

p
o

rt
s 

H
a

ll 
£

1
5

 
£

1
3

.5
0

 
£

3
0

 
£

2
7

 

F
u

ll
 S

p
o

rt
s 

H
a

ll 
£

3
0

 
£

2
7

 
£

6
0

 
£

5
4

 

IT
 S

u
it

e
 

£
4

0
 

£
3

6
 

£
8

0
 

£
7

2
 

R
e

co
rd

in
g

 S
tu

d
io

 
£

1
5

 
£

1
3

.5
0

 
£

3
0

 
£

2
7

 

C
a

fé
 

£
1

0
 

£
9

 
£

2
0

 
£

1
8

 

S
k
a

te
p

a
rk

/B
M

X
 T

ra
ck

 
£

2
0

 
£

1
8

 
£

4
0

 
£

3
6

 

O
ld

 H
o

u
se

 R
o

o
m

s 
£

1
0

 
£

9
 

£
2

0
 

£
1

8
 

O
ld

 H
o

u
se

 L
a

w
n

 
£

2
0

 
£

1
8

 
£

4
0

 
£

3
6

 

W
h

o
le

 C
e

n
tr

e
 -

 8
.3

0
 a

m
 t

o
 5

 p
m

 
£

5
6

0
 

£
5

0
4

 

£
6

0
 

£
5

4
 

W
h

o
le

 C
e

n
tr

e
 -

 8
.3

0
 a

m
 t

o
 9

 p
m

 
£

7
0

0
 

£
6

3
0

 

W
h

o
le

 C
e

n
tr

e
 +

 O
u

ts
id

e
 

£
6

4
0

 
£

5
7

6
 

W
h

o
le

 O
ld

 H
o

u
se

 -
 8

.3
0

 a
m

 t
o

 5
 p

m
 

£
5

0
0

 
£

4
5

0
 

£
5

0
 

£
4

5
 

W
h

o
le

 O
ld

 H
o

u
se

 +
 L

a
w

n
 -

 8
.3

0
 a

m
 t

o
 5

 p
m

 
£

5
8

0
 

£
5

2
2

 

 

R
e

tr
a

ct
a

b
le

 S
e

a
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

H
a

ll
 

£
3

0
 

 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t:

 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 S

e
t 

u
p

 –
 I

n
c.

 1
 M

ic
 &

 S
ta

n
d

 &
 2

 R
o

a
m

in
g

 M
ic

s 
+

 S
p

e
a

ke
rs

 
£

9
0

 
 

P
A

 S
y
st

e
m

 –
 I

n
c.

 1
 M

ic
 &

 S
ta

n
d

 +
 S

p
e

a
ke

rs
 

£
5

0
 

 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 lo
o

k
in

g
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l r
e

n
ta

l p
le

a
se

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 t

h
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 y

o
u

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 2

Page 4



 

 

 

 
PARKFIELD ACTIVITY PROGRAMME 

 
We offer a range of activities that can be delivered to your schedule and that 
can be tailored to meet your needs.  You can choose a range of activity 
programmes or just a one off event. 
 
Activities 
 

• Indoor Climbing from £40 an hour (per group of 8) incl equipment hire 
• Outdoor climbing/abseiling £120 half day / £180 per day (per group of 8) 
• Forest School £100 half day / £150 per day (per group of 8) 
• Coasteering £200 half day (maximum 16 per group) 
• Kayaking £120 half day / £180 per day (per group of 8) 
• Canoeing £120 half day / £180 per day (per group of 8) 
• BMX £120 half day (per group of 8) 
• Urban DJ workshops £150 half day (per group of 8) 

  
Activities can be run progressively with a view to achieving a nationally 
recognised award such as National Indoor Climbing Achievement Scheme 
(NICAS) or a British Canoe Union BCU Paddle Sport award.  We also offer 
activities for small groups or even 1 to 1 sessions, please call for details. 
 
Half activity day 3hrs                                                                Full activity day 6 hrs 

 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 3

Page 5



 

 

GYMNASTICS & TRAMPETTE - Delivered by Bay Bouncers 
Every Wednesday in August 

1 pm to 2.30 pm (7 to 11 yrs) 
     2 pm to 3.30 pm (11 to 14 yrs) 

3 pm to 4.30 pm (14 to 17 yrs) 
Cost: £5 per person (Pay Bay Bouncers on day) BOOKING REQUIRED 

The session will consist of a variety of activities in Gymnastics such as 
Floor agilities, Trampette, Vault, Sports Acrobatics, Rhythmic Gymnastics 

and developing overall fitness through Conditioning Exercises. 
Sessions will vary according to age, ability and will be different each 

week! Gymnasts should wear shorts and t-shirt or similar, no jeans, 
buckles, belts or metal buttons. Hair tied up and no jewellery  

 

Summer Holiday 
Programme 

 

BRITISH CYCLING 4 DAY BMX COACHING & RACE DAY COURSE 
Course 1 – Tues 6th, Wed 7th, Tues 13th & Wed 14th August 
Course 2 – Tues 20th, Wed 21st, Tues 27th, & Wed 28th August 
Every Day will start at 10 am to 3 pm  BIKES AVAILABLE 
Age: 7 to 17  Cost: £40 per course – BOOKING & SIGNED 
CONSENT FORM REQUIRED (Pay British Cycling on first day) 
These courses will be run by British Cycling BMX Coaches. 
Each course involves 3 days of BMX coaching with the last day 
an opportunity to put that coaching into practice and race 
against each other.  Goodies and medals will be up for grabs 
for everyone! You will need to bring warm clothing, 
waterproofs, water to drink and some lunch or money to 
purchase food and refreshments from the Parkfield Café.  

 

DJ SESSIONS with Pumpitlouder 
Every Tuesday in August - 2pm to 4 p m 

Age: 8+ 
Cost: £10 (Pay Pumpitlouder on the day) – BOOKING REQUIRED 

Come down and spend two hours learning how to be  
a superstar DJ with help from our in house DJ Mitch!  

CLIMBING WALL HAVE A GO SESSIONS 
Every Tuesday & Thursday – 1.30 pm & 3.30 pm 
Every Wednesday – 1 pm & 3 pm 
Age: 8 to 14   
Cost: £5 per person 
Payment at time of booking to secure place & a 
signed Parental consent form is required.   
These sessions give you a great experience of the 
world of climbing & what you can achieve!   

Welcome to Parkfield’s Summer Holiday Activity Programme.  This programme is running from 
Tuesday 6th to Friday 30th August with a wide range of activities for 7 to 17 year olds which all take 
place at or near our Centre in Paignton.  Please take some time to see what’s on offer and call or e-
mail us to book your place now!  For info the Centre will be CLOSED on MONDAYS  

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 4

Page 6



 

 

Summer Holiday  
Programme 

KAYAKING 
Every Friday – 10 am to 12 noon (Meet at Parkfield)  
Age: 8 to 17 Cost: £15 per session  
BOOKING & SIGNED PARENTAL CONSENT FORM REQUIRED  
Kayaking is perfect for all ages. All equipment provided. Come 
and try this popular water sport off our very own Preston 
Beach with our fully qualified instructors. It will be a splash!   

ZUMBA – HAVE A GO SESSION 
Every Thursday – 12 noon to 1 pm for 8 to 12 year olds 

Every Friday – 12 noon to 1 pm for 12 to 17 year olds 
Cost: £5 (Pay on the day)   BOOKING REQUIRED 

Zumba is a rockin', high-energy fitness-party packed with 
specially choreographed, easy to learn routines with all the 

music kids’ love, like Hip-hop and the latest chart hits.   
Class members will need comfy exercise type clothes, trainers 

and bring plenty of water! 
 

 

FOREST SKILLS TASTER SESSION IN OUR WALLED GARDEN 
Wednesday 7th, 14th & 21st – 12 noon to 2 pm and 3 pm to 5 pm 

Cost: £5 – Age:  8+  BOOKING REQUIRED 
Come along and have a go at a range of Forest Skills activities which could 

include den building, fire making and craft sessions using the natural 
materials found around the garden and woodland.   

INDOOR ARCHERY– HAVE A GO SESSION (1 hour) 
Tuesday 6th, 13th & 20th – 12 noon, 2 pm & 4 pm       
Thursday 8th, 15th & 22nd – 2 pm, 3.15 pm & 4.30 pm  
Cost: £5   Age: 8 to 11  BOOKING REQUIRED 
BACK BY POPULAR DEMAND! Want to learn to shoot some arrows like 
Robin Hood or Merlin then this session is for you. Come down and have 
a go and enjoy some friendly competitions with your friends. 

Parkfield Centre is located just off the seafront at Paignton and can be accessed from the Esplanade, Lower 
Polsham Road and Colin Road.  Facilities on site include a BMX Track, Skate Park, Climbing Wall, Sports Hall, 
Recording Studio, Media Suite, Meeting Rooms and a Café which has access to free Wifi. Annual Membership 
for 8 to 17 year olds is only £12! To find out more about what we do and our latest news take a look at our 
website www.parkfieldtorbay.co.uk or follow us on Twitter and Facebook (Parkfield Torbay). 
If you have any questions about Parkfield and this programme please contact the Centre on 01803 698900 or 
e-mail us at Parkfield@torbay.gov.uk. 

 

COASTEERING  
Every Thursday in August – 1 pm to 4 pm 

RUNS FROM ANSTEYS COVE (Meet in Ansteys Cove Car Park) 
Cost: £15   Age: 8 to 17  BOOKING & CONSENT FORM REQUIRED 

As well as big thrills you will get to learn about the sea,  
how it works and you will definitely get a whole new 

perspective of our coastline. You will be exploring areas  
that very few people get the opportunity to. You will love it!  

All equipment provided just bring an old pair of trainers 

 

 

Page 7



  
C

O
A

C
H

IN
G

 

S
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 

 

 
1
 h
o
u
r 
ta
s
te
r 

(m
in
 2
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
) 

£
1
0
.0
0
 a
d
u
lt
s
 

£
5
.0
0
 u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
s
 

  
2
 h
o
u
r 
c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 

(m
in
 2
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
) 

£
2
0
.0
0
 a
d
u
lt
s
 

£
1
0
.0
0
 u
n
d
e
r 
1
8
s
 

  
1
:1
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 

£
2
0
.0
0
 (
a
ll
 a
g
e
s
) 

  
A
ll
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

   

 

O
P

E
N

 C
LI

M
B

IN
G

 
  

A
d
u
lt
s
 

£
5
.0
0
 n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

£
4
.0
0
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

  
U
n
d
e
r 
1
8
s
 

£
4
.0
0
 n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

£
3
.0
0
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

  
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
h
ir
e
 

S
h
o
e
s
 -
 £
2
.0
0
 

G
y
m
 h
a
rn
e
s
s
 -
 £
1
.5
0
 

B
e
la
y
 S
e
t 
- 
£
1
.0
0
 

H
e
lm

e
t 
–
 f
re
e
 

 
F
u
ll
 s
e
t 
£
4
.0
0
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 

 

 
Y
o
u
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 a
re
 a
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
c
li
m
b
e
r 
a
s
 l
a
id
 

o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
’s
 

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
U
s
e
 

 
N
o
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

 
 

 

M
E

M
B

E
R

 O
F

F
E

R
 

 

 
U
n
li
m
it
e
d
 c
li
m
b
in
g
  

fo
r 
1
 m

o
n
th
 (
o
v
e
r 
1
8
s
 o
n
ly
) 

£
2
5
.0
0
 

 

C
LI

M
B

IN
G

 C
O

U
R

S
E

S
 

   
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
, 
9
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
, 
1
4
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

K
id
s
 B
e
g
in
n
e
r 
C
li
m
b
in
g
 

A
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
4
 

1
0
.3
0
a
m
 –
 1
1
.3
0
a
m
 

£
4
0
.0
0
 n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

£
2
5
.0
0
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

  
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
, 
9
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
, 
1
4
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

K
id
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
rs
 C
li
m
b
in
g
 

A
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
4
 

1
1
.3
0
a
m
 –
 1
2
.3
0
p
m
 

£
4
0
.0
0
 n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

£
2
5
.0
0
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

 
 

 

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 C
LU

B
 

 

 
2
 h
o
u
r 
c
li
m
b
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 

1
0
.3
0
a
m
 –
 1
2
.3
0
p
m
 

A
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
7
 

£
8
.0
0
 

 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 

4
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
2
n
d
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

  

B
IR

T
H

D
A

Y
 P

A
R

T
IE

S
 

  
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 c
li
m
b
in
g
 p
a
rt
ie
s
 

fo
r 
a
g
e
 7
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 

£
1
3
.0
0
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 

to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 1
 h
o
u
r 
o
f 

c
li
m
b
in
g
 f
o
ll
o
w
e
d
 b
y
 f
o
o
d
 

 
M
in
im

u
m
 o
f 
6
 g
u
e
s
ts
 

  
A
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
im

e
 s
lo
ts
 

 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

4
p
m
-6
p
m
 

 
W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

6
p
m
-8
p
m
 

 
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

4
p
m
-6
p
m
 

 
F
ri
d
a
y
 

4
p
m
-6
p
m
 &
 5
p
m
-7
p
m
 

 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 

3
p
m
-5
p
m
 

  
B
o
o
k
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
 

m
in
im

u
m
 o
f 
3
 w
e
e
k
s
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
 

5
0
%
 d
e
p
o
s
it
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 

 
A
s
k
 a
t 
R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
d
e
ta
il
s
 

 

U
N

D
E

R
 1

8
s 

  
N
IC
A
S
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 –
 5
p
m
-6
p
m
 

A
g
e
 7
 t
o
 1
4
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

  
T
in
y
 C
li
m
b
e
rs
 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 –
 4
p
m
-5
p
m
 

A
g
e
 5
 t
o
 7
 -
  

£
4
.0
0
 

  
N
IC
A
S
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 –
 5
p
m
-6
p
m
 

A
g
e
 7
 t
o
 1
4
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

   
N
IC
A
S
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 –
 5
p
m
-6
p
m
 

A
g
e
 7
 t
o
 1
4
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

  
Y
o
u
th
 C
lu
b
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 –
 7
p
m
-8
p
m
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
8
 

£
1
.0
0
 n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

F
re
e
 -
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

  
T
in
y
 C
li
m
b
e
rs
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 –
 1
.3
0
p
m
-2
.3
0
p
m
 

A
g
e
 5
 t
o
 7
 

£
4
.0
0
 

A
S
K
 A
T
 R
E
C
E
P
T
IO
N
 A
B
O
U
T
 B
O
O
K
IN
G
 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 5

Page 8



    

P
a

rk
fi

e
ld

C
li

m
b

in
g

 W
a

ll

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
A
d
u
lt
 C
li
m
b
in
g
 W

a
ll
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

£
5
.0
0
 

 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
rs
o
n
 P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

£
1
2
.0
0
 (
a
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
7
) 

  

W
a

ll
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 

 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 t
o
 F
ri
d
a
y
 

1
2
 n
o
o
n
 t
o
 9
p
m
  

(l
a
s
t 
e
n
tr
y
 8
p
m
) 

 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 

1
0
:3
0
a
m
 t
o
 5
:3
0
p
m
  

(l
a
s
t 
e
n
tr
y
 4
:3
0
p
m
) 

    
0
1
8
0
3
 6
9
8
9
0
0
 

p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
@
to
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

w
w
w
.p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
to
rb
a
y
.c
o
.u
k
 

 

G
ro

u
p

 B
o

o
k
in

g
s 

 
P

a
rk

fi
e
ld

 I
n

s
tr

u
c
to

r  
 

1
 h
o
u
r 
ta
s
te
r/
c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
  

£
1
0
.0
0
 A
d
u
lt
; 
£
5
.0
0
 U
n
d
e
r 
1
8
s
 

 
G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
1
-8
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
4
0
) 

G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
9
-1
6
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
8
0
) 

G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
1
7
-2
4
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
1
2
0
) 

 
2
 h
o
u
r 
ta
s
te
r/
c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 

£
2
0
.0
0
 A
d
u
lt
; 
£
1
0
.0
0
 U
n
d
e
r 
1
8
s
 

 
G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
1
-8
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
8
0
) 
 

G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
9
-1
6
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
1
6
0
) 
 

G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
1
7
-2
4
 (
m
in
 f
e
e
 £
2
4
0
) 

 
E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 

  
V

is
it

in
g

 I
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
 

 
£
3
.0
0
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
) 
 

fo
r 
u
p
 t
o
 3
 h
o
u
rs
 e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
h
ir
e
 

 
O
u
r 
v
is
it
in
g
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
 t
o
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
ra
ti
o
s
 a
re
: 

 
1
-6
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 x
 1
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
r 

7
-1
2
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 x
 2
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
 

1
3
-1
8
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 x
 3
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
 

1
9
-2
4
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 x
 4
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
to
rs
 

 

  
A
s
k
 a
t 
R
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
b
o
o
k
in
g
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 

F
o
ll
o
w
 u
s
 a
t:
  
T
w
it
te
r.
c
o
m
/P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
T
o
rb
a
y
 

 F
o
ll
o
w
 u
s
 a
t:
  
 F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
.c
o
m
/p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
to
rb
a
y
 

 

Page 9



 
 

 

T
U

E
S

D
A

Y
 

 
 

4
.3
0
p
m
-5
.3
0
p
m
 

G
ir
ls
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
6
 –
 F
re
e
  

 

 
D
J
 C
lu
b
 w
it
h
 P
u
m
p
it
lo
u
d
e
r 

A
g
e
 8
-1
6
 

4
p
m
 t
o
 6
p
m
  

£
1
0
 p
e
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
r 
 

£
3
0
 f
o
r 
4
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

(p
a
y
 d
ir
e
c
t 
to
 P
u
m
p
it
lo
u
d
e
r)
 

 

 
5
p
m
-6
p
m
 

A
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
4
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

N
IC
A
S
 c
li
m
b
in
g
  

d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

  
7
p
m
-9
p
m
 

D
J
 &
 M
u
s
ic
 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

IT
 S
u
it
e
  

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

  
7
.3
0
p
m
-9
p
m
 

P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
8
 –
 F
re
e
 

  
7
.3
0
p
m
-9
p
m
 

Y
o
u
th
 P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
8
 -
 C
lo
s
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
 

 
 

W
E

D
N

E
S

D
A

Y
 

  
4
p
m
-5
p
m
 

T
in
y
 C
li
m
b
e
rs
* 

A
g
e
 5
-7
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

  
5
p
m
-6
p
m
 

A
g
e
 8
-1
4
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

N
IC
A
S
 c
li
m
b
in
g
  

d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

  
5
p
m
-6
.3
0
p
m
 

J
u
n
io
r 
Y
o
u
th
 C
lu
b
 

A
g
e
 8
-Y
e
a
r 
6
 

T
H

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 I

S
 C

L
O

S
E

D
 

F
O

R
 O

P
E

N
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 D

U
R

IN
G

 

T
H

IS
 S

E
S

S
IO

N
 

  
7
p
m
-8
.3
0
p
m
 

P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 R
a
d
io
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

A
s
k
 f
o
r 
P
a
u
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

  
7
.1
5
p
m
-8
.3
0
p
m
 

M
in
e
c
ra
ft
 G
ro
u
p
 

A
g
e
 Y
e
a
r 
5
+
 

1
2
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

C
lo
s
e
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

  
7
p
m
-9
p
m
 

Y
o
u
th
 R
o
o
m
 &
  

D
J
 &
 M
u
s
ic
 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

 

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

 
 

 
3
.3
0
p
m
-6
.3
0
p
m
 

H
e
a
lt
h
w
iz
e
 &
 C
-C
a
rd
 

d
ro
p
-i
n
 

  
7
p
m
-8
p
m
 

5
-A
s
id
e
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll
  

IT
 S
u
it
e
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

 
7
p
m
-9
p
m
 

G
o
 G
ir
ls
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

 
7
p
m
-9
p
m
 

D
J
 M
u
s
ic
 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

Y
o
u
th
 R
o
o
m
  

(W
ii
, 
g
a
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
il
l 
o
u
t)
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

 
8
p
m
-9
p
m
 

M
u
lt
i 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

    

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

 
  

1
0
.3
0
a
m
-1
2
.3
0
p
m
 

J
u
n
io
r 
Y
o
u
th
 C
lu
b
 

A
g
e
 8
-Y
e
a
r 
6
 

  
1
2
.3
0
p
m
-2
.3
0
p
m
 

M
u
lt
i 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
6
 

  
1
.3
0
p
m
-2
.3
0
p
m
 

T
in
y
 C
li
m
b
e
rs
* 

A
g
e
 5
-7
 -
 £
4
.0
0
 

  
2
p
m
-5
p
m
 

D
J
 S
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
6
 

F
R

ID
A

Y
 

  
6
p
m
-7
p
m
 

W
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
8
 

  
7
p
m
-9
p
m
 

D
J
 &
 M
u
s
ic
 W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

IT
 S
u
it
e
 

M
u
lt
i 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

A
g
e
 1
1
-1
7
 

  
7
.3
0
p
m
-9
p
m
 

F
u
n
k
y
 F
ri
d
a
y
 R
o
ll
e
r 
D
is
c
o
 

 
2
9
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

 
A
g
e
 1
1
-1
8
  
 

£
1
.0
0
 –
 n
o
n
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

F
re
e
 –
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

 
F
a
m
il
ie
s
 w
it
h
  

c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
g
e
d
 5
+
 

 
£
5
.0
0
 p
e
r 
fa
m
il
y
  

(2
 a
d
u
lt
s
 &
 2
 c
h
il
d
re
n
) 

£
3
.0
0
 f
o
r 
1
 a
d
u
lt
 &
 1
 c
h
il
d
 

£
1
.0
0
 f
o
r 
e
x
tr
a
 c
h
il
d
 

 
£
1
.0
0
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 p
ri
c
e
 i
f 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 

in
 y
o
u
r 
fa
m
il
y
 i
s
 a
 P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 

 
A
d
u
lt
s
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 o
v
e
r 
 

th
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
1
8
 

 

W
h
e
re
 p
ri
c
e
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
te
d
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 £
1
.0
0
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 f
re
e
 f
o
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
* 
b
o
o
k
in
g
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 6

Page 10



    

P
a

rk
fi

e
ld

 W
e

e
k

ly
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
s
ts
 £
1
2
.0
0
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 8
 &
 1
7
 

 

C
e

n
tr

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 

 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 t
o
 F
ri
d
a
y
 

9
a
m
 t
o
 9
p
m
 

 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 

1
0
:3
0
a
m
 t
o
 5
:3
0
p
m
 

 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 -
 C
lo
s
e
d
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 -
 C
lo
s
e
d
 

   
T
h
e
 o
n
s
it
e
 c
a
fé
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
lo
s
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
m
a
ll
 t
u
c
k
 s
h
o
p
 

ru
n
n
in
g
 W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
s
, 
T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
s
 &
 F
ri
d
a
y
s
 

  
0
1
8
0
3
 6
9
8
9
0
0
 

p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
@
to
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

w
w
w
.p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
to
rb
a
y
.c
o
.u
k
 

 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
s 

 W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 6
p
m
 –
 9
p
m
 

R
iv
ie
ra
 T
w
ir
ls
ta
rs
 B
a
to
n
 T
w
ir
li
n
g
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
 L
il
ia
n
 Y
e
o
m
a
n
 0
1
8
0
3
 5
2
4
8
1
5
 

  W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 6
.3
0
p
m
 –
 8
p
m
 

T
a
e
 K
w
o
n
-D
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
  
A
n
d
y
 S
a
u
n
d
e
rs
 0
7
8
6
6
 5
0
0
7
5
6
 

  S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 1
0
.3
0
a
m
 –
 1
2
 n
o
o
n
 

K
a
ra
te
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
  
K
im

 B
u
rk
e
 0
1
6
2
6
 3
6
0
9
9
9
 

  F
o

rt
h

co
m

in
g

 C
o

u
rs

e
s 

 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
, 
9
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 1
4
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 K
id
s
 B
e
g
in
n
e
rs
 C
li
m
b
in
g
 C
o
u
rs
e
 (
a
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
4
) 

1
0
.3
0
a
m
 -
 1
1
.3
0
a
m
 

£
4
0
.0
0
 N
o
n
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
; 
£
2
5
.0
0
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

 K
id
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
rs
 C
li
m
b
in
g
 C
o
u
rs
e
 (
a
g
e
 8
 t
o
 1
4
) 

1
1
.3
0
a
m
 -
 1
2
.3
0
p
m
 

£
4
0
.0
0
 N
o
n
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
; 
£
2
5
.0
0
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

  

F
o
ll
o
w
 u
s
 a
t:
  
T
w
it
te
r.
c
o
m
/P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
T
o
rb
a
y
 

 F
o
ll
o
w
 u
s
 a
t:
  
 F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
.c
o
m
/p
a
rk
fi
e
ld
to
rb
a
y
 

 

Page 11



Local Land Charges Department Fees and 
Charges 

 
 

 £ 
Current 
2013/14 

£ 
Proposed
2014/15 

   

Official search in the whole or any one part of the Local Land Charges 
(LLC) Register  (including the issue of an Official Certificate of Search):  

  
 

in respect of one parcel of land 28.50 28.50 

in respect of each additional parcel of land (subject to agreement) 5.00 5.00 

   

Personal search in the whole or any one part of the LLC Register 
(regardless of the number of parcels of land) 

No 
Charge* 

No 
Charge* 

   

Replies to all Required Enquiries of Local Authorities (Form Con 29R):   

in respect of one parcel of land 60.50 60.50 

in respect of each additional parcel of land (subject to agreement) 12.00 12.00 

   

Replies to individual enquiries on Form Con 29R:   

Administration fee 10.00 10.00 

Question 1.1 (a) to (e) 6.00 6.00 

Question 1.1. (f) to (h) 2.00 2.00 

Question 2 (a) 4.00 4.00 

Question 2 (b) to (d) 2.50 2.50 

Question 3.1 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.2 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.4 (a) to (f) 1.50 1.50 

Question 3.5 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.6 (a) to (l) 5.00 5.00 

Question 3.7 (a) to (f) 7.00 7.00 

Question 3.8 2.00 2.00 

Question 3.9 6.00 6.00 

Question 3.10 (a) to (b) 1.50 1.50 

Question 3.11 1.00 1.00 

Question 3.12 1.00 1.00 

   

Replies to Optional Enquiries of Local Authority (Con 29O) – each 
enquiry  

10.00 10.00 

   

Additional enquiry – each (subject to agreement)  15.00 15.00 

   

Office copy of any entry in the Local Land Charges Register: 
collected by hand  
sent via post/document exchange system 

 
2.00 
5.00 

 
2.00 
5.00 

   

 
*(Statutory fee) 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 7

Page 12



Registration Service Discretionary Fees and 

Charges 

Current 

2013/14 

Proposed 

2014/15 

Fee for attending a Marriage or Civil Partnership 

Ceremonies are as follows:-   

  

At Approved Premises in the Torbay district:-  

Monday to Friday  -  up to 6pm 

Monday to Friday  -  6pm to 8pm 

Monday to Friday  -  from 8pm 

Saturday                 -  up to 6pm 

Saturday    -   from 8pm, Sunday or Bank Holiday  

 

£329 

£354 

£404 

£354 

£404 

 

£404 

£429 

£479 

£429 

£479 

At Cockington Court in the Cary Room:- 

Monday to Saturday – up to 6pm 

Monday to Saturday – 6pm – 8pm 

Monday to Saturday – after 8pm, Sunday or Bank 

Holiday.  

 

£276 

£354 

£404 

 

£276 

£354 

£404 

Booking of Approved Premises Venue ceremony  

Non Refundable Deposit required ( to be deducted 

from final fee when paid ) 

 

0 

 

£50 

   

License for Approved Premises to hold ceremonies  

- NEW (valid 3 years) 

£1,300 £1,300 

 License for Approved Premises to hold ceremonies                                                                             

- RENEW (valid 3years) 

£950 £950 

   

Non Statutory Ceremonies Fee:- ( inclusive of VAT) 

Naming ceremonies  

Renewal of Vows 

Commitment ceremonies  

 

£160 

£160 

£160 

 

£160 

£160 

£160 

Talk through of Ceremony Fee:- 

Face to Face 

Via E-mail  

 

£15 

Free 

 

£15 

Free 

 

Any changes to all bookings will be subject to an 

admin fee of:- 
( inclusive of VAT where applicable).                                          

 

 

0 

 

 

£10 

 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 8

Page 13



 
Community Safety 

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2014/15 
 
Food Safety Discretionary Fees 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 
£ 

2014/15 
£ 

Ear piercing/electrolysis/tattoo/acupuncture 178.00 183.34 

Amendment to skin piercing registration 96.00 98.88 
Export Certificates (fish) – Basic  30.00 30.90 
Export Certificates (fish) – Advanced * 100.00 105.00 
* If two or more Advanced Certificates are issued on the same 
day then the second, third, etc, are charged at the basic rate. 

  

   
Zoo Licensing Act   

First ever licence 500.00 525.00 
Statutory six yearly inspection 250.00 262.50 

Periodic three year inspection 250.00 262.50 
Transfer of Licence 145.00 150.00 

   
Factual reports to Solicitors following accidents   

Factual report 125.00+VAT 128.50+VAT 
Photocopying £1 per sheet £1 per sheet 

Photographs Actual costs Actual costs 
   

Replacement licence certificates 20.00 + VAT 20.00 + VAT 

 
Licensing Discretionary Fees 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 
£ 

2014/15 
£ 

Street Trading   
Annual 730.00 750.00 

Seasonal 575.00 592.00 
3 months 325.00 335.00 

1 month 140.00 144.00 
Daily 98.00 100.00 

Replacement or amendment  20.00 

 
Traders 
size/days * 

1-3 days 
£ 

4-6 days 
£ 

7-9 days 
£ 

10-12 
days       £ 

13-15 
days       £ 

16+ days 
£ 

Small 
0-15 
 

 
226.00 

 
329.00 

 
432.00 

 
535.00 

 
638.00 

 
741.00 

Medium 
16-30 
 

 
546.00 

 
803.00 

 
1060.00 

 
1318.00 

 
1576.00 

 
1833.00 

High  
31+  
 

 
875.00 

 
1287.00 

 
1699.00 

 
2111.00 

 
2523.00 

 
2935.00 

* If an applicant applying for an event/events, applies for a number of days within a given time 
period, even if those days are not consecutive or not at the same location then the charge will be 
based upon total number of days applied for. However this cannot be done in retrospect.  
Community Partnership Events applications can be co-ordinated using the same criteria, even if 
the events are run by different Community Partnerships. 
One Street Trading Consent can then be issued for all those events applied for and they will be 
listed within the Consent.  

 
Charitable Street Trading Events supported by Torbay Council - Free (with agreement from Council) 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 9

Page 14



 
 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 

Hackney Carriage   
Annual 155.00 158.00 

Seasonal 98.00 100.00 
Horse drawn annual 113.00 115.00 

Seasonal ** 65.00 67.00 
Vehicle inspection 78.00 81.00 

Meter test 41.00 45.00 
Driver (New or renewal incl. Badge) 105.00 107.00 

Excl. Criminal Record Bureau check 77.00 79.00 
Drivers badge (replacement) 22.00 25.00 

Transfer (permanent or temporary)/change of vehicle 67.00 72.00 
Plate 57.00 58.50 

Replacement bracket  15.00 
Knowledge test 62.00 64.00 
Failure to attend renewal appointment for vehicle & driver 
licences (additional charges) *** 

35.00 36.00 

   
Private Hire   
Annual 138.00 140.00 

Vehicle inspection 78.00 81.00 
Driver (initial or renewal incl. Badge) 105.00 107.00 

Excl. Criminal Record Bureau check 77.00 79.00 
Drivers badge (replacement) 22.00 25.00 

Operator (per vehicle) 65.00 67.00 
Transfer (permanent or temporary)/change of vehicle 67.00 72.00 

Plate 57.00 58.50 
Replacement bracket  15.00 

Knowledge test 62.00 64.00 
Failure to attend renewal appointment for vehicle & driver 
licences (additional charge)*** 

35.00 36.00 

Door signs per pair 15.00 15.00 
   
New Drivers   

Handbook & replacements (incl VAT) 15.00 inc VAT 15.00 inc 
VAT 

   
Sex Shop Establishment: New Application (non refundable) 5697.00 6000.00 

Sex Shop Establishment: Annual Licence Fee (non refundable) 5697.00 3500.00 
Sex Shop Establishment: Transfer of Licence (non refundable) 5697.00 3500.00 

Sexual Entertainment Venue: New Application (non refundable) 5697.00 6000.00 
Sexual Entertainment Venue: Annual Licence Fee (non 
refundable) 

5697.00 3500.00 

Sexual Entertainment Venue: Transfer of Licence (non 
refundable) 

5697.00 3500.00 

   
Sportsgrounds   

General or Special Safety Certificate (Sportsgrounds) - new 515.00 530.00 
General or Special Safety Certificate (Sportsgrounds) – alteration 
requested by sportsgrounds 

257.00 265.00 

 
** For a period of 7 months, commencing with the Easter School Holidays. 
 

Page 15



 
***Failure to keep an appointment for a CRB check or for a renewal appointment (vehicle or driver) 
without 1 days prior notice will incur an administrative charge. 

 
 
Gambling Fees 
 

 Small 
Casinos 

(£) 

Casino 
(existing) 

(£) 

Bingo 
Premises 

(£) 
 

Betting 
Premises 
(Tracks) 

(£) 

Betting 
Premises 
(Other) 
(£) 

Adult 
Gaming 
Centres 

(£) 

Licensed 
FEC 
(£) 

Application for 
new premises 
licence 

 
8000 

 
- 

 
3500 

 
2500 

 
3000 

 
2000 

 
2000 

Application to 
vary premises 
licence 

 
4000 
 

 
2000 

 
1750 

 
1250 

 
1500 

 
1000 

 
1000 

 
1st Annual Fee 
 

 
5000 

 
3000 

 
1000 

 
1000 

 
600 

 
1000 

 
750 

Application to 
transfer the 
premises 
licence   

 
1800 

 
1350 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

Application for 
re-instatement 
of premises 
licence 

 
1800 

 
1350 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

Application for a 
provisional 
statement 

 
8000 

 
- 

 
3500 

 
2500 

 
3000 

 
2000 

 
2000 

Application for a 
premises 
licence for a 
premises which 
already has a 
provisional 
statement 

 
3000 

 
- 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
1200 

 
1200 

 
950 

 
 

Page 16



 
Trading Standards Discretionary Fees 
 
When a visit is made by a Trading Standards Officer to any premises for the purpose of carrying 
out any of the functions or activities listed below, each visit may be subject to a minimum charge of 
£72.00 per Officer per visit regardless of the nature or amount of work requested or completed. 
 
Visits carried out partly or entirely outside of normal office hours may incur a surcharge of 50% of 
the standard fee or of the standard hourly rate per Officer per hour. 
 
Previous discussions with HM Customs & Excise had concluded that fees with the exception of 
those put forward for the purposes of Section 74 of the Weights and Measures Act 1985, were 
NOT subject to VAT.  This is because the work of local authorities was classified as a ‘non-
business’ activity.  However, the situation has now changed.  Where applicable, VAT is included in 
the guidance provided.  See Customs & Excise Notice 749 – Local Authorities and Similar Bodies 
(April 2002) for further details.  NB – this may be subject to further review at any time, but is current 
at the time of writing (November 2007). 
 
This is written on the assumption that the proposed that the proposed Legislative Reform Order (to 
permit self-verification after adjustment) will come into effect on 1st April 2008.  If this were not to 
be the case, fees for such eventualities would continue to be VAT-exempt. 

 
 
Activity Cost Fee subject 

to additional 
VAT 

A. Measuring Instruments Directive   

In order to reflect additional costs associated with examination, 
testing and documentation, and maintenance of MID notified 
body status, certain classes of instrument covered by MID should 
be subject to additional charges as follows: 

  

• Automatic discontinuous totalisers, automatic rail 
weighbridges, automatic catchweighers, automatic 
gravimetric filling instruments and beltweighers 

• Cold water meters 

No extra 
charge 

Yes 

• Measuring instruments for liquid fuel and lubricants 

• Measuring instruments for liquid fuel delivered from road 
tankers 

10% 
surcharge 

Yes 

• Capacity serving measures 

• Material measures of length 

25% 
surcharge 

Yes 

Note: Fees increase for initial MID conformity assessment, but 
not subsequent reverification.  

  

Page 17



 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 
B.    Special Weighing and Measuring Equipment   

For examining, testing, certifying, stamping, authorising or 
reporting on any type of weighing and measuring equipment not 
specifically described in Parts B to J below.  Time spent is at the 
place at which the service is provided. 

 
£75.00 per 

Officer / hour 

 
£75.00 per 
Officer/ hour 

   
Such types of equipment specifically excluded from parts B to J 
below include:- 

  

1. Automatic or totalising weighing machines.   
2. Equipment designed to weigh loads in motion.   

3. Bulk fuel measuring equipment tested following a stamp 
having been obliterated in the circumstances set out in 
Regulation 65 or 66 of SI 1983 No. 1390 (minor 
modifications affecting air separator or printer 
arrangements) 

  

4. Weighing or measuring equipment tested by means of 
statistical sampling. 

  

5. The establishment of calibration curves for templets for 
measuring container bottles. 

  

6. Templets graduated in millilitres.   
7. Testing or other services in pursuance of a European 

Community obligation other than EC initial or partial 
verification. 

  

   
C. Weights   

 At M2 level with UKAS certification. 40.00 40.00 
   
D. Measures   
1. Linear measures not exceeding 3m, for each scale. 40.00 40.00 

2. Capacity measures without divisions not exceeding 1 litre. 40.00 40.00 
3. Cubic ballast measures (other than brim measures)  155.00 155.00 

4. Capacity measures within divisions, not exceeding 1 litre, 
including those for making up and checking average 
quantity packages. 

65.00 65.00 

5. Templets graduated in millimetres 
a) per scale, first templet 

 
100.00 

 
100.00 

b) subsequent templets 50.00 50.00 

 
 

Page 18



 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 

E.    Weighing Instruments   
a) Non-EC   

 Not exceeding 15kg 55.00 55.00 
 Exceeding 15kg to 100kg 55.00 55.00 

 Exceeding 100kg to 250kg 55.00 55.00 
 Exceeding 250kg to 1 tonne 95.00 95.00 

 Exceeding 1 tonne 155.00 155.00 
   
b) EC (NAWI)   
 Not exceeding 250kg 85.00 85.00 

 Exceeding 250kg to 1 tonne 150.00 150.00 
 Exceeding 1 tonne 250.00 250.00 

   
2. Weighing instruments as above but incorporating remote 

display or printing facilities. 
Basic fee + 

50% 
Basic fee + 

50% 

   
3. In addition to the fee shown the actual cost to the 

Authority of hiring and transporting the necessary test 
equipment. 

 This additional charge will not be made if the submitter 
provides test equipment to the inspectors satisfaction with 
a recent test certificate from a Local Authority metrology 
laboratory, or UKAS accredited metrology laboratory. 

  

   
F. Measuring Instruments for Intoxicating Liquor   
1. Not exceeding 150ml 38.00 38.00 

2. Other 52.00 52.00 
   
G. Measuring Instruments for Liquid Fuel and Lubricants   
1. Container type (unsubdivided) 65.00 65.00 

   
2. Single/multi-outlet (nozzles)   

a) first nozzle tested, per site 115.00 115.00 
b) each additional nozzle tested 55.00 55.00 

   
3. Instruments as above with ancillary equipment such as 

credit card acceptors or note/coin acceptors which require 
additional testing. 

72.00 72.00 

   
4. Testing of peripheral electronic equipment on a separate 

visit. 
£75.00 per 

officer / hour 
£75.00 per 
officer/hour 

 

Page 19



 
 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 

H.    Road Tanker Fuel Measuring (above 100 litres)   
The fixed fee shown below and, in addition, the actual cost to the 
Authority of hiring and transporting the necessary test equipment.  
This additional charge will not be made if the submitter provides 
test equipment to the inspectors satisfaction with a recent test 
certificate from a Local Authority metrology laboratory, or UKAS 
accredited metrology laboratory. 

  

1. Meter measuring systems   
a) Wet hose type with two testing liquids 106.00 106.00 

b) Wet hose type with three testing liquids 122.00 122.00 
c) Dry hose type with two testing liquids 124.00 124.00 

d) Dry hose type with three testing liquids 147.00 147.00 
e) Wet/dry hose with two testing liquids 175.00 175.00 

f) Wet/dry hose with three testing liquids 195.00 195.00 
   

2. Replacement dipstick - including examination of 
compartment. 

  

   
I. Fees for EC Purposes   
Testing of weighing or measuring equipment (other than non-
automatic weighing instruments) with a view to EU initial or 
partial verification. 

  

The fee given above for same class of equipment plus 20%   
For other services or facilities provided, or authorisations, 
certificates or other documents issued in pursuance of any 
European Community obligation. 

  

Per officer/hour spent at the place where the service is provided. 75.00 75.00 
   
J. Fees for Section 74(4) of the Weights and Measures 

Act 1985 
  

Weighing or measuring equipment submitted for test at the 
submitter’s request. 

  

   

For the examination, testing and report on equipment of a type 
described in the sections above, the appropriate fee (with the 
addition of VAT) for the same class of equipment (or class of 
equipment to which the item submitted most closely relates) 

  

The service of testing weighing equipment calibrated in 
imperial units will no longer be provided. 

  

   

LPG equipment will, in addition to the above fees shown in 
Section F, attract the cost of the authority hiring the appropriate 
equipment. 

  

For the examination, testing and report on other equipment or the 
weighing or measuring of goods, per officer/hour at the place 
where the service is provided. 

75.00 + VAT  75.00 + 
VAT 

 
 

Page 20



 

Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 
£ 

2014/15 
£ 

K.    Miscellaneous   
Cancelled appointments (This fee, plus any costs incurred, may 
be charged). 

75.00 75.00 

Certificate of errors.  For supplying a certificate upon the request 
of the submitter when no other fee is payable. 

36.00 36.00 

   
L. Poisons Act   
 Initial Registration 52.00 52.00 
 Renewal of Registration 41.00 41.00 

 Changes in Details of Registration in relation to the 
premise, other than at renewal 

41.00 41.00 

   

 

Page 21



 

Environmental Protection Discretionary Fees 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 

Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 210.00 215.00**  
Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963 renewal 110.00 115.00**  

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   

Pet Animals Act 1951 210.00 215.00** 
Pet Animals Act 1951 – renewal  110.00 115.00** 

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   

Riding Establishments Act 1964 and 1970 £320.00** 
min. and 
£15.00 per 
horse in 
excess of 5 

£330.00** 
min and 
£15.00 per 
horse in 
excess of 5 

**Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   

Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 440.00 453.00** 
**Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 210.00 215.00** 

Breeding of Dogs Act 1973 renewal 110.00 115.00** 
**Plus costs of vets fees as required   

   
Performing Animals registration 105.00 108.00** 

** Plus costs of vets fees as required   
   
Miscellaneous Charges   
   

Motor Salvage Operators Licence  105.00 110.25 
   

Carriage of Stray Dogs 60.00 62.00 
Carriage of Stray Dogs (Government Fine £25.00) plus dog 
warden transportation costs 

85.00 87.00 

Payment Plan Arrangement Fee 10.00 10.00 

   
Private Water Supply Charges   
Risk Assessment 195.00 200.00 

Sampling Visit 75.00 + 
analysis costs 

80.00 + 
analysis 
costs 

Investigation 100.00 105.00 

Granting Authorisation 100.00 105.00 
Missed Appointment 30.00 36.00 

   
Scrap Metal Act   

Site Licence Application Fee (3 years) N/A 800.00 
Collectors Licence Application Fee N/A 400.00 

Variation Cost N/A 93.00 
Renewal Fee – Site Licence N/A 600.00 

Renewal Fee - Collector N/A 300.00 

 

Page 22



 

 
Private Sector Housing – Discretionary Fees 
 
Type of 
Registration/Licence/Fee 

2013/14 
£ 

2014/15 
£ 

HMO Licensing 
HMO Licensing – assisted 
application 

775.00 
775.00 

800.00  
800.00 

Charges for Housing Act Notices  Variable from 100.00 to 300.00 
plus reasonable costs incurred 

by the Council 

Variable from 100.00 to 
300.00 plus reasonable 

costs incurred by the Council 
Immigration Inspection Fee 100.00 120.00 

Administrative Charge for 
landlords who fail to submit 
documentation when requested 

30.00  36.00 

Works in Default (minimum admin 
charge) 

 £100 or 30% of total works 
(whichever is greater) 

 
General Fees 
 
Type of Registration/Licence/Fee 2013/14 

£ 
2014/15 

£ 

Personal Search/Solicitor Enquiries 62.00 64.00 

Contaminated Land Searches 72.00 per 
hour 

72.00 per hour 

Consent under CNEA to distribute free printed matter – one 
distributer 

95.00 100.00 

For each additional distributer up to a maximum of six  20.00 

 
 
Note: Visits carried out partly or entirely outside normal office hours may incur a surcharge of 50% 
on the standard fee or on the standard hourly rate per Officer hour. 

 
 
 

Page 23



Assembly Hall

FULL RATE 2% Increase

BASIC HIRE, PER HOUR (Minimum 

session hire 5 hours)
25.00                 25.50                 

Late surcharge, per hour (after 11pm)
50.71                 51.72                 

Sunday surcharge, per hour
11.60                 11.83                 

Kitchen
13.80                 14.08                 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 10

Page 24



DISCOUNT 2% Increase

20.00                 20.40                 

50.71                 51.72                 

11.60                 11.83                 

13.80                 14.08                 

Page 25



Paignton Library

FULL RATE 2% Increase

Triple meeting room (10, 11, 12)*
20.00                 20.40                 

Double meeting room (10, 11) or (11, 12)*
18.00                 18.36                 

Single Meeting room (10) or (11) or (12) or (13)*
12.00                 12.24                 

Single meeting room (13)
12.00                 12.24                 

Learning Centre(VAT)
15.00                 15.30                 

Media Room(VAT)
5.00                    5.10                    

Page 26



DISCOUNT 2% Increase

9.00                    9.18                    

8.00                    8.16                    

5.50                    5.61                    

5.50                    5.61                    

9.00                    9.18                    

2.50                    2.55                    

Page 27



Financial Services - Fees and Charges 
 
 

 
 

Current 
2013/14 

Proposed 
2014/15 

   

Court Costs (Per liability order) £85.00 £85.00 
 

Credit Card Transaction charge (only charged on payments in respect 
of Council Tax and Business Rates) 

2% 2% 

Penalty Charge for failure to provide information requested for Council 
Tax purposes  

£70 £70 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 11

Page 28



Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 12

Page 29



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

 

 A Guide to the Fees for Planning Applications in England  
 
The fees apply from 26 February 2010 to 21 November 2012  

 
 This document is based upon ‘The Town and Country Planning (Fees for Applications, 
Deemed Applications, Requests and Site Visits) (England) Regulations 2012’  
 

The fee should be paid at the time the application is submitted. If you are unsure of 
the fee applicable, please contact your Local Planning Authority. 

 

 

 All Outline Applications  
£385 per 0.1 hectare for sites up 
to and including 2.5 hectares  

Not more than 2.5 
hectares  

£385 per 0.1 
hectare  

£9,527 + £115 for each 0.1 in 

excess of 2.5 hectares to a 
maximum of £125,000  

More than 2.5 hectares  £9,527 + £115 

per  

 

 

 Householder Applications  
Alterations/extensions to a 
single dwelling, including 

works within boundary  

Single dwelling  £172  

 

 

 Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters)  

Alterations/extensions to two or 
more dwellings, including works 

within boundaries  

Two or more dwellings 
(or two or more flats)  

£339  

New dwellings (up to and 
including 50)  

New dwellings (not more 
than 50)  

£385 per 
dwelling  

New dwellings (for more than 
50) £19,049 + £115 per 

additional dwelling in excess of 50 
up to a maximum fee of £250,000  

New dwellings (more than 
50)  

£19,049 + £115 
per additional 

dwelling  

 

 
 Continued on next page… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 13

Page 30



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters) continued…  

Erection of buildings (not dwellings, agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor 
machinery):  

Gross floor space to be created by 

the development  

No increase in gross floor 

space or no more than 40 
sq m  

£195  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

More than 40 sq m but no 
more than 75 sq m  

£385  

Gross floor space to be created by 

the development  

More than 75 sq m but no 

more than 3,750 sq m 

£385 for each 

75sq m or part 
thereof  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

More than 3,750 sq m  £19,049 + £115 
for each 

additional 75 sq 
m in excess of 

3750 sq m to a 
maximum of 

£250,000  

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural 
purposes)  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

Not more than 465 sq m  £80  

Gross floor space to be created by 

the development  

More than 465 sq m but 

not more than 540 sq m  

£385  

Gross floor space to be created by 

the development  

More than 540 sq m but 

not more than 4,215 sq m  

£385 for first 

540 sq m + 
£385 for each 

75 sq m (or 
part thereof) in 

excess of 540 
sq m  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

More than 4,215 sq m  £19,049 + £115 
for each 75 sq 

m (or part 
thereof) in 

excess of 4,215 
sq m up to a 

maximum of 
£250,000  

 

 
Continued on next page… 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 31



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

Full Applications (and First Submissions of Reserved Matters) continued…  

Erection of glasshouses (on land used for the purposes of agriculture)  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

Not more than 465 sq m  £80  

Gross floor space to be created by 
the development  

More than 465 sq m  £2,150  

Erection/alterations/replacement of plant and machinery  

Site area  Not more than 5 hectares  £385 for each 

0.1 hectare (or 
part thereof)  

Site area  More than 5 hectares  £19,049 + 
additional £115 

for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 

thereof) in 
excess of 5 

hectares to a 
maximum of 

£250,000  

 

Applications other than Building Works  

Car parks, service roads or 
other accesses  

For existing uses  £195  

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of 

material remaining after extraction or storage of minerals)  

Site area  Not more than 15 

hectares  

£195 for each 

0.1 hectare (or 
part thereof)  

Site area  More than 15 hectares  £29,112 + £115 

for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 

thereof) in 
excess of 15 

hectares up to a 
maximum of 

£65,000  

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas  

Site area  Not more than 7.5 

hectares  

£385 for each 

0.1 hectare (or 
part thereof)  

Site area  More than 7.5 hectares  £28,750 + 
additional £115 

for each 0.1 
hectare (or part 

thereof) in 
excess of 7.5 

hectares up to a 
maximum of 

£250,000  

Continued on next page… 

Page 32



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

Other operations (winning and working of minerals)  

Site area  Not more than 15 
hectares  

£195 for each 
0.1 hectare (or 

part thereof)  

Site area  More than 15 hectares  £29,112 + 
additional £115 

for each 0.1 in 
excess of 15 

hectare up to a 
maximum of 
£65,000  

Other operations (not coming 

within any of the above 
categories)  

Any site area  £195 for each 

0.1 hectare (or 
part thereof) up 

to a maximum of 
£1,690  

 

Lawful Development Certificate  

LDC – Existing Use - in breach of a planning 
condition  

Same as Full  

LDC – Existing Use LDC - lawful not to 
comply with a particular condition  

£195  

LDC – Proposed Use  Half the normal planning fee.  

 

Prior Approval  

Agricultural and Forestry buildings & operations 

or demolition of buildings  

£80  

Telecommunications Code Systems Operators  £385  

 

Reserved Matters  

Application for approval of reserved matters 
following outline approval  

Full fee due or if full fee 
already paid then £385 due  

 

Approval/Variation/discharge of condition  

Application for removal or variation of a condition 
following grant of planning permission  

£195  

Request for confirmation that one or more 

planning conditions have been complied with  

£28 per request for 

Householder otherwise £97 
per request  

 

Continued on next page… 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

Change of Use of a building to use as one or more separate 

dwellinghouses, or other cases  

Number of dwellings  Not more than 50  
dwellings  

£385 for each  

Number of dwellings  More than 50 dwellings  £19,049 + 
£115 for each 

in excess of 
50 up to a 

maximum of 
£250,000  

Other Changes of Use of a building or land  £385  

 

Advertising  

Relating to the business on the premises  £110  

Advance signs which are not situated on 
or visible from  

the site, directing the public to a 
business  

£110  

Other advertisements  £385  

 

Application for a New Planning Permission to replace an Extant Planning 
Permission  

Applications in respect of major developments  £575  

Applications in respect of householder 
developments  

£57  

Applications in respect of other developments  £195  

 

Application for a Non-material Amendment Following a Grant of 

Planning Permission  

Applications in respect of householder 
developments  

£28  

Applications in respect of other 
developments  

£195  

 

Continued on next page… 

  

Page 34



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

CONCESSIONS  

EXEMPTIONS FROM PAYMENT  

For alterations, extensions, etc. to a dwelling house for the benefit of a 
registered disabled person  

An application solely for the carrying out of the operations for the purpose of 
providing a means of access for disabled persons to or within a building or 

premises to which members of the public are admitted  

Listed Building Consent  

Conservation Area Consent  

Works to Trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or in a Conservation Area  

Hedgerow Removal  

If the proposal is the first revision of an application for development of the same 
character or description on the same site by the same applicant within 12 

months of making the earlier application if withdrawn or the date of decision if 
granted or refused (including signs only if withdrawn or refused) and NOT a 
duplicate application made by the same applicant within 28 days  

If the proposal relates to works that require planning permission only by virtue of 

an Article 4 Direction of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995. I.e. where the application is required only because of 

a direction or planning condition removing permitted development rights.  

If the application is for a lawful development certificate, for existing use, where 

an application for planning permission for the same development would be 
exempt from the need to pay a planning fee under any other planning fee 

regulation  

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement following either a 
withdrawal of an earlier application (before notice of decision was issued) or 

where the application is made following refusal of consent for display of an 
advertisement, and where the application is made by or on behalf of the same 

person  

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement which results from a 

direction under Regulation 7 of the 2007 Regulations, dis-applying deemed 
consent under Regulation 6 to the advertisement in question  

If the application is for alternate proposals for the same site by the same 

applicant, in order to benefit from the permitted development right in Schedule 2 
Part 3 Class E of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995  

 

Continued on next page… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



Planning Portal - Application Fees  November 2012 – V2.2 

CONCESSIONS continued…  

REDUCTIONS TO PAYMENTS  

If the application is being made on behalf of a non-profit making sports club for 
works for playing fields not involving buildings then the fee is £385  

If the application is being made on behalf of a parish or community council then 
the fee is 50%  

If the application is an alternative proposal being submitted on the same site by 

the same applicant on the same day, where this application is of lesser cost then 
the fee is 50%  

In respect of reserved matters you must pay a sum equal to or greater than what 
would be payable at current rates for approval of all the reserved matters. If this 

amount has already been paid then the fee is £385  

If the application is for a Lawful Development Certificate for a Proposed use or 
development, then the fee is 50%  

If two or more applications are submitted for different proposals on the same day 
and relating to the same site then you must pay the fee for the highest fee plus 

half sum of the others  

Where an application relates to development which is within more than one fee 
category, the correct fee is simply the highest of the fees payable (if not 

including residential)  

Where an application consists of the erection of dwellings and the erection of 

other types of buildings (categories 1-4) the fees are added together and 
maximum can be exceeded  

Where an application crosses one or more local or district planning authorities 

then the fee is 150% and goes to the authority that contains the larger part of 
the application site or a sum of the fees if it is less than 150%  

 

Page 36



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 
 

 

SCHEME FOR THE RECOVERY OF BUILDING 

REGULATION CHARGES AND ASSOCIATED 

MATTERS 

  

TORBAY COUNCIL BUILDING 

CONTROL SERVICE 

 

Effective from 1
st
 October 2012 

 
TO BE READ IN CONJUNTION WITH THE BUILDING 
 [LOCAL AUTHORITY CHARGES] REGULATIONS 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 14

Page 37



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

SCHEME FOR THE RECOVERY OF BUILDING 
REGULATION CHARGES 

Definitions 
  
The following definitions apply to this Charging Scheme and should be read in 
conjunction with the other clauses and tables which constitute the Charging 
Scheme: 
  
‘building’  
means any permanent or temporary building but not any other kind of structure or 
erection, and a reference to a building includes a reference to part of a building.  
‘building notice’  
means a notice given in accordance with regulations 12(2) (a) and 13 of the 
Building Regulations 2010. 
‘building work’ means:  
(a) the erection or extension of a building;  
(b) the provision or extension of a controlled service or fitting in or in connection 
with a building;  
(c) the material alteration of a building, or a controlled service or fitting;  
(d) work required by building regulation 6 (requirements relating to material 
change of use);  
(e) the insertion of insulating material into the cavity wall of a building;  
(f) work involving the underpinning of a building;  
(g) work required by building regulation 23 (requirements relating to thermal 
elements);  
(h) work required by building regulation 22 (requirements relating to a change of 
energy status);  
(i) work required by building regulation 28 (consequential improvements to energy 
performance);  
‘chargeable function’ means a function relating to the following –  
(a) the passing or rejection of plans of proposed building work which has been 

deposited with the council in accordance with section 16 of the Building Act 
1984 (as amended).  

(b) the inspection of building work for which plans have been deposited with the 
council in accordance with the Building Regulation 2010 and with section 16 
of the Building Act 1984 (as amended)  

(c) the consideration of a building notice which has been given to the council in 
accordance with the Building Regulations 2010  

(d) the consideration of building work reverting to the council under the Building 
(Approved Inspectors etc.) Regulations 2010  

(e) the consideration of a regularisation application submitted to the council under 
regulation 18 of the Building Regulations 2010  
‘cost’ does not include any professional fees paid to an architect, quantity 
surveyor or any other person.  
‘dwelling’ includes a dwelling-house and a flat.  
‘dwelling-house’ does not include a flat or a building containing a flat. ‘flat’ 
means a separate and self-contained premises constructed or adapted for use for 
residential purposes and forming part of a building from some other part of which 
it is divided horizontally.  
‘floor area of a building or extension’ is the total floor area of all the storeys 

which comprise that building. It is calculated by reference to the finished 
internal faces of the walls enclosing the area, or, if at any point there is no 
enclosing wall, by reference to the outermost edge of the floor.  

 

Page 38



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

‘relevant person’ means:  
(a) in relation to a plan charge, inspection charge, reversion charge or building 
notice charge, the person who carries out the building work or on whose behalf 
the building work is carried out;  
(b) in relation to a regularisation charge, the owner of the building; and  
(c) in relation to chargeable advice, any person requesting advice for which a 
charge may be made pursuant to the definition of ‘chargeable advice’  
 

Principles of this Scheme 
  
The set charges or method of establishing the charge have been established in 
this scheme for the functions prescribed in the Building (Local Authority Charges) 
Regulations 2010 (referred to as the chargeable functions), namely: 
  
 A plan charge, payable when plans of the building work are deposited 
with the Local Authority. Where charges are related to domestic extensions or 
other work with an estimated cost of up to £100,000 the inspection charge should 
be paid with the plan charge when plans are deposited.   
 
 An inspection charge, where charges are related to domestic extensions 
or other work with an estimated cost of up to £100,000 the inspection charge 
should be paid with the plan charge when plans are deposited. Other inspection 
charges will be payable on demand after the authority carry out the first 
inspection in respect of which the charge is payable.  
 
 A building notice charge, payable when the building notice is given to 
the authority.  
 
 A reversion charge, payable for building work in relation to a building: -  
 

1. Which has been substantially completed before plans are first deposited 
with the Authority in accordance with Regulation 20(2) (a) (i) of the 
Approved Inspectors Regulations, or  

2. In respect of which plans for further building work have been deposited 
with the Authority in accordance with the Regulation 20(3) of the 
Approved Inspectors Regulations, on the first occasion on which those 
plans are or have been deposited. 

  
 A regularisation charge, payable at the time of the application to the 
authority in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Building Regulations 2010.  

Page 39



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 
 Chargeable advice, LAs can make a charge for giving advice in 
anticipation of the future exercise of their chargeable functions (i.e. before an 
application or notice is received for a particular case), which is payable after the 
first hour of advice, on demand after the authority has given notice required by 
Regulation 7(7) of the Building (Local Authority) Charges Regulations 2010 (i.e. 
the charge has been confirmed in writing following an individual determination). 
  A charge for a second hour and a site inspection of up to one hour is 
included in the standard charge. For all other charges, this charge can be 
discounted from a subsequent application or notice received for the work in 
question.  
 
 The above charges are payable by the relevant person (see page 11 for 
definition).  
 
 Any charge which is payable to the authority may, in a particular case, and 
with the agreement of the authority, be paid by instalments of such amounts 
payable on such dates as may be specified by the authority. If the applicant and 
an authority are agreeable, an inspection charge can be fully or partly paid up 
front with the plans charge.  
 
 The charge for providing a chargeable function or chargeable advice is 
based on the principle of achieving full cost recovery. The charges will be 
calculated by using the Council officers’ average hourly rate stated in the 
charging scheme, multiplied by the time taken to carry out the functions/advice, 
taking the following factors into account, as applicable, in estimating the time 
required by officers to carry out the function/advice:  
 
1. The existing use of a building, or the proposed use of the building after 

completion of the building work;  

2. The different kinds of building work described in regulation 3(1)(a) to (j) of the 
Building Regulations 2010;  

3. The floor area of the building or extension;  

4. The nature of the design of the building work and whether innovative or high 
risk construction techniques are to be used;  

5. The estimated duration of the building work and the anticipated number of 
inspections to be carried out;  

6. The estimated cost of the building work;  

7. Whether a person who intends to carry out part of the building work is a 
person mentioned in regulation 20 of the Building Regulations 2010 (i.e. 
related to competent person/self certification schemes);  

 
8. Whether in respect of the building work a notification will be made in 

accordance with regulation 41(4) of the Building Regulations 2010 (i.e. where 
design details approved by Robust Details Ltd have been used);  

 
9. Whether an application or building notice is in respect of two or more 

buildings or building works all of which are substantially the same as each 
other;  

 
10. Whether an application or building notice is in respect of building work, which 

is substantially the same as building work in respect of which plans have 
previously been deposited or building works inspected by the same local 
authority;  

Page 40



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 Whether chargeable advice has been given which is likely to result in less 
time being taken by a local authority to perform that function;  

 Whether it is necessary to engage and incur the costs of a consultant to 
provide specialist advice in relation to a particular aspect of the building work.  

 
Principles of the scheme in respect of the erection of domestic buildings, 
garages, carports and extensions  
 
G. Where the charge relates to an erection of a dwelling the charge includes 
for the provision of a detached or attached domestic garage or carport providing it 
is constructed at the same time as the dwelling.  
 
G. Where any building work comprises or includes the erection of more than 
one extension to a building, the total floor areas of all such extensions shall be 
aggregated to determine the relevant charge payable, providing that the building 
work for all aggregated extensions is carried out at the same time.  
 
Exemption from charges 
  
The Authority has not fixed by means of its scheme, nor intends to recover a 
charge in relation to an existing dwelling that is, or is to be, occupied by a 
disabled person as a permanent residence; and where the whole of the building 
work in question is solely- 
  
(a) for the purpose of providing means of access for the disabled person by way 
of entrance or exit to or from the dwelling or any part of it, or 
  
(b) for the purpose of providing accommodation or facilities designed to secure 
the greater health, safety, welfare or convenience of the disabled person.  
 
The council has not fixed by means of its scheme, nor intends to recover a 
charge for the purpose of providing accommodation or facilities designed to 
secure the greater health, safety, welfare or convenience of a disabled person in 
relation to an existing dwelling, which is, or is to be, occupied by that disabled 
person as a permanent residence where such work consists of- 
  
(a) the adaptation or extension of existing accommodation or an existing facility or 
the provision of alternative accommodation or an alternative facility where the 
existing accommodation or facility could not be used by the disabled person or 
could be used by the disabled person only with assistance; or  
 
(b) the provision of extension of a room which is or will be used solely-  
 

(i) for the carrying out for the benefit of the disabled person of medical 
treatment which cannot reasonably be carried out in any other room 
in the dwelling, or  

(ii)  for the storage of medical equipment for the use of the disabled 
person, or 

(iii) to provide sleeping accommodation for a carer where the disabled 
person requires 24-hour care.  

 
 

The council has not fixed by means of its scheme, nor intends to recover a 
charge in relation to an existing building to which members of the public are 

Page 41



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

admitted (whether on payment or otherwise); and where the whole of the building 
work in question is solely-  
(a) for the purpose of providing means of access for disabled persons by way of 
entrance or exit to or from the building or any part of it; or  
 
(b) for the provision of facilities designed to secure the greater health, safety, 
welfare or disabled persons.  
 
Note: ‘disabled person’ means a person who is within any of the descriptions of 

persons to whom Section 29(1) of the National Assistance Act 1948, as 
extended by virtue of Section 8(2) of the Mental Health Act 1959, applied 
but disregarding the amendments made by paragraph 11 of Schedule 13 to 
the Children Act 1989.The words in section 8(2) of the Mental Health Act 
1959 which extend the meaning of disabled person in section 29(1) of the 
National Assistance Act 1948, are prospectively repealed by the National 
Health Service and Community Care Act 1990, section 66(2), Schedule 10, 
as from a day to be appointed. 

  
Information required to determine charges 
  
If the authority requires additional information to enable it to determine the correct 
charge the authority can request the information under the provisions of 
regulation 9 of The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulation 2010.  
The standard information required for all applications is detailed on the authority’s 
Building Regulation application forms. This includes the existing and proposed 
use of the building and a description of the building work. 
 
Additional information may be required in relation to –  
 
G. The floor area of the building or extension  
 
G. The estimated duration of the building work and the anticipated number of      
 inspections to be carried out.  
 
G. The use of competent persons or Robust Details Ltd.  
 
G. Any accreditations held by the builder or other member of the design 
 team.  
 
G. The nature of the design of the building work and whether innovative or 
 high-risk construction is to be used.  
 
G. The estimated cost of the building work. If this is used as one of the 
 factors in establishing a charge the ‘estimate’ is required to be such 
 reasonable amount as would be charged by a person in business to carry 
 out such building work (excluding the amount of any value added tax 
 chargeable).  

Page 42



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 

Establishing the Charge  
 
The authority has established standard charges using the principles contained 
within The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulation 2010. Standard charges 
are detailed in the following tables. In the tables below any reference to number 
of storeys includes each basement level as one-storey and floor areas are 
cumulative. If the building works that you are undertaking is not listed as a 
standard charge it will be individually determined in accordance with the 
principles and relevant factors contained within The Building (Local Authority 
Charges) Regulation 2010. If the authority considers it necessary to engage and 
incur the costs of a consultant to provide specialist advice or services in relation 
to a particular aspect of building work, those costs shall also be included in 
setting the charge.  
 
When the charge is individually determined the authority shall calculate the 
charge in the same way a standard charge was set by using the average hourly 
rate of officers’ time, multiplied by the estimated time taken to carry out their 
building regulation functions in relation to that particular piece of building work 
and taking into account the applicable factors listed in regulation 7(5) of the 
charges regulations. 
  
Individually determined charges will be confirmed in writing specifying the amount 
of the charge and the factors that have been taken into account in determining 
the charge. 
  
The building regulation charges for the following types of building work will be 
individually determined and the authority will state which factors in regulation 7(5) 
of the charges regulations it has taken into account in establishing a standard or 
individually determined charge. 
  

(i) A reversion charge (this should always be included as an 
individually determined charge). 

 
(ii) The building work is in relation to more than one building or 

 
(iii) Building work consisting of alterations to any use of building where 

the estimated cost exceeds £100,000 or 
 
 

(iv) The work consists of the erection or conversion of 6 or more 
dwellings or 

 
 

(v) Where more than one standard charge applies to the building work 
and, with the agreement of the relevant person, the authority will 
establish the charge by individually determining the charge. 

  

Page 43



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 

Other matters relating to calculation of charges 
  
G. In calculating these charges, refunds or supplementary charges, an officer 
hourly rate of £52.50 has been used.  
 
G. Any charge payable to the authority shall be paid with an amount equal to 
any value added tax payable in respect of that charge.  
 
G. Charges are not payable for the first hour when calculating an advice 
charge  
 
G. The authority accepts payment by instalment in respect of all building work 
where the total charge exceeds £5,000. The authority on request will specify the 
amounts payable and dates on which instalments are to be paid  
 

Reductions  

 
Where in accordance with Regulation 7(5)(i) of the charges regulations one 
application or building notice is in respect of two or more buildings or building 
works all of which are substantially the same as each other a 25% reduction in 
the standard charge (e.g. plan/building notice/inspection charge) will be made. 
  
Where in accordance with Regulation 7(5) (j) of the charges regulations an 
application or building notice is in respect of building work which is substantially 
the same as building work in respect of which plans have previously been 
deposited or building works inspected by the same local authority, a 25% 
reduction in the plan and inspection charges will be made. 

  

The authority shall make a reduction in an individually determined charge when 
chargeable advice has been given before receipt of an application or notice for 
proposed building work, which is likely to result in less time being taken by the 
local authority to perform the chargeable function for that work. 

 

The authority may make other reductions in standard charges, based on the 
standard hourly rate, by way of refunds where the time taken by the local 
authority to perform the chargeable function for that work is substantially reduced.    

Page 44



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 

Refunds and supplementary charges  
 
The LA will, on request, refund any Inspection Charge element that has been 
paid in advance of any relevant commencement of work where that work will not 
proceed on the basis of the application for which it was paid. 
 
If the basis on which any charge has been set or determined changes, the LA 
will, on request, refund or itself, request a supplementary charge and provide a 
written statement setting out the basis of the refund/supplementary charge and 
also state how this has been calculated. In the calculation of 
refunds/supplementary charges no account shall be taken of the first hour of an 
officer’s time. 
 
Non-Payment of a Charge 
 
 Your attention is drawn to Regulation 8(2) of the Building (Local Authority Charges) 
Regulations 2010, which explains that plans are not treated as being deposited for the 
purposes of Section 16 of the Building Act or building notices given unless the Council 
has received the correct charge. In other words, relevant timescales do not start until 
the agreed payment has been made. The debt recovery team of the authority will also 
pursue any non-payment of a charge. 
  
Complaints about Charges  
 
If you have a complaint about the level of charges you should initially raise your 
concern with the relevant officer. The council has a comprehensive complaint handling 
process. If your complaint is not satisfactorily responded to by the officer concerned, 
details of how to resolve your complaint is available on request and can be viewed on 
the council’s web site: www.torbay.gov.uk/buildingcontrol  
 
Transitional Provisions 
  
The Council’s scheme for the recovery of charges dated 1

st
 January 2010 continues to 

apply in relation to building work for which plans were first deposited, a building notice 
given, a reversion charge becoming payable, or a regularisation application is made, 

between 1st January 2010 and 31st
 September 2010 (inclusive).  

 
The Council’s scheme for the recovery of charges dated 1

st
 October 2010 continues to 

apply in relation to building work for which plans were first deposited, a building notice 
given, a reversion charge becoming payable, or a regularisation application is made, 
between 1

st
 October 2010  and 3rd January 2011 (inclusive).  

 
 
The Council’s scheme for the recovery of charges dated 3

rd
 January 2011 continues to 

apply in relation to building work for which plans were first deposited, a building notice 
given, a reversion charge becoming payable, or a regularisation application is made, 
between 3rd January 2011 and 30

th
 September 2012 (inclusive).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 
 
 
 

STANDARD CHARGES 
Standard charges includes works of drainage in connection with the 
erection or extension of a building or buildings, even where those works 
are commenced in advance of the plans for the building(s) being deposited.  
These standard charges have been set by the authority on the basis that 
the building work does not consist of, or include, innovative or high risk 
construction techniques (details available from the authority). The charges 
have also been set on the basis that the design and building work is 
undertaken by a person or company that is competent to carry out the 
design and building work referred to in the standard charges tables, that 
they are undertaking. If not, the work may incur supplementary charges.  
If chargeable advice has been given in respect of any of the work detailed in 
these tables and this is likely to result in less time being taken by the 
authority then a reduction to the standard charge may be made. 
  

Plan and Inspection Charges 
  
The plan charge and inspection charge are listed in the following tables.  
 
Building Notice Charge  
 
Where building work is of a relatively minor nature the Building Notice 
charge is the same as the total plan and inspection charge. In relation to 
more complex work the time to carry out the building regulation function is 
higher and the resultant additional costs of using the Building Notice 
procedure results in the higher charge as detailed in the following tables.  
 
Reversion Charge  
 
These charges will be individually determined. 
  
Regularisation Charge 
  
The charge is listed in the following tables and incorporates a charge 
element of 140% of the Building Notice Charge or the combined Plan and 
Inspection charge where a Building Notice can not be used. 

Page 46



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 

TABLE A  
STANDARD CHARGES FOR THE CREATION OR 

 CONVERSION TO NEW HOUSING 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Number of 
Dwellings  

Plan Charge  
£  

Inspection 
Charge  

£  

Building 
Notice Charge  

£  

Regularisation 
charge  

£  

(1)  

 

1  

2  

3  

4  

5  

6  

 

(2)  

 

595.83 

808.33 

225.00 

341.66 

425.00 

512.50 

 

(3)  

 

Nil 

Nil 

679.17 

850.00 

933.33 

1016.67 

 

(4)  
 

716.66 

966.66 

1083.33 

1433.33 

1630.00 

1833.33 

 

(5)  
 

835.00 

1135.00 

1265.00 

1670.00 

1910.00 

2145.00 

Page 47



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

Table B 
Domestic extensions and alterations to a single 

building 
 
 

Category Description Plan  
Charge 

Inspection 
Charge 

Building 
Notice 
Charge 

Regularisation 
Charge 

1 Extension  up to 
10m² 

 

79.00 237.00 375.00 530.00 

2 Extension  
between10m ² and 

up to 40m² 
 

122.92 368.75 700.00 825.00 

3 Extension floor 
area exceeding 40 

m² 
 

164.58 493.75 758.33 1060.00 

4 Loft conversion 
 

137.50 412.50 658.33 920.00 

5 Erection or 
extension of a non 
exempt detached 
domestic garage 

or carport. 
 

56.25 168.75 275.00 390.00 

6 Window 
replacement (non 

competent 
persons scheme). 

25.00 75.00 100.00 160.00 

7 Electrical work 
(not competent 

persons scheme). 

33.33 99.99 133.33 220.00 

8 The installation of 
any other 

controlled fitting 
that is not by an 
member of a 
competent 

Persons Scheme 

25.00 75.00 100.00 160.00 

9 Renovation of a 
thermal element to 
a single dwelling. 

25.00 75.00 100.00 160.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 48



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 
 
 

Table C 
All other work to a single domestic building 

 

 
 

  
 

Category of 
Work  

Basis of 
Charge  

Plan 
charge 

Inspection 
charge 

Building 
Notice 

Regularisation 

1 Other 
domestic 
work and 
alterations 
not 
described 
elsewhere.  

Estimated 
cost up to  
£2,000. 
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£2,000 
and up to 
£5,000  
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£5,000 
and up to 
£10,000 
  
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£10,000 
and up to 
£25,000 
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£25,000 
and up to 
£50,000  
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£50,000 
and up to 
£100,000  
 

35.42 
 
 
 
 

56.25 
 
 
 
 
 

68.75 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135.42 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187.50 

106.25 
 
 
 
 

168.75 
 
 
 
 
 

206.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

300.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

406.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

537.50 

166.67 
 
 
 
 

266.67 
 
 
 
 

 
333.33 

 
 
 
 

 
 

483.33 
 
 
 
 
 
 

650.00 
 
 
 
 
 
858.33 

240.00 
 
 
 
 

380.00 
 
 
 
 
 

460.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

670.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

910.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1260.00 

Page 49



Torbay Council Building Control Scheme of Charges October 2012 

 
Table D 

All other non-domestic work  

 
 
 

  
Category of Work 
  

Basis of 
Charge 

Plan 
charge 

Inspection 
charge 

 
Regularisation 

1 Other work 
and 
alterations 
not 
described 
elsewhere.  

Estimated 
cost up to 
£2,000  
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£2,000 and 
up to £5,000 
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£5,000 and 
up to 
£10,000 
 
 Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£10,000 and 
up to 
£25,000 
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£25,000 and 
up to 
£50,000  
 
Estimated 
cost 
exceeding 
£50,000 and 
up to 
£100,000  
 

35.42 
 
 
 

68.75 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79.17 
 
 
 
 

112.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 

143.75 
 
 
 
 

 
 
200.00 

106.25 
 
 
 

206.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

237.50 
 
 
 
 

337.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 

431.25 
 

 
 
 
 
 

600.00 

240.00 
 
 
 

460.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

530.00 
 
 
 
 

760.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 

970.00 
 
 
 

 
 
 

1350.00 

2 Renovation 
of a thermal 
element. 

Fixed fee 50.00 150.00 290.00 

Page 50



H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

H
IG
H
W
A
Y
S
 A
C
T
 1
9
8
0

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
c
t 
1
9
8
0

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 O
/S
 V
A
T

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

P
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 t

o
 p

la
ce

 s
k

ip
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
in

 H
/A

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 n

o
ti

ce

p
u

b
li

c 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 (

1
0

 d
a

y
s)

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 (
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

 d
a

y
s)

£
4

0
.0

0
£

4
1

.2
5

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

3
9

)
O

u
ts

id
e

 H
/A

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 n

o
ti

ce

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

1
0

 d
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 l

e
ss

)
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
R

E
M

O
V

E
R

E
M

O
V

E

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
b

st
ru

ct
s

a
n

 o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 b
a

y
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

lo
ss

 o
f 

re
v

e
n

u
e

£
2

0
.5

0
£

2
1

.0
0

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

S
ca

ff
o

ld
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
a

n
tr

y
 l

ic
e

n
ce

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

in
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

6
9

)
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 (

1
0

 d
a

y
s)

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 (
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

 d
a

y
s)

£
4

0
.0

0
£

4
1

.2
5

O
u

ts
id

e
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

1
0

 d
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 l

e
ss

)
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
R

E
M

O
V

E
R

E
M

O
V

E

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
b

st
ru

ct
s

a
n

 o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 b
a

y
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

lo
ss

 o
f 

re
v

e
n

u
e

£
2

0
.5

0
£

2
1

.0
0

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

C
o

n
se

n
t 

to
 d

e
p

o
si

t 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

in
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 /
 m

a
k

e
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
p

e
ri

o
d

 (
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

 d
a

y
s)

£
4

0
.0

0
£

4
1

.2
5

e
x

ca
v

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
.

O
u

ts
id

e
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

7
1

)
p

e
ri

o
d

 (
1

0
 d

a
y

s 
o

r 
le

ss
)

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
b

st
ru

ct
s

a
n

 o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 b
a

y
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

lo
ss

 o
f 

re
v

e
n

u
e

£
2

0
.5

0
£

2
1

.0
0

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

C
o

n
se

n
t 

n
o

t 
to

 e
re

ct
 h

o
a

rd
in

g
 o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
in

 H
/A

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 n

o
ti

ce

fe
n

ce
 d

u
ri

n
g

 b
u

il
d

in
g

o
f 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

3
 d

a
y

s 
o

r 
le

ss
)

£
4

0
.0

0
£

4
1

.2
5

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

7
2

)
O

u
ts

id
e

 H
/A

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 n

o
ti

ce

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

3
 d

a
y

s 
o

r 
le

ss
)

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
7

6
.5

0
£

7
8

.7
5

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
b

st
ru

ct
s

a
n

 o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g

 b
a

y
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

lo
ss

 o
f 

re
v

e
n

u
e

£
2

0
.5

0
T

B
C

a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

a
rd

in
g

 o
r 

fe
n

ce
 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

s 
m

a
d

e
 b

y
 H

/A
 t

o
 

se
t 

u
p

 d
u

ri
n

g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
m

o
n

it
o

r 
co

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

7
2

 &
 1

7
3

)
st

a
tu

to
ry

 d
u

ti
e

s

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

 &
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 F

O
R

 1
4

-1
5

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 15

Page 51



L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
c
t 
1
9
8
0

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 O
/S
 V
A
T

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
ce

ll
a

rs
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

C
o

st

u
n

d
e

r 
st

re
e

t
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

7
9

)
W

h
e

re
 a

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

8
0

[1
])

o
f 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

li
g

h
t 

in
to

 c
e

ll
a

rs
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

C
o

st

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

8
0

 [
2

])
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ro
ss

in
g

s 
o

v
e

r 
fo

o
tw

a
y

s
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 t
o

 
W

o
rk

s 
e

x
e

cu
te

d
 b

y
 H

/A
 

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

C
o

st

a
n

d
 v

e
rg

e
s

e
x

e
cu

te
 s

u
ch

 w
o

rk
s 

a
s 

a
re

 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
r

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

8
4

)
sp

e
ci

fi
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 f
o

r
W

o
rk

s 
e

x
e

cu
te

d
 b

y
 

co
n

st
ru

ct
in

g
 a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 c

ro
ss

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
n

ts
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
o

r
£

4
0

.0
0

£
4

1
.2

5

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

C
le

a
ra

n
ce

 o
f 

a
cc

id
e

n
t 

d
e

b
ri

s
A

n
y

th
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 H

/A
 i

n
 

(S
e

ct
io

n
 4

1
 &

 1
3

0
)

co
n

n
e

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
ra

n
ce

 o
f

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

C
o

st

a
cc

id
e

n
t 

d
e

b
ri

s

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
li

c
T

h
is

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 r

e
la

te
s 

to
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

w
h

ic
h

 

d
o

 n
o

t 
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

  
C

o
u

n
ci

l'
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 e
g

 r
e

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
it

e
m

s 
fr

o
m

 

g
u

ll
ie

s

D
u

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

in
g

 h
o

u
rs

2
2

.5
0

 +
 V

A
T

2
3

.2
5

 +
 V

A
T

P
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 

C
a

fé
 P

e
rm

it
F

o
r 

th
e

 i
ss

u
e

 o
f 

a
 p

a
v

e
m

e
n

t

ca
fé

 p
e

rm
it

, 
u

se
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
ci

n
g

th
e

re
o

f.
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

im
e

s 
st

ip
u

la
te

d

o
n

 l
ic

e
n

se
.

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

n
ta

l 
ch

a
rg

e
s 

le
v

ie
d

 o
n

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

la
n

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

B
a
n
d
 1

-u
p

 t
o

 1
0

sq
m

-£
2

1
9

.5
0

 p
a

B
a
n
d
 2

- 
1

0
 t

o
 2

0
sq

m
-£

3
2

6
.5

0
 p

a
.

B
a
n
d
 3

 -
 2

0
 t

o
 3

0
sq

m
-£

4
3

9
 p

a
.

B
a
n
d
 4

 -
 o

v
e

r 
3

0
sq

m
-£

5
5

1
 p

a
.

B
a
n
d
 1

-u
p

 t
o

 1
0

sq
m

-£
2

2
6

.0
0

 p
a

B
a
n
d
 2

- 
1

0
 t

o
 2

0
sq

m
-£

3
3

6
.2

5
 p

a
.

B
a
n
d
 3

 -
 2

0
 t

o
 3

0
sq

m
-£

4
5

2
.2

5
 p

a
.

B
a
n
d
 4

 -
 o

v
e

r 
3

0
sq

m
-£

5
6

7
.5

0
 p

a
.

Page 52



R
O
A
D
 T
R
A
F
F
IC
 R
E
G
U
L
A
T
IO
N

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

R
o
a
d
 T
ra
ff
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 A
c
t

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

1
9
8
4

R
o

a
d

 c
lo

su
re

 &
 t

ra
ff

ic
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s
A

n
y

th
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
u

n
d

e
r 

se
ct

io
n

 1
4

 (
1

)

(S
e

ct
io

n
 1

4
[1

] 
&

 [
2

])
in

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 m
a

k
in

g
 

(o
v

e
r 

5
 d

a
y

s)
£

1
,1

8
7

.5
0

£
1

,2
2

3
.0

0

o
f 

a
n

 o
rd

e
r

S
ig

n
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
£

1
1

6
.5

0
£

1
2

0
.0

0

T
o
ta
l

£
1

,3
0

4
.0

0
£

1
,3

4
3

.0
0

u
n

d
e

r 
se

ct
io

n
 1

4
 (

2
)

(u
n

d
e

r 
5

 d
a

y
s)

£
2

3
3

.0
0

£
2

4
0

.0
0

O
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
si

g
n

in
g

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 f
o

r

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 r
o

u
te

 f
o

r 
S

e
ct

io
n

 
£

1
1

6
.5

0
£

1
2

0
.0

0

1
4

 (
2

) 
(u

n
d

e
r 

1
4

 d
a

y
s)

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

e
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
e

 N
e

w
 R

o
a

d
s 

&
 S

tr
e

e
t

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 t

ra
ff

ic
W

o
rk

s 
A

ct
, 

C
o

-O
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 S

7
.3

.2
2

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

co
st

A
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

co
st

S
u

sp
e

n
si

o
n

 o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
A

n
y

th
in

g
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 

tr
a

ff
ic

(S
e

ct
io

n
 4

9
 [

4
])

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 o

r 
in

co
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

 o
f 

a
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

co
st

su
sp

e
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

a
 p

a
rk

in
g

 

p
la

ce
 o

r 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

it

R
o

u
te

 s
ig

n
s

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 

(S
e

ct
io

n
 6

5
 [

1
])

p
e

rm
it

 a
 t

ra
ff

ic
 s

ig
n

 t
o

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 
A

t 
co

st
A

t 
co

st

th
e

 r
o

u
te

 t
o

 s
p

e
ci

fi
e

d
 l

a
n

d
 o

r

p
re

m
is

e
s

T
h

e
 p

la
ci

n
g

 b
y

 t
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

a
 s

ig
n

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce

w
it

h
 a

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 o
f 

th
e

 k
in

d
 

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

co
st

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

p
a

ra
.

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 P
a

rk
in

g
 B

a
y

A
n

y
th

in
g

 d
o

n
e

 b
y

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
tr

a
ff

ic

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 o

r 
in

£
3

2
5

.5
0

£
3

3
5

.2
5

co
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

 o
f 

a
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 b

a
y

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
cc

e
ss

 l
in

e
s

A
n

y
th

in
g

 d
o

n
e

 b
y

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
tr

a
ff

ic

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 o

r 
in

£
9

4
.0

0
£

9
6

.7
5

co
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

 o
f 

a
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 

p
la

ce
 a

cc
e

ss
 l

in
e

s

S
tr

e
e

t 
N

a
m

in
g

 &
 N

u
m

b
e

ri
n

g
 

A
m

e
n

d
in

g
 H

o
u

se
/N

u
m

b
e

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

 
C

o
st

 p
e

r 
a

d
d

re
ss

 
£

3
8

.5
0

£
3

9
.7

5

N
e

w
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
- 

N
a

m
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t 

C
o

st
 p

e
r 

st
re

e
t

£
1

6
8

.5
0

£
1

7
3

.5
0

N
e

w
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
- 

P
e

r 
p

lo
t 

 
C

o
st

 p
e

r 
p

lo
t 

£
3

6
.0

0
£

3
7

.0
0

Page 53



C
H
A
R
G
E
S
 O
C
C
A
S
IO
N
E
D
 B
Y
 T
H
E
 E
N
F
O
R
C
E
M
E
N
T
 O
F
 O
T
H
E
R
 L
E
G
IS
L
A
T
IO
N

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

T
ra
ff
ic
 S
ig
n
s
 &
 G
e
n
e
ra
l

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 R
e
g
s
 1
9
9
4

P
o

rt
a

b
le

 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a

ls
D

e
si

g
n

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 H

/A
A

t 
co

st
A

t 
co

st

(R
e

g
 3

2
 p

a
ra

 4
7

 &
 T

D
 2

1
/8

5
)

D
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y

A
n

y
th

in
g

 d
o

n
e

 b
y

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

to
 r

e
p

a
ir

 d
a

m
a

g
e

 c
a

u
se

d
 b

y
 

A
t 

co
st

A
t 

co
st

o
th

e
rs

T
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

A
n

y
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
li

e
d

 b
y

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

.

B
a

si
c 

S
e

a
rc

h

La
rg

e
 S

e
a

rc
h

E
x

tr
a

 L
a

rg
e

 S
e

a
rc

h

£
1

3
6

.5
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
2

3
5

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
4

3
8

.5
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
1

4
0

.5
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
2

4
2

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
4

5
1

.7
5

 +
 V

A
T

S
T
R
E
E
T
 W
O
R
K
S

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 M
a
d
e
 

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

U
n
d
e
r 

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

N
R
S
W
A
 1
9
9
1

O
/S

 V
A

T
 

R
a

n
d

o
m

 s
a

m
p

le
In

sp
e

ct
io

n
 f

e
e

 p
e

r 
u

n
it

 o
f

A
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 

W
o

rk
s

(S
e

ct
io

n
 7

5
)

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 
(i

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

 f
e

e
s)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

.)
£

4
7

.5
0

£
4

7
.5

0

R
e

g
s 

1
9

9
8

In
v

e
st

ig
a

to
ry

 w
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

 
n

o
 c

h
a

rg
e

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

In
v

e
st

ig
a

to
ry

 w
o

rk
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
ir

d
In

sp
e

ct
io

n
 f

e
e

 p
e

r 
u

n
it

 o
f

A
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 H

A
U

C
 

p
a

rt
y

 r
e

p
o

rt
 (

S
e

ct
io

n
 7

2
 [

1
] 

)
in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

1
9

9
8

£
6

8
.0

0
£

6
8

.0
0

D
e

fe
ct

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
s

D
e

fe
ct

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
, 

Jo
in

t 
v

is
it

,

(S
e

ct
io

n
 7

2
 [

2
] 

)
re

m
e

d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

s 
in

 p
ro

g
re

ss
, 

£
5

0
.0

0
£

5
0

.0
0

re
m

e
d

ia
l 

w
o

rk
s 

co
m

p
le

te
 -

 p
e

r

u
n

it
 o

f 
in

sp
e

ct
io

n

D
e

fe
ct

 N
o

ti
ce

C
o

p
y

 o
f 

d
e

fe
ct

 n
o

ti
ce

P
e

r 
co

p
y

£
4

8
.0

0
£

4
9

.5
0

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

 c
h

e
ck

li
st

C
o

p
y

 o
f 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 c
h

e
ck

li
st

P
e

r 
co

p
y

£
4

8
.0

0
£

4
9

.5
0

S
tr

e
e

t 
W

o
rk

s 
Li

ce
n

ce
li

ce
n

ce
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

a
ra

tu
s

(S
e

ct
io

n
 5

0
)

1
. 

C
a

p
it

a
li

se
d

 f
e

e
£

1
7

2
.0

0
£

1
7

7
.0

0

2
. 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 f
e

e
F

e
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 a

b
o

v
e

 
£

1
9

7
.0

0
£

2
0

3
.0

0

3
. 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

 f
e

e
 (

3
 p

h
a

se
s 

x
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

£
1

5
0

.0
0

£
1

5
0

.0
0

  
  
£

5
0

.0
0

 p
e

r 
in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 u

n
it

T
o
ta
l

£
5

1
9

.0
0

£
5

3
4

.5
0

A
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
s 

o
n

 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 a
p

p
a

ra
tu

s

1
. 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 f
e

e
F

e
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 a

b
o

v
e

 
£

1
1

2
.5

0
£

1
1

6
.0

0

2
. 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

 f
e

e
 (

3
 p

h
a

se
s 

x
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

£
1

5
0

.0
0

£
1

5
0

.0
0

  
  
£

5
0

.0
0

 p
e

r 
in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 u

n
it

)

T
o
ta
l

£
2

6
2

.5
0

£
2

7
0

.2
5

M
IS
C
E
L
L
A
N
E
O
U
S
 L
IC
E
N
C
E
S

M
is
c
. 
L
ic
e
n
c
e
s

M
a
tt
e
r 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 c
h
a
rg
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

C
h
a
rg
e
s

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 O
/S
 V
A
T
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 O
/S
 V
A
T

O
v

e
rh

e
a

d
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

in
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

to
w

e
r 

cr
a

n
e

s,
 b

a
n

n
e

rs
 e

tc
.)

o
f 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 3

 d
a

y
s)

£
4

0
.0

0
£

4
1

.2
5

O
u

ts
id

e
 H

/A
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 n
o

ti
ce

p
e

ri
o

d
 (

3
 d

a
y

s 
o

r 
le

ss
)

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

Page 54



d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 s

it
e

 v
is

it
£

8
0

.0
0

£
8

2
.5

0

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

ch
a

rg
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 s
it

e
 v

is
it

£
8

0
.0

0
£

8
2

.5
0

re
v

e
a

ls
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 

O
ff
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 P
e
rm
it
s
 

C
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e

rm
it

 
C

o
v

e
rs

 a
ll

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r 

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

u
se

 i
n

 a
ll

 s
p

e
ci

fi
e

d
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
s 

O
N

LY
  
(H

A
R

B
O

U
R

, 
S

H
E

D
D

E
N

 

H
IL

L,
 T

O
R

R
E

 V
A

LL
E

Y
, 

U
N

IO
N

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

, 

C
O

LI
N

 R
O

A
D

, 
R

O
U

N
D

H
A

M
, 

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

, 

B
R

E
A

K
W

A
T

E
R

, 
S

H
O

A
LS

T
O

N
E

) 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

ci
fi

c 

C
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 i
n

 o
n

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

e
d

 L
o

n
g

 S
ta

y
 

ca
r 

p
a

rk
 o

n
ly

 (
N

O
T

 A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

 

T
O

W
N

 H
A

LL
, 

B
E

A
C

O
N

 Q
U

A
Y

 O
R

 

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 L
A

N
E

 )
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rm

it
 

C
o

v
e

rs
 a

ll
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

P
a

y
 a

n
d

 

D
is

p
la

y
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

A
d

d
it

o
n

 f
ro

m
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
o

n
th

ly
 C

o
m

m
u

te
r

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

u
se

 i
n

 S
e

h
d

d
e

n
 H

il
l,

 T
o

rr
e

 

V
a

ll
e

y
, 

U
n

io
n

 S
q

u
a

re
, 

C
o

li
n

 R
o

a
d

, 

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
m

, 
V

ic
to

ri
a

, 
B

re
a

k
w

a
te

r,
 

S
h

o
a

ls
to

n
e

A
d

d
it

o
n

 f
ro

m
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

it
e

 S
p

e
ci

fi
c

C
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 i
n

 O
N

E
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ce
d

 L
o

n
g

 

S
ta

y
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 o

n
ly

 (
n

o
te

 v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll
, 

B
e

a
co

n
 Q

u
a

y
, 

H
a

rb
o

u
r

A
d

d
it

io
n

 f
ro

m
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
ix

 M
o

n
th

 P
e

rm
it

 

C
o

v
e

rs
 u

se
 i

n
 a

ll
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

C
a

r 

P
a

rk
s 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
ix

 M
o

n
th

 S
it

e
 S

p
e

ci
fi

c 

C
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 i
n

 o
n

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

e
d

 L
o

n
g

 S
ta

y
 

ca
r 

p
a

rk
 o

n
ly

 (
N

O
T

 A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

 

T
O

W
N

 H
A

LL
, 

B
E

A
C

O
N

 Q
U

A
Y

 O
R

 

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 L
A

N
E

) 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

 P
e

rm
it

 

C
o

v
e

rs
 u

se
 i

n
 a

ll
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

C
a

r 

P
a

rk
s 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

 S
it

e
 S

p
e

ci
fi

c 
p

e
rm

it
s)

 

C
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 i
n

 o
n

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

e
d

 L
o

n
g

 S
ta

y
 

ca
r 

p
a

rk
 o

n
ly

 (
N

O
T

 A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

 

T
O

W
N

 H
A

LL
, 

B
E

A
C

O
N

 Q
U

A
Y

 O
R

 

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 L
A

N
E

 )
 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 P
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

W
e

e
k

ly
 p

e
rm

it
 

C
o

v
e

rs
 u

se
 i

n
 a

ll
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

C
a

r 

P
a

rk
s 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

W
e

e
k

ly
 P

e
rm

it
 

C
o

v
e

rs
 u

se
 i

n
 C

le
n

n
o

n
 V

a
ll

e
y

, 

Ly
m

in
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
O

x
e

n
 C

o
v

e
 a

n
d

 

V
ic

to
ri

a
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

3
 D

a
y

 P
e

rm
it

C
o

v
e

rs
 u

se
 i

n
 a

ll
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

p
a

y
 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
A

d
d

it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 P
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
w

ip
e

 C
a

rd
 

H
a

rb
o

u
r 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 o
n

ly
 

C
e

a
se

s 
w

h
e

n
 n

e
w

 s
y

st
e

m
 i

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 -
 W

in
te

r 
2

0
1

3
 £

1
2

 O
/S

 V
A

T
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 P

a
rk

in
g

 P
e

rm
it

s 
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T
 

C
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 P
a

rk
in

g
 Z

o
n

e
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 P

e
rm

it
 

P
e

rm
it

 e
n

ti
tl

e
s 

th
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 
to

 p
a

rk
 i

n
 

a
n

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 b
a

y
 i

n
 t

h
a

t 
C

P
Z

 
 £

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3

0
.0

0
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

V
is

it
o

rs
 P

a
rk

in
g

 p
e

rm
it

s 
(b

o
o

k
 o

f 
1

0
 

p
e

rm
it

s)
 

p
e

rm
it

 e
n

ti
tl

e
s 

th
e

 v
is

it
o

r 
to

 p
a

rk
 i

n
 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 b
a

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
P

Z
 i

ss
u

e
d

 f
o

r.
 

V
is

it
o

rs
 p

e
rm

it
s 

v
a

li
d

 f
o

r 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

fr
o

m
 d

a
te

 o
f 

is
su

e
 £

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

0
.0

0
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

Page 55



 D
a

il
y

 P
a

rk
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s
C

h
a

rg
e

s

(O
ff

 S
tr

e
e

t 
- 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s 
)

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 i
n

c 
V

A
T

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 i
n

c 
V

A
T

2
5

th
 M

a
rc

h
 -

 3
1

st
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
in

cl
u

si
v

e

B
e

a
ch

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
U

p
 t

o
 1

 h
o

u
r

1
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 5
 h

o
u

rs
5

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

9
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

 £
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2

.2
0

 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

Le
is

u
re

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
U

p
 t

o
 1

 h
o

u
r

1
.3

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.8

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.2
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 5
 h

o
u

rs
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

8
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

U
p

 t
o

 3
0

 m
in

u
te

s
0

.7
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
1

.3
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.8

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.2
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 5
 h

o
u

rs
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

8
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

A
ll

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
U

p
 t

o
 4

0
 m

in
s 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 8
0

 m
in

s 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

s 
u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 s
ta

te
 a

s 
p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s 

tr
e

a
te

d
 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

rs
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

rs
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

u
p

 t
o

 4
 h

rs
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
v

ie
w

Page 56



U
p

 t
o

 5
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

O
v

e
r 

5
 h

rs
 a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
rs

 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

T
im

e
 C

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 

u
n

ti
l 

8
a

m
)

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

D
a

il
y

 P
a

rk
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s 
(O

n
 S

tr
e

e
t)

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s

 C
h

a
rg

e
s 

2
5

th
 M

a
rc

h
 -

 3
1

st
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
In

cl
u

si
v

e
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 I

N
C

 V
A

T
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T

P
ri

m
e

 S
it

e
s

U
p

 t
o

 3
0

 m
in

u
te

s
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
1

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

2
.2

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
4

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

 £
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2

.5
0

 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 S

it
e

s
U

p
 t

o
 3

0
 m

in
u

te
s

0
.7

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
1

.3
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r 
S

it
e

s
U

p
 t

o
 4

 h
o

u
rs

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 8
 h

o
u

rs
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
a

g
d

a
le

n
e

 R
o

a
d

A
ll

 d
a

y
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
0

 m
in

s 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

u
p

 t
o

 8
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 p
la

ce
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 p
la

ce
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

A
b

b
e

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

 C
a

st
le

 R
o

a
d

 (
n

e
a

r 
C

a
st

le
 

C
ir

cu
s)

, 
Ly

m
in

g
to

n
 R

o
a

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

, 

M
a

rk
e

t 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 P
a

rk
h

il
l 

R
o

a
d

 (
b

y
 R

a
in

b
o

w
 

F
u

n
 H

o
u

se
),

 P
im

li
co

, 
T

h
e

 T
e

rr
a

ce
, 

 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

Page 57



S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

Ly
m

in
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
U

p
 t

o
 4

 h
rs

 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 8
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
a

g
d

a
le

n
e

 R
o

a
d

, 
U

p
 t

o
 4

 h
rs

 
C

e
a

se
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
0

 m
in

s 
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

u
p

 t
o

 8
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

rs
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

B
a

b
b

a
co

m
b

e
 R

o
a

d
, 

E
a

st
e

rn
 E

sp
la

n
a

d
e

, 
U

p
 t

o
 2

0
 m

in
s 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

u
p

 t
o

 8
0

 m
in

s
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

rs
 

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

rs
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

W
in

te
r 

P
a

rk
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s 
(O

ff
 S

tr
e

e
t)

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 

1
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 
- 

2
4

 M
a

rc
h

 (
in

cl
u

si
v

e
) 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

B
e

a
ch

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
U

p
 t

o
 1

 h
o

u
r

0
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

1
.8

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

 £
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1

.0
0

 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

Le
is

u
re

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
U

p
 t

o
 1

 h
o

u
r

1
.3

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.8

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.2
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

U
p

 t
o

 3
0

 m
in

u
te

s
0

.7
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
1

.3
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

ce
a

se
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w

R
o

ck
 W

a
lk

, 
T

o
rb

a
y

 R
o

a
d

 (
T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

 

M
e

a
d

o
w

 &
 S

a
n

d
s)

, 
A

d
e

lp
h

i 
R

o
a

d
, 

S
a

n
d

s 

R
o

a
d

, 
S

tr
e

a
tf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

, 

F
u

n
 H

o
u

se
),

 P
im

li
co

, 
T

h
e

 T
e

rr
a

ce
, 

 

T
o

rw
o

o
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s 

R
o

a
d

, 
T

o
rw

o
o

d
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 

U
n

io
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
b

y
 c

o
u

rt
 h

o
u

se
, 

D
e

n
d

y
 R

d
, 

H
y

d
e

 R
o

a
d

, 
P

a
la

ce
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

Q
u

e
e

n
s 

R
o

a
d

, 

T
o

rb
a

y
 R

o
a

d
 (

P
g

n
),

 T
o

rq
u

a
y

 R
o

a
d

 b
y

 P
o

st
 

O
ff

ic
e

 

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

Page 58



U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.8

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.2
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 5
 h

o
u

rs
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

8
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

D
a

il
y

 P
a

rk
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s 
(O

n
 S

tr
e

e
t)

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s

 C
h

a
rg

e
s 

1
 N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 
- 

2
4

 M
a

rc
h

 I
n

cl
u

si
v

e
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 I

N
C

 V
A

T
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T

P
ri

m
e

 S
it

e
s

U
p

 t
o

 3
0

 m
in

u
te

s
0

.2
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
0

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
1

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

N
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 6
p

m
 t

o
 

8
a

m
)

 £
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1

.5
0

 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 S

it
e

s
U

p
 t

o
 3

0
 m

in
u

te
s

0
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
 h

o
u

r
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

1
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
 h

o
u

rs
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 3
 h

o
u

rs
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
4

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r 
S

it
e

s
U

p
 t

o
 4

 h
o

u
rs

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 8
 h

o
u

rs
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

M
a

g
d

a
le

n
e

 R
o

a
d

A
ll

 d
a

y
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
 i

n
 S

h
e

d
d

e
n

 H
il

l,
 T

o
rr

e
 V

a
ll

e
y

, 

K
il

m
o

ri
e

, 
M

e
a

d
fo

o
t 

B
e

a
ch

, 
W

a
ll

s 
H

il
l,

 

B
ro

a
d

sa
n

d
s,

 C
li

ff
 P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

, 
B

re
a

k
w

a
te

r,
 

S
h

o
a

ls
to

n
e

U
p

 t
o

 4
0

 m
in

s
C

e
a

se
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
S

e
e

 S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
 i

n
 S

h
e

d
d

e
n

 H
il

l,
 T

o
rr

e
 V

a
ll

e
y

, 

K
il

m
o

ri
e

, 
M

e
a

d
fo

o
t 

B
e

a
ch

, 
W

a
ll

s 
H

il
l,

 

B
ro

a
d

sa
n

d
s,

 C
li

ff
 P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

, 
B

re
a

k
w

a
te

r,
 

S
h

o
a

ls
to

n
e

O
v

e
r 

4
0

 m
in

s 
a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 2
4

h
rs

C
e

a
se

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v

ie
w

S
e

e
 S

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

C
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 p
la

ce
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 c
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

C
la

ss
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 p
la

ce
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
ri

ff
s 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

v
ie

w

Page 59



C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

V
e

h
ic

le
 C

h
a

rg
e

s 
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

U
p

 t
o

 8
0

 m
in

s 

C
o

a
ch

e
s 

re
ce

iv
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

o
n

e
 h

o
u

r 
fr

e
e

 o
f 

ch
a

rg
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

U
p

 t
o

 4
 h

rs
 

C
o

a
ch

e
s 

re
ce

iv
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

o
n

e
 h

o
u

r 
fr

e
e

 o
f 

ch
a

rg
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 

6
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

o
v

e
r 

4
 h

rs
 a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 2
4

 h
rs

 

C
o

a
ch

e
s 

re
ce

iv
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

o
n

e
 h

o
u

r 
fr

e
e

 o
f 

ch
a

rg
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

W
e

e
k

ly
 

3
8

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

P
a

rk
in

g
 T

ic
k

e
t 

N
o

ti
ce

s
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

(P
C

N
)

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 (
O

/S
 V

A
T

) 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 (

O
/S

 V
A

T
) 

D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

v
e

n
ti

o
n

If
 P

a
id

 w
it

h
in

 1
4

 d
a

y
s 

o
f 

th
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
N

 
2

5
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

5
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

v
e

n
ti

o
n

If
 P

a
id

 w
it

h
in

 1
4

 d
a

y
s 

o
f 

th
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 P

C
N

 
3

5
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

7
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

E
x

e
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
&

 W
a

iv
e

rs
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
C

h
a

rg
e

s
C

h
a

rg
e

s

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

 

P
a

rk
in

g
 D

is
p

e
n

sa
ti

o
n

 N
o

ti
ce

A
ll

o
w

s 
v

e
h

ic
le

 t
o

 b
e

 p
a

rk
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
y

 o
n

 

st
re

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

 i
f 

u
se

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
 i

s 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 w

o
rk

s 
to

 

b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

n
e

a
rb

y
 £

5
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
p

lu
s 

£
5

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

u
sp

e
n

si
o

n

O
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
o

rs
/u

ti
li

ti
e

s 
w

h
e

re
 

cl
e

a
r 

a
cc

e
ss

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 o
n

 h
ig

h
w

a
y

 M
in

im
u

m
 c

h
a

rg
e

 o
f 

£
2

3
5

 (
m

a
y

 b
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

su
sp

e
n

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
 c

o
v

e
re

d
) 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

H
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
 &

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 B

a
d

g
e

P
ro

v
id

e
s 

e
x

e
m

p
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 c

e
rt

a
in

 o
n

 

st
re

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s
O

n
ly

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 h

e
a

lt
h

ca
re

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 £

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
.0

0
 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 a
s 

p
a

rk
in

g
 i

s 
tr

e
a

te
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 

Page 60



R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
 &

 P
A

R
K

S
 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
p

o
rt

 
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 I
N
C
 V
A
T

S
O

C
C

E
R

, 
R

U
G

B
Y

, 
H

O
C

K
E

Y

S
e

n
io

rs
 p

e
r 

m
a

tc
h

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
o

w
e

rs
/c

h
a

n
g

in
g

)
5
6
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

rs
 p

e
r 

m
a

tc
h

 (
1

5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 

u
n

d
e

r)
2
1
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
e

n
io

rs
 p

e
r 

m
a

tc
h

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
o

w
e

rs
/c

h
a

n
g

in
g

)
2
7
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

rs
 p

e
r 

m
a

tc
h

 (
1

5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 

u
n

d
e

r)
1
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
O

O
T
B

A
L
L
 L

E
A

G
U

E
 C

L
U

B
S

 O
N

L
Y

S
e

a
s
o

n
 F

e
e

 –
 L

e
a

g
u

e
 a

n
d

 C
u

p
 

fi
x
tu

re
s

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
o

w
e

rs
/c

h
a

n
g

in
g

)

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 C

lu
b

s
 –

 S
e

n
io

rs
7
3
4
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

(1
8

 g
a

m
e

s
 –

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 

ra
ta

)
4
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

1
5

 g
a

m
e

s
 

6
1
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

1
2

 g
a

m
e

s
 

4
9
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
u

n
d

a
y
 C

lu
b

s
 –

 S
e

n
io

r
4
9
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

(1
2

 g
a

m
e

s
 –

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 

ra
ta

)
4
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
L
L
 J

U
N

IO
R

 T
E

A
M

S

U
n

d
e

r 
8

’s
 -

 1
2

 g
a

m
e

s
6
1
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
9

’s
 &

 1
0

’s
 -

 1
2

 g
a

m
e

s
8
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

7
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

1
’s

 –
 1

2
 g

a
m

e
s

1
0
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

8
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

2
’s

 –
 1

2
 g

a
m

e
s

1
1
9
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

1
0
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

1
4
3
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

1
1
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

8
’s

 –
 1

2
 g

a
m

e
s

1
6
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

a
m

e
s
 p

ro
 r

a
ta

1
2
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

H
IR

E
 O

F
 P

IT
C

H
 

S
e

n
io

rs
1
3
8
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

rs
9
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

M
in

i
4
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

H
ir
e

 o
f 
C

h
a

n
g

in
g

 R
m

 p
e

r 
D

a
y

4
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 S
E

S
S

IO
N

S

(N
o

t 
P

it
ch

) 
p

e
r 

se
ss

io
n

 
1
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
h

o
w

e
rs

/c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 p

e
r 

s
e

s
s
io

n
3
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
C

H
O

O
L
S

  

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

p
o

rt
s
 D

a
y
 

N
o

 m
a

rk
in

g
 o

r 
ch

a
n

g
in

g
 r

o
o

m
s 

1
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 S

p
o

rt
s
 D

a
y
 

W
it

h
 C

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
o

o
m

s 
3
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e

r 
d

a
y

 (
T

o
u

rn
a

m
e

n
ts

 e
tc

 )
 p

e
r 

p
it

ch

U
n

d
e

r 
1

3
’s

 &
 1

4
’s

 g
a

m
e

s
 –

 1
2

 g
a

m
e

s

U
s
e

 o
f 
fi
e

ld
 

Page 61



C
R

IC
K

E
T
 S

E
N

IO
R

S

A
ll 

d
a

y
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 o

r 
S

u
n

d
a

y
 m

a
tc

h
e

s
8
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
ft
e

rn
o

o
n

 o
r 

e
v
e

n
in

g
 m

a
tc

h
e

s
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

n
d

a
y

5
6
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

C
R

IC
K

E
T
 J

U
N

IO
R

S

A
ll 

d
a

y
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

n
d

a
y
 m

a
tc

h
e

s

U
n

d
e

r 
1

8
’s

4
7
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

4
’s

3
6
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
ft
e

rn
o

o
n

 o
r 

e
v
e

n
in

g
 m

a
tc

h
e

s
E

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

n
d

a
y

U
n

d
e

r 
1

8
’s

3
3
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

4
’s

2
5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
T
H

L
E

T
IC

S
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 S

E
S

S
IO

N

4
6
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

 O
U

T
D

O
O

R
 S

P
O

R
T

T
E

N
N

IS

(p
e

r 
c
o

u
rt

, 
p

e
r 

h
o

u
r)

P
la

y
d

e
c
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

/c
la

s
s
ic

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

G
ra

s
s
 (

O
ld

w
a

y
 o

n
ly

)c
o

u
rt

s
 7

 -
1

2
6
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

G
ra

s
s
 (

O
ld

w
a

y
 o

n
ly

)c
o

u
rt

 1
3

7
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 
h

ir
e

2
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

C
o

u
rt

 &
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
h

ir
e

:-
  
H

a
rd

 C
o

u
rt

1
0

.5
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 G

ra
s
s
 C

o
u

rt
s
 7

 -
 1

2
1
2
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 G

ra
s
s
 C

o
u

rt
 1

3
1
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

B
o

o
k
in

g
 f
e

e
 

In
cl

u
d

in
g

 i
n

 c
o

u
rt

 f
e

e
 

1
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

L
o

s
t 
B

a
ll

2
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
lu

b
s
 

P
e

r 
c
o

u
rt

, 
p

e
r 

h
o

u
r

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
lo

o
d

lit
, 
p

e
r 

c
o

u
rt

, 
p

e
r 

h
o

u
r

A
b

b
e

y
 

O
ld

w
a

y

J
u

n
io

r 
ra

te
 p

e
r 

c
h

ild
 d

u
ri
n

g
 s

e
t 
ti
m

e
s

* 
J
u

n
io

r 
c
lu

b
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
 5

0
%

 d
is

c
o

u
n

t

N
E

T
B

A
L
L
 S

E
N

IO
R

S
N

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

 p
ri
c
e

 w
it
h

 o
n

e
 g

ro
u

p
1
2
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

N
E

T
B

A
L
L
 J

U
N

IO
R

S

U
n

d
e

r 
1

8
’s

8
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
n

d
e

r 
1

4
’s

6
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

B
O

W
L
S

A
b

b
e

y
 P

a
rk

P
e

r
p

e
rs

o
n

,
p

e
r

h
o

u
r

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
u

s
e

o
f 
w

o
o

d
s
)

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
p

to
n

 P
a

rk
 a

n
d

 C
a

ry
 P

a
rk

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

R
in

k
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 
(m

a
x
 5

 p
e

o
p

le
)

5
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
a

m
ily

 T
ic

k
e

t 
(2

 a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 3
 

c
h

ild
re

n
)

1
8
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

T
o

rr
e

V
a

lle
y

N
o

rt
h

,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
m

a
rk

e
d

tr
a

c
k Page 62



S
e

a
s
o

n
 T

ic
k
e

t 
(T

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
b

o
w

lin
g

 

s
e

a
s
o

n
)

1
7
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

U
p

to
n

 P
a

rk
1
0
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

T
o

u
ri
n

g
 T

e
a

m
s
 p

e
r 

ri
n

k
 p

e
r 

m
a

tc
h

 

fr
o

m
:-

1
3
.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

Page 63



H
E

L
IC

O
P

T
E

R
 L

A
N

D
IN

G
S

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 +
 V

A
T

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 +
 V

A
T

P
ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
la

n
d

in
g

 u
p

 t
o

 2
h

rs
W

e
e

k
 D

a
y

s 
- 

0
9

.0
0

a
m

 -
 1

7
.0

0
p

m
 

3
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

 
1
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
la

n
d

in
g

 u
p

 t
o

 2
h

rs
O

u
t 

o
f 

H
o

u
rs

  
in

c 
5

p
m

  
ti

l 
D

u
sk

 
4
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

 
1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
la

n
d

in
g

 u
p

 t
o

 2
 h

rs
S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 

4
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

 
1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ri
c
e

 p
e

r 
la

n
d

in
g

 u
p

 t
o

 2
h

rs
S

u
n

d
a

y
 

6
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

 
2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
E

A
C

H
E

S
 &

 A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 i
n
c
 V
A
T

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 i
n
c
 V
A
T

C
H

A
L
E

T
S

A
n

n
u

a
l 
1

s
t 
fl
o

o
r:

 M
e

a
d

fo
o

t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
1
,0
1
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
1

s
t 
fl
o

o
r:

 M
e

a
d

fo
o

t 
n

e
w

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

ro
u

n
d

: 
M

e
a

d
fo

o
t 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
9
5
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

ro
u

n
d

: 
M

e
a

d
fo

o
t 
n

e
w

1
,3
0
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
c
h

a
rg

e
 -

 B
ro

a
d

s
a

n
d

s
1
,5
0
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5
4
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

S
e

a
s
o

n
 -

 O
d

d
ic

o
m

b
e

6
5
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(A
p

ri
l 
–

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
)

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

W
e
e
k
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
6
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

8
2
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
7
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

9
7
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

D
a
y
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

2
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
e
a
d
fo

o
t 
G

ro
u
n
d
 F

lo
o
r 

O
n
ly

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

W
e
e
k
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
4
8
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

5
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

6
3
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

D
a
y
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

2
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
in

te
r 

S
e
a
s
o
n

O
c
to

b
e

r 
–

 M
a

rc
h

 (
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
)

2
2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
in

te
r 

P
e
r 

M
o
n
th

C
h

a
rg

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 l
im

it
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r

5
4
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

Page 64



B
E

A
C

H
 H

U
T
S

S
u
m

m
e
r 

S
e
a
s
o
n

(A
p

ri
l 
–

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
)

4
6
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
7
4
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

W
e
e
k
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
4
8
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

5
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
7
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

6
3
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

P
e
r 

D
a
y
:-

A
p

ri
l 
a

n
d

 M
a

y
1
3
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

A
p

ri
l,
 J

u
n

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

1
4
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t

1
9
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
in

te
r 

S
e

a
s
o

n
:-

 

(O
c
to

b
e

r 
–

 M
a

rc
h

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
)

1
5
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
e

le
c
te

d
 s

a
fe

 s
it
e

s
 o

n
ly

N
o

n
 r

e
fu

n
d

a
b

le
 d

e
p

o
s
it
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

1
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
in

te
r 

P
e

r 
M

o
n

th
:-

 
O

d
d

ic
o

m
b

e
 a

n
d

 M
e

a
d

fo
o

t
4
0
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
E
M
O
V
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
1
4

S
IT

E
 O

N
L
Y

-S
U

M
M

E
R

 S
E

A
S

O
N

C
o

rb
y
n

 H
e

a
d

3
1
5
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
2
4
.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
re

s
to

n
, 
B

ro
a

d
s
a

n
d

s
, 
G

o
o

d
ri
n

g
to

n
 &

 

P
re

s
to

n
 M

a
ri
n

e
 P

a
ra

d
e

2
2

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

-
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
o

rb
y
n

 s
e

lf
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

5
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5

7
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
ll 

o
th

e
r 

s
it
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

2
1

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2

2
7

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
IN

T
E

R
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 (
B

e
a
c
h
 H

u
ts

)

S
to

re
d

 o
ff
 s

it
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 V

A
T

)
1

5
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

5
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d

m
in

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
c
h

a
rg

e
 

2
7

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2

8
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
e

a
c
h

 H
u

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
c
h

a
rg

e
 

5
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
e

a
c
h

 H
u

t 
s
c
ra

p
p

a
g

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 
5

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
d

d
ic

o
m

b
e

 a
n

d
 M

e
a

d
fo

o
t,

 A
n

st
e

y
s 

C
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 B

ro
a

d
sa

n
d

s 
1

-8
4

Page 65



D
E

C
K

C
H

A
IR

S

P
e

r 
c
h

a
ir
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

W
e

e
k

ly
 t

ic
k

e
t 

- 
v

a
li

d
 o

n
 a

ll
 b

e
a

ch
e

s
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
d

a
y

£
1

.5
0

£
1

.5
0

D
ir
e

c
to

rs
 c

h
a

ir
£

3
.0

0
£

3
.0

0

E
V

E
N

T
 D

E
C

K
C

H
A

IR
 H

IR
E

C
h

a
ir
s
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
e

liv
e

ry
/C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 c
h

a
rg

e
  

3
6

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

3
6

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ri
c
e

s
 o

n
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 

S
U

N
T
R

A
P

S
 /
 W

IN
D

B
R

E
A

K
 

P
e

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
 

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

N
L
O

U
N

G
E

R

R
e

tu
rn

a
b

le
 D

e
p

o
s
it

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
d

a
y

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
u

s
h

io
n

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
a

ra
s
o

l 
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
O

C
K

E
R

S
 

D
e

p
o

s
it
 

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
a

ily
 C

h
a

rg
e

 
1

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
L
L
O

T
M

E
N

T
S

 
C

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

h
a

rg
e

s

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 O
/S

 V
A

T
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 O
/S

 V
A

T

A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

h
a

rg
e

P
e

r 
2

5
 S

q
u

a
re

 M
e

tr
e

 w
it
h

 w
a

te
r

4
.1

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
.2

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e

r 
2

5
 S

q
u

a
re

 M
e

tr
e

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
w

a
te

r
2

.6
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.7

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

o
l 
L

o
c
k
e

rs
 –

 S
h

e
rw

e
ll 

V
a

lle
y

2
.1

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 66



P
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

 L
E

IS
U

R
E

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

T
O

R
B

A
Y

 L
E

IS
U

R
E

 C
E

N
T
R

E
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 I

N
C

 V
A

T
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T

S
W

IM
M

IN
G

A
d

u
lt

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

r
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

6
0

+
/D

is
a

b
le

d
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

E
a

rl
y
 M

o
rn

in
g

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
ly

 
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
a

m
ily

 t
ic

k
e

t 
2

 a
d

u
lt

s 
&

 u
p

 t
o

 3
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

7
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
e

a
s
o

n
 T

ic
k
e

ts
:-

  
  
3

 M
o

n
th

s
7

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
6

 M
o

n
th

s
1

2
9

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1

2
 M

o
n

th
s

2
3

1
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
Q

U
A

T
O

N
E

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
P

O
R

T
S

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S

P
e

a
k

 
6

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

P
e

a
k

 
7

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
6

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

T
a

b
le

 T
e

n
n

is
  
  
  
  
1

 h
o

u
r

3
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

5
-a

-s
id

e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

 h
o

u
r

3
3

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 F

it
n

e
s
s
 S

u
it
e

6
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
 A

C
T
IV

IT
IE

S

A
d

u
lt
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
4

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

C
re

c
h

e
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

5
0

+
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
o

c
c
e

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

/T
e

a
 D

a
n

c
e

2
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T
 H

IR
E

R
a

c
k
e

t
1

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
o

o
tb

a
ll

1
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

T
o

w
e

l
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
h

o
w

e
r 

O
n

ly
2

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
R

E
A

 H
IR

E

S
p

o
rt

s
 H

a
ll 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
h

o
le

 p
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
6

5
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
w

im
m

in
g

 P
o

o
l 

W
h

o
le

 p
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
6

5
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
w

im
m

in
g

 P
o

o
l 

T
h

ir
d

 p
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
3

0
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

M
in

o
r 

H
a

ll 
W

h
o

le
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
r 

2
3

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

B
e

e
s
le

y
 R

o
o

m
 

W
h

o
le

 p
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
2

0
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
q

u
a

s
h

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 ¾

 h
o

u
r 

  
  
  

J
u

n
io

r 
S

q
u

a
s
h

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
a

d
m

in
to

n
  
  
  
  
  
 1

 h
o

u
r 

  
  
  

Page 67



A
E

R
O

B
IC

S

A
e

ro
b

ic
s
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
r

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
te

p
 A

e
ro

b
ic

s
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
r

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

A
L
L
-W

E
A

T
H

E
R

 P
IT

C
H

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
2

5
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

P
e

a
k

 
3

4
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
lo

o
d

li
t 

4
6

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

W
h

o
le

 A
re

a
  
- 

½
 h

o
u

r 
  
  

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
1

4
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

H
a

lf
 A

re
a

 -
  
1

 h
o

u
r 

  
  
  
  
 

O
ff

 P
e

a
k

 
1

4
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

P
e

a
k

 
2

4
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
lo

o
d

li
t 

3
0

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

N
O

N
-M

E
M

B
E

R
 E

N
T
R

A
N

C
E

 F
E

E
S

A
d

u
lt

1
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

r
1

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

6
0

+
/D

is
a

b
le

d
1

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
a

u
n

a
 P

e
r 

P
e

rs
o

n
4

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP

A
d

u
lt

2
9

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

J
u

n
io

r
1

3
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

F
a

m
ily

4
2

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

6
0

+
/D

is
a

b
le

d
1

6
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 P
a

s
s
 

O
n

ly
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 w
it

h
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

8
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

H
o

lid
a

y
 –

 1
 w

e
e

k
 

fa
m

il
y

 (
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
p

a
rk

in
g

) 
1

8
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

S
C

H
O

O
L

C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

S
C

H
O

O
L
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 I
N

C
 V

A
T

 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 I

N
C

 V
A

T

A
.T

.P
 –

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 U
S

E

W
h

o
le

 A
re

a
 

P
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
3

9
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

7
-a

-s
id

e
 

P
e

r 
M

a
tc

h
 

2
3

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

P
A

L
A

C
E

 T
H

E
A

T
R

E
 

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
e
x
e
m

p
t 
V

A
T
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 e

x
e
m

p
t 
V

A
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
H

ir
e
 

D
a

y
 R

a
te

 
7

2
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
2

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e

r 
H

o
u

r 
 (

m
in

im
u

m
 2

) 
7

5
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

P
e

r 
h

o
u

r 
  

1
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
 

1
3

8
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3

8
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
e

p
o

s
it
 

2
0

%
2

0
%

B
o

x
 O

ff
ic

e
 C

h
a

rg
e

 
1

0
%

1
0

%

C
re

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

3
%

3
%

M
e

rc
h

a
d

is
in

g
 

2
5

%
2

5
%

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

v
e

r 
1

0
%

1
0

%

P
o

s
te

r 
S

it
e

s
 

2
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

U
s
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
in

g
 o

f 
T
u
n
e
d
 P

ia
n
o

G
ra

n
d

 (
P

L
U

S
 V

A
T

)
P

lu
s
 £

1
0

 p
e

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

e
5

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

5
7

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
7

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

U
p

ri
g

h
t 
(P

L
U

S
 V

A
T

)
P

lu
s
 £

1
0

 p
e

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

e
5

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

4
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
T

u
n

in
g

 (
P

L
U

S
 V

A
T

)
P

e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
tu

n
in

g
3

5
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
O

N
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
H

ir
e
 

D
a

y
 R

a
te

 
5

1
0

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
1

0
.0

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e

r 
H

o
u

r 
(m

in
im

u
m

 3
) 

1
0

:0
0

  
- 

1
8

:0
0

 -
 S

u
n

d
a

y
's

 w
ill

 i
n

c
u

r 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
2

5
%

 o
n

 c
o

s
t

3
6

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
6

.5
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e

r 
H

o
u

r 
(m

in
im

u
m

 3
) 

1
8

:0
0

 -
  
2

3
:0

0
 -

 S
u

n
d

a
y
's

 w
ill

 i
n

c
u

r 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
2

5
%

 o
n

 c
o

s
t

5
8

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
8

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

P
e

r 
H

o
u

r 
(m

in
im

u
m

 2
) 

1
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5

.0
0

£
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
 

1
3

8
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3

8
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
e

p
o

s
it
 

5
%

5
%

B
o

x
 O

ff
ic

e
 C

h
a

rg
e

 
1

0
%

 o
r 

£
1

4
8

 w
h

ic
h

e
v
e

r 
is

 t
h

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

p
lu

s
 V

A
T

1
0

%
 o

r 
£

1
4

8
 w

h
ic

h
e

v
e

r 
is

 t
h

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

p
lu

s
 V

A
T

C
re

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

3
%

3
%

M
e

rc
h

a
d

is
in

g
 

5
%

5
%

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
o

v
e

r 
1

0
%

1
0

%

P
o

s
te

r 
S

it
e

s
 

3
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.5

0
£

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

W
h

o
le

 A
re

a
 1

 h
o

u
r 

Page 68



Page 69



T
O

R
R

E
 A

B
B

E
Y

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

C
h

a
rg

e
s

C
h

a
rg

e
s

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

A
d

u
lt
s

£
7

.5
0

£
7

.5
0

S
e

n
io

rs
£

6
.2

5
£

6
.2

5

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 -

 (
3

 -
 1

5
 y

rs
)

£
3

.0
0

£
3

.0
0

F
a

m
ily

£
1

8
.0

0
£

1
8

.0
0

G
a

rd
e

n
£

4
.0

0
£

4
.0

0

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

ic
k
e

t
£

1
5

.0
0

£
1

5
.0

0

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

ic
k
e

t 
S

e
n

io
rs

£
1

2
.5

0
£

1
2

.5
0

A
n

n
u

a
l 
T

ic
k
e

t 
F

a
m

ily
£

2
5

.5
0

£
2

5
.5

0

P
re

-b
o
o
k
e
d
 P

ri
c
e
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 (

S
c
h

o
o

ls
)

£
3

.0
0

£
3

.0
0

A
d

u
lt

 G
ro

u
p

6
.0

0
6

.0
0

Page 70



L
IB

R
A

R
IE

S

C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 B
o

o
k

s 
&

 A
u

d
io

 B
o

o
k

s 
A

d
u

lt
s 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 c

h
a

rg
e

 o
f 

£
3

.6
0

1
5

p
 p

e
r 

it
e

m
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
1

6
p

 p
e

r 
it

e
m

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 B
o

o
k

s 
O

v
e

r 
6

5
's

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 c

h
a

rg
e

 o
f 

£
1

.9
2

8
p

 p
e

r 
it

e
m

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

 
9

p
 p

e
r 

it
e

m
 p

e
r 

d
a

y

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 A
u

d
io

 B
o

o
k

s 
O

v
e

r 
6

5
's

 
T

o
 a

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
£

3
.6

0
1

5
p

 p
e

r 
it

e
m

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

9
p

 p
e

r 
it

e
m

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 B
o

o
k

s 
1

6
/1

7
 y

e
a

rs
T

o
 a

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
£

1
.2

0
5

p
 p

e
r 

it
e

m
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 

6
p

 p
e

r 
it

e
m

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 A
u

d
io

 B
o

o
k

s 
1

6
/1

7
 y

e
a

rs
 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 c

h
a

rg
e

 o
f 

£
3

.6
0

1
5

p
 p

e
r 

it
e

m
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
6

p
 p

e
r 

it
e

m
 p

e
r 

d
a

y

C
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

fi
n

a
l 

re
m

in
d

e
r 

le
tt

e
r 

£
1

.0
0

£
1

.0
0

H
ir

e
 o

f 
m

u
si

c 
C

D
's

p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 

5
0

p
5

0
p

H
ir

e
 o

f 
la

n
g

u
a

g
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

p
e

r 
3

 w
e

e
k

s 
£

1
.0

0
£

1
.0

0

H
ir

e
 o

f 
sp

e
ci

a
l 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

s 
6

 w
e

e
k

s 
in

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 
£

5
.0

0
£

5
.0

0

1
2

 w
e

e
k

s 
in

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 
£

1
0

.0
0

£
1

0
.0

0

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
s 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 o

f 
£

3
.6

0
1

5
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

 
1

6
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

H
ir

e
 o

f 
D

V
D

 
Y

e
ll

o
w

 B
a

n
d

 
£

2
.5

0
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

 
£

2
.6

0
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 o

f 
£

6
.0

0
5

0
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

 
5

0
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

B
lu

e
 B

a
n

d
 

£
2

.0
0

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 

£
2

.0
0

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 o

f 
£

4
.8

0
4

0
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

 
4

0
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

W
h

it
e

 B
a

n
d

 
F

re
e

 f
o

r 
o

n
e

 w
e

e
k

 
F

re
e

 f
o

r 
o

n
e

 w
e

e
k

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

T
o

 a
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 o

f 
£

1
.8

0
1

5
p

 p
e

r 
d

a
y

1
6

p
 p

e
r 

d
a

y

M
u

si
c 

S
e

ts
 &

 P
la

y
se

ts
 

Jo
in

t 
a

rr
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 D

e
v

o
n

 
P

o
st

a
g

e
 f

e
e

's
 t

o
 b

e
 

P
o

st
a

g
e

 f
e

e
s 

to
 b

e
 l

e
v

ie
d

&
 p

ly
m

o
u

th
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s 
le

v
ie

d

U
se

 o
f 

Li
b

ra
ry

 C
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 -
 F

ir
st

 H
r

F
re

e
F

re
e

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 -
 E

x
tr

a
 t

im
e

 
£

1
.0

0
 p

e
r 

h
a

lf
 h

r
£

1
.0

0
 p

e
r 

h
a

lf
 h

r

N
o

n
-m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

£
2

.0
0

 p
e

r 
h

a
lf

 h
r

£
2

.0
0

 p
e

r 
h

a
lf

 h
r

u
se

 o
f 

F
a

x
 m

a
ch

in
e

 
T

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 U

K
F

ir
st

 P
a

g
e

 
£

1
.0

0
£

1
.0

0

S
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 
p

a
g

e
s 

7
5

p
 e

a
ch

 
7

5
p

 e
a

ch
 

T
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

 o
u

ts
id

e
 U

K
F

ir
st

 P
a

g
e

 
£

1
.5

0
£

1
.5

0

S
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 
p

a
g

e
s 

£
1

.0
0

 e
a

ch
£

1
.0

0
 e

a
ch

P
ri

n
te

d
 R

e
ce

ip
ts

 
5

0
p

 p
e

r 
p

a
g

e
 

5
0

p
 p

e
r 

p
a

g
e

 

P
h

o
tc

o
p

ie
s 

&
 P

ri
n

to
u

ts
  

B
la

ck
 &

 W
h

it
e

 
A

4
 

1
0

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

1
0

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

B
la

ck
 &

 W
h

it
e

 
A

3
 

2
0

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

2
0

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

C
o

lo
u

r 
(w

h
e

re
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
A

4
 

5
0

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
5

0
p

 p
e

r 
co

p
y

C
o

lo
u

r 
(w

h
e

re
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

) 
A

3
 

7
5

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

7
5

p
 p

e
r 

co
p

y
 

R
e

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 &

 R
o

y
a

lt
ie

s 
La

se
r 

C
o

p
ie

s 
A

4
£

1
.5

0
£

1
.5

0

A
3

£
3

.0
0

£
3

.0
0

La
m

in
a

te
d

 C
o

p
ie

s 
A

4
£

3
.0

0
£

3
.0

0

A
3

£
4

.5
0

£
4

.5
0

P
h

o
to

co
p

ie
s 

1
 -

 4
 c

o
p

ie
s 

o
f 

A
4

£
2

.0
0

£
2

.0
0

(I
n

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 L

o
ca

l 
1

 -
 4

 c
o

p
ie

s 
o

f 
A

3
£

3
.0

0
£

3
.0

0

S
tu

d
ie

s/
re

f 
re

se
a

rc
h

) 

D
ig

it
a

l 
S

ca
n

s 
S

ta
ff

 S
ca

n
n

in
g

 &
 e

m
a

il
in

g
 o

f 
im

a
g

e
 

£
5

.0
0

£
5

.0
0

st
a

ff
 s

ca
n

n
in

g
 i

m
a

g
e

 &
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

 t
o

 
£

6
.0

0
£

6
.0

0

C
D

/D
V

D

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
p

ie
s 

fo
r 

sl
id

e
 s

h
o

w
s 

£
5

.0
0

 p
e

r 
im

a
g

e
 

£
5

.0
0

 p
e

r 
im

a
g

e
 

R
o

y
a

li
ty

 F
e

e
's

 &
 C

h
a

rg
e

s 
Il

lu
st

ra
ti

o
n

 i
n

 b
o

o
k

 
£

1
4

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

 
£

1
4

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

 

S
m

a
ll

 r
e

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

 
e

.g
 P

o
st

ca
rd

s,
 g

re
e

ti
n

g
 c

a
rd

s,
 t

a
b

le
£

4
0

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
4

0
.0

0
 +

 V
A

T

Page 71



m
a

ts
, 

b
o

o
k

 j
a

ck
e

ts
. 

La
rg

e
 r

e
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
e

.g
 P

o
st

e
rs

, 
P

ri
n

ts
, 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

ts
 

£
7

5
.0

0
 +

 V
A

T
£

7
5

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

ic
 b

lo
w

-u
p

s 
F

o
r 

in
te

ri
o

r 
d

e
co

ra
ti

o
n

 
£

5
0

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
5

0
.0

0
 +

 V
A

T

T
e

le
v

is
io

n
, 

V
id

e
o

, 
F

il
m

 s
tr

ip
s,

 
£

5
0

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
5

0
.0

0
 +

 V
A

T

S
li

d
e

s

D
ig

it
is

e
d

 i
m

a
g

e
s 

fo
r 

u
se

 C
D

-R
O

M
S

, 
£

5
0

.0
0

 +
 V

A
T

£
5

0
.0

0
 +

 V
A

T

n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

&
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
rn

e
t 

fr
o

m
 

H
IR

E
 O

F
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

R
O

O
M

S
 

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 &
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

T
ri

p
le

 M
e

e
ti

n
g

 r
o

o
m

 (
1

0
, 

1
1

, 
1

2
) 

P
ro

fi
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

£
2

0
.0

0
£

2
0

.5
0

C
e

n
tr

e
: 

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

9
.0

0
£

9
.5

0

D
o

u
b

le
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 r

o
o

m
 (

1
0

, 
1

1
) 

o
r 

P
ro

fi
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

£
1

8
.0

0
£

1
8

.5
0

(1
1

, 
1

2
) 

N
o

n
-P

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

8
.0

0
£

8
.5

0

S
in

g
le

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 r
o

o
m

 (
1

0
) 

o
r 

(1
1

) 
P

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

1
2

.0
0

£
1

2
.5

0

o
r 

(1
2

) 
o

r 
(1

3
) 

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

5
.5

0
£

6
.0

0

Le
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
P

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

1
5

.0
0

£
1

5
.5

0

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

9
.0

0
£

9
.5

0

M
e

d
ia

 r
o

o
m

 
P

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

5
.0

0
£

5
.5

0

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

2
.5

0
£

3
.0

0

In
te

rv
ie

w
 R

o
o

m
 

£
5

.0
0

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le

T
o

rq
u

a
y

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
R

o
o

m
 H

ir
e

 
P

ro
fi

t 
£

1
4

.0
0

£
1

4
.5

0

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

7
.0

0
£

7
.5

0

B
ri

x
h

a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
R

o
o

m
 H

ir
e

 
P

ro
fi

t 
£

9
.0

0
£

9
.5

0

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

5
.0

0
£

5
.5

0

R
o

o
m

 h
ir

e
 &

 L
a

p
to

p
s 

P
ro

fi
t 

£
1

1
.0

0
£

1
1

.5
0

N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
£

6
.5

0
£

7
.0

0

S
u

rc
h

a
rg

e
s 

fo
r 

h
ir

e
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
W

e
e

k
d

a
y

s 
£

2
0

 p
e

r 
h

r 
o

r 
p

a
rt

 t
h

e
re

o
f 

£
2

0
 p

e
r 

h
r 

o
r 

p
a

rt
 t

h
e

re
o

f 

li
b

ra
ry

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 h
o

u
rs

: 
W

e
e

k
e

n
d

s 
£

2
5

 p
e

r 
h

r 
o

r 
p

a
rt

 t
h

e
re

o
f 

£
2

5
 p

e
r 

h
r 

o
r 

p
a

rt
 t

h
e

re
o

f 

R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
Li

b
ra

ry
 C

a
rd

 
A

d
u

lt
 

£
1

.5
0

£
1

.5
0

U
n

d
e

r 
1

8
/C

h
ro

n
ic

a
ll

y
 s

ic
k

 o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

/
5

0
p

5
0

p

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

R
e

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 C
h

a
rg

e
s:

It
e

m
s 

in
 s

to
ck

 o
r 

o
n

 o
rd

e
r 

in
 T

o
rb

a
y

 
A

d
u

lt
 S

p
e

ci
fi

c 
6

0
p

6
0

p

C
h

il
d

 S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

F
re

e
F

re
e

it
e

m
s 

o
rd

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

A
d

u
lt

 S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

£
4

.0
0

£
4

.0
0

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

C
h

il
d

 S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

n
/a

 
n

/a
 

R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
£

2
.0

0
£

2
.0

0

B
o

o
k

 S
a

le
s:

A
d

u
lt

 F
ic

ti
o

n
 -

 P
a

p
e

rb
a

ck
 

7
0

p
7

0
p

A
d

u
lt

 F
ic

ti
o

n
 -

 h
a

rd
b

a
ck

 
£

1
.0

0
£

1
.0

0

M
il

ls
 &

 B
o

o
n

, 
W

e
st

e
rn

s 
&

 H
a

le

T
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 f
e

e
s 

a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 U

K
 r

ig
h

ts
 f

o
r 

a
 s

in
g

le
 u

se
 o

f 
o

n
e

 b
la

ck
 a

n
d

 w
h

it
e

 i
m

a
g

e
 o

r 
fo

r 
a

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
b

ro
a

d
ca

st
. 

 F
o

r 
co

lo
u

r 
re

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
s

th
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 f

e
e

 i
s 

d
o

u
b

le
d

. 

W
o

rl
d

 r
ig

h
ts

, 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

b
ro

a
d

ca
st

s:
 a

b
o

v
e

 f
e

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
u

b
le

d
 a

g
a

in
. 

 R
e

p
e

a
t 

sh
o

w
in

g
s,

 n
e

w
 a

d
it

io
n

s,
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 h
a

lv
e

d
. 

 R
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 

re
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 r
ig

h
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 i

n
 w

ri
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
Li

b
ra

ri
e

s,
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

Ly
m

in
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
, 

T
Q

1
 3

D
T

 

(w
h

o
 w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
 i

n
 e

x
e

rc
is

in
g

 t
h

e
se

 c
h

a
rg

e
s)

 

Page 72



R
o

m
a

n
ce

s 
3

0
p

 
3

0
p

 

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-f

ic
ti

o
n

 h
a

rd
b

a
ck

 
£

1
.2

0
£

1
.2

0

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-f

ic
ti

o
n

 p
a

p
e

rb
a

ck
 

7
0

p
7

0
p

C
h

il
d

re
n

s 
5

0
p

5
0

p

M
u

si
c 

C
a

ss
e

tt
e

s 
3

0
p

 
3

0
p

 

V
id

e
o

's
 -

 y
e

ll
o

w
/b

lu
e

 
£

2
.0

0
£

2
.0

0

V
id

e
o

's
 -

 g
re

e
n

/w
h

it
e

 
5

0
p

5
0

p

D
V

D
£

2
.0

0
£

2
.0

0

C
D

 -
 S

in
g

le
 S

e
t 

£
1

.0
0

£
1

.0
0

C
D

 -
 M

u
lt

i 
S

e
t

£
1

.5
0

£
1

.5
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

s 
a

u
d

io
 s

e
t 

5
0

p
5

0
p

C
h

il
d

re
n

s 
S

in
g

le
 t

a
p

e
/C

D
2

0
p

2
0

p

X
 B

o
x

 g
a

m
e

£
8

.0
0

£
8

.0
0

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 P
ri

c
e
 I
n

c
re

a
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 -
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

1
.  
  
D
ri
v
e
r 
c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
y
 2
%
 p
.a
.

  
  
  
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 u
s
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
2
%
. 

4
.  
  
R
in
g
 &
 R
id
e
 f
a
re
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
s
 p
e
r 
th
e
 c
h
a
rt
 b
e
lo
w
.

K
E

Y

In
co

rr
e

ct
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
- 

ch
a

n
g

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
s 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 p
a

rk
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s

5
.  
  
A
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
R
in
g
 &
 R
id
e
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 (
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 N
o
rt
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 W
ill
o
w
s
) 
m
a
y
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 o
n
 M
o
n
d
a
y
s
 a
t 
th
e
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 R
in
g
 &
 R
id
e
 

c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r.
 T
h
is
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
in
g
 &
 R
id
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
t.
 I
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
ri
c
e
d
 a
s
 p
e
r 
th
e
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
tr
ip
 o
n
 F
ri
d
a
y
s
 (
£
4
.1
0
).
  

6
.  
  
O
n
ly
 t
w
o
 o
f 
th
e
 t
h
re
e
 F
ri
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 d
a
y
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
g
is
ti
c
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
in
g
 t
h
re
e
 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
.

2
.  
  
E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 a
s
s
u
m
e
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h

3
.  
  
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
’s
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 2
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 

Page 73



 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
 F

ro
m

 T
W

P
 R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

1
.1

 O
ff

 S
tr

e
e

t 
P

a
rk

in
g

 

 

O
F

F
  

S
T

R
E

E
T

 

 

3
0

 m
in

s 
1

 h
o

u
r 

1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
3

 h
o

u
rs

 
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
5

 h
o

u
rs

 
A

ll
 D

a
y

 
O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 
B

e
a

ch
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

- 
£

1
.5

0
 

£
2

.0
0

 
£

2
.5

0
 

£
3

.5
0

 
£

4
.5

0
 

£
5

.5
0

 
£

9
.0

0
 

£
2

.2
0

 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

£
0

.7
0

*
 

£
1

.3
0

 
£

1
.8

0
 

£
2

.2
0

 
£

3
.0

0
 

£
4

.0
0

 
£

5
.0

0
 

£
8

.0
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

 

O
th

e
rs

 
S

u
m

m
e

r 
- 

£
1

.3
0

 
£

1
.8

0
 

£
2

.2
0

 
£

3
.0

0
 

£
4

.0
0

 
£

5
.0

0
 

£
8

.0
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

 

O
F

F
  

S
T

R
E

E
T

 

 

3
0

 m
in

s 
1

 h
o

u
r 

1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
3

 h
o

u
rs

 
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
5

 h
o

u
rs

 
A

ll
 D

a
y

 
O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 
B

e
a

ch
 

W
in

te
r 

£
0

.5
0

 
£

1
.0

0
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
£

1
.8

0
 

£
1

.0
0

 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

W
in

te
r 

£
0

.7
0

 
£

1
.3

0
 

£
1

.8
0

 
£

2
.2

0
 

£
3

.0
0

 
£

4
.0

0
 

£
5

.0
0

 
£

8
.0

0
 

£
2

.0
0

 

 

O
th

e
rs

 
W

in
te

r 
£

0
.7

0
 

£
1

.3
0

 
£

1
.8

0
 

£
2

.2
0

 
£

3
.0

0
 

- 
- 

£
4

.0
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

 

B
e

a
ch

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s 
 

A
b

b
e

y
 P

a
rk

, 
B

re
a

k
w

a
te

r,
 B

ro
a

d
sa

n
d

s,
 C

li
ff

 P
a

rk
, 

C
o

li
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
K

il
m

o
ri

e
, 

M
e

a
d

fo
o

t 
B

e
a

ch
, 

Q
u

a
y

w
e

st
, 

R
o

u
n

d
h

a
m

, 
S

h
e

d
d

e
n

 H
il

l,
 S

h
o

a
ls

to
n

e
, 

T
o

rr
e

 V
a

ll
e

y
, 

W
a

ll
s 

H
il

l 
a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
s 

P
a

rk
. 

O
th

e
rs

 
 

 
B

e
a

co
n

 Q
u

a
y

, 
C

le
n

n
o

n
 V

a
ll

e
y

, 
F

re
sh

w
a

te
r,

 O
x
e

n
 C

o
v

e
, 

P
ri

n
ce

s 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 V
ic

to
ri

a
, 

B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

 S
q

u
a

re
, 

H
a

rb
o

u
r 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

B
ri

x
h

a
m

, 
C

h
il

co
te

 C
lo

se
, 

C
h

u
rc

h
w

a
rd

 R
d

, 
C

o
a

ch
 S

ta
ti

o
n

, 
C

ro
w

n
 &

 A
n

ch
o

r,
 G

re
a

t 
W

e
st

e
rn

, 
H

a
m

p
to

n
 A

v
e

, 
Lo

w
e

r 
U

n
io

n
 L

a
n

e
, 

M
e

a
d

fo
o

t 

R
o

a
d

, 
M

e
lv

il
le

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 P

re
st

o
n

 G
a

rd
e

n
s,

 S
h

o
p

p
e

rs
, 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 L

a
n

e
, 

S
t.

 M
a

ry
ch

u
rc

h
, 

T
o

w
n

 H
a

ll
 a

n
d

 U
n

io
n

 S
q

u
a

re
 

 
 *

3
0

 m
in

u
te

 t
a

ri
ff

s 
o

n
ly

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 i

n
 S

h
o

rt
 S

ta
y

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s 
i.

e
. 

B
ri

x
h

a
m

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 

a
n

d
 G

re
a

t 
W

e
st

e
rn

 (
3

 h
o

u
rs

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 s
ta

y
) 

a
n

d
 S

h
o

p
p

e
rs

 (
1

 

h
o

u
r 

m
a

xi
m

u
m

 s
ta

y
).

 

 
 

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ly

 o
n

 C
h

ri
st

m
a

s 
D

a
y

, 
B

o
xi

n
g

 D
a

y
 a

n
d

 N
e

w
 Y

e
a

rs
 D

a
y

. 
 

    

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 16

Page 74



 

1
.2

 O
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
P

a
rk

in
g

 

 

O
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

 

3
0

 m
in

s 
1

 h
o

u
r 

1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
3

 h
o

u
rs

 
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
A

ll
 D

a
y

 
O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 
P

ri
m

e
 S

it
e

s 
S

u
m

m
e

r 
£

1
.0

0
 

£
1

.5
0

 
£

2
.2

0
 

£
3

.0
0

 
£

4
.0

0
 

£
5

.0
0

 
£

1
0

.0
0

 
£

2
.5

0
 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

£
0

.7
0

 
£

1
.3

0
 

£
2

.0
0

 
£

2
.5

0
 

£
3

.5
0

 
£

4
.5

0
 

£
1

0
.0

0
 

- 

 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r 
S

u
m

m
e

r 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

£
1

.0
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

- 

 

O
N

 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

 

3
0

 m
in

s 
1

 h
o

u
r 

1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 
2

 h
o

u
rs

 
3

 h
o

u
rs

 
4

 h
o

u
rs

 
A

ll
 D

a
y

 
O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 
P

ri
m

e
 S

it
e

s 
W

in
te

r 
£

0
.2

0
 

£
0

.5
0

 
£

1
.0

0
 

£
1

.5
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

£
2

.5
0

 
£

1
0

.0
0

 
£

1
.5

0
 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

W
in

te
r 

£
0

.5
0

 
£

1
.0

0
 

£
1

.5
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

£
3

.0
0

 
£

4
.0

0
 

£
1

0
.0

0
 

- 

 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r 
W

in
te

r 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

£
1

.0
0

 
£

2
.0

0
 

- 

 

P
ri

m
e

 S
it

e
s 

A
d

e
lp

h
i 

R
o

a
d

, 
B

a
b

b
a

co
m

b
e

 R
o

a
d

, 
E

a
st

e
rn

 E
sp

la
n

a
d

e
, 

R
o

ck
 W

a
lk

, 
S

a
n

d
s 

R
o

a
d

, 
S

te
a

rt
fi

e
ld

 R
o

a
d

, 
T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

. 
 O

v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

ch
a

rg
e

s 
w

il
l 

o
n

ly
 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 E
a

st
e

rn
 E

sp
la

n
a

d
e

, 
R

o
ck

 W
a

lk
 a

n
d

 T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
. 

 

C
o

m
m

u
te

r  
 

Ly
m

in
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

, 
M

a
g

d
a

le
n

e
 R

o
a

d
, 

N
e

w
to

n
 R

o
a

d
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

A
b

b
e

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

C
a

st
le

 R
o

a
d

, 
C

P
Z

 A
, 

D
e

n
d

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

H
y

d
e

 R
o

a
d

, 
M

a
rk

e
t 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 P

a
la

ce
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

P
im

li
co

, 
Q

u
e

e
n

s 
R

o
a

d
, 

T
h

e
 T

e
rr

a
ce

, 
T

o
rb

a
y

 

R
o

a
d

, 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

T
o

rw
o

o
d

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 U

n
io

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

 
 

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ly

 o
n

 C
h

ri
st

m
a

s 
D

a
y

, 
B

o
xi

n
g

 D
a

y
 a

n
d

 N
e

w
 Y

e
a

rs
 D

a
y

. 
 

      

Page 75



 1
.3

 P
e

rm
it

s 
a

n
d

 D
is

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
s 

 

P
e

rm
it

 T
y
p

e
 

C
o

v
e
ra

g
e
 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
e
rm
it
 

C
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 

£
5
1
0
.0
0
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
m
m
u
te
r 

A
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
 

£
4
8
0
.0
0
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
it
e
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

C
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

n
e

 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 L
o
n
g
 S
ta
y
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 

£
4
5
0
.0
0
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 A
ll 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 

C
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 t
h
e
 H
a
rb
o
u
r 

£
4
2
.5
0
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 C
o
m
m
u
te
r 

A
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
 

£
4
0
.0
0
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 S
it
e
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

C
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

n
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 L
o
n
g
 S
ta
y
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 o
n
ly
 

£
3
7
.5
0
 

W
e
e
k
ly
 P
e
rm
it
 

C
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 H
a
rb
o
u
r 

£
3
3
.0
0
 

3
 D
a
y
 P
e
rm
it
 

C
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 H
a
rb
o
u
r 

£
2
0
.0
0
 

O
ff
 P
e
a
k
 P
e
rm
it
 

V
a
lid
 3
 p
m
 t
o
 1
0
 a
m
, 
c
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
s
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
p
a
y 
o
n
 e
x
it
 

£
5
0
.0
0
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l W

e
e
k
ly
 

C
o
v
e
rs
 u
s
e
 i
n
 C
le
n
n
o
n
 V
a
lle
y
, 
L
y
m
in
g
to
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
O
x
e
n
 C
o
v
e
, 
V
ic
to
ri
a
 a
n
d
 S
h
e
d
d
e
n
 H
ill
 

£
3
8
.0
0
 

 A
 1

0
%

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
 p

ri
ce

 w
il

l 
b

e
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 t

o
 e

co
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
u

p
 t

o
 r

o
a

d
 f

u
n

d
 t

a
x
 b

a
n

d
 3

. 

Page 76



 

 

 

 

 

Mayor’s Budget Consultation 

Results 

 

January 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3b

Page 77



Executive Summary 

1. In setting a budget for 2014/15 and beyond, Torbay Council faces an 
unprecedented challenge. The Council is facing an estimated budget gap of 
£22 million over the next two financial years and, like all local authorities, has 
to make difficult decisions about its services. Some services may need to be 
reduced or delivered in a different way or some may stop altogether. 

2. The Mayor asked each Executive Lead and Executive Head to identify budget 
priorities within their service areas, together possible areas of savings and 
additional income generation.  The draft proposals were then reviewed and 
prioritised by the Mayor and Conservative Group with the Mayor announcing 
his proposals for savings for 2014/15 and into 2015/16 in November 2013.  

3. Of these proposals, approximately £11 million were identified as “internal” or 
“efficiency” savings, which means there should be no impact on the services 
which are delivered to the community.  The remainder were categorised as 
having a “minor” or “major” impact according to the level of community impact 
or interest whilst also taking account of the impact of those groups with 
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.   

4. The budget proposals for each Business Unit, along with summaries of the 
services each Business Unit currently provides, are available on the Torbay 
Council website at www.torbay.gov.uk/budget1415.  

5. Public consultation on the proposals started on 21 November 2013 and 
closed on the 16 January 2014.  The proposals were widely communicated to 
the Torbay community via local newspaper (Herald Express & Western 
Morning News), local radio (Palm FM, Radio Devon and Heart FM), BBC One 
Spotlight, Twitter and Facebook and detailed on the Torbay Council website. 
Emails were sent to key stakeholders and a range of opportunities were 
provided for people to contribute to the consultation. People were also able to 
send representations via email and post to Torbay Council. 

6. An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) was prepared for each of the proposals 
assessed as “major” and those “minor” proposals with a high level of 
community interest.  Each EIA evidences that the Council has fully considered 
the impact of the proposed changes to services and has carried out 
appropriate consultation on those changes with the key stakeholders.  It 
enables the Council to make informed decisions about the authority’s budget.  

7. In developing the EIA, service specific consultation was undertaken with both 
users and providers.  Consultation took the form of meetings with service 
providers, client focus groups, letters to current and potential service users 
and providers, request for representation from local and national 
organisations and service-based online and paper questionnaires.  The 
general public also had the opportunity to comment on the proposals. 

8. The EIAs have been published on the Council website at 
www.torbay.gov.uk/budget1415 and outline how the consultation process was 

Page 78



undertaken and any positive and negative equality impacts on specific groups.  
The results of the consultation are appended to each EIA. 

9. A further general questionnaire was prepared to supplement the service 
specific consultations.  The questionnaire covered general questions 
concerning Torbay Council services and any proposals where there was a 
potential for some impact on the services the Council delivers.  It was 
available online and as a paper questionnaire which was distributed via 
libraries, Connections offices and at the Mayor’s public events. This asked for 
feedback on the proposals, as well as questions around current services and 
council tax increase. There has been good response to the consultation with 
3,835 unique page views of web information and a total of 2760 respondents 
via paper and online surveys. 

10. Where questions within the general questionnaire related to proposals which 
were also subject to service specific consultation, the results have been 
included within appropriate EIA. 

11. The results for the non-service specific questions are summarised in Annex 1 
to this report.   Where written or email representation has been made around 
the general budget these have been summarised in Annex 2. 

12. The Mayor organised two public events at which he was able to discuss the 
budget and the budget proposals with the public and key stakeholders.  Over 
270 people attended the events which were held on 2 December 2013 in 
Torquay and on 9 January 2014 in Paignton. The results are summarised in 
Annex 3. 

13. In accordance with the Constitution, the Mayor’s budget proposals were sent 
to all members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board for consideration.  The 
Board established a Priorities and Resources Review Panel which then 
considered a number of the specific proposals and received representation 
from a range of organisations and individuals. The report from that review has 
been forwarded to the Mayor and is available on the Torbay Council website 
at www.torbay.gov.uk/completereviews. 

Headline Results 

14. The response to the general budget questionnaire came from people who are 
largely representative of the demographic spread of Torbay. Of the 342 who 
identified their postcode as Torbay, 39% were from Torquay, 33% from 
Paignton and 12% from Brixham. This is in contrast to 2013 where 68% were 
from Torquay. The respondent profile is set out in Annex 4. 

15. Through consultation the proposals which generated the most public interest 
were those in relation to: 

• Supporting People 

• Citizens’ Advice Bureau 

• Libraries  

• English Riviera Tourism Company  

Page 79



• Acorn Centre 
 

16. In the majority of cases, people were against the proposals put forward for 
these services.  The main themes to emerge concerned the impact of a 
reduction in services on vulnerable client groups, the increase pressure the 
proposals may have on statutory services and voluntary sector groups and 
the short timescales of the introduction of the reductions. 

17. From the general questionnaire, the proposals for reducing the maintenance 
of beaches and highways were not supported and were viewed as having a 
detrimental effect on tourism in Torbay. 

18. Based on the consultation survey results, the majority of respondents were in 
favour of a Council Tax increase of 2% (56%). 

 

  

Page 80



Annex 1 – General Budget Questionnaire Results 

The results of those questions specific to a proposal with an Equality Impact 

Assessment (EIA) are included within the EIA.  The other results are shown within 

this Annex. 

Q1. Of the following services, which three do you feel are the most 

important in Torbay?  

Respondents could select up to three services. Results are shown for 2014 and 

compared with the same question from the 2013 budget consultation. 

 

 

 

 

  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts

Service

Which Services do you feel are the most important 
in Torbay?

% of responses 2014

% of responses 2013

Page 81



Q2. Please tell us the three services where you feel that savings could be 

made:  

Respondents could select up to three services. Results are shown for 2014 and 

compared with the same question from the 2013 budget consultation. 

 

 

  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

p
o

n
d

e
n

ts

Service

Where do you feel savings could be made?

% of responses 2014

% of responses 2013

Page 82



Q3. How much do you feel we should increase council tax by?  

Respondents could select one box. 

How much do you feel 

we should increase 

council tax by? 

Number Percent 

0% increase 160 39.1 

2% increase 231 56.5 

No response 18 4.4 

Total 409 100 

 

  

Page 83



Children’s Services Proposals 

Q6f. Reduction in Neighbourhood Youth Grant 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 295 72.1 

No 70 17.1 

No response 44 10.8 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 70 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 63 

respondents made comments related to the proposal.  These have been 

summarised into themes below: 

Category 
Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ 

above 

Positive support to 
youth 

“Young people should be encouraged to access youth services - 

this helps them to develop a good attitude to responsible 

citizenship.” 

“With unemployment at high levels it is unwise to withdraw 

support this kind of support. Our young people need more 

activities and support to keep them focussed  ...” 

“Important help for young people.” 

Less cut/no cut 

“I would support a lesser reduction, youth work is important as a 

preventative measure.” 

“A reduction of 15% would seem more reasonable at a time 

when youth prospect and hope is at an all time low.” 

Other “Neighbourhoods need this grant. Many areas of Torbay need 

schemes to help young people…” 

 

  

Page 84



Residents and Visitor Services Budget Proposals 

Q8d. Increase income from Beach Huts 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 350 85.6 

No 39 9.5 

No response 20 4.9 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 39 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 39 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Already expensive 
“Already too expensive.” 

“Beach huts are expensive as it is, the people of Torbay should be 

allowed to enjoy it beaches/huts for a reasonable price.” 

Families 

“Beach huts need to be more accessible to the local communities 

to be able to allow children to explore a natural environment which 

is not available to all communities.” 

“They are a vital pleasure for older people and families with young 

children in particular.” 

Other 
“But only if beach huts are properly maintained…” 

“..Provide upgraded huts at higher costs...not to simply increase 

charges with no upgrade.” 

 

 

  

Page 85



Q8e.  Increase income from concessions at beaches 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 345 84.4 

No 42 10.3 

No response 22 5.1 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 42 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 42 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category 
Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ 

above 

Litter 

“Beaches should be left unspoilt. More catering means more 

litter and rubbish.” 

“Many traders struggle now, to keep going by adding more 

catering sites etc you will cut these profits and increase litter.” 

Other “More than enough already.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



Q8f.  Reduce the maintenance budget for beaches 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 150 36.7 

No 229 56.0 

No response 30 7.3 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 229 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 207 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will affect tourism 

“Nice beaches are a key part of Torbay's visitor offer…” 

“One of Torbay’s assets is its beaches, to start neglecting them 

would have a direct impact on tourism.” 

“The beaches are the heart of our tourism, we need them 

maintained.” 

“Tourism is vital to the local economy, the state of beaches and 

maintenance of bins is important to maintain...” 

Minimal savings 

“Minimal saving and visually could have huge impact and affect 

tourism.” 

“For the sake of £3k over two years, the negative visual impact to 

locals and visitors will show we have not prioritised maintaining 

the fabric of our beautiful coastline which draws so many people 

each year including locals.” 

Other 
“Less bins means more rubbish on the streets, beaches need 

constant maintenance especially in winter.” 

“We need to keep beaches safe and clean.” 

 

Page 87



Q8g.  Reduce the budget for cyclical highways maintenance (and remove the 

Transport Working Party) 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 161 39.4 

No 205 50.1 

No response 43 10.5 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 205 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 198 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Poor condition of 
roads 

“Highway maintenance is already poor.” 

“Roads are already in a very poor state and need urgent repairs in 

many areas.” 

“Too many pot holes now, would only get worse.” 

Will affect 
tourism 

“High standards of highway infrastructure maintenance are 

important to support the vital tourist industry.” 

“Maintenance of roads is vital in a tourist area like Torbay which 

sees increased volumes of traffic both in the summer season and 

winter …” 

Safety 

“Highway repairs are a safety measure for both pedestrians and 

drivers.” 

“What cost safety! Road users including cyclists could be 

endangered.” 

 

  

Page 88



Q8h. Reduce the maintenance budget for car parks 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 299 73.1 

No 78 19.1 

No response 32 7.8 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 78 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 73 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will affect tourism 

“Maintenance of car parks is essential in a tourist area.” 

“In a major tourist area like Torbay car parks and the quality and 

maintenance of them are more important now than ever as they 

are vital to tourists and local residents alike.” 

Other  
“Minimal savings for high visible impact.” 

“Reducing maintenance only leads to greater costs in the future.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 89



Q8i. Reduce the budget for arboriculture 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 279 68.2 

No 101 24.7 

No response 29 7.1 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 101 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 98 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Safety 

“Non-maintained trees will be a threat to public safety.” 

“The area needs regular arboriculture and planned maintenance in 

order to maintain a safe as well as aesthetic environment for both 

locals and tourists.” 

Environmental 
importance 

“Torbay trees are an essential ingredient of our healthy 

environment…” 

“..Trees make both a vital visual and well as environmental 

contribution in Torbay.” 

Other “Planned maintenance will help reduce the chance of major work 

being needed. Reactive maintenance is often more expensive.” 

 

 

 

  

Page 90



Q8j.  Reduce the budget for parks and open spaces 

Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 201 49.1 

No 176 43.0 

No response 32 7.8 

Total 409 100.0 

 

Of the 176 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 163 

respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 

into themes below: 

Category 
Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ 

above 

Tourism 

“.. A holiday resort appearance is important and unkempt public 

areas would send a negative massage to holiday makers.” 

“As long as our open spaces are part of tourist attractions, they 

must look good.” 

“Attractive parks and open spaces are beneficial to local 

residents and visitors. Tourists are most important for the local 

community.” 

Important service 

“Maintenance is required to keep up the general appearance and 

the feeling of well being.” 

“It’s a great pleasure to walk/sit/rest/play in a well maintained 

public space.” 

Other 

“…These areas 'sell' our location. Look at more cost effective 

ways of laying them out, meadows/wild flowers/cutting twice a 

year etc. Be more efficient and natural in your landscaping to 

save costs - use your environment to enhance these areas and 

keep maintenance costs down. Natural planting is much more 

popular and environmentally friends - not to mention less costly.” 

 

Page 91



Q9.  Further Comments and Suggestions 

Respondents were given the opportunity to make suggestions for where 

alternative/additional savings could be made or income generated.  

Category Examples of themes 

Income 
generation 

• Small charge for use of bus pass 

• Increase council tax 

• Increase income from waste and recycling 

Internal 

• Review internal costs and efficiencies 

• Combine services and functions 

• Review Mayoral post 

Regeneration 
• Review empty shops 

• Regenerate town centres 

Tourism 
• More all weather tourist facilities 

• Explore different tourist markets  

Community / 
volunteers 

• More community involvement and volunteering  

• Run services via the voluntary sector, the church 

Other • Protect services for the vulnerable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 92



Annex 2 – Feedback from Correspondence 

Correspondence was received from individuals via email and letter.  

Categories/themes from all the correspondence received has been summarised in 

the table below.  

Comments relating to specific proposals are included in those consultation results.  

Feedback includes representation from the consultation event in Brixham facilitated 

by the Non-Coalition Group on the Council where 50 people attended. 

Category Example comments made by respondents 

Consultation process 

• Improve access to consultation. 

• Need clearer information. 

• Wider circulation of consultation. 

Supporting People 

• PLUSS provides invaluable support and 

advocacy for people with learning 

difficulties to access employment. 

• Brixham Does Care and ACE (Access to 

Community Education) are a priority 

service for the town. 

Grants and funding 

• Sell or remove the grant for Riviera 

International Conference Centre. 

• English Riviera Tourism Company – 

valued resource. 

Libraries • Relocate other services into libraries. 

Council 

• Provide minimum statutory services. 

• Higher council tax on holiday and second 

homes. 

 

  

Page 93



Annex 3 – Mayor’s Budget Events 

Two public events where held by the Mayor to discuss the budget. The first one was 

held in Torquay in December 2013 and the second one in Paignton in January 2014. 

278 members of the public and stakeholders attended the events. The Mayor 

introduced the event with the Executive Director of Torbay Council giving a 

presentation on the Budget process. 

Members of the public were then invited to take part in an activity, facilitated 

discussion and question and answer session around the budget and general themes 

are collated below: 

Category Examples of themes 

Supporting People 

• Services need to be preserved or this will impact on 

the vulnerable and increase in homelessness. 

• Need to work together to find alternative sources of 

funding or will face closures. 

• Vulnerable people need to be able to have an avenue 

to voice their opinions. 

• Could the cuts be spread over a period of years?  

• Cuts are too high and too fast. 

• Discussions how this could be funded or run in 

different ways e.g. support from the church and 

voluntary sector. 

• Representatives from the police voiced their concern 

over the impact of these budget proposals on crime 

rates and rough sleepers. 

• These services are extremely important and provide 

valuable support to vulnerable adults and their 

families. 

Libraries and the 

arts 
• Concern about provision/closures  

Waste and 

Recycling 

• Increase recycling. 

• Impose fines to increase income. 

Licensing hours • Reduce licensing hours. 

Page 94



Income generation • Through New Homes Bonus. 

Tourism 

• Importance of tourism to the area. 

• Build on the assets we have, environment,  

beaches, and parks. 

Community 

• More jobs for young people. 

• Focus on getting people back into work. 

• Cease support to Riviera International Conference 

Centre/sell building. 

• Concern about Citizens’ Advice Bureau and 

implications of cuts.  

• Concern about availability of national grants to 

community and voluntary groups if local funding not 

available.  

Council Tax 

• The majority of people who took part in the activity at 

the first budget event were in favour of an increase of 

2%.  

• Additional comments and questions also alluded to a 

2% increase  

Council 

• Cross agency/cross local authority services. 

• Assess council wages, mayoral position. 

• Use less agency staff. 

• Ring fence essential services. 

• Mayor will be meeting with MPs to discuss savings. 

General 
• Cuts to preventative services will increase pressure 

on statutory services. 

 

  

Page 95



Annex 4 – Respondent Profile 

Of the 409 responses received, 58% completed paper copies of the questionnaires 
and 42% responded online. This is contrary to the previous year where 45% 
complete paper copies and 55% online, see table below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Of the 342 who identified their postcode as Torbay, 39% were from Torquay, 33% 

from Paignton and 12% from Brixham. This is in contrast to 2013 where 68% were 

from Torquay. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

respondents 

2013 

Number 

2013 

Percent 

2014 

Number 

2014 

Percent 

Hard copy (Paper) 157 45.4 235 57.5 

Online 189 54.6 174 42.5 

Total 346 100.0 409 100.0 

Home town of 

respondents 

2013 

Number 

2013 

Percent 

2014 

Number  

2014 

Percent 

Torquay 227 67.6 159 38.9 

Paignton 64 19.0 135 33.0 

Brixham 45 13.4 48 11.7 

Total 336 100.0 342 83.6 

Number of 

respondents 

Number Percent 

Male 171 45.7 

Female 203 54.3 

Total 374 100.0 

Page 96



B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

  
 

 N
a
m
e
: 

C
a
ro
li
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r 
/ 
D
r 
S
o
n
ja
 M
a
n
to
n
 
P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 /
 C
h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
T
o
rb
a
y
 &
S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
: 

C
ll
r 
S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 A
t 

a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t

im
e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 D
e
v
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t 

(T
S

D
H

C
T

) 
is

 w
o
rk

in
g
, 

o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
o
 

c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 a

ro
u
n
d
 2

,2
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 

  
A

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 a

 t
h
ir
d
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
re

d
 f
o
r 

in
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 c

a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
. 

T
o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

e
rs

o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 s

ta
ff
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 T

ru
s
t 

fi
rs

t 
o
f 

a
ll 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 e

v
e
ry

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

to
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 
 T

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 t
h
e
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
; 
th

is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
n
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l,
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m

ily
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
h
o
w

 t
h
is

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

ri
g
h
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
  

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
k
e
s
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

a
re

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
  
  

*T
y
p
e
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
  

•
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 /
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 
M
in
o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/
in

te
re

s
t 
  

•
 
M
a
jo
r 

- 
H

ig
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/
in

te
re

s
t 
  

  
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 1

Page 97



S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
. 
U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
 p
o
s
it
io
n
: 
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 
fr

o
m

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

   

 
5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 0
    

 
N

/A
 

 
In

 p
la

c
e
 

 N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 

 
2
. 
R
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
: 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
in

 t
h
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

c
a
rc

it
y
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

 

9
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

 

In
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 

fr
o
m

  
1
/4

/1
4
 

 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
s
o
m

e
 b

lo
c
k
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 A

 
le

a
d
 i
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 a

d
ju

s
t 
th

e
ir
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
th

o
d
s
. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 
to

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

2
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 a
n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

th
e
n
 a

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

Page 98



P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

3
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
ll
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
n
s
: 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

(A
t 
a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 1

,3
9
1
 p

e
o

p
le

 
re

c
e
iv

in
g
 c

a
re

 a
t 
h
o
m

e
) 

 

1
,2

9
0
,0

0
0
 

 

4
9
8
,0

0
0
 

 

H
ig

h
 –

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

x
 C

a
re

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t
e
a
m

 

 

 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 

 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

e
t 
w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
 

 

 X
 

 
 

4
. 
C
a
re
 H
o
m
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 &
 R
a
te
s
 

(t
h
e
re

 a
re

 7
6
5
 c

li
e
n

ts
 

p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 R

H
 /
 N

H
 c

a
re

) 

 

3
7
1
,0

0
0
 

 

3
6
0
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 
w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
o
s
e
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 

h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 b

y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 4

%
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r.

  
It
 i
s
 

a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 t
re

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 

 X
 

 
 

5
. 
E
q
u
it
a
b
le
 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

N
o
n
-r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
h
a
rg
in
g
 

p
o
li
c
y
; 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 

p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

n
o
n
-r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
 

 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

T
h
e
 n

o
n
-r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 L

iv
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

 p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 

c
a
re

. 

 X
 

 
 

 
6
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
s
: 

F
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

 

9
4
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

to
 c

e
a
s
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

la
rm

 u
n
le

s
s
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

h
a
s
 

F
a
ir
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

F
A

C
S

) 
e
lig

ib
le

 
n
e
e
d
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

Page 99



P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
7
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
s
: 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

la
rm

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

. 
  

 

4
8
,0

0
0
 

 

4
8
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
lt
e
r 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la

rm
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
la

rm
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
‘c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

a
re

’.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
in

 f
u
tu

re
 a

la
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
 

T
h
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
to

 a
g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

e
t.
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

la
rm

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
o
r 

h
e
lp

fu
l.
 

 

 
 X
 

 

8
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

a
g
re

e
d
. 
 

 

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

g
re

e
d
, 
a
n
d
 p

u
t 
in

to
 

p
la

c
e
, 
fo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

9
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
: 

It
 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 f
u
n
d
 i
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

 

1
7
,0

0
0
 

 

1
7
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

. 
  

 
 

 X
 

Page 100



P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
0
. 
C
a
re
rs
’ 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

T
h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
 

5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 £

3
1
7
,0

0
0
 

  

 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

rs
’ 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

 

 X
 

 
 

1
1
. 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
B
lo
c
k
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
: 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

r 
re

d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e
c
to

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

T
ru

s
t 
is

 £
2
5
6
k
. 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

N
il 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 
 

•
 

1
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 3

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
D

e
v
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
g
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

 
D

o
e
s
 C

a
re

) 
 

•
 

N
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 4

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
V

o
c
a
l,
 

P
a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 &

 2
 B

ip
o
la

r 
s
e
lf
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
) 
 

•
 

W
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

 s
o
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs

) 
to

 3
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 –
 R

e
la

te
, 
A

C
E

 a
n
d
 

R
e
th

in
k
  

 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
2
,4

0
0
 

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
3
,6

0
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 A

S
C

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
ta

l 
v
ia

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

 
 

 X
 

Page 101



P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
2
. 
R
e
d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

to
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
c
e
s
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 

 

 

1
2
2
,0

0
0
 

 

1
,0

9
5
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 T

ru
s
t 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
4
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

re
d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
s
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
s
ti
ll 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

IA
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 e

m
b
a
rk

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
4
. 
 

 
 

 X
  

1
3
. 
R
e
d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

m
o
d
e
l:

  
T

h
e
 T

ru
s
t 
is

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
in

g
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 
b
u
t 

g
iv

e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
o
d
e
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 n
e
w

 c
a
re

 m
o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
,0

6
9
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 T

ru
s
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 
n
e
w

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

IA
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 e

m
b
a
rk

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
4
. 

 
 

 X
 

T
o
ta

l 
s
a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

£
2
,8

8
8
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
s
a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

£
3
,3

9
5
,0

0
0
 

S
u
b
 t
o
ta
l 

£
6
,2
8
3
,0
0
0
 

  

T
O
T
A
L
  

£
7
,8
4
9
,0
0
0
 

 

£
1
,5
6
6
,0
0
0
: 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

J
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 
n
e
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 

Page 102



 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

la
rm

s
  

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
M
a
lc
o
lm
 D
ic
k
e
n
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
T
e
le
H
e
a
lt
h
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 

C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
 C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

C
a
ro
li
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r/
D
r 
S
o
n
ja
 M
a
n
to
n
  

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 2

Page 103



 

 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm

s
: 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
la
rm
s
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
  

 

£
9
6
,0
0
0
  

 
(£
4
8
k
 

1
4
/1
5
 

£
4
8
k
 

1
5
/1
6
) 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

&
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

T
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
lt
e
r 
e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
la
rm
s
 a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

‘c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
re
’.
  
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
in
 f
u
tu
re
 a
la
rm
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l.
 

T
h
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
to
 a
g
re
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
e
t.
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la
rm
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
o
r 
h
e
lp
fu
l.
 

 
X
 

 

Page 104



 

 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
w
o
fo
ld
: 

 
1
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
: 

a
. 
H
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 F
a
ir
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 [
F
A
C
S
] 
e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 

b
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
a
y
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 

c
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
s
 m
e
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
y
s
te
m
 [
R
A
S
] 
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
e
 R
A
S
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m
e
th
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
is
 u
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
th
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

2
. 
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
fu
tu
re
 c
lie
n
ts
: 

a
. 
H
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 F
A
C
S
 e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 

b
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w
a
y
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 

c
. 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
s
 m
e
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
R
A
S
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

 In
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
3
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 a
ft
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la
rm
s
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 c
la
ri
fy
 a
n
d
 s
im
p
lif
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
g
re
e
d
 3
 m
o
n
th
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 a
s
 i
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
fu
s
io
n
. 

 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 i
t 
fo
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 F
A
C
S
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 

in
 m
o
s
t 
n
e
e
d
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
e
lig
ib
le
.  

 
 

Page 105



 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

T
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
re
: 

 
1
. 
C
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
: 

a
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 5
5
0
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 o
n
ly
 c
lie
n
ts
 

b
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
2
5
 T
e
le
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 c
lie
n
ts
 

2
. 
C
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
: 

a
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
0
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 o
n
ly
 c
lie
n
ts
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 

b
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 5
0
 T
e
le
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 c
lie
n
ts
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 

3
. 
F
ro
n
tl
in
e
 C
a
re
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
: 

a
. 
T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
e
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 a
n
d
 T
e
le
C
a
re
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 

F
A
C
S
 e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
is
 m
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 a
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 

b
. 
A
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
in
 m
a
k
in
g
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 m
a
y
 w
a
n
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

4
. 
S
ta
ff
 a
t 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
k
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
 

 

Page 106



 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

th
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 b
e
lo
w
 i
s
 a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 

h
o
w
 o
th
e
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
s
. 
 

 S
h
o
u
ld
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
d
e
c
id
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
a
n
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
r 
d
o
 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
 F
A
C
S
 e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
ly
. 

 
L
A

 
P

o
li

c
y
 

In
st

a
ll

 C
o

st
 

W
e

e
k

ly
 R

e
n

ta
l 

D
e

v
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 o
v
e

r 
6

5
 a

n
d

 n
e

e
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

la
rm

 b
e

ca
u

se
 y

o
u

 a
re

 a
t 

ri
sk

, 
it

 i
s 

v
e

ry
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 q

u
a

li
fy

 f
o

r 
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

ce
 A

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

a
 

n
o

n
-m

e
a

n
s-

te
st

e
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 h
e

lp
 w

it
h

 d
a

il
y
 

ta
sk

s.
 

N
o

 P
u

b
li
sh

e
d

 

C
o

st
s.

 D
C

C
 

re
fe

r 
cl

ie
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 

m
a

rk
e

t 

N
o

 P
u

b
li
sh

e
d

 

C
o

st
s.

 D
C

C
 

re
fe

r 
cl

ie
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 

m
a

rk
e

t 
B

o
u

rn
e

m
o

u
th

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Y
o

u
 c

a
n

 a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r 
a

 f
u

ll
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
 i
f 

y
o

u
 a

re
 e

n
ti

tl
e

d
 t

o
 

a
n

y
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 h

e
lp

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 c
o

st
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
P

le
a

se
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 

C
a

re
 D

ir
e

ct
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

. 

 £
 3

0
.0

0
  

 £
 2

.9
9

  

B
A

N
E

S
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 d
is

co
u

n
ts

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 r
e

ce
iv

in
g

 m
e

a
n

s 
te

st
e

d
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

. 
 £

 3
0

.0
0

  
 £

 3
.6

0
  

Page 107



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
o

u
th

 S
o

m
e

rs
e

t 
In

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

 w
a

iv
e

d
 i
f 

cl
ie

n
t 

is
 o

n
 I

n
co

m
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
P

e
n

si
o

n
 C

re
d

it
, 

In
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 B
e

n
e

fi
t,

 H
o

u
si

n
g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t,
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

 £
 3

1
.9

5
  

 £
 3

.6
5

  

C
o

rn
w

a
ll
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

N
o

 m
e

n
ti

o
n

 o
f 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
r 

fr
e

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

A
la

rm
s 

 £
 4

0
.5

4
  

 £
 3

.3
0

  

B
ri

st
o

l 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
N

o
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

r 
fr

e
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

A
la

rm
s 

 £
 2

5
.0

0
  

 £
 3

.4
6

  

  
4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
h
e
ra
p
y
 /
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 l
e
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fu
tu
re
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 f
o
llo
w
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
ts
 r
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 E
a
c
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
a
s
 a
n
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
te
d
 u
p
o
n
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 b
la
n
k
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
s
 e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l’s
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t.
  

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
T
h
is
 w
a
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 a
n
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 I
n
te
rn
e
t 
s
it
e
. 

 P
le

a
s

e
 s

e
e
 a

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 o
n

e
 f

o
r 

re
s

u
lt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 

  

 F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
le
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
fo
r 
c
e
rt
a
in
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
ili
ty
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 

th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
ts
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
 a
la
rm
. 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 F
a
ir
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C
a
re
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(F
A
C
S
) 
a
n
d
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

 

Page 108



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 N
o
n
e
. 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
n
 a
la
rm
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 W

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a
la
rm
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

a
llo
c
a
te
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 

 It
 i
s
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 c
h
o
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
is
h
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
m
a
in
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
b
u
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
lim
a
te
 t
h
is
 i
s
 u
n
a
v
o
id
a
b
le
. 
 

  
 

 
 

Page 109



 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

   

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

A
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 7
7
0
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
s
e
rs
 

m
a
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

c
la
im
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
. 

  

T
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
7
7
0
 u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

a
ft
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 

a
t 
£
2
.9
9
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 

  

T
h
e
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
a
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 o
v
e
r 
6
5
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
C
a
re
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 f
o
r 
s
h
o
rt
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o
f 
ti
m
e
, 
a
llo
w
in
g
 

th
e
 c
a
re
r 
re
s
p
it
e
 o
r 
th
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 g
o
 

a
b
o
u
t 
ro
u
ti
n
e
 t
a
s
k
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 

e
tc
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 m
o
re
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 c
a
re
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
it
ig
a
te
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 F
A
C
S
 

e
lig
ib
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
la
rm
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 w
ill
 

p
a
y
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 
fe
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
la
rm
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 

w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
 V
A
T
  

T
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

to
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
h
o
 a
ft
e
r 
a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 f
o
u
n
d
 n
o
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
n
 A
la
rm
 o
r 

T
e
le
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lis
ti
c
a
lly
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
a
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
s
e
 b
a
s
is
. 

  

Page 110



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 It
 i
s
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
e
rs
o
n
 w
it
h
 

a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la
rm
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 m
e
e
t 
F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
y
s
te
m
. 
If
 t
h
e
ir
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 R
A
S
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

c
lie
n
t 
m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
o
p
 u
p
 w
it
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

fu
n
d
s
. 
 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
 

 
 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
If
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 a
la
rm
s
, 
d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
is
 m
a
y
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

p
o
s
it
io
n
. 

     

Page 111



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 In
e
v
it
a
b
ly
 s
o
m
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
A
s
 a
ll 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
n
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
c
lie
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l.
 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
w
e
 a
re
 u
n
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 E
a
c
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
a
s
 a
n
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
o
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 c
a
s
e
 b
y
 c
a
s
e
 b
a
s
is
. 

  
 

Page 112



 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 If
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
d
e
c
id
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 v
ia
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 o
u
r 
o
w
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
la
rm
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
: 

 
1
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 P
a
ri
s
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 C
a
re
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 P
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

2
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 a
s
 a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 If
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
d
e
c
id
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 v
ia
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 t
h
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
: 

 
1
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 P
a
ri
s
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 C
a
re
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 P
a
c
k
a
g
e
. 

 If
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
id
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 
o
w
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
n
 

th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
: 

 
1
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 P
a
ri
s
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

2
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 a
s
 a
 p
ri
v
a
te
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

  If
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
id
e
s
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

th
e
n
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
: 

 
1
. 
R
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 P
a
ri
s
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

  

 
 

 

Page 113



 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 T
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 o
p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
: 

 
1
. 
In
 m
o
s
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
a
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
. 

2
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
la
rm
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w
it
h
 a
 c
lie
n
ts
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

3
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 s
ti
ll 
a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
la
rm
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
a
re
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 w
h
a
t 
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

4
. 
A
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

e
it
h
e
r 
a
s
 a
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 :
 

a
. 
If
 t
h
e
y
 m
e
e
t 
F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
la
rm
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
ir
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
ir
 R
A
S
 a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 

5
. 
If
 A
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
 o
r 
T
e
le
C
a
re
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 w
a
y
s
: 

a
. 
If
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 m
a
y
 d
e
c
id
e
 t
o
 

u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
is
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
la
rm
 

b
. 
If
 t
h
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
a
n
y
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
 a
la
rm
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 m
a
rk
e
t 
to
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 f
ro
m
 

Page 114



 

 

6
. 
If
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
h
a
s
 h
ig
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
n
 i
t 
is
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 l
ik
e
ly
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 T
e
le
C
a
re
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la
rm
 a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
f 
c
a
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
ir
 F
A
C
S
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 (
e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
le
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
) 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
lie
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 115



 

 

Appendix One:  

Community Alarms: Funding alarms as part of personal budgets 
 
This proposal does not alter eligibility for a community alarm. This proposal means that in 
future alarms will be funded from the personal budgets allocated to each individual. The 
circumstances and needs of each individual service user will be reassessed as part of a 
formal review process. A discussion will then take place with each individual to agree how 
the needs identified could be met. This will include consideration of whether a community 
alarm would be beneficial or helpful. This is expected to save £96,000 over two years. 
 

 Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 310 75.8 

No 73 17.8 

No response 26 6.4 

Total 409 100.0 

 
57 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 
into themes below: 
 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Affordability 

 
“Realistically people who need alarms may not be able to afford them.” 
“Surely the people who need this service are the most vulnerable & may 
not be able to afford this.” 
 
“Older people will choose between an alarm and eating/heating...” 
 
“But consideration as to the ability of the person to pay should be given.” 
 

Will impact on 

vulnerable 

people 

 
“More pressure on older vulnerable people just when they need support” 
 
“Many who have alarms are vulnerable people and many have limited 
financial resources.” 
 
“The council has a duty of care as responsibility to and for all vulnerable 
people.” 
 
“We have a high proportion of vulnerable people living on their own for 
whom a community alarm would be a life saver.” 
 

Cost of 

implementation 

 
“…Suspect greater cost to administer proposal than assumed.” 
 
“..This is a preventative service...if help is timely, further falls, 
deterioration of mental health etc are prevented saving far more than 
the cost of the service.” 

Page 116



 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

 
"If individuals had to pay for alarms out of their own budgets they would 
be less likely to have one putting themselves at risk of. Hospital 
admission and increasing the pressure on A&E services.” 
 

Other 

 
“I have an alarm but no personal budget, I would feel insecure without 
it...” 
 

 
 

Page 117



 
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
il
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
 

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 

T
im

 N
a
n
d
-L
a
l 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 –
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 

6
th

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

  E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

C
a
ro
li
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r/
D
r 
S
o
n
ja
 M
a
n
to
n
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th

 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

              

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 3

Page 118



 
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
u
n
d
: 
It
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 f
u
n
d
 i
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
  

  

0
 

 
£
3
4
,0
0
0
 

 
(£
1
7
k
 -
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
1
7
k
 -
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
) 
  

L
o
w
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

&
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

b
o
a
rd
. 
  

 
 

X
  

Page 119



 
 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
llo
c
a
te
s
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
it
s
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
 (
L
D
D
F
).
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 r
in
g
-f
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
th
is
 r
in
g
 f
e
n
c
in
g
 w
a
s
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

re
m
o
v
e
d
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 F
u
n
d
. 
T
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 i
s
 £
6
2
,1
0
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
  

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 F
u
n
d
 b
y
 £
1
7
,0
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
£
1
7
,0
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
 I
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
 w
a
s
 £
6
2
,1
0
0
, 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
o
 £
4
5
,1
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

th
e
n
 t
o
 £
2
8
,1
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
 I
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
fu
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 6
0
%
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
fr
o
m
 a
n
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
to
ta
l 
o
f 

£
6
9
,0
0
0
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
. 
 

 In
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
, 
£
3
7
,0
0
0
 o
f 
th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 S
p
e
a
k
in
g
 O
u
t 
in
 T
o
rb
a
y
 (
S
P
O
T
).
 T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 o
th
e
r 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
S
P
O
T
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 i
s
 £
5
0
0
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
IN
K
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
O
IC
E
. 
S
P
O
T
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
: 

•
 

A
 u
s
e
r-
le
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 

A
 g
ro
u
p
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 s
a
fe
, 
h
a
te
 c
ri
m
e
, 
h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
. 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
, 
e
a
s
y
 r
e
a
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
).
 

•
 

W
o
rk
s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

•
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 a
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 

W
o
rk
s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
tc
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
ru
s
t 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 k
e
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
s
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
 

H
a
s
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 r
o
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
. 

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 y
e
a
rs
 S
P
O
T
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
h
a
d
 a
n
y
 u
p
lif
t 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
u
t 
a
re
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

£
4
8
,0
0
0
 a
 y
e
a
r 
to
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
s
t 

Page 120



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
: 

 •
 

£
3
0
0
0
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 6
 m

o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 t
h
e
 S
p
e
e
c
h
 a
n
d
 L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 T
h
e
ra
p
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
, 
o
n
e
 d
a
y
 a
 w
e
e
k
 o
u
t 
o
f 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 

lib
ra
ry
. 
  

•
 

£
1
,6
0
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
b
o
o
k
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 G
P
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 t
o
 a
id
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
9
0
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
o
rk
b
o
o
k
s
 a
re
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
s
y
 r
e
a
d
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
b
o
o
k
s
 h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 

h
e
lp
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
H
e
a
lt
h
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 w
o
rk
b
o
o
k
s
 i
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 

•
 

R
u
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
lf
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
It
 i
s
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 c
o
u
ld
 c
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
2
,7
0
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

•
 

P
a
y
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 c
lie
n
t 
w
h
o
 c
h
a
ir
s
 t
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
is
 r
o
le
, 
£
3
7
5
 a
 y
e
a
r.
 

•
 

£
3
0
0
 t
o
 p
a
rt
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 B
lu
e
 L
ig
h
t 
d
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
. 

•
 

£
1
0
,0
0
0
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 f
u
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 c
a
n
 b
id
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 p
u
m
p
 p
ri
m
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 

w
a
s
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

B
id
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
: 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
 d
a
y
ti
m
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 g
e
t 
a
 j
o
b
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 s
a
fe
 

 In
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 £
4
5
,1
0
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
: 

 •
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 S
P
O
T
  

•
 

T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
 b
o
o
k
s
  

•
 

L
D
 c
lie
n
t 
c
h
a
ir
m
a
n
s
h
ip
 o
f 
 t
h
e
 L
D
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
  

 T
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

a
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 f
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 p
u
m
p
 p
ri
m
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

Page 121



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 In
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 £
2
8
,1
0
0
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 p
u
re
ly
 o
n
 S
P
O
T
 w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 s
ti
ll 
h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
b
s
o
rb
 a
 c
u
t 
o
f 

2
5
%
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
ir
 b
a
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
P
O
T
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

m
a
y
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

w
o
u
ld
 m

e
a
n
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
, 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
to
 p
u
m
p
 

p
ri
m
e
 a
n
y
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
lf
 -
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 i
s
 a
 s
in
g
le
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
o
l 

th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 (
C
C
G
s
),
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
L
A
s
),
 t
o
 a
s
s
u
re
 N
H
S
 E
n
g
la
n
d
, 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 
 

 1
. 
K
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
: 
 

• 
W
in
te
rb
o
u
rn
e
 V
ie
w
 F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 A
n
n
e
x
 B
 (
W
B
V
) 
 

• 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 2
0
1
3
-1
4
 (
A
S
C
O
F
) 
 

• 
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 2
0
1
3
-2
0
1
6
 (
P
H
O
F
) 
 

• 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 2
0
1
3
-1
4
 (
N
H
S
O
F
) 
 

• 
H
e
a
lt
h
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
  

 2
. 
K
e
y
 l
e
v
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 &
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
; 
 

• 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 S
y
s
te
m
  

• 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
s
 a
t 
R
is
k
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  

• 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
s
  

• 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
-p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 c
a
re
rs
  

 3
. 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 S
ix
 L
iv
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 F
u
n
d
 i
s
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 (
L
D
P
B
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

th
e
s
e
 B
o
a
rd
s
. 
T
h
e
 L
D
P
B
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 a
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
t 
it
s
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 L
D
D
F
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

is
 n
o
t 
re
d
u
c
e
d
. 

 W
e
 a
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
d
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
m
p
 p
ri
m
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 b
u
t 
th
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
 (
£
1
0
k
) 
w
ill
 

b
e
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

 

Page 122



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
: 

•
 

S
P
O
T
 (
S
p
e
a
k
in
g
 o
u
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 
–
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
. 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
 –
 m

a
y
 b
e
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 i
f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 /
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
b
o
o
k
s
 

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 –
 m

a
y
 s
e
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
it
h
  
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
  
 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 P
ro
fo
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 M
u
lt
ip
le
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 (
P
M
L
D
) 
 

•
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
 

G
P
s
 

•
 

O
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
y
s
te
m
 

  

 
 

Page 123



 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 It
 i
s
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 3
2
7
5
 a
n
d
 5
2
4
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 b
e
in
g
 m

ild
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
 7
4
8
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
re
 r
e
a
d
 c
o
d
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
d
e
 i
s
 

u
s
e
d
 b
y
 G
P
s
 t
o
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 I
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
e
n
 4
5
8
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 T
e
a
m
. 
 

 S
P
O
T
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
3
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
S
P
O
T
 i
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
is
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 A
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 o
n
e
 d
a
y
 a
 w
e
e
k
 i
n
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
 l
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 

o
n
e
 d
a
y
 a
 w
e
e
k
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
s
s
m
o
re
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 N
e
w
to
n
 A
b
b
o
t.
 T
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
8
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
y
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 b
o
th
 s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 s
a
w
 1
3
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

p
e
o
p
le
 
(a
t 
le
a
s
t 
o
n
e
 
a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
e
a
c
h
),
 
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 
n
in
e
 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
In
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
th
e
re
 
w
e
re
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 2
2
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

Page 124



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 w
e
re
 s
p
lit
 i
n
to
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
c
a
re
rs
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
/i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
D
D
F
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 w
h
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
. 
A
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 a
 h
a
rd
c
o
p
y
 f
o
rm

a
t 

a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
a
lly
. 
A
n
 e
a
s
y
 r
e
a
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
w
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 t
h
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 c
a
re
rs
. 
E
a
c
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
r/
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
h
o
 w
a
s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
D
D
F
 w
a
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 w
id
e
ly
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
o
: 

 

•
 

A
ll 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

•
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
; 

•
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
s
 B
o
a
rd
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

T
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
. 

 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 –
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 

o
n
e
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 –
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
. 
 

 
5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

T
h
e
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

•
 

1
1
0
 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
9
8
%
) 
d
is
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
 

•
 

2
3
 o
u
t 
o
f 
4
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
5
4
%
) 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

•
 

4
4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
6
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
7
1
%
) 
d
is
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
r 
n
o
t 
fe
e
lin
g
 s
a
fe
 

•
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

Page 125



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 

L
e
s
s
 c
lie
n
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

•
 

L
o
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
s
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
  

•
 

M
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 u
s
e
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 v
a
ry
in
g
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
T
h
is
 r
a
n
g
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
e
in
g
 S
P
O
T
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 p
la
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
. 

 A
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
D
D
F
. 
3
6
7
 p
e
o
p
le
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 5
3
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 4
7
%
 d
is
a
g
re
e
d
. 

S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
  
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
: 

 

•
 

“.
..
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
a
s
y
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
.”
 

•
 

“B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 d
e
liv
e
rs
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 r
e
a
l 
te
rm

s
.”
 

•
 

“C
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
is
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 
s
o
c
ie
ty
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
 

th
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
w
a
y
, 
p
u
tt
in
g
 a
 s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
.”
 

•
 

“L
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

 t
h
is
 i
s
 c
o
u
n
te
r-
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 k
in
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
ri
s
is
, 
re
s
p
it
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
.”
 

•
 

“…
T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r.
” 

•
 

“I
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
.”
 

•
 

“T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 n
e
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 a
ll 
th
e
 t
im
e
.”
 

•
 

“I
t 
is
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 s
m
a
ll 
s
u
m
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
  
..
.b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
” 

•
 

“T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
w
o
rt
h
 i
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
.”
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

F
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 o
v
e
rw
h
e
lm
in
g
 d
is
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
id
 n
o
t 

h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
a
n
y
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
d
 n
o
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
in
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
 

 T
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 

Page 126



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
n
y
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il/
T
ru
s
t.
  

  
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

Y
e
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
e
c
h
, 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
is
o
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 c
a
n
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
 s
p
e
e
c
h
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

th
e
ra
p
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
P
O
T
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 b
o
th
 

o
ld
e
r 
a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
lin
ic
a
l 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
Y
e
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

th
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
e
lp
s
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 b
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

e
a
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 

lin
k
 i
n
 w
it
h
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 N
u
rs
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 N
u
rs
e
s
. 

 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 
 

Y
e
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

 

Page 127



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

S
P
O
T
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
y
 a
b
o
u
t 
k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

S
p
o
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
. 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
 

Y
e
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

th
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 A
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
. 
  
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 m

a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
n
d
le
 

m
o
re
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

Page 128



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
re
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
k
n
o
w
n
, 
b
u
t 
it
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
A
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
to
 

b
e
 m

o
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t.
 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
, 
it
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t,
 a
s
 m

u
c
h
 a
s
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
b
le
, 
th
e
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 S
P
O
T
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
, 
s
e
e
 b
e
lo
w
. 
A
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 s
h
o
w
n
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 -
 A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 A
d
v
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
ru
s
t 
(C
D
T
),
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 V
O
C
A
L
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
r 
n
o
t 
fe
e
lin
g
 s
a
fe
 –
 A
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

•
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 –
 C
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
a
ir
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 –
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

e
x
p
lo
re
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 T
o
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 -
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 A
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
D
T
. 
L
in
k
a
g
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 –
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 

Page 129



 
 

p
ri
n
ti
n
g
/f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
 b
o
o
k
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
.  

•
 

L
e
s
s
 c
lie
n
t 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 -
 M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 o
n
lin
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p
o
rt
a
ls
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 r
a
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
tc
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

•
 

L
o
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
e
.g
. 
th
e
 C
D
T
. 

•
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
s
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 –
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
ic
tu
re
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 c
o
rr
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
m
e
rg
e
. 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

is
 a
 p
ri
m
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
s
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
m
 

•
 

M
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 u
s
e
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 W

it
h
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
c
h
o
ic
e
s
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
; 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
 t
o
 t
h
is
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

 A
n
y
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ri
s
e
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
a
n
 b
e
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
/a
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
o
rr
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 
It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 

o
b
ta
in
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 

It
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ft
e
r 
6
 m

o
n
th
s
 o
f 
a
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
D
D
F
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
is
 f
o
ru
m
 h
a
s
 c
lie
n
t,
 c
a
re
r,
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
o
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

to
 g
a
u
g
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
A
n
y
 c
o
rr
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 

          

Page 130



 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

   

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

�
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
 

 It
 m

a
y
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
o
th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 
F
o
r 
S
P
O
T
 i
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
 

to
 b
e
 c
le
a
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 

to
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

 

Page 131



  

APPENDIX ONE:  
 
 
 

Consultation Data:  Reduction in the Learning Disability Development Fund 
 

1. CLIENTS 

 
1.1 Methodology 

 
An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal. In 
addition an easy read version of the questionnaire was developed and was made 
available. The results of the online survey are shown later in this report. 

 
A number of client focus groups were also held with clients to obtain their views. 
This included clients with varying degrees of learning disabilities and consisted of: 

 

• ROC (Robert Owen Communities) – arranging focus groups and enabling 
clients to complete questionnaires, 35 clients covered 

• Hollacombe Community Resource Centre (CRC) – 3 focus groups involving 
21 clients 

 
This section summarises the results from the 56 clients highlighted above. 

 
1.2 Results 
 
  
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Health workbooks 

• Makes me better 

• It helps me  

• Work books are really good 

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• SPOT helps people speak out 

• Help people to get jobs, money and help with housing 

• Lots of meetings and events held 

• Did something about healthy eating 

• Easy to read information is helpful 

Total Communications 

• Good service helped with signs 

• To talk to people and lots of writing, doing forms and reports 

• A person used it for their job at Sainsburys 

• Learnt symbols and signs 

Promote Innovation • Try something new 

Page 132



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Learning Disability 

events 
• Meeting the Police at the Blue Light Day makes people comfortable 

Learning Disability 

Partnership Board 

(LDPB) 

• You can put your hands up and people can speak if they are able to 

• Helps find jobs and money 

• People can share their views and say what needs to be done 

Innovation New projects are a good idea 

Learning Disability 

Events 

Good seeing the Police and Fire Brigade, “trying on their uniforms and it 

made me feel safe”. 

Page 133



  

 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   56 100% 

Yes 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 56 100% 

 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 
Lack of information about SPOT 

Theme Examples of comments  

Lack of information 
Information is important for everyone 

People won’t know what is going on 

Reduced advocacy 
All get far less help than we really need, won’t get point across and will not 

be part of community 

Loss of Learning 

Disability Partnership 

Board (LDPB) client chair 

Chair of the LDPB does a good job and explains things well 

Theme Examples of comments  

Loss of  Learning 

Disability Partnership 

Board (LDPB) client 

Chair 

Safeguarding jobs is important  

Reduced advocacy Don’t want to lose the voice of people with learning disabilities 

Reduced information Easy read information is important to communicate 

Page 134



  

 
 
Q6 & 7.Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   15 55% 

Yes 12 45% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 27 100% 

 
 

 
 
Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   15 55% 

Yes 12 45% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 47 100% 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduced health Peoples health could be detrimentally affected 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 
The ROC group felt that SPOT, the chair person and the Health books should 

be the priority 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

• Libraries and yearly health checks are very important but at the moment 

SPOT is the most important  

• People wanted more than one service funded 

• SPOT was a favourite however the majority of people wanted to know 

more about what it is and what it does 

Page 135



  

Q10.  If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 
should be allocated/prioritised? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

The ROC clients wanted different things funded from books, DVDs, new 

sports equipment, help to clean rooms, projects within ROC, learning about 

being healthy and active etc 

Page 136



  

2. CARERS 
 
2.1 Methodology 

 

The Older Persons Carers Group was approached as a key carers group in Torbay 
for people with learning disabilities. 20 members of this group were met on 17 
December 2013 and gave their views on the proposal. In additional 2 carers 
completed hardcopy questionnaires. This section summarises the output from the 
Carers group as well as these 2 questionnaires. 

 
2.2 Results 
 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 
Q2. What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Communication Total communications is a valuable service and needs to be retained 

Health workbooks Workbooks are very good and aid communication 

Work of  Learning 

Disability Partnership 

Board (LDPB) 

The Learning Disability Partnership Board should continue and be more 

widely promoted. 

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

SPOT can speak up for Learning Disability clients and provide a voice for 

vulnerable clients. 

 

Learning Disability (LD) 

Events 

Some people valued the Learning Disability Blue Light day and found this 

informative. 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

Advocacy 

• Some people were unsure what outcomes, SPOT achieved, as there 

was a view that feedback was not provided on them.  

Page 137



  

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   22 100% 

Yes 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 22 100% 

 
 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 

Reduced communication 

• SPOT could communicate better with regards to what they do, what 

services they provide, how they can be accessed and better 

publicise their successes. 

• Similarly, the other services provided through the LDDF could be 

better publicised. 

• Some people were not aware of the Total Communication Service 

and what it does 

Cost Effectiveness 

• Are all services cost effective, e.g. cost of Total Communications 

service? 

Theme Examples of comments  

Reduced of advocacy 

• Without support people will return to being shut away, e.g. 

institutionalised 

Theme Examples of comments  

Reduced advocacy 

• SPOT trips to London to lobby on Learning Disability issues might 

not happen in the future (some people were not sure if they were still 

happening). 

• There was a fear from some people that (without SPOT) there will be 

no one to speak out on behalf of people with Learning Difficulties. 

• Some people felt that cuts in the fund, together with potential cuts to 

Day Care Services, might leave vulnerable people with nothing to do 

and no one to vocalise their concerns. 

• Without support people will return to being shut away, e.g. 

institutionalised 

Page 138



  

 
 
 
Q6 & 7. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15? 
 

Mixed responses on allocation - Some people valued retaining the Health work 

books, Learning Disability Partnership Board and Total Communications Service. 

 
 
Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16?  
 

  Number Percent 

No   21 95% 

Yes 1 5% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 22 100% 

 
 

 

Reduced 

Communication 

• It will be even harder for SPOT to communicate on what it is doing 

and offering 

Poorer quality of life 

• Loss of quality of life 

• Loss of independence 

• Increase in mental health and physical health issues 

• Further loss of services 

Theme Examples of comments  

Service access 

• Some people were unclear about the criteria, where relevant, that 

exists to access some of these services. 

Reduced advocacy 

• SPOT are an organisation who speak out for people with learning 

disabilities 

Health workbooks 

• Now the health workbooks are tried and tested surely these should 

be funded by Health, e.g. GPs 

Chairmanship of  

Learning Disability 

Partnership Board 

(LDPB)  

• Client chairmanship should continue 

Theme Examples of comments  

N/A 
• None recorded 

Page 139



  

 
 
Q10.  If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 

should be allocated/prioritised? 
 

 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• Some people felt that SPOT should receive more money, in order to 

improve communications e.g. through a newsletter. 

• Others felt it would be better to provide more money to the Older 

Carers Group, rather than SPOT. 

• Some people felt that some Learning Disability clients were not 

getting information from SPOT. 

• One person said they could not agree to such a large reduction in 

funds for SPOT but said that SPOT, in turn, must progress ability to 

use funds effectively 

Page 140



  

3.  Speaking Out Torbay (SPOT) 
 

3.1 Methodology 

 
Speaking Out Torbay (SPOT) members have been able to complete the online 
survey or complete it in hardcopy. An easy read version of the questionnaire was 
also developed and was made available for people to complete. In addition SPOT 
were offered a face to face meeting which they took up on 5 December 2013. The 
outcome of this discussion is shown in this section. 

 
3.2 Results 
 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   3 100% 

Yes 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 3 100% 

 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• Enables the community to have its say 

• Helps support people with learning disabilities 

• Feeds in the views of people with learning disabilities into key 

boards, groups etc 

• Plays a key role in the Learning Disability Partnership Board 

• Helps with consultation on change 

• Helps develop services and partnership working 

• Helps promote best practice 

• Provides easy read information 

• Helps engage with key stakeholders to develop, innovate and ensure 

cost effective services 

Theme Examples of comments  

Core funding 
• SPOT needs core funding and should not necessarily be funded 

through the LDDF 

Page 141



  

Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 
 

 
 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 
 

 
 
Q6 & 7. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   0 0% 

Yes 3 100% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 3 100% 

 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Reduced advocacy 

• More difficult for clients to raise issues 

• May affect SPOT viability 

 

Reduced communication 
• May affect communication with clients 

• Will limit ability to consult people and work with them 

Reduced innovation • May affect ability to develop new ideas 

Theme Examples of comments  

Reduced information • Nowhere for people to go for information 

Reduced advocacy • Reduced voice for people with learning disabilities 

Difficult to implement 

change 

• Likely to affect how clients are involved in developing change 

• May make it more difficult to introduce cultural change 

Theme Examples of comments  

Core Funding 
• It was felt that the production of the health workbooks should be 

paid for from core funding and not the LDDF 

Page 142



  

 
 
 
Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   0 0% 

Yes 3 100% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 3 100% 

 
 

 
 
Q10.  If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 

should be allocated/prioritised? 
 

  

Theme Examples of comments  

Reduced advocacy • May affect SPOT viability 

Reduced quality of life 
• Comes on top of other cuts which all have a detrimental impact on 

people with learning disabilities 

Theme Examples of comments  

N/A • None recorded 

Page 143



  

4. CLIENT CHAIR OF LEARNING DISABILITY PARTNERSHIP BOARD   
 
4.1 Methodology 

 
The client chair of the Learning Disability Partnership Board was offered a face to 
face meeting which he took up and this took place on 18 December 2013. The 
chair also wrote in separately to give his views. The outcome of this discussion and 
the letter are shown in this section. 

 
 
4.2 Results 
 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT (Speaking Out 

Torbay) 

• Fund helps give people a voice 

• SPOT have found it difficult to obtain funding from other sources 

and so the LDDF funding has been crucial 

Quality of life 
• The chair enjoys being employed as the chair and he feels valued 

 

Health workbooks • Health workbooks are helpful 

Total Communication • Total Communications helps people to communicate better 

Work of Learning 

Disability Partnership 

Board (LDPB) 

• Enables SPOT to do work for LDPB 

Theme Examples of comments  

Core funding • Sometimes have to refuse requests which are important 

Page 144



  

 
 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   1 100% 

Yes 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 1 100% 

 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 
 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 
 

 
 
 
Q6 & 7. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   0 0% 

Yes 1 100% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 1 100% 

 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Quality of Life 

• Cuts being targeted at people with learning disabilities 

• Cuts would have a big impact on Chair’s quality of life 

• Chair would find it difficult to find another job given his age 

Theme Examples of comments  

Poorer communication 
• People will not be able to get the services they need or want, e.g. 

Total Communications 

Poorer advocacy 
• People will not be able to get the services they need or want, e.g. 

SPOT 

Page 145



  

Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16? 
 
All important and so difficult to determine 
 

 
 
 
Q10. If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 

should be allocated/prioritised? 
 

 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities • All the areas are priorities 

Core funding 

• Can the GP surgeries fund the printing of the health workbooks? 

• If SPOT can attract funding from other sources it may be possible to 

use the remaining funds to cover other areas 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

• Too much money is being taken from disadvantaged people every 

year. The funding should be taken from other sources. 

• How can you improve people’s lives when money is constantly being 

reduced – you need a break from it? We are going back to the dark 

ages. 

• Can the Council use its reserves to help with the cuts? 

Page 146



  

 
5. TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 
 

The Joint Interim Head of Speech and Language Therapy, at South Devon 
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust were contacted as the person with responsibility 
for the Total Communication Service. An opportunity was given for the team to 
complete the online survey or complete a hardcopy. In addition a face to face 
meeting was offered. This was felt to be unnecessary as an online questionnaire 
was completed instead. This response is therefore included in the online survey 
results which are shown in section 6. 

 

  

Page 147



  

6.  ONLINE SURVEY 

 

6.1 Methodology 

 

An online survey was prepared and a link to the survey was sent to the following: 
 

• Learning Disability providers who have contracts with the Care Trust (3 
December 2013) 

• Learning Disability Partnership Board (6 December 2013) 

• Commissioning for Independence Board (13 December 201) 

• South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group (13 December 201) 
 

The link was then made publicly available on the Council website from 18th 
December 2013 and a reminder was sent out before Christmas about the 
consultation. As a result 10 people submitted electronic questionnaires and the 
results from these questionnaires are summarised below. 

 
6.2 Results 
 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Advocacy 
• People have a say about what is happening 

• People able to be represented in decisions that affect them 

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• Demonstrates service user involvement 

• SPOT is known and trusted by service users 

• SPOT uses innovative and creative ways of engaging 

• SPOT has been invaluable in the annual engagement events for the 

self assessment framework 

Innovation 
• Pump priming initiatives are crucial in reducing reliance on statutory 

and traditional services 

Health workbooks 

• Valuable tool for identifying the primary health needs of people with 

learning disabilities 

• Aids service users to access healthcare, make them feel easier and 

understand more.  

Total Communication 
• Excellent reviews on the total communications service 

• Do a fantastic job with highly trained and qualified staff 

Learning Disability 

Events 

• Fantastic way to network, compare information and gain knowledge 

• Blue light day was fantastic in helping the emergency services 

understand our service users 

Page 148



  

 
 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Impact on clients 

• Torbay’s Safeguarding Adults Boards responsibilities for the 

prevention of harm are supported by the providers funded through 

the LDDF. 

Theme Examples of comments  

Loss of innovation 
• Has an opportunity been missed for people to apply for funding to 

improve the health and lives of people with learning disabilities 

Advocacy 

• There is not enough advocacy for people that need it, e.g. to assist 

people to represent themselves when others are not acting in their 

Best interests  

• SPOT may not be representative of people with a Profound and 

Multiple Learning Disability (PMLD) 

• SPOT could become professional service users with lessened 

objectivity 

• Hard to get hold of SPOT and not had a SPOT meeting for over a 

year 

Work of Learning 

Disability Partnership 

Board (LDPB) 

• The LDPB is a little disorganised and although trying to make a 

difference is lacking in time and effort by those with power to really 

make this a board that enables people to be involved in the 

decisions that might affect them. 

Health 
• Health issues for people with Learning Disability still misunderstood 

by professions, such as GPs and so awareness raising is important 

Page 149



  

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   8 80% 

Yes 2 20% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 10 100% 

 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Loss of innovation • £10k pot helps give a better service 

Reduced advocacy • People will be less satisfied with a reduced voice 

Difficult to implement 

change  
• Changes that are needed could stagnate without the funding 

Efficient service 

• Money should be saved from elsewhere and the LDDF should be 

reduced to a more appropriate proportion 

• Given the current underspend there is no evidence to suggest the 

existing 2013/14 budget should remain at current level 

Total Communications 
• Improved outcomes for many people not just those with a learning 

disability 

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 
• Safeguarding funding for SPOT is my main concern 

Increased Safeguarding 

referrals 

• May reduce number of low level concerns but increase number of 

safeguarding referrals as preventative work may not be undertaken 

Quality of Life  
• Fund supports people to be independent and be safe 

 

Page 150



  

 
 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 

 
Q6 & 7. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15 

and what are your comments on this? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   4 40% 

Yes 6 60% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 100 100% 

 

 
 
Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   7 70% 

Yes 2 20% 

No response 1 10% 

Total 10 100% 

 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Poorer advocacy 
• Less advocacy available 

• Less chance to be involved 

Impact on other services 

• More people will use health and social care services 

• Issues will not be identified early to prevent escalation 

• Missed opportunity to improve quality of care 

• Health workbooks enable Doctors and carers to focus on wider 

health issues 

Poorer communication 

• Negative impact on people with communication difficulties 

• Loss of total communication service would affect people’s 

confidence, mental health, behaviour etc. 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

• Total Communications delivers the most benefits and should be 

prioritised 

• Could SPOT be used to cover the other resources that would be cut 

• I do not think SPOT are the only people who can do this 

• Could funding be made available from health budgets? 

• Prefer to keep £10k pot and partnership fund events rather than 

SPOT 

Page 151



  

 
 

 
 
Q10.  If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 

should be allocated/prioritised? 
 

 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

• SPOT not representative of people with PMLD 

• Level of SPOT funding should be maintained and consideration given 

to extending scope of SPOT to cover other organisations 

• SPOT do an excellent job but we cannot afford to stop funding 

health work books, total communications and the Partnership Board 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities 

• Money should be allocated to Total Communications 

• See if match funding can be secured for more comprehensive user 

led group that would include people with MLD 

• Varying priorities for allocation 

Page 152



  

7.  Other Stakeholders 
 
7.1 Methodology 

 
Reductions in the funding of the Learning Disability Development Fund (LDDF) 
could impact on the work of the Safeguarding Adults Board, the Commissioning for 
Independence Board and the Health service. As a result emails were sent to these 
two Boards as well as to the South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning 
Group encouraging them to respond to the survey. Any electronic submissions 
from these organisations are shown in the online analysis in section 6. 

 
In its role of co-ordinating the LDDF the Learning Disabilities Partnership Board 
(LDPB) considered the impacts of the reduction in this fund at its meeting on 16 
January 2014. The LDPB were aware that at the time of the original budget 
proposals there was an under spend in the Learning Disabilities Development Fund 
(LDDF). However, it is anticipated that by the end of the financial year all the 
funding will have been allocated to worthwhile causes. At the meeting the LDPB 
passed a resolution to express its concerns about this proposal by 19 votes to 0, as 
follows: 

 
"The Learning Disability Partnership Board urges Torbay Council to 
reconsider the reduction in the Learning Disability Development Fund. This 
fund has enabled people with learning disabilities to be involved in decision 
making, have their say and participate in Torbay and has been used to 
stimulate innovation and creativity in the sector. The budget reduction would 
have a negative impact on vulnerable people with learning disabilities in 
Torbay. The LDPB recommends that funding is not reduced, in order to 
promote longer term savings as well as positive outcomes for people with 
learning disabilities." 

 
A hardcopy questionnaire was returned by the Hollacombe and Torquay CRC day 
services staff. It is not known how many staff were involved in the completion of 
this questionnaire. The results from this questionnaire are shown below. 

 
7.2 Results 
 
  
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people with learning disabilities with 

how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Health workbooks • Workbooks are excellent for service users 

Total Communication • Total Communications service is excellent and is open to everyone 

Page 153



  

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people with learning disabilities 

with how the fund is currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Learning Disability 

Development Fund? 
 

No 
 

 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below. 
 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people with learning 

disabilities if the proposal is implemented? 
 

 
 
Q6 & 7. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2014/15? 
 

Yes 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

advocacy 

• Not sure what SPOT do and so refer to VOCAL 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 
• Don’t feel SPOT deserve the amount they get 

Theme Examples of comments  

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• If SPOT get all the money who will oversee that they support people 

who need them? 

Theme Examples of comments  

None • None 

Page 154



  

 
 
Q8 & 9. Do you agree with the proposal for how the fund is allocated for 2015/16? 
 

No 

 
 
 
Q10.  If you answered no to Q6 and/or Q8 please tell us how you feel that the fund 

should be allocated/prioritised? 
 

 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Priorities • Other advocate agencies should have a share in the funding 

Theme Examples of comments  

Health workbooks • Continue 

Total Communications • Continue 

Client Chairmanship of 

Learning Disability 

Partnership Board 

(LDPB) 

• Continue 

SPOT  

(Speaking out Torbay) 

• Money to be shared for people to work more closely with people 

who have learning disabilities. 

Page 155



  

9. Mayor’s Budget Consultation Results:  
 

9.1 Methodology 
 

A questionnaire was produced and was distributed, in hard copy, to all Connections 
offices and libraries – this was open to all members of the public to complete.  
 
An online version was made available on the Torbay Council website on 22nd 
November. The questionnaire was advertised via posters and the local media.  
The survey had a closing date of 16th January 2014. A total of 409 responses have 
been received. 

 
The following question was asked within this questionnaire regarding the Learning 
Disability Development Fund (LDDF) proposal:  

 
Reduce the Learning Disability Development Fund 

 
This is a development fund which has been used in the past to supplement the 
work of voluntary sector organisations and the Learning Disabilities Partnership 
Board. This is expected to save £34,000 over two years. 

 

  Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 193 47.2 

No 174 42.5 

No response 42 10.0 

Total 409 100.0 

 
 

146 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been 
summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will impact on 

vulnerable people 

“...These are some of the most vulnerable people in society and an easy target. They 
are not able to cope without support.” 
 
“Because it will impact on some of the most vulnerable in the community and supports 
empowerment and self management of conditions which actually delivers cost savings 
in real terms.” 
 
“Cutting this budget would affect some of the most vulnerable people in our society. 
People who may not receive this support in any other way, putting a strain on families 
and carers.” 

May increase 

pressure on 

statutory services 

“Long-term this is counter-productive as reducing support of this kind increase crisis, 
respite and residential service demand.” 
 
“…This will increase the burden on the public sector.” 

Page 156



  

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Vital service 

“It is important to support people with learning difficulties.” 
 
“Those who have disability need support and this cannot come from the family all the 
time.” 

Small cost saving 

“It is a comparatively small sum and accommodating the needs of individuals with 
learning disabilities  ...benefits the individuals and the community as well.” 
 
“The cost saving is not worth it considering the benefits to those with learning 
disabilities.” 

 
 

 
 

Page 157



 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
B

lo
c
k
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
 

 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
J
u
li
e
 F
o
s
te
r 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 –
 T
S
D
H
C
T
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
C
a
ro
li
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r/
D
r 
S
o
n
ja
 M
a
n
to
n
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 4

Page 158



 

 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
B
lo
c
k
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
: 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
 

o
f 

a
ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 T

ru
s
t 
is

 £
2
5
6
k
. 

  

 

£
7
6
,0

0
0
  

(£
3
8
k
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
  

£
3
8
k
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
) 
 

 

N
il 

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
  

&
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 
 

•
 

1
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 3

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
(D

e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
g
e
 U

K
 

a
n
d
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

 D
o
e
s
 C

a
re

) 
 

•
 

N
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 4

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
(V

o
c
a
l,
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 &

 2
 

B
ip

o
la

r 
s
e
lf
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e
n
t 
o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s
) 
 

•
 

W
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

 s
o
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

) 
to

 3
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 –
 R

e
la

te
, 

A
C

E
 a

n
d
 R

e
th

in
k
  

 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
2
,4

0
0
 

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
3
,6

0
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

S
C

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
ta

l 
v
ia

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
 

 
 

X
 

Page 159



 

 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 O
ri
g
in
a
l 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
l:
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 i
n
 3

 p
a
rt

s
 w

it
h
 t
o
ta

l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
5
3
,0

0
0
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
. 
  
T

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 i
s
 w

it
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
ro

s
s
-

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 a

s
 1

0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ri
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

a
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 1
. 
T

e
rm

in
a
te

 s
e
v
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

/g
ra

n
ts

 w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
(s

a
v
e
 £

3
8
,0

0
0
).

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
(s

e
v
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
e
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
y
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 G

ra
n
t)

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

d
 o

n
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 i
f 
th

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 n
o
ti
c
e
 i
s
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
im

e
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
. 

 2
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 b
y
 1

0
%

. 
(B

ri
x
h
a
m

 d
o
e
s
 C

a
re

 a
n
d
 A

g
e
 U

K
) 

( 
s
a
v
e
 £

1
5
,0

0
0
) 

 3
. 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
 5

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 (

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 A
d
u
lt
.)

  
 A
m
e
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
(F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
):
  

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 
 

•
 

1
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 3

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
D

e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
g
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

 D
o
e
s
 C

a
re

) 
 

•
 

N
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 4

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
V

o
c
a
l,
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 &

 2
 B

ip
o
la

r 
s
e
lf
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
) 
 

•
 

W
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

 s
o
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

) 
to

 3
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 –
 R

e
la

te
, 
A

C
E

 a
n
d
 R

e
th

in
k
  

 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
6
,0

0
0
 

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
0
,0

0
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

S
C

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
ta

l 
v
ia

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

  

Page 160



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
m

o
v
e
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 
T

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

 
 

Page 161



 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
o
rb

a
y
’s

 J
o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(J

S
N

A
) 

a
n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

ld
e
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
ils

t 
in

 d
ra

ft
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
, 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lla

te
d
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

 

4
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

 A
n
 o

n
lin

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l,
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 t
o
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
  

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t
h
is

, 
e
a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 o

f 
a
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 e

x
p
lo

re
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
s
h
a
p
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
. 
A

ll 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
ir
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
it
e
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 6
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

, 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 2

5
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
e
 o

n
lin

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 1

1
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
in

d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
 

Page 162



 

 

T
h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
o
n
 l
in

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 4

0
9
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 4

9
.4

%
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 4

0
.6

%
 d

id
 n

o
t,
 w

it
h
 1

0
%

 m
a
k
in

g
 n

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

 6
5
 l
e
tt
e
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 (

a
ll 

fo
r 

A
C

E
 a

n
d
 B

ip
o
la

r 
S

e
lf
 H

e
lp

 g
ro

u
p
).

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

ll 
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 g

re
a
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 r
e
ly

 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 
It
 i
s
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
r 

1
1
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 l
o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 v

ie
w

 a
re

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 i
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 g
o
 a

h
e
a
d
. 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
ll
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
 

F
u

n
ct

io
n

 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

V
o

ca
l 

A
d

vo
ca

cy
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 i
ss

u
e

s 
( 

Le
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
il

it
y
) 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 (
 l
o

ca
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

ir
 o

f 
tr

u
st

e
e

s)
, 

co
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ce

, 
su

rv
e

y
. 

(S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 

u
se

 s
u

rv
e

y
.)

 

A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

A
C

E
) 

S
o

ci
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y
, 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
d

u
lt

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 

co
m

b
a

t 
so

ci
a

l 
is

o
la

ti
o

n
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

, 
co

rr
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ce
, 

su
rv

e
y
  

B
ri

xh
a

m
 d

o
e

s 
C

a
re

 
A

d
vi

ce
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t,
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

so
ci

a
l 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 b

e
fr

ie
n

d
in

g
 e

tc
 a

im
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
ck

le
 s

o
ci

a
l 

is
o

la
ti

o
n

 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

, 
co

rr
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ce
, 

su
rv

e
y

 

A
g

e
 U

K
 

A
d

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
cl

a
im

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
. 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

, 
co

rr
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ce
, 

su
rv

e
y

 

P
a

rk
vi

e
w

 S
o

ci
e

ty
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 A

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
S
u

rv
e

y
, 

co
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ce

 

R
e

th
in

k
 (

 D
C

C
) 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
d

vo
ca

cy
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 

le
t 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 D
e

vo
n

. 
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 n
o

t 
o

ff
e

re
d

 a
s 

te
n

d
e

re
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 

3
 y

e
a

r 
b

a
si

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 w

it
h

 1
0

%
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 b
u

il
t 

in
. 

R
e

th
in

k
 (

D
C

C
) 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
d

vo
ca

cy
 

su
rv

e
y
 

R
e

la
te

 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 C

o
u

n
se

ll
in

g
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
 l
o

ca
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 s
u

rv
e

y
 

B
ip

o
la

r 
S
e

lf
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

( 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
, 

co
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ce

, 

su
rv

e
y
) 

B
ip

o
la

r 
S
e

lf
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

  

R
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s 

( 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
, 

co
rr

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ce

, 

su
rv

e
y
) 

  

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 a
s
 f
o
llo

w
s
: 

 

•
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
g
o
 a

 l
o
n
g
 w

a
y
.)
 

Page 163



 

 

 •
 

L
o
s
s
 o

f 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

t 
a
 t
im

e
 w

h
e
n
 w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 i
t 
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
, 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
ru

s
t 
(C

D
T

) 
 

•
 

L
o
s
s
 o

f 
im

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 s

e
lf
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 

 •
 

S
e
v
e
re

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 o

r 
re

m
o
v
e
d
, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 f
a
r 

in
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
, 
a
n
d
 e

x
a
c
e
rb

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls
 

 •
 

U
s
e
r-

le
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 t
o
 p

la
y
 i
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 w

it
h
in

 T
o
rb

a
y
 

 •
 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 g

re
a
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
A

C
E

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B

ip
o
la

r 
S

e
lf
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
, 
tw

o
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

n
d
 i
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
. 
It
 w

a
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
n
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
o
u
ld

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 a

n
d
, 
in

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

u
ic

id
e
 c

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 

 

•
 

R
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
, 
a
n
y
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 A
d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
. 
A

s
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
tr

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 r
o
le

 a
n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ro

le
s
, 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
is

 a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
lu

a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 a

 v
e
ry

 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
. 
 

 O
u
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 i
ts

 s
ta

te
d
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
E

a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 w
e
ll 

k
n
o
w

n
, 
w

e
ll 

u
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 o

u
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

: 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
’s

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
: 
A

 H
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
T

o
rb

a
y
: 
W

h
e
re

 w
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 
e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 t
o
 e

n
jo

y
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 f
u
lf
ill

in
g
 l
if
e
. 
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

Page 164



 

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 E

a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
: 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
t 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t.
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
; 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

•
 

A
n
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
 ‘
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 ‘
  
 

•
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
s
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 w
it
h
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
t 
is

 k
n
o
w

n
. 
T

o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t
h
a
t 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 p

a
y
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 –

 e
.g

. 
p
o
lic

e
 (

P
a
rk

v
ie

w
),

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 (

G
P

s
) 

T
im

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
is

 t
o
 h

a
p
p
e
n
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 g

iv
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
re

 s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

a
re

, 
w

it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
p
u
b
lic

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 d

e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

. 
O

n
c
e
 g

o
n
e
, 
s
u
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
b
u
ild

. 
T

h
e
y
 r

e
ly

 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
p
u
t 
o
f 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

p
ir
it
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
. 
 

 In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
it
 i
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 a

n
d
 B

ip
o
la

r 
S

e
lf
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
, 
s
o
  
th

a
t 
n
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
v
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t:
 

 
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 :
 U
s
e
r 
L
e
d
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 

•
 
B
ip
o
la
r 
S
e
lf
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

 T
h
is

 s
m

a
ll 

u
s
e
r 

le
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
a
c
h
e
s
 1

0
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 t
h
is

 d
is

o
rd

e
r 

in
 T

o
rb

a
y
, 

a
v
o
id

in
g
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

s
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
, 
o
th

e
r 

a
v
e
n
u
e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

i.
e
. 
N

H
S

) 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
. 
R

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 e

n
d
 i
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 v

e
ry

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

a
n
t 
to

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
s
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 –

 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
h
is
  
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 

w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
. 
 (
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
a
v
in
g
: 
£
8
,5
0
0
).

  
 

 

•
 
P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 S
o
c
ie
ty

: 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
 c

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

n
o
t 
m

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1

0
%

 (
£
1
,4

0
0
) 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 i
t 
w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 C

u
s
to

d
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
ta

ff
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs

. 
It
 w

ill
 c

o
s
t 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
u
m

 t
o
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
b
a
c
k
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
, 
m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
–
 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 t
h
e
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 

Page 165



 

 

 

•
 
A
C
E
 i
s
 a

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 u
s
e
r 

le
d
 g

ro
u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
ill

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
R

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 e

n
d
 i
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

a
n
t 
to

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

. 
In

 
lig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
if
 g

iv
e
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

o
n
e
 o

ff
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
5
,0

0
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 
T

h
is

 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
ti
m

e
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 

a
 f
u
tu

re
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in

g
. 
 

 
C

o
n

tr
a

ct
  

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

Y
r 

1
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

  

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

Y
r 

2
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

  
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

h
a

n
g

e
s 

 

1
. 

V
o

ca
l 
 

0
 

0
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 t
h

e
 

se
rv

ic
e

s/
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
y
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 u

ti
li
se

d
 i
n

 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

  

2
. 

A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

A
C

E
) 

3
,0

0
0

 
2

2
,0

0
0

 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

ce
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 

£
3

k
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 c
e

a
se

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

5
 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

  

3
. 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 D

o
e

s 
C

a
re

 
6

,3
0

0
 

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 b

y
 

1
0

%
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 b

u
t 

w
o

rk
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
fo

cu
s/

re
in

v
e

st
 i
n

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

u
b

s/
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
/1

5
 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

  

4
. 

A
G

E
 U

K
 T

o
rb

a
y
 

8
,7

0
0

 
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 r
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 b

y
 

1
0

%
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 b

u
t 

w
o

rk
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
fo

cu
s/

re
in

v
e

st
 i
n

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

u
b

s/
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
/1

5
 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

5
. 

P
a

rk
 V

ie
w

 S
o

ci
e

ty
 

1
,4

0
0

 
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 r
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 b

y
 

1
0

%
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
  

C
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 –
 n

o
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

6
. 

D
e

vo
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
(I

M
C

A
/I

M
H

A
) 

 

4
,7

0
0

 
4

,7
0

0
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 r
e

d
u

ce
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 b

y
 

1
0

%
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
  

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

7
. 

R
E

LA
T

E
 S

o
u

th
 D

e
vo

n
 

5
,0

0
0

 
N

/A
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 c
e

a
se

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

Page 166



 

 

8
. 

B
ip

o
la

r 
S
e

lf
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

(R
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s)

  

2
,5

0
0

 
N

/A
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 c
e

a
se

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 –
 n

o
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

 

9
. 

M
D

F
 T

h
e

 B
ip

o
la

r 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

6
,0

0
0

 
N

/A
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 c
e

a
se

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 –
 n

o
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

1
0

. 
R

e
th

in
k
 (

D
C

C
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

) 

4
,0

0
0

 
4

,0
0

0
 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
to

 c
e

a
se

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

   
 

 
 

Page 167



 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 w

h
e
re

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
ill

 c
e
a
s
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 m

a
y
 n

o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
  

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 c
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 w

h
e
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
ill

 c
e
a
s
e
 a

s
 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
  

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

w
h
e
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
ill

 c
e
a
s
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 m

a
y
 

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
  

  

W
o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 
 

 
N

o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

 
 

 N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

  
R

e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

 
 

N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 

Page 168



 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

 
 

 N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 
W

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 D

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

 
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
(I

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
m

o
s
t 
o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 w

h
o
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 (
H

o
w

 
w

ill
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
) 

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

lie
n
ts

’ 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
g
re

a
te

r 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

c
o
s
t 
a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 
a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
. 
 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 k

n
o
w

n
 w

id
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

  

   

Page 169



 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 T
h
e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
m

o
v
e
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 
T

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 P

a
rk

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

B
ip

o
la

r 
S

e
lf
 H

e
lp

 G
ro

u
p
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

v
o
id

 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

C
E

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 £

5
k
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 
T

h
is

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
ti
m

e
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 

a
 f
u
tu

re
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in

g
. 
 

  

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

  E
n
s
u
re

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

 e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
  

 M
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
: 

 

•
 

U
s
a
g
e
 

•
 

 w
a
it
in

g
 l
is

ts
  

•
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 u

s
e
rs
 

•
 

U
n
m

e
t 
n
e
e
d
 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
   

  

Page 170



 

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

�
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
A
g
e
 U
K
, 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
 d
o
e
s
 C
a
re
, 

V
o
c
a
l,
 R
e
la
te
 a
n
d
 R
e
th
in
k
 (
n
o
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 
a
n
d
 A
C
E
. 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 

th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 

w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 m

it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 
im
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 
a
n
y
 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w

ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
ir
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
fr
o
m
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 
&
 
S
o
u
th
e
rn
 
D
e
v
o
n
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
&
 
C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
t.
  

  

Page 171



 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

�
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

P
a

rk
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 B
ip

o
la

r.
 

 A
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  
 

Page 172



 

 

APPENDIX ONE:  
 
Consultation Data:  Voluntary and Third Sector Contracts Budget Proposals 
 
1. ACE 
 
1.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to ACE on the 4th December  Reminders and 
encouragement to complete was sent 11th & 18th December 2013.  
 
Please see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. For ACE, this was held on 6th January 2014. 
This was facilitated by Lindsey Jeffrey and Chris Lethbridge, Commissioning 
Officers with Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust and 
attended by the Board of Trustees and the Head of Adult and Community Learning 
at South Devon College.  In addition the Board ensured that service users were 
supported to understand the proposal and to complete their responses either in 
writing or on-line.    

  
A total of 51 responses relating to ACE were received as paper copies. 

 
1.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions. The 
results from the group meetings and paper copy submissions and letters are 
collated together.  

 
The responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments 
made. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



 

 

Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 
the funds are currently allocated? 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

ACE  
- 

SERVICE USER-LED  

 
ACE receives currently £25,000 of funding a year from Torbay and 
Southern Devon Health and Social Care Trust.   
 
Ace is a registered charity run by and for disabled adult people.  Its 
purpose is to enable disabled people in Torbay to access educational 
and social activity through Adult & Community Learning (ACL) at its 
Brixham College Centre.  It currently has approximately 100 members 
(60 physically disabled students, 20 carers of physically disabled 
students, 20 volunteers working with physically disabled students). 
 
“Ace members are elected as Trustees and they manage their own 
charity.” 
 

ACE 
- 
 

PROVISION OF  
EDUCATIONAL 
SERVICES 

 
“Education specially adapted to people with varied disability.” 
 
“The learning activities are designed for disabled people and delivered 
by skilled tutors who are trained in disability awareness.  They are 
assisted by trained care workers, who help with personal care”. 
 
“Ace spends its money excellently by making available adult education 
courses in a safe and welcoming environment for disabled people who 
otherwise would not have such access for physical and financial 
reasons” 
 

ACE  
–  

BENEFITS TO 
SERVICE USERS 

HEALTH 

 
“ACE enables disabled people to keep themselves healthy through 
mental and physical activities.” 
 
“ACE Allows the disabled client the opportunity to be included and 
involved in society and partake in normal things that able bodied take 
for granted, i.e. Swimming, drama, sports, gardening, pottery and 
crafts – all of which increase their physical strength and help improve 
mental health.” 
 
“People can manage their condition more effectively” 
 
“People with newly diagnosed conditions have the knowledge and 
support from others with similar conditions.” 
 
“People increase their fitness through appropriate exercise.” 
 
“As an organisation, it produces solid and continuing health benefits 
for many ages.” 
 

ACE 
– 

 BENEFITS TO 
SOCIAL AND 

EMOTIONAL WELL-
BEING 

 

 
“Ace is a lifeline for people like me who would otherwise vegetate at 
home.” 
 
“People gain self-esteem and confidence.” 
 
“Most people using these groups are vulnerable, often lonely.  This is 
where they find friendship, help, support and sociability, for some it is 
the only contact with the world outside their home.” 
 

Page 174



 

 

 
 
 
Q2. What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“It has bought me … a reason to go out and get back into the 
community after being virtually housebound for three years.” 
 
“Allows the disabled client the opportunity to be included and involved 
in society and partake in ‘normal things’ that able-bodied take for 
granted i.e. Swimming, drama, sports, gardening, pottery and crafts, 
all of which increase physical strength and help improve mental health.  
Improves confidence and independence.” 
 

 
ACE 
- 
 

BENEFTITS TO 
CARERS  

 “…get some respite while members are at ACE.” 
 
“Ace supports and provides respite time for Carers who have to deal 
with depressed and demanding family members.” 

ACE 
- 

PART OF THE 
COMMUNITY 

 
“Gardening at ACE ‘gives me back my independence and the chance 
to work equally with my able bodied friends. The Ace garden has won 
many awards in the Torbay Bay in Bloom competition.” 
 

ACE 
- 

PREVENTATIVE 
SERVICE 

“All these services are used by disabled, distressed and needy people, 
living in the community.  The organisations fill gaps in council/ 
government provided services.” 

ACE –  
PROPOSED 

FUNDING CUTS 

“It will be very difficult for ACE members to replace all the funds 
withdrawn by these cuts.  The membership could well wither and in 
time the group could become untenable.” 

Theme Examples of comments  

ACE 
- 

Disadvantages of 
current funding 
allocation to ACE 

 
“None.” 
 
“The only disadvantage would be if Ace was to end.” 
 
“I’m not sure of any disadvantages, these people and groups simply 
need sufficient funding to be able to continue what they are doing.” 
 
“As far as ACE is concerned, I don’t see any disadvantages with how 
the funds are currently allocated.” 
 

Page 175



 

 

Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 
budget? 

 

 
 

  Number Per cent 

No   48 94% 

Yes 1 2% 

No response 2 4% 

Total 51 100% 

 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

NO 

 
“No.” 
 
 

YES 
“Yes, I think we must all help our country recover, but I think that the 
cuts should be fairly shared by all groups.  I don’t think ACE deserves 
to be stripped of all its funding.” 

Theme Examples of comments  

ACE 
- 

MEETING THE 
NEEDS OF 

DISABLED ADULTS 
 

PREVENTING 
ISOLATION  

 
AND  
 

ENHANCING 
PHYSICAL AND 

EMOTIONAL WELL-
BEING 

 
“ACE group provides a balanced user friendly service which is tailored 
to the needs of less able bodied adults.” 
 
“ACE is a unique, inclusive family of vulnerable people supported by 
dedicated volunteers.  We work hard together, as a democratic group, 
for the health, happiness and advancement of all disabled people.” 
 
“ACE provides a meeting place for vulnerable/disabled adults to meet 
in a safe and welcoming environment where they can interact socially 
and pursue hobbies sports etc. with staff and volunteers.  This enables 
them to remain active both physically and mentally.” 
 
“I wish to highlight ACE … the funding currently received provides a 
‘life outside’ for people who otherwise have little to distract them from 
the confines of their homes, preventing solitude.” 
 
“I love the gardening classes making things grow.  It gets me out – 
once a week a bit of fresh air and friends.” 
 
“‘I find the art class helps me relax and I go home feeling quite 
different.” 
 
“As well as the educational benefits, members also learn better ways 
of coping with their disability.” 
 

Page 176



 

 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 
 

ACE 
- 

IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED 
FUNDING CUT 

 
“As a Trustee of the charity Access to Community Education (ACE), I 
see the proposed cuts in funding to these services as a devastating 
blow.  The outcome would eventually lead to the death of our charity 
and the service we currently provide.  That is if an alternative source of 
funding cannot be obtained and at present that appears most unlikely.  
However we would be willing to accept a cut in our funding but a total 
withdrawal would mean the end of ACE.” 
 

ACE 
- 

UNIQUE SERVICE 

 
“ACE is unique and irreplaceable with a host of beneficial side-effects.” 
 
“ACE members have sustained a disability due to illness or a life 
changing accident e.g. Car accident, strokes, MS.  The service that 
ACE provides is unique as it enables members to partake in activities 
in a supportive and safe environment which otherwise they would not 
be given the opportunity to do.  …  ACE is their lifeline and enhances 
every aspect of their life, social, physical and psychological.” 
 
“Ace is unique in that it offers much more than an education.  It 
encourages a community spirit where all, regardless of their 
disabilities, are given an opportunity to grow physically, mentally and 
spiritually, to gain confidence in their abilities in a safe and sensitive 
environment and in interaction with each other.” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

ACE 
- 
 

LOSS OF THIS 
SERVICE WILL 

BRING: 
 

Increased isolation 
Depression 
Loneliness 
Loss of 

independence 
Decline in physical 
and emotional health 

 
 
 

 
“If the funding ceases in 2015 then that may lead to ACE ceasing 
resulting in many of its members experiencing solitude, isolation, ill 
health and their carers suffering similarly.” 
 
“It would have a huge impact on their life, causing isolation, loneliness 
and depression.  An absence of the social interaction …. Could have a 
knock on effect with a decreased ability to be independent and 
decrease the ability to cope with their disability.” 
 
‘”f these proposals are fully implemented then many disabled people 
will be stranded and unable to help themselves as they do now.” 
 
‘”f the funding ceases in 2015 then that may lead to ACE ceasing, 
resulting in many of its members experiencing solitude, isolation, ill 
health and their carers suffering similarly.” 
 
“Solitude, loneliness, isolation, not being able to keep active 
mentally/mix socially/ enjoy a debate, a quiz to test their grey matter, a 
variety of classes & physical enrichment taken for granted by people 
unhampered by disability.” 
 
“‘I will end up indoors, alone looking at TV like I used to – horrible to 
think of it.” 
 
“People will get depressed because they will have nowhere to go.” 
 
“It will inevitably impact on people who won’t be able to get out and 

Page 177



 

 

 
 
Q6.   What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 
 

about.  It will impact on their health and that of their carers.” 
 
“The impact on ACE members would be isolation, depression, lack of 
confidence, leading to more ill health.” 
 
“Members of ACE will revert back into themselves and lose 
confidence.  Many will spend all their days in their homes or care 
homes alone without stimulation.” 
 
“The main impact would be that ACE would cease functioning, many 
who currently use the facility would lose their only day-out.”  
 

ACE 
- 

IMPACT ON OTHER 
PARTS OF THE 

HEALTH AND CARE 
SYSTEM 

 
“It will lead to more people in Doctor’s waiting Rooms, seeking Anti-
Depressants, thus placing a further burden upon the NHS and the 
community at large.” 
 
“…carers who currently have respite whilst their carer is at ACE would 
be seeking respite elsewhere.” 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

ACE 
- 

INCREASED 
PRESSURE ON 

HEALTH AND CARE 
SERVICES 

 
“For the wider community there would be more pressure on the health 
service as mental and physical health goes hand in hand.” 
 
“I see more and more members of the community suffering from 
depression through isolation.  More care workers will be required to 
cover the services being cut, unless these vulnerable members of the 
community are left to fend for themselves.” 
 
“The health service will need to cope with the consequences of cutting 
the funding to ACE.  ACE is a positive experience for all concerned.” 
 
“More pressure on Social Services and Doctors.” 
 
“More strain on other types of health provision – often almost 
inaccessible to the disabled because of energy levels, cost and poor 
transport.” 
 
“This will impact greatly on other services i.e. Medical services, mental 
health services and social services.” 
 
“Other services will be impacted e.g. Health Authority, it is widely 
thought that lack of social interactions, physical and mental stimulation 
leads to ill health.” 
 
“I am sure there will be an increase in disabled adults using medical 
services, e.g. GPS and hospitals.  There could well be an increase in 
mental health issues.” 
 
“Social services, care workers and doctors will be required to provide 
additional services at a far greater cost.” 

Page 178



 

 

 
 
Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 

that you would ask to have considered? 
 

 
“As ACE is unique in its holistic approach to disability, if it has to close 
the members would not be able to find comparable assistance and 
would increasingly become dependent on statutory bodies such as 
NHS and council run bodies.” 
 

ACE 
- 

WIDER IMPACT ON 
COMMUNITY AND 
ON VOLUNTEERS 

 
“ACE employs several members of the local community, plus support from a 
large number of volunteers, who incidentally gain quite a lot from working 
with ACE.” 
 
“Tutors, care workers, taxi drivers and suppliers will be out of work.” 
 
“‘It would also impact on our numerous volunteers – older people who 
because of ACE feel valued and worthwhile and younger people who have 
gone on to get jobs through the confidence building properties of ACE.” 
 
“Loss of work to taxis, local suppliers for various projects, classes and 
equipment.” 
 
“Ace is supported by local volunteers and employees from the local 
community.  Therefore the charity provides both employment and promotes 
positive involvement within the voluntary sector.” 
 

ACE 
- 
 

IMPACT ON CARERS 

 
“A massive impact on carers, who presently get some respite while 
members are at ACE.”  
 
“There is also the question of the Carers of these individuals who will 
have no respite, should these services disappear.” 
 
“For those nursed at home there would be respite time requested by 
their family carers, which ACE currently provides.” 
 
“It would impact on the members’ carers as ACE provides an 
opportunity for them to have a break from what is an extremely 
stressful role, their health would suffer and it could lead to relationship 
break down.’”  
 

Theme Examples of comments  

 
ACE 
- 

LOSS OF TRAINING 
FOR EMPLOYMENT 

 

“As ACE provides education, e.g. Computer studies, young members 
will be less employable without these specifically adapted courses.” 

ACE 
- 

LOSS OF A UNIQUE 
SERVICE 

 
“The service we at ACE provide is unique throughout Britain as far as 
we are aware.”  
 
“Ace, I believe, is unique in its conception.  Its value is immeasurable 
for disabled people who are often widows, pensioners and elderly.” 
 
“Please consider this scenario: if you or a family member were 

Page 179



 

 

rendered disabled tomorrow and the ACE group no longer existed, 
where would you go to receive the facilities presently provided by the 
ACE charity? Where, at the end of your hospitalisation, would you go 
to further your rehabilitation?  All ACE members are fortunate that 
ACE does exist.” 
 
“Ace is one of the few organisations that fill this void in social and 
community care.” 
 
“ACE is pioneering!  There is very little else like it in the country.  Why 
have the very real possibility of it closing when in fact Torbay should 
be holding it up as a jewel in our community’s’ crown.” 
 

ACE 
– 
 

HEALTH AND WELL-
BEING 

 

 
“The company of others who struggle daily with physical/ mental 
disability – the laughter and comradeship – provides a lifeline.  This 
‘family’ gives members a reason to get up and out.  We see changes 
in people as they become more confident.” 
 
“Through being ACE members’ disabled people have improved both 
physically in bodily mobility and emotionally.” 
 
“I can only speak from a personal point of view.  As a disabled and 
partially sighted person totally housebound, I can only state ACE has 
kept me sane and where I can see other people.  The classes too 
have given me back my self-confidence.” 
 
“I enjoy being part of a group and it makes me feel valued when I am 
able to contribute.” 
 

ACE 
- 

EQUAL ACCESS 
FOR DISABLED 

PEOPLE 

 
“Disabled people … have many obstacles such as no wheelchair 
access, toilets upstairs etc. and to remove their one opportunity [to] 
feeling just a little more normal is cruel and inhuman.” 
 
“People need to be aware that disabled people are the same as 
everybody else.” 

ACE 
- 

VALUE FOR MONEY 

“The Trustees of ACE also feel that the cost of our service is dirt 
cheap, in comparison to Local Authority Day Care charges.  Less than 
one third the cost per head.” 
 
“It works and it is very, very good value for money.” 

ACE 
- 
 

THE FUTURE 

 
“The Trust must plan for an ageing population and a long-term need 
for charities like ACE.” 
 
“It would be a crying shame, if after 25 years of dedicated work by 
volunteers, all that ACE has accrued should be cast aside and the 
hopes of its members present and future should be dashed.” 
 
“Health and well-being must be the top of your agenda as it is ours.  If people 
are well they do not rely on more services so in turn cost to the NHS and to 
councils is less in the long run.  We need to ensure that the health impact to 
our members is discussed as members who feel vulnerable or more 
vulnerable will isolate themselves to feel safe and become housebound.  
They may well have reduced self-esteem, feel increasingly lonely and may 
even suffer from depression… Cost: Doctors visits, medication, mental health 
appointments, it all mounts up. ….  I feel if our funding is ceased our 
members will be disadvantaged and their lives will be changed dramatically.” 
 

Page 180



 

 

 
  

ACE 
- 

SAVE OUR SERVICE 

 
“To review the current proposal of ceasing funding from April 2015 and 
give similar status to ACE that is proposed for Brixham Does Care and 
Age UK.” 
 
“I wish that the impacts of the cuts could be considered and that it 
could be done in a much fairer way.” 
 
“Please don’t take it away from us.” 
  
“I consider these proposals very short sighted.  The small amount 
saved will have to be spent many times over to care for people using 
these extremely good services.” 
 
“ACE has benefited the lives of so many people over the years; it 
would be such a shame if this facility was lost.” 
 
“We will miss the service very much.” 
 

Page 181



 

 

2. Age UK  
 

2.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to Age UK on the 4th December  

 
Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. For Age UK this was held on 6th January 
2014. This was facilitated by Lindsey Jeffrey and attended by Richard Brett, and 
four Age Concern members.  Discussion and general comments were captured 
rather than verbatim quotes. Richard advised that the group did not want to go 
through the actual form being presented/offered for feedback and that it was their 
choice to provide general feedback.  This has been utilised to populate the 
following. 

 
The following responses incorporate all response mechanisms, online, face to face 
and written. 

 
Please also see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
2.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 
It should be noted that all areas were sought to be covered but that the provider did 
not wish to use the form in this exact format and their responses have been used to 
populate the appropriate topic areas. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

Advice, signposting 
and direction 

 
“We give very wide amount of advice, info advice and pointing people 
at practical help” 
 
“We give ‘value for money’, in terms of services we provide a 5 day a 
week service, covering a lot of topics and reaching a wide range of 
people for next to nothing” 
 

Support for Social 
inclusion  

“Older people in Torbay who need help with living have nowhere else 
to go, we’re it” 

Page 182



 

 

Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 
with how the funds are currently allocated? 

 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Budget continue to 
reduce 

 
“In 2011/12 the service absorbed a 24% budget cut from council 
funding and restructured to continue to deliver an efficient and 
sustainable service” 
 
“Further cuts may break the service and mean that people have 
nowhere else to get these services” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Combined cuts 

 
“Whilst the direct cuts to the organisation are painful and bring into 
question the staff/volunteer ratio the combination of cuts will mean that 
the business will not be able to cope with the demand arising from the 
loss of SP and further reductions in CAB for which they are not trained 
or able to offer expert advice” 
 

Volunteer 
development will be 

halted 

 
“Without paid staff to be able to recruit, support and coordinate 
volunteers, the development of the sector which is increasingly cited 
as being relied upon to deliver future services will be undermined.”  
 
“Volunteers do not appear or just organise themselves.  An adequate 
and funded infrastructure is required.” 
 
 

Prevention 
“The work that we do is significant in the preventative agenda.  Without 
adequate resources this will not be possible and people will be 
adversely affected.” 

Value for money 

 
“...Be mindful of the fact that this is not necessarily a good deal therefore 
[saving 10%] because once lost {services, volunteers etc] it is not that easy 
to reverse, its like a train running at full speed, if it stops it doesn’t start again, 
people lose the momentum”. 
 
“The impact is so much greater therefore than just the percentage saving.” 
 

Page 183



 

 

Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 
service you wish to highlight. 

 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 
 

 
 
Q6. What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Information and 
Advice 

 
“Clients tend to walk in, sit down in front of us and with impact of cuts they 
will not be able to achieve this because they would not be able to sit down 
face to face – this is a person centred process” 
 
“Integrated Care, concern around impact for integrated if one aspect of this is 
broken – can’t be sure of impact on rest.” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

They will have no 
where else to go 

 
“Older people in Torbay who need help with living have nowhere else to go, 
we’re it.” 
 
Of particular note referencing other budget cuts   
 

Deterioration and 
great demand on the 

system 

 
“Addressing lower to medium levels, if not addressed when they need to they 
become higher.  Isolation and loneliness, prevention, get support in early.  
Prevention, cuts could impact on ability to meet people at the right stage, if 
don’t reach the right stage it becomes more of a serious issue.” 
 
More cost to other parts of the system and reduced well-being  
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Costs 

 
“Costs will be transferred and increased for other parts of the system 
The service is good value for money and others will not be as good 
value” 
 
“Once stopped it will cost a lot to get going again” 
 

Voluntary Sector 
Development 

“Social care and health are looking to the voluntary sector to do more 
and more and get more volunteers involved. 
Cutting Age UK funding will undermine this – needs an infrastructure 
to manage and develop a volunteer workforce” 

Page 184



 

 

Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 
that you would ask to have considered? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

N/A No Responses  

Page 185



 

 

 
3. BIPOLAR Self Help Group 
 
3.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to the Bipolar Organisation on the 4th December  

 
Please see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. For the Bipolar Self Help Group, this was 
held on 9 January 2014. This was facilitated by Julie Foster and attended by two 
service users. A telephone consultation was held on 10 January 2014 with the 
Chief Executive of Bipolar UK, the national charity.  Discussion and general 
comments were captured rather than verbatim quotes.  

 
Feedback from Correspondence 

 
This group and its supporters have been very active in its correspondence. In 
addition to the response letter from the organisation, we have received 13 
letters/emails from individual service users, 2 from family members, 2 from MPs, 5 
letters from professional staff (3 psychologists, 1 community psychiatric nurse, and 
2 carers’ workers)   
 
It should also be noted that the volume of correspondence was higher than detailed 
here as duplicate letters were sent to numerous organisations and forwarded on. 
The comments contained within the correspondence receives is included in this 
feedback. 

 
3.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Avoids costs to 
wider system  

 
“above, all the group enables people to reduce the impact of the 
condition in severity and frequency of episodes of illness” 
 
 

Page 186



 

 

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 

Purpose and benefits 
of group, offers 

service and tackles 
stigma and social 

isolation. 

 
“A group run by people with Bipolar for people with Bipolar Disorder 
and their carers....has run for over 19 years in Torbay. This is unique 
to Torbay, it offers members understanding and acceptance that is not 
available elsewhere.” 
 
“Open 2.5 days per week. Easily accessible and no referral required. 
Helps ‘hard to reach, vulnerable people to reduce their social isolation 
and stigma by phone, emails, individual sessions, group meetings  and 
workshops to develop self- management strategies and recovery” 
 

Small core funding 
enables group to 

function 

 
“Torbay is a ‘beacon’ amongst other areas of the UK in that it has 
invested in mental health services in the community and redressed 
some of the disparity between services for physical frailty and mental 
health. In the voluntary sector a small amount of money can go a long 
way and ‘make such a difference to people”. 
 
“Hours and hours of really valuable work is given for free by highly 
motivated and...Very experienced and knowledgeable volunteers. But 
without a minimum of funding for an office base and meeting room hire 
they simply couldn’t function” 
 

Funding pays for 
training to enable 

volunteers to support 
others  

 
“96 % volunteers all experience bipolar disorder. The rest are affected 
by the condition as family and friends. The national charity support the 
local group  to operate a service which includes one to one counselling 
advice and information and a self help group, which meets monthly. 
Funding is minimal. Volunteers highly motivated and experienced.” 
 

Wider focus than just 
individual service 
user – supports 
family and friends 

“offers support for people to try to avoid conditions spiralling into other 
conditions such as alcoholism” 
 
“Loss of immeasurable benefits” 

The funding includes 
£2500 for rent of 
facilities in ‘Cool 
House’ which 

supports users and 
carers with mental 

illness 

“The loss of this income will impact on Cool House” 

Theme Examples of comments  

No disadvantages - 
funds used 
effectively 

“Funds are’ monitored by the Management and Finance Team (8 
volunteers involved. The team ensures that monies are carefully 
allocated’’  

Volume of activity 
represents excellent 
value for money. 

“2012/13 – 2972 contacts 1532 if newsletter circulation excluded 
Reaching 33 people per week, excluding email contact at 32-40 per 
month.” 

Page 187



 

 

 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 

No 

 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

 
 

Promotes 
involvement in 

monitoring, planning 
and recruitment in 

DPT 

‘we also promote opportunities for involvement in monitoring, planning 
and appointments in our local Mental Health service’ 

Theme Examples of comments  

Removing funding 
goes against ‘Big 
society’ and David 
Cameron’s plans to 
enable communities 
and individuals to 
help themselves. 

“Robbing Peter to pay Paul” 

Brixham does Care, 
Age UK, Rethink and 
Leonard Stocks 
centre are all 

essential in forming a 
network of support to 

people. 

No suitable quote 

Theme Examples of comments  

Bipolar Self help 
group reputation 

 
“offers extremely good value for money...long waiting list for our own 5 
day Recovery and Self Management course” 
 
“highly regarded locally” 
 
“Provides support in a way statutory services cannot” 

Removal of funds will 
mean group will fold 

 
“Our service people will be left isolated, vulnerable, ill informed and 
less educated about self management which could increase the 
probability of relapse” 
 
“Health economics case for support. Bipolar affects 1% of population 
therefore 6500 in Torbay. Annual cost nationally is £2m” 
 
“Resources, once lost, are not easy to replace.” 
 

Loss of service could 
be a  threat to life for 

some people 
“At times it has been reported to us as life-saving” 

Page 188



 

 

Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 
services? 

 

 
 
 
Q6.  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

1000 people will lose 
their support 

 
“There were nearly 3000 contacts with this group last year, estimated 
as providing 1000 service users and their families with much needed 
support in understanding and learning to manage their condition.” 
 
“One of the meeting attendees values the service so much that she has 
been attending for eight years, and has not needed the support of the 
statutory services for several years.” 
 

Potential increased 
suicide risk 

‘ 
“Torbay has ‘an unacceptable high suicide rate  ...especially among 
young men.” 
 
“..their self help courses, in my opinion, has saved my life” 
 
“I was having daily thoughts of suicide” 
 
“DO YOU WANT MORE SUICIDES IN TORBAY?” 

Increased use of 
acute services and 
use of crisis team. 

“There will be an increase in problems in managing their conditions 
without the group there to provide advice, information and support for 
effective self management.” 

Increased demand 
for carers services 
and social care 

‘Further demand on primary and secondary mental health teams. 
Increased use of acute services and use of crisis team. Increased 
demand for carers services and social care’ 

Less chance of 
people returning to 

meaningful 
occupation or 

training 

‘Less chance for people to return to meaningful work, or training, than 
otherwise possible’ 

Support for families 
and friends on first 

diagnosis 

 
“The help provided is ‘immeasurable” 
 
“My son has not had to be admitted to hospital for 5 years” 
 
“It has given those persons newly diagnosed HOPE and their 
carers/families vital information to help then” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Page 189



 

 

 
Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 

that you would ask to have considered? 
 
 

 

4. Brixham Does Care 
 
4.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to Brixham Does Care on the 4th December. 
Reminders and encouragement to complete was sent 11th & 18th December 2013. 

 

Huge impact on 
Mental Health 
services 

 
“Community Psychiatric Nurses refer their clients with Bipolar Disorder 
to the self help group as they know it provides a vial source of 
expertise in self management and helping people to live independently 
without reliance on statutory services. It provides service not available 
elsewhere.” 
 
“Without this programme it is reasonable to expect that  referrals to 
mental health and to psychology will increase as this will be the only 
place where people could access advice and support to manage their 
bipolar illness” 
 
“Haytor Mental Health facility is stretched to breaking point” 

Increased number of 
visits to GP 

“CPN’s/Psychiatrists/GPs are doing an impossible load of work. We 
need to be empowered to look after ourselves as much as we can” 

Theme Examples of comments  

Valuable 
Volunteering 

opportunity created 

‘We have trained some members to become highly skilled, enabling 
and experienced volunteers, trainers and facilitators.’ 

Contribution to 
research projects 

‘Our group works closely with and contributes to research projects’ 

Filling gap left by 
statutory services 

“our members tell us that accessing mental health services is 
increasingly difficult and people are discharged very rapidly, therefore 
our group fills the gap on both counts” 

Page 190



 

 

Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. For Brixham Does Care this was held on 08 
January 2014. This was facilitated by Tim Nand-Lal and attended by 10 members.  
Discussion and general comments were captured rather than verbatim quotes.  

 
The following responses incorporate all response mechanisms, online, face to face 
and written. 

 
The responses of 11 people are included in this feedback.  
 
Please also see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
 
4.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Addresses Social 
Isolation 

 
“Brixham Does Care objectives are to provide a source of solace and 
encouragement to those whose lives are impaired by loneliness, ill 
health or the threat of despair” 
 
“Provides support, visiting and befriending services for free to people” 
 

Information & Advice 

 
“Help in the completion of the Attendance Allowance forms and hence 
help people obtain their appropriate benefits. This is often following 
referral from the Job Centre. 
In Paignton and Torquay there is Age Uk and the CAB that can help 
people. In Brixham there is just a CAB presence for ½ day a week.” 
 

Carers Support 

“Brixham Does Care offers services to everyone in the community 
Don’t have to be a member to access the services” 
 

Signposting 
“Receive referrals from social care and from the Compass GP surgery 
to support people with isolation/depression” 
 

Community 
Development 

 
“To enhance their quality of life, education, health and social welfare 
and to promote independence of vulnerable people and offer 
befriending support to all those in need.     Brixham Does Care 
objectives are to provide a source of solace and encouragement to 
those whose lives are impaired by loneliness, ill health or the threat of 
despair. To offer support and guidance through periods of crises and 
distress.  We offer a wide range of services including advocacy, carers 
support, information advice and signposting, minibus trips and coach 

Page 191



 

 

 
 
 

  Number Percent 

Strongly agree 11 100% 

Agree 0 0% 

Neither agree or disagree 0 0% 

Disagree 0 0% 

Strongly disagree 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 
 

 
 

  Number Percent 

Strongly agree 11 100% 

Agree 0 0% 

Neither agree or disagree 0 0% 

Disagree 0 0% 

Strongly disagree 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 

outings, luncheon club, books on wheels, jigsaw lending and volunteer 
opportunities” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Insufficient Funding 

• There is a waiting list for support with Attendance Allowance 
 

• It is evident that more benefits could be obtained and more 
community connections established if there was more funding  

 

Overall allocation not 
transparent 

• We are unable to answer this without detailed knowledge of 
individual service funding and the reach and impact of the 
other services. 

 

Page 192



 

 

 
 

  Number Percent 

No   11 100% 

Yes 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Number Percent 

Strongly agree 11 100% 

Agree 0 0% 

Neither agree or disagree 0 0% 

Disagree 0 0% 

Strongly disagree 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Social Isolation and 
Depression 

• The ageing population means that a significant proportion of 
elderly people live alone and need a befriending service 

 

Signposting and 
support 

• More people are coming in now than before, including 
because of reductions in statutory services 

 

Benefits support and 
advocacy 

• There is a waiting list for BDC to help people complete the 
Attendance Allowance forms 

 

Page 193



 

 

Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 
services? 

 

 
 
 

 Number Percent 

Strongly agree 11 100% 
 

Agree 0 0% 

Neither agree or disagree 0 0% 

Disagree 0 0% 

Strongly disagree 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
 
Q6  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

 
 

  Number Percent 

Strongly agree 11 100% 

Agree 0 0% 

Neither agree or disagree 0 0% 

Theme Examples of comments  

Limited Access 
• Inability to provide services at times when people can access 

them – will be shut during times in the week 

Lunch Club • Closure with the loss of interaction and support 

Theme Examples of comments  

GPs & Health 
Services 

 

• Presently take referrals for support and care from GPs 

• More demand would be placed on statutory services 

• Less low level and early support leading to higher needs and 
costs to the system 

• Discharge services are particularly important 

Transport 
• Volunteer Driver service may end – leading to missed 

appointments and/or costly alternatives to the statutory sector 

Page 194



 

 

Disagree 0 0% 

Strongly disagree 0 0% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
 
Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 

that you would ask to have considered? 
 
 

 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

N/A None  

Page 195



 

 

5. Parkview 
 
5.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to all Parkview on the 4th December  

 
Please see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
Further to this Parkview was contacted to offer the opportunity of a face to face 
meeting but this was declined.  

 
One item of correspondence was received. 

 
5.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q2  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 
 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 

Yes 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Statutory service Appropriate Adult service required under PACE 1984 

Theme Examples of comments  

Use of funding 
Our service provides 365 days per year service 9am-9pm for £38 per 
day 

Page 196



 

 

Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 
service you wish to highlight. 

 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 
 

 
 
Q6.  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

 
 
Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 

that you would ask to have considered? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Theme Examples of comments  

Understand need for 
reductions 

‘Understand need for reductions’ 

Theme Examples of comments  

Resulting costs 

This proposed cut will inevitably cost Torbay Council more than the 
£1400 saved as Parkview will need to reduce capacity and the ensuing 
referrals will be forwarded to Social services. It will cost much more to 
send qualified social workers to attend Police Custody and provide 
training. 

Theme Examples of comments  

Time spent in 
custody by 
vulnerable 
individuals 

Our service responds within minutes between 9am-9pm to vulnerable 
people detained in custody. With reduced service, people will spend 
longer waiting for a Torbay Council appointed rep to attend. 

Theme Examples of comments  

N/A None  

Page 197



 

 

 
6. RELATE 
 
6.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to Relate on the 4th December  

 
Please see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
Further to this, Relate were contacted to offer the opportunity of a face to face 
meeting - this was held on 9th January 2014. This was facilitated by Julie Foster 
and attended by the Local Manager. Discussion and general comments were 
captured rather than verbatim quotes.  

 
No separate correspondence was received. 

. 
6.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Prevents relationship 
breakdown 

“in turn prevents family breakdown...the ripple effect is massive’’  

Relate is only service 
offering support to 
couples, families, 
children and young 

people 

Children and young people often suffer greatly from relationship 
breakdown and need skilled support at the right time to prevent 
difficulties in terms of their own ability to form long lasting 
relationships. Impacts on school and work attendance. 

Theme Examples of comments  

Use of funding 
The £5000 contract is used to subsidize the cost of sessions for 
people without the means to pay.( unit cost is £57 but only 5% pay 
this) ‘we don’t want to turn people away’ 

Page 198



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 

 No 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

 
 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 
 

 
 
Q6  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Good use of money 

All voluntary sector ‘organisations use their money as cost effectively 
as possible  ...Any cuts would be of huge detriment’. They ‘should not 
be seen as ‘fluffy’ as they follow the same policies, procedures and 
protocols as other mainstream organisations’ 

Theme Examples of comments  

Some people will not 
be able to access 
services due to cost 

‘Will not be able to subsidize clients and they would not be able to 
access the service as very limited funds’ 

Theme Examples of comments  

Relationship issues 
are often referred to 
GP so increase in 
their workload and 
nowhere to refer on.  

Relationship and mental health problems are frequent causes of 
referral to GP 

Children more likely 
to be referred to 
statutory services 

Lack of intervention leads to low school attendance ,teenage 
pregnancy etc ‘ 

Increased referrals to 
CAMHS, A and E  and 

Mental Health 
services 

80% have issues with family breakdowns, this leads to self-harming’ 
and other problems 

Page 199



 

 

Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 
that you would ask to have considered? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Do not wish to lose 
support for 

vulnerable people 

‘Don’t want to lose funding as ring fenced to go for those most in need, 
don’t want to lose support for vulnerable people’ 

Page 200



 

 

7. VOCAL 

7.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  
 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to Vocal on the 4th December  

 
Please see section 8 for results of the online consultation.  

 
Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. For Vocal, this was held on 14th January 
2014. This was facilitated by Julie Foster and attended by the local manager and 
the Chair of Trustees. Service users were supported to understand the proposal 
and to make a combined response on line. Discussion and general comments were 
captured rather than verbatim quotes.  

 
7.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions. The 
results from the survey, group meetings and any other submissions are collated 
together.  

  
The responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments 
made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Use of funding  

 
Vocal receives £15,800 per year to provide advocacy for people with a 
learning disability. This provides 12 hours per week of advocacy 
support with associated costs (management /training etc).In 12/13 54 
people with 104 issues were helped.  
 

Ability to attract 
other 

investment/grants 
etc 

 
Having this ‘core’  contract gives other organisations confidence in 
investing  in us to expand our work e.g. Lloyds Bank, Mencap which 
gives Torbay better value for money and access to other initiatives 
(e.g. multi media communication system) 
Our work is also subsidized by fundraising. 
 

Page 201



 

 

Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 
with how the funds are currently allocated? 

 

 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 

No 
 

 
 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

Demand  is greater 
than current supply 

 
The value of the contract was reduced in 2008 by 20% and has 
remained the same. ‘Demand for our service has increased – we are 
now required to operate a waiting list....we do constantly manage 
risk...and ensure cover when urgently required’. Referral rates 
decrease when waiting list in place ‘as professionals choose not to 
refer when they know we cannot meet demand’. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Vocal 

 
Vocal is pleased that the Council is not proposing to reduce its funding 
over the next two years and is keen to stress that it has done a great 
deal of work to keep costs to a minimum so that maximum available 
funding can be spent on direct service user contact. However, no 
further reduction would make the service unviable.  
 

Rethink 
The non-statutory advocacy service for people with a mental health 
problem is very valuable and any reduction will impact other advocacy 
services. 

Supported 
employment 

This will have a major impact on access to employment for people with 
a learning disability. 

Theme Examples of comments  

Impact on other 
advocacy services 

 
Vocal works as part of the Devon Advocacy Consortium and closely 
with a range of other advocacy services. Reduction to any funding will 
impact on other agencies and decrease the availability of advocacy for 
vulnerable people generally.... ‘Cuts to funding of other services within 
Torbay will increase demand on our services and in the long run, 
reduce availability for all. 
 

Page 202



 

 

 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 
 

 
 
Q6.  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 

that you would ask to have considered? 
 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

Supports effective 
involvement and 

communication with 
services  

 
All service users are vulnerable and the additional support offered by 
Vocal enables them to engage more effectively with services. For 
example, a service user might need help to deploy their personal 
budget to best effect, particularly if this is being reduced as a result of 
reduction in provided services. 
 
A further example is from a mother of three children facing potential 
care proceedings. She was unable to understand what was required of 
her to keep her children safe. This was explained to her in simple 
terms and the proceedings were not required, this avoiding great 
distress to the mother and children and very significant costs to the 
council. 
 
Support with communication ensures the right outcomes are identified 
with minimum of difficulties and delays. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Impact on care 
management 
services 

Community Learning Disability Team staffs refer frequently to Vocal to 
get support for service users in arranging care. Without this, more time 
would need to be spent by Council staff. See Q5. 

Impact on service 
from other cuts 

‘Cuts to funding of other services within Torbay will increase demand 
on our services and in the long run reduce availability for all’ 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Vocal services 

 
‘Vocal has operated in Torbay for 20 years. We have good links in 
adult and children’s services. We are able to work with other providers 
in order to support effective service delivery in future’. Monitoring, audit 
and facilitation are also services offered. 
 

Page 203



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 204



 

 

8. Online Survey Results:  
 
8.1 Methodology 
 

An online survey was developed in order to consult on this proposal, supported by 
information about the proposal.  Respondents were advised of how they could 
make further representations in writing to Torbay Council regarding the proposal.  

 
The online survey opened on the Council website on 18th December 2013 with a 
closing date of 16th January 2014 - A total of 11 responses were received. The 
online survey was also sent to all organisations as detailed in sections 1 – 7 above 
on the 4th December  

 
Further to this, each organisation affected was contacted individually to offer the 
opportunity of a face to face meeting. Six meetings were held please see sections 
1 – 7 for results of this consultation.  
 

 
8.2 Results 
 

The following shows the consultation results to a standard set of questions.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 

 
Q1.  What are the main benefits, if any, for people who use the services with how 

the funds are currently allocated? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Core funding offers 
stability and a basis 
on which to attract 
other funding. 
Without core 

funding, the groups 
are likely to close. 

 
“the small sum awarded to ACE annually over the last few years has 
been crucial to the group’s ability to manage its core business, 
providing the stability from which it is able to seek additional funds 
through small grants and awards to fund particular projects and 
initiatives for which there is no sustainable funding” 
 

Groups are small and 
self regulating, 
making full use of 

funds  

 
“For ACE...all of the funding they receive goes in direct support of its 
activities” 
 
For Brixham does Care “the people of Brixham thank TSDHCT for 
their ongoing support and financial support to their local charity, 
without whose support these services would be unavailable....the 
funding we receive ...is almost all directed towards staffing and support 
costs” 
 
“Vocal currently receives funding of £15,800 pa to provide advocacy 
service for adults with a learning disability and communication 
difficulty. This provides 12 hours of paid advocacy support and the 
associated management and support systems. Our advocate supports 
a team of trained volunteers. Last year 54 people with 104 issues were 
helped.” 

Wide range of 
activities and 
benefits to 

customers and 
carers – tackles 

“Opportunities provided by ACE include swimming, fitness, art, 
gardening and literature with appropriate support. The group has 
formed   ‘a ‘family’ they look out for each other as much as they are 
able’. This has been in existence for 20 years. Carers are supported 
through time away from their responsibilities.” 

Page 205



 

 

 
 
Q2.  What are the main disadvantages, if any, for people who use these services 

with how the funds are currently allocated? 
 
 

social isolation, and 
community support 

Tackling inequalities 

 
“The benefits of the current allocation of funds is that it looked to 
narrow the historical disparity between physical and mental health 
conditions not only for individuals with a mental health diagnosis and in 
particular bipolar, but individuals concerned about the potential, carers, 
families and loved ones.  Torbay has historically demonstrated best 
practice in striving to achieve parity.  Torbay has also been proactive 
in recognising both the prevalence and significant impact of bipolar (a 
profound and life-long mental illness) and the immense benefits of 
peer support both in terms of individuals and families in Torbay, front 
line services in Torbay and local communities” 
 

Support of voluntary 
sector avoids 

involvement with 
health services 

Re ACE “Its current funding from health must likewise be an 
economical benefit to the Health Authority, as the mental, emotional 
and physical well-being of ACE members is clearly helped through 
their involvement in ACE and the mutual support it provides.” 

Theme Examples of comments  

Restrictions due to 
level of funding 

 

 
“The single largest disadvantage we can identify is that we are 
restricted in offering sufficient support to people through lack of 
funding” 
  
ACE – “the only disadvantage to ACE members in the way funds are 
currently allocated is in the uncertainty surrounding them. For 
successive years the 'not knowing' of whether the money would or 
would not be allocated has caused considerable stress for those who 
rely on ACE for social contact, for the physical and psychological 
health benefits that their group provides. For the Trustees this 
uncertainty is even more telling  because, as well as dealing with their 
own physical disabilities and making decisions on behalf of the group 
they feel most acutely their responsibility towards their members, 
many of whom have conditions that pre-clued self-advocacy. This 
consultation survey is a typical case in point; many of the most 
vulnerable members of ACE will not be able to complete it.” 
 
VOCAL – “Demand for our service has increased. – We are now 
required to operate a waiting list – this is far from ideal.....  When we 
are required to operate a waiting list the referral rates reduce, 
professionals choosing not to refer when they know we can not meet 
demand” 
 
“For the allocated £6k allocated to the Bi Polar Group the 
disadvantage is the support that can be offered has to be measured 
and is limited that said it is a local point of contact which shouldn't be 
dismissed.” 
 

Page 206



 

 

 
 
 
Q3.  Do you agree with the proposal to reduce the Voluntary and Third Sector 

budget? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   10 91% 

Yes 1 9% 

No response 0 0% 

Total 11 100% 

 
 
 
Q4.  Please provide further details/comments below and which, if any, specific 

service you wish to highlight. 
 

“There are no disadvantages with the way the funds are currently 
allocated.  If more funds were available then ACE could offer a 
broader programme to those who attend.  If the funds are cut 
completely then this would be detrimental to those who attend ACE 
possibly resulting in isolation and ill health.” 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Recognition of need 
to save money but 
query if this is the 

best way. 

 
“When savings have to be made across the board it is reasonable to 
study all expenditure carefully to ensure that public money is allocated 
with wisely and is providing a worthwhile service for those in need.  
Most organizations can make adjustments to save money.” 
 
“I understand the need to reduce the budget, but is this the best way 
forward. If it has been well researched and this will cause the least 
disruption to the community then it must be.” 
 
“Some reduction or re-allocation of funds is inevitable so the 'yes'/ 'no' 
structure of this question is unhelpful, giving no opportunity for 
negotiated positions. In relation to ACE, the Trustees are clear that 
some reduction of their funding is a given. What they cannot accept is 
that to remove their funding altogether after April 2015 is a good move 
for anyone.” 
 

Impact of these 
savings on other 
parts of the health 
and care system 

 
“In relation to ACE, the Trustees are clear that some reduction of their 
funding is a given. What they cannot accept is that to remove their 
funding altogether after April 2015 is a good move for anyone.” 
 
“If the historical lessons have not been learned i.e. that reducing 
financial support to the voluntary sector increases demand and places 
greater pressure on statutory health and social care, then perhaps now 
would be a good opportunity to address these difficult decisions.” 
 
“Voluntary Organisations make a significant contribution to the health 
and well-being of the residents of Torbay.  Grants provided by the trust 

Page 207



 

 

 
Q5.  What do you think the main impacts will be on people who use these 

services? 

 
 

are topped up by fundraising initiatives, meaning the trust gets far 
more for its money.” 
 
“We absolutely appreciate Torbay is facing a budget deficit, but our 
concern particularly with regard to the Torbay Bipolar UK support 
services is that the relatively speaking small level of savings will not 
only have a severe negative impact on the lives of individuals/families 
in Torbay who access our support every year (approximately 1,000 in 
the past year), but actually add to your overall costs owing to the 
withdrawal of our bipolar support services.   It is estimated that the 
annual health costs to the NHS in England of treating bipolar is £342 
million (Young et al, Journal of Affective Disorders Oct 2011.  More 
than 60% of this cost is accounted for by hospitalisation.  Without the 
benefits of dedicated peer support services focusing on self 
management these costs will be higher.” 
 

Negative Impact on 
individuals 

 
“Testimony from individuals - much of it very moving and powerful - will 
come through this consultation process through members, their 
families and their carers.” 
 
“Without the core funding it is inevitable that ACE will fold in the future 
and fundraising is becoming more difficult because of the ongoing 
cutbacks.  If ACE ceases to operate, where else can its members go?” 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Impact on social 
isolation, well-being 
and maintaining 
independence 

 
“The impact will be far reaching: social isolation, physical isolation 
imposed by transportation issues, broken friendships, nowhere like it 
for the recently disabled people to come and regain confidence and a 
sense of belonging, strains on GP and mental health care facilities, 
healthcare benefits of bespoke exercise, creativity and learning lost: 
the list is comprehensive.” 
 
“Volunteers would miss their sense of worth and friends.  Several 24/7 
carers would not get a day off and would also miss the moral support 
they get from ACE.” 
 
“Our support services in the past year including those with a diagnosis, 
those concerned about the potential of a diagnosis and families, 
friends and loved ones affected by bipolar.  The bipolar services in 
Torbay focus on peer support with core values including taking 
responsibility for our illness through self management and empowering 
people to make meaningful life choices.  Peer support absolutely cuts 
the immense feeling of isolation that bipolar brings about, provides an 
understanding of and tools for self management, helps explain the 
effectiveness of medication and mental health professional support, 
offer empathy, signposting to wider support services (including those 
available national through Bipolar UK), challenges stigma, 
discrimination, bias and emphasise full community inclusion.  Torbay's 
bipolar peer support services are life changing and indeed at times life 
saving.” 
 
“Isolation, depression, health problems due to the isolation” 

Page 208



 

 

   
Q6.  What do you think will be the impacts on other services or parts of the 

community if these proposals are adopted? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Loss of jobs and 
local businesses 

 
“The loss of jobs for care workers and tutors.  Loss of income for taxi 
companies.  Loss of income for swimming pool” 
 
“Effect on local businesses - particularly the taxi companies employed 
by ACE, lost revenue for local swimming pools, ACE gardeners use 
local businesses in maintaining the gardens etc.” 
 
“Increased unemployment for some and loss of revenue to others.  For 
one, who is going to employ me at my time of life if the charity ceases 
to exist and I lose my job, I'm 60 this year and not due to retire until I 
am 66?  Along with me there are four Care Workers and six Tutors so 
a few more unemployment statistics along with Jobseekers allowance 
claimants.  Of course, benefits are also being cut so maybe I'll be 
selling the big issue if I can't afford to pay my bills.  Joking aside 
though as this is a serious matter; it is also a worry for us who work 
with these organisations.  Our taxi company will lose its contract and 
the local swimming pools will lose revenue for the annual pool hire 
they charge.  So this will also affect local businesses.” 
 

Increased pressure 
on statutory services 

“NHS could be used more since with no ACE members may well 
develop symptoms such as depression and other minor ailments” 
 
“Less opportunity for people to access services placing greater 
demand on statutory services and putting greater pressure on the 
voluntary sector.  In Brixham there are fewer caring organisations than 
there are in Paignton and Torquay. Therefore it is likely that the impact 
of fewer services in Brixham would have most dramatic 
consequences.” 
 
“Lost respite care for those caring for the disabled at home will 
undoubtedly put pressure on other services, in some cases leading to 
the cost of providing residential care instead.” 
 
“Cuts to funding of other services within Torbay will increase demand 
on our services and in the long run reduce availability for all.  Cutting 
funding of non statutory mental health advocacy will lead to an 
increase in referrals to our service.” 
 
“Bi Polar The CCG/DPT will have an increased level of support 
required from patients without a support structure.” 
 
“Other services in the health sector may become burdened with people 
who are not ill seeking help when companionship and someone to talk 
to would help them” 
 

Page 209



 

 

Q7.  Do you have any other comments or insight in respect of these proposals 
that you would ask to have considered? 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Theme Examples of comments  

Alternatives to 
proposals to 
consider 

 
“I think it would be a great shame for ACE to have to close since it’s 
become such a big part of a group of people’s lives. I presume an 
exercise will take place to ascertain the minimum amount that is 
required to keep going and hope that somehow this could be raised.” 
 

Consultation 
methodology 

 
“All groups will naturally view the proposals from their own position. It 
may have been better to construct a consultation process reflecting 
that, tailored to each group rather than this homogenous approach.  
Some of those most vulnerable, most affected people will not be able 
to respond directly to this consultation. Issues of transport, not having 
the ability to speak out, physical limitations imposed by disability all 
affect opportunities to attend public meetings. Physical limitations, lack 
of internet accessibility, poor IT literacy (particularly for the elderly and 
infirm) all impact on the ability for those most affected to complete this 
questionnaire.  Visiting groups in action, seeing what is done, receiving 
direct feedback from those involved would be more effective in 
assessing the need for continued funding - I would say for groups like 
ACE but actually, ACE is pretty unique.” 
 

Value added benefits 
of contract 

 
“We work with service commissioners to check that individuals care 
plans are being provided and that they are happy with the care that 
they receive.   Our contract in Torbay benefits significantly by the 
activities of the rest of our organisation which operates in south and 
west Devon.  We actively seek funding from other agencies and trust 
funds in order to support the delivery of advocacy. Torbay benefits 
from these initiatives. Our contract with Torbay is subsidised by our 
other fundraising activities – these are not sufficient to stand alone but 
add considerable value to the work that we do as part of this contract.” 
 

Page 210



 

 

 
 
9. Mayor’s Budget Consultation Results:  
 
9.1 Methodology 
 

A questionnaire was produced and was distributed, in hard copy, to all Connections 
offices and libraries – this was open to all members of the public to complete.  
 
An online version was made available on the Torbay Council website on 22nd 
November. The questionnaire was advertised via posters and the local media.  
The survey had a closing date of 16th January 2014. A total of 409 responses have 
been received. 

 
The following question was asked within this questionnaire regarding the voluntary 
and Third Sector Contracts Budget Proposals:  
 
Negotiation with voluntary sector organisations to improve efficiency or 
reduce costs. 
 
Terminate five contracts / grants with the voluntary sector. These cover a variety of 
schemes aimed at improving mental health and wellbeing, promoting self-help and 
inclusion and reducing pressure on statutory services (including Access to 
Community Education, Relate South Devon, Bipolar Self Management, MDF the 
Bipolar Organisation and Rethink. Reduce cost contracts for the provision of 
information and advice by 10%, currently provided by Brixham does Care and Age 
UK. Work with Parkview Society and Devon County Council to negotiate a 
reduction in the cost of their contracts. This is expected to save £76,000 over two 
years. 

 

 Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes   202 49.4 

No 166 40.6 

No response 41 10.0 

Total 409 100.0 

 
 

145 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been 
summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will impact on 
vulnerable people 

 

“Because it will impact on some of the most vulnerable in the community...” 

 
“Do not penalise the most vulnerable people in society.” 
 
“The council should honour their responsibility to provide care for the most vulnerable 
people of our society.” 
 
“The proposal would discriminate against vulnerable people who need it.” 

Page 211



 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 
 
“This proposal targets the most vulnerable in our community and only increases risks to 
individuals and communities.” 

 

Increase pressure on 
statutory services  

“These organisations are working with some of the most vulnerable people. 

Withdrawing funding will result in greater costs further down the line.” 
 
“This affects the vulnerable and does not save money in the long run as the early 
intervention prevents using more expensive services later on..” 
 
“This strikes at provision for some of the most vulnerable and needy in our society and 
will adversely impact other services – e.g. NHS mental health, NHS care of the elderly, 
safety of the community.” 

Vital service  “Good services for mental health and wellbeing are vital for our community” 

Affect on voluntary 
sector  

“Due to cuts…a lot more responsibility has fallen on voluntary sector organisations. If 
these shut…where do people go for help?” 

Other  
“It’s already underfunded” 
 
“Too many cuts to mental health already” 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 212



 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

N
a
m

e
: 

M
a
rk

 B
e
n
n
e
tt
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

C
ll
r 

D
e
re

k
 M

il
ls

 
D

a
te

: 
6
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 *T
y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
o
n
-p
a
y
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
ra
te
 

o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 

 0
 

 
1
1
9
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
v
e
rs
 a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
a
n
y
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 f
in
a
n
c
e
d
 

e
.g
. 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
, 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t,
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

  

X
 

 
 

 
2
. 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
: 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
rm
ly
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

c
e
n
s
u
s
. 
 

    

 
1
4
,5
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 m
a
y
 

n
o
t 
w
is
h
 t
o
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
s
u
s
 b
u
t 
is
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
d
a
ta
 

q
u
a
lit
y
. 
If
 n
o
t 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 

 
X
 

 Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 5

Page 213



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
3
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

B
o
a
rd
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 

 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
h
e
 

C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

(C
C
G
) 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

W
e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
. 
 

 
1
4
,4
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

b
o
th
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
. 
If
 n
o
t 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 
 

 
X
 

 

 
4
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 –
 

re
c
h
a
rg
e
  

 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
h
e
 

C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

(C
C
G
) 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 

 
1
5
,4
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

b
o
th
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
. 
If
 n
o
t 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 

 
X
 

 

 
5
. 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
P
o
li
c
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 –
 M

a
te
rn
it
y
 

 O
n
e
 o
ff
 s
a
v
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 f
ro
m
 

m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
  

 0
 

 
1
5
,5
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
d
d
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
 

X
 
 

 

 
6
. 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
li
c
y
 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
  

 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
s
ts
 

0
.8
ft
e
  

   

 0
 

 
2
2
,5
0
0
 

 
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

 
Q
3
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

X
 
 

 

Page 214



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
7
. 
In
 y
e
a
r 
s
a
la
ry
 s
a
v
in
g
s
  

 A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 i
n
 y
e
a
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
o
s
ts
  

 0
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 f
u
ll 
y
e
a
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
s
ts
 

X
 
 

 

 
8
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 0
 

 
1
9
5
,8
0
0
 
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

to
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
5
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 m
a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

in
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
  

 

X
 
 

 

 
9
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
  

 
1
1
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
a
n
 b
u
y
 b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 H
R
 /
 p
a
y
ro
ll 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 m
a
y
 c
h
o
s
e
 n
o
t 
to
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

X
 
 

 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

5
5
,3
0
0
 

1
6
1
,5
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
 

1
9
5
,8
0
0
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 S
a
v
in
g
  

£
5
5
,3
0
0
 

£
3
5
7
,3
0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
  

£
4
1
2
,6

0
0
 

     

Page 215



 
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
: 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 

N
a
m

e
: 

R
ic

h
a
rd

 W
il
li
a
m

s
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

C
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

C
ll
r 

K
e
n
 P

ri
tc

h
a
rd

 
D

a
te

: 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 
*T

y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 /
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
-s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 
–
 L
o
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 
H
ig
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

 

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

  

 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

  

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

 
 

Major 
 

 
1
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
ri
n
g
 o
f 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t
h
e
 

re
a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 
(D

S
G

).
 

     

 0
 

 
5
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
n
e
 

  

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

  T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

. 
  
 

 

 X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 6

Page 216



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

  

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

 
 

Major 
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
. 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

N
e
s
t 
N
u
rs
e
ry
  

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 N

e
s
t 

N
u
rs

e
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

th
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 N
u
rs

e
ri
e
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 0
 

 
4
5
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

9
/1

5
 

  T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
is

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
a
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 F

e
b
 1

4
, 
fo

r 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 a

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

2
7
th
 F

e
b
 

N
A
 

 

        

 
3
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 B

ill
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
ls

o
 e

n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
e
s
  

th
e
 r

e
a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 2

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

 N
u
rs

e
ry

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 0
 

 
9
9
4
,0

0
0
 

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 

 
£
6
2
5
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
3
6
9
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

s
e
tt
in

g
s
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 O

fs
te

d
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 

O
fs

te
d
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 w

ill
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
is

it
 e

v
e
ry

 t
e
rm

 
b
u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

u
y
 b

a
c
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 t
h
is

 f
re

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
    

 
X
 

  

Page 217



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

  

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

 
 

Major 
 

 
4
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 

1
0
%
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 0
 

 
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
ts

 

 
£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

(d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
) 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
 b

y
 1

0
%

 a
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
o
m

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 

 
 X
 

 

 
5
. 
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
: 
 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
s
id

y
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 

S
E

N
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
  

0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

N
o
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
ts

 

£
1
2
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
2
6
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

u
t 

s
u
b
s
id

y
 o

f 
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 
  

 
X
 

 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

0
 

7
8
7
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

5
4
0
,0

0
0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  
 

0
 

£
1
,3

2
7
,0

0
0
 

  
 

Page 218



 
  

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

H
o
u
s
in

g
/P

o
v
e
rt

y
  

 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

&
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
6
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 0
 

 
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 

 
£
8
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

T
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 r

is
k
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

 

X
 

 
 

 
7
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
0
%
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

g
ra
n
t 
g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
 

A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

 0
 

 
7
5
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

T
h
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 c

lie
n
t 
b
a
s
e
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 

 
 

X
 

 
8
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 G
ra
n
t 
 

 0
 

 
2
5
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 r

is
k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

 
b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
 a

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

fu
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
ru

s
t.
 

 

X
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

0
 

1
8
0
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

7
0
,0

0
0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  
 

0
 

£
2
5
0
,0

0
0
 

Page 219



 
  

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
  

 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
9
. 
F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
in
 y
e
a
r 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

0
 

2
4
8
,0

0
0
 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

–
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
ly

  

X
 

 
 

 
1
0
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t/
Q
u
a
li
ty
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

N
o
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
ts

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

N
o
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
X
 

 
 

 
1
1
. 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 w
h
o
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
re
a
 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

N
o
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  

X
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

 
3
4
8
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  
 

0
 

£
3
4
8
,0

0
0
 

  
 

Page 220



 
 D
R
A
F
T
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
: 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
  

 

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

F
a
m

il
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

  
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

 
 

Minor 

  
Major 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
2
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 0
 

 
7
5
,0

0
0
 

 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

s
e
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 O

rd
e
rs

 e
tc

. 
T

h
e
 n

o
n
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 s

e
e
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
 

        

 

  X
 

 

Page 221



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

 
 

Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
3
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

F
a
m
il
y
 

S
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
/I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

F
a
m
il
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
IF
S
S
) 
 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 a

 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
m

ily
 

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 I
F

S
S

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
  

 

 0
 

 
4
1
8
,2

0
0
 

 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

  

 It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
  

 X
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

0
 

4
9
3
,2

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  
 

0
 

£
4
9
3
,2

0
0
  

  
 

Page 222



 
 

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

D
is

a
b
il
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

D
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
4
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
D
a
y
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

D
o
m
ic
il
ia
ry
 C
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 s

e
t.
 A

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 

 0
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

1
2
4
,0

0
0
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

5
2
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

  
0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
s
o
m

e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

ill
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 s

o
m

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

ra
n
t 
fo

r 
s
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
 K

o
o
l 
C

lu
b
 a

n
d
 Q

u
id

s
 f
o
r 

K
id

s
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 

y
e
a
r 

 
 

  X
 

 
1
5
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
 

T
e
a
m
  

      

 0
 

 
2
4
,0

0
0
 

 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 N
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

e
a
s
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
        

X
 

 
 

Page 223



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 U
n
it
 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
6
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
0
 

2
5
,0

0
0
 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 

N
o
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

s
 

n
o
rm

a
l 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
X
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

0
 

1
7
3
,0
0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

5
2
,0

0
0
 

S
U
B
 T
O
T
A
L
  
 

£
0
 

£
2
2
5
,0

0
0
 

      
 

Page 224



 
 

A
re

a
 o

f 
C

h
il
d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
7
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 

O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
, 
C
a
re
 t
o
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

T
e
a
m
  

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

, 
C

a
re

 t
o
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 b
e
in

g
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 a
 n

e
w

 s
in

g
le

 t
e
a
m

 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

          

 0
 

 
3
5
7
,8

0
0
 

 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

  

 It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
  

           

 X
 

  

 

Page 225



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
8
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
-

fo
c
u
s
in
g
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 

Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

a
rk

fi
e
ld

 
to

 t
h
e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 (

T
D

A
).

  
Y

o
u
th

 w
o
rk

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 b

u
t 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
re

d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 

 0
 

 
1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 C

o
s
ts

 
  

 
£
1
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
5
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
llo

w
s
 f
o
r 

fi
v
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
th

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s
 

fr
o
m

 P
a
rk

fi
e
ld

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

 A
n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

y
o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

 

 X
 

 

 
1
9
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 Y
o
u
th
 

G
ra
n
t 
 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
re

d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 Y

o
u
th

 G
ra

n
t 
b
y
 

2
5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

f 
th

is
 g

ra
n
t 
in

 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

 

 0
 

 
3
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

R
is

k
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 

m
in

im
a
l 
a
s
 y

o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 

m
o
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

lly
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
tr

e
a
m

s
. 

 R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 y

o
u
th

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 
p
la

n
s
 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

   

 

 X
 

 

Page 226



 
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

0
 

5
0
7
,8

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  
 

£
0
 

£
5
5
7
,8

0
0
 

 T
O

T
A

L
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 /
 S

A
V

IN
G

 A
C

R
O

S
S

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

0
 

£
2
,4

8
9
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
 

£
7
1
2
,0

0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
  
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
3
,2

0
1
,0

0
0
 

 

Page 227



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 G

ra
n
t 
fo

r 
A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
R
a
c
h
a
e
l 
W
il
li
a
m
s
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
(E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
C
h
il
d
re
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
a
te
 s
ta
rt
e
d
: 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
:
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
K
e
n
 P
ri
tc
h
a
rd
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 W
il
li
a
m
s
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 7

Page 228



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 1
0
%
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
ts
 

 
£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
  

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
C

e
n
tr

e
s
 (

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
) 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
 b

y
 1

0
%

 a
 

y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 
A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
o
m

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 
 A

n
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 X
 

 

Page 229



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 In
 2

0
1
2
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

T
o
rb

a
y
’s

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 T

o
rq

u
a
y
 (

E
c
h
o
, 
Z

ig
 Z

a
g
s
, 
W

a
tc

o
m

b
e
, 
C

o
c
k
in

g
to

n
),

 P
a
ig

n
to

n
 (

P
a
rk

s
id

e
, 

O
ld

w
a
y
),

 B
ri
x
h
a
m

 (
F

u
rz

e
h
a
m

).
  
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
h
ild

 a
g
e
d
 0

 
to

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

ta
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 M

u
m

s
 t
o
 b

e
, 
p
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
, 
d
a
d
’s

 c
lu

b
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 f
a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

it
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 b

y
 1

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 1

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
re

d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
to

 £
9
0
0
,0

0
0
. 
 

 T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
in

im
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

h
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
, 
h
a
s
 a

 c
la

u
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

s
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 

1
0
%

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
th

e
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
y
e
a
rs

. 
  

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l:
 

•
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

•
 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 –
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

g
e
d
 0

 t
o
 5

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

. 

•
 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 s

it
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

, 
J
o
b
 

C
e
n
tr

e
P

lu
s
. 
  

  

 
 

Page 230



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
o
v
e
rs

 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 C

o
re

 P
u
rp

o
s
e
. 
 A

s
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
 

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 m

u
s
t:
- 

1
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
: 

  
  
  
 C

h
ild

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

a
d
in

e
s
s
 

  
  
  
  
  
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
: 

  
  
  
  
  
P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 s

k
ill

s
 

  
  
  
  
  
C

h
ild

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ily
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
s
. 

 T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
re

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
 t
h
e
y
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

2
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 n

e
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

3
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 
4
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
n
e
e
d
, 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

5
. 

A
c
t 
a
s
 a

 h
u
b
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
b
u
ild

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 

6
. 

S
h
a
re

 e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 s
e
tt
in

g
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
. 

 S
e
c
to

r 
L
e
a
d
e
rs

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f:
 

7
. 

R
e
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
8
. 

W
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l/
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
. 

 T
o
rb

a
y
 h

a
s
 t
w

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
T

o
rq

u
a
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
ig

n
to

n
 w

it
h
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 w

e
re

 
in

s
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 g

ra
d
e
s
, 
th

e
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

a
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 a
n
d
 b

o
th

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
-i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

Page 231



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
h
ild

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
5
 (

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 6

,6
9
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
).

 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 f
a
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
5
. 
 

T
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
a
c
h
 3

4
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.
 

  

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

In
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 1

0
%

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

£
1
0
0
K

) 
lis

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
  
In

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 

A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 
 I
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

m
e
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

(L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

) 
to

 o
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 

. T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 n

o
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

 S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f
o
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 In
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 m
e
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

to
 h

e
a
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
 –

 2
0
1
5
. 
T

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
is

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
:-
 

•
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
te

ly
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
In

 2
0
1
3
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 

fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
4
 s

ix
 p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 £
7
3
,0

0
0
 s

a
v
in

g
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 w

ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 t
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
r 

(3
0
 h

o
u
rs

) 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
f 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

 
tw

o
 (

c
h
ild

’s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
) 

g
ro

u
p
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

O
th

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
o
u
n
d
 f
ro

m
 c

a
s
u
a
l 
h
o
u
rs

, 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
le

a
n
in

g
 h

o
u
rs

 i
n
 a

ll 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

ta
ti
o
n
a
ry

, 
p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 

•
 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 I
T

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
te

a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 d

e
c
la

re
d
 b

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 
A

t 
e
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 b

u
t 

th
e
s
e
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
t 
s
a
fe

 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

.  
6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
 n

o
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
 t
o
 a

lt
e
r 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
w

a
rd

. 
T

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 

Page 232



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

u
n
 o

n
 a

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 b

a
n
k
 o

f 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
th

e
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 o

f 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 f
in

d
 a

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
r.

 
T

h
is

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 o

n
 a

 f
ix

e
d
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
b
id

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
c
o
m

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

(a
ft
e
r 

d
u
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

lie
n
ts

) 
a
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
a
k
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

 .   

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

   

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

W
o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

Page 233



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

  
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
 

W
o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

  
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
(I

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

  
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 (
H

o
w

 
w

ill
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
) 

 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

  T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 

Page 234



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 k

n
o
w

n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 

   
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

  

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

   

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

X
 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
A

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 

 

Page 235



 

        

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u
s
in
g
 a
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 c
o
lla
te
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
. 

 Q
6
c
) 
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t-
 d
o
 y
o
u
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 I
f 
n
o
 p
le
a
s
e
 t
e
ll
 u
s
 w
h
y
 y
o
u
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 (
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
) 
b
y
 1
0
%
 a
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
a
v
e
 

£
2
0
0
,0
0
0
 o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

  
D
o
 y
o
u
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

P
e
rc
e
n
t 

Y
e
s
 

2
5
0
 

6
1
.1
 

N
o
 

1
1
3
 

2
7
.6
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

4
6
 

1
1
.0
 

T
o
ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0
 

Page 236



 

 O
f 
th
e
 4
6
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 ‘
N
o
’ 
th
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 3
4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
s
e
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
–
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 s
a
id
 ‘
N
o
’ 
a
b
o
v
e
 

W
il
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

“I
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
 c
u
t 
is
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

th
e
s
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
m
.”
 

V
it
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 

“W
e
 a
re
 a
 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a
re
a
 w

it
h
 h
u
g
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
is
s
u
e
s
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
 n
e
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
.”
 

L
e
s
s
 c
u
t/
n
o
 c
u
t 

“A
 c
u
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
k
 p
a
 s
e
e
m
s
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 I
 s
u
s
p
e
c
t 
w
ill
 d
e
-s
ta
b
ili
s
e
 

v
a
lu
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
” 

 “R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 c
h
ild
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
re
a
d
in
e
s
s
' 

is
 t
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
a
 c
h
ild
re
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
A
 5
%
 c
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
ra
s
ti
c
 

e
n
o
u
g
h
.”
 

   

Page 237



 
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
- 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 R
e
v
ie

w
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 S

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 (
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
) 
C

o
u
rs

e
s
  

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 

T
ri
c
ia
 H
a
rw
o
o
d
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

A
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
9
th
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
K
e
n
 P
ri
tc
h
a
rd
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 W
il
li
a
m
s
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 8

Page 238



 
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

   E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
: 
 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 

fo
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
  

Y
e
a
r 

1
 

(1
4
/1

5
) 

1
2
,0

0
0
  

Y
e
a
r 

2
 

(1
5
/1

6
) 

2
6
,0

0
0
 

 
N

o
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
ts
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 p

h
a
s
e
 

o
u
t 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 o

f 
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 
  

 T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 

b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A

n
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
X
 

 

Page 239



 
 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 h

o
m

e
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

u
b
s
id

is
e
 

S
E

N
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

 A
ll 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 p

u
p
ils

 o
f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
g

e
 (

5
-1

6
) 

tr
a
v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
if
 t
h
e
y
 l
iv

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 w
a
lk

in
g
 d

is
ta

n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
(t

h
is

 i
s
 t
w

o
 m

ile
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 a
g
e
d
 7

 a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
re

e
 m

ile
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 a
g
e
d
 8

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r)

. 

•
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 p
u
p
ils

 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 f
re

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
re

e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
th

a
t 
a
re

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
w

o
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 s

ix
 m

ile
s
 a

w
a
y
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 a

 d
e
n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
u
p
 t
o
 1

5
 m

ile
s
 a

w
a
y
. 

•
 

N
o
rm

a
lly

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
a
 f
re

e
 b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
. 
 

 
 In

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

u
t 

th
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 o

f 
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

E
N

 p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

fr
o
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

ll 
p
o
s
t 

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

(e
v
e
n
 i

f 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 a

 £
4
0
0
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 p

a
y
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

p
ri
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i

n
 l

ig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

s
e
e
k
s
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 i

n
e
q
u
it
y
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 p
a
y
in

g
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 (
a
ll 

th
o
s
e
 o

n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
) 

w
h
ils

t 
o
th

e
rs

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 m

a
k
e
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 (

th
o
s
e
 o

n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
).

  
 F

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

ll 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

E
N

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 a

 £
4
0
0
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 t

h
e
y
 w

ill
 p

a
y
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

p
ri
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 b

u
s
 

p
a
s
s
. 
U

n
d
e
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
 s

im
ila

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 o

f 
£
4
0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 £

6
0
0
 f

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 a

lig
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
 

b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

. 
 W

h
e
re

 p
o
s
t 

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 e
.g

. 
ta

x
i 

o
r 

m
in

ib
u
s
 t

h
e
y
 w

ill
 

Page 240



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

i.
e
. 

a
ll 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

 o
v
e
r 

£
4
0
0
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 £

6
0
0
 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

 W
h
ile

 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
is

 b
e
in

g
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 i
t 

is
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
e
q
u
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 
tr

e
a
te

d
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle

g
e
. 
 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 P
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 -

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 5
0
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

, 
o
f 

w
h
o
m

 7
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
 a

n
d
 4

3
 h

a
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
F

o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 t
h
is

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 t
o
 

4
5
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 m
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

  
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

. 
  P

a
re

n
ts

 /
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 In
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 5
0
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
re

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle

g
e
, 
7
 b

y
 b

u
s
 a

n
d
 

4
3
 b

y
 t
a
x
i 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

S
E

N
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
T

o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 a

re
 3

8
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 b

y
 t
a
x
i 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

S
E

N
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 b

y
 b

u
s
. 
T

h
is

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 b

y
 b

u
s
 t
o
 S

o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

g
e
 n

o
w

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
s
 

th
is

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
. 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 v
a
ry

 f
ro

m
 y

e
a
r 

to
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

. 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

re
 a

s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 

 
B
u
s
 P
a
s
s
 

T
a
x
i/
M
in
ib
u
s
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

Page 241



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 S

E
N

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

4
 

n
/a
 

1
2
 

1
2
 

1
6
 

1
2
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

o
lle

g
e
 S

E
N

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
 

- 
1
 

1
 

2
 

1
 

B
ri
d
g
w

a
te

r 
C

o
lle

g
e
 

- 
- 

1
 

- 
1
 

- 
P

a
ig

n
to

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 S
p
o
rt

s
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 

- 
1
 

2
 

- 
2
 

1
 

R
o
y
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 D

e
a
f 

- 
- 

1
 

- 
1
 

- 
W

e
s
t 
o
f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

- 
- 

1
 

2
 

1
 

2
 

D
a
rt

in
g
to

n
 B

id
w

e
ll 

B
ro

o
k
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

- 
- 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

M
a
y
fi
e
ld

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

- 
- 

1
3
 

1
4
 

1
3
 

1
4
 

O
n
 T

ra
c
k
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

o
tn

e
s
 

2
 

- 
1
1
 

8
 

1
3
 

8
 

C
o
m

b
e
 P

a
ff
o
rd
 

- 
1
1
 

- 
- 

- 
1
1
 

 T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
a
 b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 i
s
 £

5
0
5
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 3

8
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
 o

f 
£
7
0
,0

0
0
 -

 £
7
5
,0

0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 f
u
lly

 f
u
n
d
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 i
t 
fo

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 4

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
, 
a
d
d
in

g
 £

2
2
,0

0
0
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 b
u
d
g
e
t;
 M

a
y
fi
e
ld

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 1

0
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

b
e
 P

a
ff
o
rd

 h
a
s
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
3
5
 p

la
c
e
s
. 
A

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
e
n
tr

e
 

fo
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

, 
a
n
d
 1

6
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

a
re

, 
le

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
s
o
m

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 
b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 c

o
s
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 M
a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
E

N
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
D

e
v
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a

s
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
5
0
0
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
-1

4
, 
 E

s
s
e
x
 i
s
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 £

5
1
0
, 
L
e
ic

e
s
te

r 
a
re

 c
h
a
rg

in
g
 £

2
5
2
, 

L
in

c
o
ln

s
h
ir
e
 a

re
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 £

4
0
5
; 
a
n
d
 C

a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 r

a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 £

4
5
0
-£

6
1
8
. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 d
is

c
o
u
n
te

d
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
; 
o
th

e
rs

 r
e
ly

 o
n
 b

u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

. 

Page 242



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 d

ra
ft
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
  
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
p
e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 y

e
a
r 

1
1
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

1
2
 S

E
N

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
s
t 
im

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
 

 A
ll 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 S

o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
) 

g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 b

) 
p
a
re

n
ts

/s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
W

h
ils

t 
it
 i
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
t 
a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 d
id

 t
h
is

, 
it
 i
s
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

re
 a

 f
a
ir
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 

p
a
re

n
ts

. 
 

  T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

a
re

n
t 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 F

o
ru

m
. 
 A

 d
ro

p
 i
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 P

a
ig

n
to

n
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
o
n
e
 w

h
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

tu
re

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
re

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

a
y
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 

a
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

a
p
e
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
 f
o
r 

1
0
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
d
 o

n
 1

6
th
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
. 
 

 S
e
e
 a

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
2
3
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s

h
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 e

m
a
ils

. 
O

n
ly

 o
n
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 d

ro
p
 i
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 g

re
a
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 d
is

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 t
h
re

e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

: 
C
o
s
t 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
fi
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 c

a
n
’t
 b

e
 p

a
id

 i
n
 i
n
s
ta

lm
e
n
ts
 

•
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 d

o
n
’t
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
h
o
ic

e
 n

o
t 
to

 p
a
y
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

a
is

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
 

•
 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

h
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

v
e
r 

a
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

F
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 o
ft
e
n
 i
s
n
’t
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 s

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
a
 l
o
n
g
 w

a
y
 a

n
d
 

Page 243



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt
 

•
 

It
’s

 n
o
t 
fa

ir
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 n

e
v
e
r 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
ra

v
e
l 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

•
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 o

ft
e
n
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

in
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
a
li
ty
 

•
 

T
h
e
s
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
’t
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

 m
o
re

 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

•
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
ft
e
n
 c

a
n
’t
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

N
o
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
. 

N
o
te

: 
o
ri
g
in

a
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 u
s
in

g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

     P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

h
o
m

e
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
a
s
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 1

 a
b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
  

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 c

a
re

rs
, 
in

 c
a
re

, 
le

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
s
e
 b

u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 

fo
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 
  

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

ff
e
c
t 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

5
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 

c
a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
h
a
rd

s
h
ip

 a
n
d
/o

r 
lim

it
 t
h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
  

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

 

  

Page 244



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 h

o
m

e
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
a
s
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 1

 a
b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
  

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
  

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

 

P
a
re

n
ts

 /
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 

S
E

N
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
  
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 
in

c
o
m

e
s
. 

 

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 

W
h
e
re

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 n

e
e
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 e
.g

. 
ta

x
i 
o
r 

m
in

ib
u
s
, 

th
e
y
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

 U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 p
o
s
t 
1
6
 S

E
N

 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

w
ill

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

w
ill

 r
e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
e
q
u
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 a

s
 a

ll 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
ir
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
c
o
s
ts

. 
 

 P
o
s
t-

1
6
 b

u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

ff
e
c
t 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

5
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 p

o
s
t 
1
6
 S

E
N

 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 c

a
u
s
e
 

s
o
m

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
h
a
rd

s
h
ip

 a
n
d
/o

r 
lim

it
 t
h
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
  

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

 

  

W
o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 w

o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
 

Page 245



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

fr
o
m

 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
e
th

n
ic

it
ie

s
  

 
R

e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
re

lig
io

n
s
  

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l  

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 o

r 
b
is

e
x
u
a
l 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 t
ra

n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 m

a
rr

ie
d
 o

r 
in

 a
 c

iv
il 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
 

W
o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
o
r 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
(I

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 h

o
m

e
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
a
s
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 1

 a
b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
  

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 c

a
re

rs
, 
in

 c
a
re

, 
le

a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
s
e
 b

u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
/ 
c
o
lle

g
e
 

fo
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 
  

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
. 

  

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 c

a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
h
a
rd

s
h
ip

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 p

o
s
t 
1
6
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
  
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 l
o
w

 
in

c
o
m

e
s
. 

   

 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 (
H

o
w

 
w

ill
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
 

Page 246



 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
) 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 N
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 N
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

  T
h
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
fo

r 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
o
r 

c
o
lle

g
e
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 S

E
N

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
 t
o
 p

h
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t.
  
S

tu
d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 o

n
 

lo
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
4
0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
a
 b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
 (

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£
6
0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

. 
O

th
e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 £
2
5
 

s
u
b
s
id

y
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 f

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

a
 b

u
s
 p

a
s
s
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 i
n
s
ta

lm
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

u
b
s
id

is
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
g
e
n
u
in

e
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 a

ll 
fa

m
ili

e
s
. 
 

  

Page 247



 
 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 f
o
r 

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
. 

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 

�
 

A
 b
u
rs
a
ry
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 

o
ff
s
e
t 
tr
a
v
e
l 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
th
e
r 

p
o
s
t-
1
6
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 
A
ll 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 

m
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 

Page 248



 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

    A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 D
a
ta
: 
 H
O
M
E
 T
O
 S
C
H
O
O
L
/C
O
L
L
E
G
E
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 C
H
A
R
G
E
S
 F
O
R
 P
O
S
T
-1
6
 S
E
N
 S
T
U
D
E
N
T
S
 

 1
. 

IN
D
IV
ID
U
A
L
 R
E
S
P
O
N
D
E
N
T
S
 

 1
.1
 

M
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

 A
 s
im
p
le
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s
h
e
e
t 
w
it
h
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 w
ri
te
 a
n
y
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 w
a
s
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 d
is
p
la
y
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
 s
it
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 o
n
 2
2
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 w
it
h
 a
 c
lo
s
in
g
 d
a
te
 o
f 
1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
. 
In
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
p
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 a
ll 
k
n
o
w
n
 y
e
a
r 
1
1
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
1
2
 S
E
N
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 

 A
ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
e
re
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
, 
a
ls
o
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 a
le
rt
 G
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 B
o
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 o
f 
S
E
N
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
W
h
ils
t 
it
 i
s
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 d
id
 t
h
is
, 
it
 i
s
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
re
 a
 f
a
ir
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 h
e
ld
 b
y
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 
 

 A
 d
ro
p
-i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
y
e
r 
o
f 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
O
n
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
s
s
io
n
. 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
e
re
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
re
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
n
 s
e
n
t 
b
y
 

e
m
a
il 
to
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
3
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 e
m
a
il 
c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 

  1
.2
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

Page 249



 
 

 O
n
ly
 o
n
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 a
s
k
e
d
: 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
o
r 
n
o
t 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 
R
e
s
u
lt
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

   

 A
g

re
e

 
D

is
a
g

re
e

 
N

o
t 

a
b

le
 t

o
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 

1
 

2
1
 

1
 

 
 

 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
 (
s
o
m
e
 t
ic
k
e
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
):
 

 

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

S
tu
d
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

3
 

1
3
%
 

P
a
re
n
t 
o
f 
s
tu
d
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

1
7
 

7
4
%
 

P
a
re
n
t 
o
f 
s
tu
d
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 n
o
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

2
 

9
%
 

S
c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle
g
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
o
r 

1
 

4
%
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle
g
e
 s
ta
ff
 

1
 

4
%
 

 C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
re
 s
p
lit
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

T
h

e
m

e
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

C
o

s
t 

M
y
 p
a
re
n
t 
c
a
n
’t
 a
ff
o
rd
 t
o
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
u
s
 p
a
s
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 

tr
o
u
b
le
 w
it
h
 m
o
n
e
y
 

 A
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
o
n
’t
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
ff
o
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
. 
E
v
e
ry
 c
h
ild
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
6
 a
n
d
 1
8
 h
a
s
 a
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 a
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 o
ld
e
r 
c
a
re
rs
. 

 I 
a
m
 o
n
 a
 s
ta
te
 p
e
n
s
io
n
..
. 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
ff
o
rd
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

c
o
s
t 

 

Page 250



 
 

T
h

e
m

e
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

T
h
e
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 d
is
s
u
a
d
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 o
f 
S
E
N
 c
h
ild
re
n
 f
ro
m
 e
n
ro
lli
n
g
 

th
e
m
 o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 (
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 m
a
y
 b
e
 q
u
it
e
 c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
) 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
.S
E
N
 c
h
ild
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 t
o
 

fa
c
e
 d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
e
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
. 

 A
s
 w
e
 a
re
 o
n
 a
n
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 l
iv
e
 a
s
 f
a
r 
a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
s
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
is
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
rr
y
 w
ill
 c
a
u
s
e
 

d
is
tr
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
x
ie
ty
 f
o
r 
u
s
. 

 T
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 i
s
 l
a
rg
e
. 
It
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 e
a
s
ie
r 
fo
r 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 i
f 
th
is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 p
a
id
 w
e
e
k
ly
/m
o
n
th
ly
. 

 T
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
le
a
v
in
g
 a
g
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
rs
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
 f
u
ll-
ti
m
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
a
n
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
. 
F
o
r 

m
o
s
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
fu
ll-
ti
m
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 

a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 w
ill
 n
e
v
e
r 
b
e
 a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
. 
F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 c
h
o
ic
e
 

b
u
t 
to
 p
a
y
..
.i
f 
th
e
y
 w
a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 m
u
s
t 
b
y
 l
a
w
 a
tt
e
n
d
. 

  

F
a
ir

n
e
s

s
 

T
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
S
E
N
 c
h
ild
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 

m
o
re
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
n
o
t 
le
s
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 m
o
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
lis
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

a
g
e
 o
f 
o
th
e
rs
 a
n
d
 d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t.
 

 N
o
t 
a
ll 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
ts
 o
ff
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 S
E
N
. 
A
 n
o
n
-S
E
N
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 

to
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle
g
e
 w
h
e
re
a
s
 t
h
e
 S
E
N
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 

c
h
o
ic
e
 b
u
t 
to
 g
o
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l/
c
o
lle
g
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
ff
e
rs
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 

n
e
e
d
. 

 C
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 e
s
c
o
rt
s
. 

T
h
e
y
 a
re
n
’t
 e
v
e
r 
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
. 
It
’s
 g
re
a
tl
y
 

u
n
fa
ir
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
th
e
m
 a
g
a
in
 f
o
r 
c
u
ts
. 
W
e
 a
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
v
in
g
 

re
s
p
it
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 c
u
t 
fr
o
m
 u
s
. 
T
h
is
 e
x
tr
a
 c
o
s
t 
is
 c
ri
p
p
lin
g
. 

 It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
q
u
it
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ry
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
te
 a
 c
h
ild
 w
it
h
 s
e
v
e
re
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
 

th
a
t 
o
f 
a
 n
o
rm
a
l 
1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
..
. 
I 
a
c
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 p
o
in
t 
th
a
t 
a
 n
o
rm
a
l 
1
6
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
 m
ig
h
t 
w
a
n
t 
a
 b
u
s
 p
a
s
s
 b
u
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
r 
w
a
lk
/r
id
e
 a
 b
ik
e
. 
M
y
 d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
 o
p
ti
o
n
 

Page 251



 
 

T
h

e
m

e
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

a
n
d
 s
o
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
. 

 W
e
 d
o
n
’t
 s
e
e
 w
h
y
 w
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
t’
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 T
h
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
t 
is
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

u
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
n
 e
s
c
o
rt
 a
n
d
 w
e
 o
n
ly
 l
iv
e
 a
 s
h
o
rt
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 T
h
e
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 h
a
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 l
o
ts
 o
f 
in
e
q
u
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

lif
e
 

 

P
ra

c
ti

c
a
li

ty
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo
r 
m
y
 s
o
n
 s
o
 h
e
 h
a
s
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
1
2
 m
ile
s
 t
o
 a
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l.
..
 i
f 
th
is
 w
e
re
 t
o
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 t
h
e
n
 h
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
ll 

ti
m
e
 c
a
re
, 
o
r 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 a
 p
la
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
o
u
ld
 m
e
a
n
 a
 1
:1
, 
ra
m
p
s
, 
c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 r
o
o
m
s
, 
h
o
is
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 p
lu
s
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
u
s
c
it
a
ti
o
n
 e
tc
. 

 F
o
r 
S
L
D
 a
n
d
 P
M
L
D
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 l
im
it
e
d
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
th
e
y
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
a
re
s
t 
6
th
 f
o
rm
 c
o
lle
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 w
a
s
 a
s
 o
th
e
r 

s
tu
d
e
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
g
e
t 
a
 b
u
s
, 
w
a
lk
 o
r 
c
y
c
le
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
..
. 

y
o
u
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 m
o
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
tt
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
tr
e
s
s
 o
n
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
u
s
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
im
it
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
s
 o
f 
c
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

   2
. 

IN
S
T
IT
U
T
IO
N
 R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
S
 

  T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 w
a
s
 f
ro
m
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 o
f 
S
E
N
 l
e
a
rn
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 

2
0
1
4
 

2
0
1
5
 

2
0
1
6
 

Page 252



 
 

L
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

£
1
5
0
 

£
3
0
0
 

£
6
0
0
 

A
ll 

o
th

e
rs

 
£
3
0
0
 

£
4
5
0
 

£
6
0
0
 

 T
h
e
y
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 s
ti
ll 
re
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 a
lig
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 p
o
s
t 
1
6
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 p
h
a
s
e
d
. 

   3
. 
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u
s
in
g
 a
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 c
o
lla
te
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
. 

 Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
: 
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
  
- 
d
o
 y
o
u
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 I
f 
n
o
 p
le
a
s
e
 t
e
ll
 u
s
 w
h
y
 y
o
u
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 f
o
r 
p
o
s
t-
1
6
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 o
n
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
ry
 c
h
a
rg
e
. 

T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
a
v
e
 £
3
8
,0
0
0
 o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 

  
D
o
 y
o
u
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

P
e
rc
e
n
t 

Y
e
s
 

2
8
4
 

6
9
.4
 

N
o
 

9
6
 

2
3
.5
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

2
9
 

7
.1
 

T
o
ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0
 

 O
f 
th
e
 9
6
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 ‘
N
o
’ 
th
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 7
7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
s
e
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

Page 253



 
 

 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 –
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 s
a
id
 ‘
N
o
’ 
a
b
o
v
e
 

A
ff
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

 “T
h
is
 w
ill
 p
re
ju
d
ic
e
 s
o
m
e
 s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 N
o
t 
c
o
n
d
u
c
iv
e
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
.”
 

 “T
h
is
 w
ill
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 s
to
p
 s
o
m
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
ls
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
.”
 

 

F
a
m
il
ie
s
 

 “P
a
re
n
ts
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 w
it
h
 e
a
rn
in
g
 

le
v
e
l 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
c
a
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
.”
 

 “A
lr
e
a
d
y
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
u
p
ils
 h
a
v
e
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
, 

w
h
y
 p
e
n
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
m
 f
u
rt
h
e
r?
” 

 “S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 v
it
a
l 
in
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
lim

a
te
.”
 

L
e
s
s
 c
u
t/
n
o
 c
u
t 

 “S
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 s
tr
u
g
g
lin
g
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
.”
 

 

O
th
e
r 

“A
c
c
e
s
s
 (
to
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
) 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
.”
 

   

Page 254



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
J
u
li
e
 S
h
a
rl
a
n
d
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
/ 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
K
e
n
 P
ri
tc
h
a
rd
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
he
 c
ou
n
ci
l a
n
d
 it
s 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
ci
n
g 
a
 s
ig
n
ifi
ca
n
t 
ch
a
lle
n
ge
 in
 t
he
 s
a
vi
n
gs
 it
 n
e
e
d
s 
to
 m
ak
e
 o
ve
r 
th
e
 n
e
xt
 c
o
up
le
 o
f 
ye
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
qu
a
lit
y 
Im

p
a
ct
 

A
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t (
E
IA
) 
ha
s 
b
e
en
 d
e
ve
lo
pe
d
 a
s 
a 
to
o
l t
o 
e
na
b
le
 b
u
si
ne
ss
 u
n
its
 to
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
th
e
 im

p
a
ct
 o
f 
th
e
ir 
p
ro
po
sa
ls
 o
n
 t
he
 c
om

m
u
n
ity
. 
 A
s 
a
 

co
u
n
ci
l w

e
 n
e
ed
 to
 e
n
su
re
 t
ha
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
vi
n
gs
 t
h
a
t w

e
 n
e
e
d
 to
 m
a
ke
 w
h
ile
 m

iti
ga
tin
g 
a
ga
in
st
 a
ny
 n
e
ga
tiv
e
 o
r 
a
d
ve
rs
e
 im

p
a
ct
s 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
gr
o
u
p
s 
a
cr
o
ss
 o
u
r 
co
m
m
u
n
iti
e
s.
 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
vi
d
e
n
ce
 th
a
t t
h
e 
C
o
un
ci
l h
a
ve
 fu
lly
 c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
 th
e
 im

pa
ct
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
se
d
 c
ha
n
ge
s 
a
nd
 h
a
s 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 c
o
n
su
lta
tio
n
 o
n
 

th
o
se
 c
h
an
ge
s 
w
ith
 t
h
e 
ke
y 
st
a
ke
ho
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d 
th
e
 e
vi
d
e
n
ce
 p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 w
ith
in
 it
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
ci
llo
rs
 t
o
 m
a
ke
 in
fo
rm

ed
 d
e
ci
si
o
n
s 
a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
ci
si
o
n
-m

a
ki
n
g 
p
ro
ce
ss
 r
e
ga
rd
in
g 
th
e
 c
ou
n
ci
l’s
 b
u
d
ge
t. 
  

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
K
e
n
 P
ri
tc
h
a
rd
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 W
il
li
a
m
s
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 9

Page 255



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
0
%
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

 
£
7
5
,0
0
0 

N
il 

 0
1
.0
4
.1
4 

T
h
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 c

lie
n
t 
b
a
s
e
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 

b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A

n
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

x 

Page 256



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 (

u
n
ti
l 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
) 

to
 a

n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
(S

L
A

) 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 (

C
A

B
).

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
t 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
a
rd

 o
n
 2

4
th
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 C

A
B

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

  It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 b

y
 £

7
5
,0

0
0
 t
o
 £

7
5
,1

0
0
 w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
In

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

L
A

, 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t
h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 n

o
ti
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

ra
n
t.
  

 C
A

B
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 2

0
1
3
 -

 2
0
1
6
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r.

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 a

re
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 .
 

  
2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 C

A
B

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

 c
h
a
ri
ty

 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f
re

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 
 

 A
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 m

a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

A
B

 a
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
. 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

h
a
v
e
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
m

o
n
th

s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 t
h
re

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
ta

ff
. 
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
/ 
d
e
la

y
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
. 

  

Page 257



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y 
C
o
u
n
ci
l h
a
s 
a
 m
o
ra
l o
b
lig
a
tio
n
 a
s 
w
e
ll 
a
s 
a
 d
u
ty
 u
nd
e
r 
th
e
 E
qu
a
lit
y 
A
ct
 2
0
1
0 
to
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
cr
im
in
a
tio
n
, p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
od
 r
e
la
tio
n
s 
a
n
d 
a
d
va
n
ce
 

e
qu
a
lit
y 
o
f 
o
p
po
rt
un
ity
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
op
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
ct
ed
 c
ha
ra
ct
e
ris
tic
 a
n
d 
p
eo
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o 
n
ot
. 
  

 T
he
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
se
ct
io
n 
e
n
su
re
s 
th
a
t,
 a
s 
a 
co
un
ci
l, 
w
e
 t
ak
e
 in
to
 a
cc
ou
n
t t
h
e 
P
ub
lic
 S
e
ct
o
r 
E
qu
a
lit
y 
D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rly
 

st
a
ge
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 e
vi
d
e
n
ce
 to
 e
n
su
re
 t
ha
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
si
d
e
r 
th
e
 im

p
ac
t 
of
 o
u
r 
de
ci
si
o
n
s/
p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 o
n
 th
e
 T
o
rb
a
y 
co
m
m
un
ity
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
h
e
 C

A
B

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
 –

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
/d

e
la

y
s
 f
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 (
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
) 

in
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
 u

s
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
a
p
s
. 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 w
it
h
 w

id
e
r 

w
o
rk

 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 e

a
rl
y
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
. 
It
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
o
 e

a
rl
y
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 a

n
y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 d

a
te

. 
•
 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 C

A
B

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 1

2
,9

6
3
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
  

•
 

 2
8
,1

1
4
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
, 
a
 1

6
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

  
 

•
 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 C

A
B

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
T

o
rb

a
y
 (

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
w

h
o
m

 a
re

 t
h
e
 p

o
o
re

s
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

) 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
c
o
m

e
s
 b

y
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
.7

 m
ill

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 n

o
t 
o
n
ly

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
re

c
ip

ie
n
ts

 b
u
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
 i
n
fl
o
w

 o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
to

 T
o
rb

a
y
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

•
 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 C

A
B

 h
e
lp

e
d
 c

lie
n
ts

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
1
 m

ill
io

n
 w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 

th
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 d

e
b
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
fa

m
ily

 b
re

a
k
 u

p
, 
c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 

a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 

•
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
  
5
3
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

p
e
c
tr

u
m

 o
f 
o
u
r 

T
o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 t
ra

in
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

 E
a
rl
ie

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

C
A

B
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
3
4
7
,0

0
0
  
fr

o
m

 A
d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 F

u
n
d
, 
- 

 B
ig

 
L
o
tt
e
ry

 &
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 t
o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
, 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
T

o
rb

a
y
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
is

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 s

e
lf
 h

e
lp

, 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a
re

 l
a
w

 t
o
 

e
m

p
o
w

e
r 

th
e
 c

lie
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 (

 i
.e

 l
e
g
a
l 
a
id

 c
u
ts

).
 

Page 258



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

It
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 b
y
; 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 o

n
lin

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a
re

 l
a
w

 a
d
v
ic

e
 p

o
rt

a
l 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 l
in

e
 –

 s
in

g
le

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

•
 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 –

 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 o

n
 l
in

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 p

o
rt

a
l/
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

/ 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 m

e
t 
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 m

ig
h
t 
b
u
ild

 o
n
/ 
lin

k
 i
n
to

 
th

is
 n

e
w

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

T
o
rb

a
y
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

s
c
o
p
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 l
o
g
ic

a
l 
fi
rs

t 
s
te

p
. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
in

te
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

, 
h
o
p
e
fu

lly
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 

 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
is

 n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 d

ra
ft
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
  
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 T
o
rb

a
y
 C

A
B
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
u
b
lic

  
T

h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 f

o
rm

e
d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 –

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 C

D
T

 s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 (

 s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
) 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

tu
re

 u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

a
y
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 a

 
s
u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

a
p
e
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  

 S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 S
tr

o
n
g
 p

u
b
lic

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 C

A
B

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 n

o
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 5

0
 %

 c
u
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
. 

•
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 l
ik

e
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

•
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 a

n
d
 t
ru

s
t 
th

e
 b

ra
n
d
 

•
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 f
e
e
l 
th

a
t 
W

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 
a
d
v
ic

e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

. 
C

A
B

 h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 4
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 1

2
/1

3
 

 K
e
y
 f

u
tu

re
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

A
B
 

 

Page 259



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 

F
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

fo
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
a
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 h
o
w

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 o

n
 a

n
 o

ft
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
.e

. 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 /
d
e
b
t/
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t/
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 m

a
x
im

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
c
u
ts

 t
o
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
id

 f
o
r 

w
e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
fi
rm

s
 o

f 
s
o
lic

it
o
rs

 h
a
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
m

o
n
e
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 m

o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
tr

u
g
g
le

 w
it
h
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 l
iv

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
b
t.
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
c
u
ts

 t
o
 d

e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 h

a
v
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 

in
 c

o
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

s
 w

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
v
o
id

 t
h
e
 p

it
fa

lls
 o

f 
d
e
b
t.
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 d

e
b
t 
a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 i
n
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 

d
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

C
A

B
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 £

3
0
,0

0
0
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 i
s
 a

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
/ 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
ta

k
in

g
 t
h
e
s
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 

  C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 f
in

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
. 

 
 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
C

A
B

 C
lie

n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 1
2
/1

3
: 
 

•
 

4
3
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

5
0
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
o
 5

9
%

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

G
P

 
o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
 v

is
it
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

•
 

1
5
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
ti
re

d
 

 

 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

 

Page 260



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 

 
C

A
B

 C
lie

n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 1
2
/1

3
: 
 

•
 

4
2
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 h
a
d
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

to
 6

4
%

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

G
P

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

o
m

e
 v

is
it
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

  

W
o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 

 
C

A
B

 C
lie

n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 1
2
/1

3
: 
5
6
%

 f
e
m

a
le

, 
4
4
%

 m
a
le
 

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

 
C

A
B

 C
lie

n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 1
2
/1

3
: 
8
%

 B
M

E
 

   
R

e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

 
 

 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

  
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

 
 

  
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

 
 

  
W

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

  
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
(I

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
C

A
B

 C
lie

n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 1
2
/1

3
: 
 

•
 

2
1
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
e
re

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 

•
 

5
0
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
t’
s
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
e
lo

w
 £

6
0
0
p
c
m

(l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

£
1
9
.7

2
 p

e
r 

d
a
y
) 

•
 

2
6
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 h
a
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
e
lo

w
 £

4
0
0
p
c
m

(l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

£
1
3
.1

5
 p

e
r 

d
a
y
) 

 

 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 (
H

o
w

 
w

ill
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
) 

 
•
 

4
2
%

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 h
a
d
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

to
 6

4
%

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

G
P

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
e
s
 

a
n
d
 h

o
m

e
 v

is
it
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

 

 

Page 261



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 c

u
t 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r.
 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 T
h
e
 I
A

A
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 W
e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 g

ro
u
p
, 
w

ill
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
s
c
o
p
e
s
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 g
a
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 

o
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
. 
 

A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
p
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 e
.g

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

u
ts

 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

 In
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 
g
iv

e
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
4
5
,0

0
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
. 
T

h
is

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
ti
m

e
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 
   

Page 262



 

  
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 W
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 g

ro
u
p
 (

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

/o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r)
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

R
e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

A
B
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  
 

 
N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

√ 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 o

n
 –

 l
in

e
/ 
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

(e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 ,
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 l
is

t)
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
, 
S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
A

g
e
 U

K
, 
H

o
m

e
m

a
k
e
r,

 C
h
u
rc

h
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

o
rb

a
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 F
a
m

ily
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  
D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 a

n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
lp

 l
in

e
s
 f
o
r 

D
e
b
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

re
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 .
  

 In
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 

g
iv

e
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
4
5
,0

0
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
. 
T

h
is

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
 i
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
ti
m

e
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 

a
 f
u
tu

re
 

w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

Page 263



 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l  
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

            A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 D
a
ta
: 
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 (
C
A
B
) 
G
ra
n
t 

 1
. 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

 1
.1
 

M
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
/ 
C
it
iz
e
n
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 –
 T
he
 S
tr
at
e
gi
c 
H
o
u
si
n
g 
M
a
n
a
ge
r 
m
e
t w

ith
 t
h
e
 C
A
B
 M
an
ag
e
r 
a
n
d 
T
ru
st
ee
 t
o 
o
ut
lin
e
 th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 b
u
d
ge
t s
a
vi
n
gs
 a
n
d
 d
is
cu
ss
 t
he
 p
o
te
n
tia
l i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
se
rs
 a
n
d 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 -
 W

rit
te
n
 s
um

m
a
ry
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
 t
o 
th
e
 s
a
vi
n
gs
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 s
a
vi
n
gs
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l, 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
K
e
y 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

O
u
tc
om

e
s 
d
o
cu
m
e
n
t  
p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 b
y 
C
A
B
 .
 (
 r
ef
e
r 
to
 s
ep
a
ra
te
 d
o
cu
m
en
t)
 

 P
u
b
li
c
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 –
 s
um

m
a
ry
 b
e
lo
w
 

 1
.2
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 Q
6
e
) 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 

It
 is
 p
ro
po
se
d
 t
o 
re
d
u
ce
 t
he
 g
ra
n
t 
gi
ve
n
 t
o
 th
e 
C
iti
ze
n
s 
A
d
vi
ce
 B
u
re
au
 b
y 
5
0
%
. T

h
is
 is
 e
xp
ec
te
d
 to
 s
a
ve
 £
7
5
,0
0
0 
ov
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

Page 264



 

     
 D
o
 y
o
u
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

P
e
rc
e
n
t 

Y
e
s 

1
3
3 

3
2
.5
 

N
o
 

2
4
2 

5
9
.2
 

N
o
 r
e
sp
on
se
 

3
4 

8
.3
 

T
o
ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0
 

 
C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 –
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 s
a
id
 ‘
N
o
’ 
a
b
o
v
e
 

W
il
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 “a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 g
iv
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
” 

 “C
it
iz
e
n
 a
d
v
ic
e
 b
u
re
a
u
s
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 s
o
c
ie
ty
.”
 

E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
fr
e
e
, 

im
p
a
rt
ia
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

“I
t 
is
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 k
n
o
w
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
in
 c
a
s
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 l
e
g
a
l 
o
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 -
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
b
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll”
 

 “T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
a
jo
r 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 e
tc
 c
a
n
 g
e
t 
fr
e
e
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

h
e
lp
” 

 “C
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
A
B
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
u
tt
in
g
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 n
o
 s
e
n
s
e
 a
t 
a
 t
im
e
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re
 w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 d
e
b
t,
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
.”
 

 

Page 265



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 –
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 s
a
id
 ‘
N
o
’ 
a
b
o
v
e
 

“C
it
iz
e
n
s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 f
ir
s
t 
c
la
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
n
o
t 

a
ff
o
rd
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
. 
 C
o
u
p
le
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
ra
s
ti
c
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
id
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 d
e
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
ri
g
h
t 
to
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 l
a
w
.”
 

N
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

“U
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
B
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
ra
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 o
v
e
r 
re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
, 

th
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
” 

 “T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 g
o
 f
o
r 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.”
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

 “T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 a
s
 c
u
ts
 b
it
e
…
” 

 “H
e
lp
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 e
v
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
rd
 

ti
m
e
s
” 

 C
A
B
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 
“
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
”
 

 A
s 
w
ith
 C
iti
ze
n
s 
A
d
vi
ce
 B
u
re
a
u
x 
th
ro
u
gh
o
u
t t
h
e
 c
ou
n
tr
y,
 t
h
e 
L
o
ca
l A

u
th
o
rit
y 
gr
a
n
t 
p
ro
vi
d
e
s 
fu
n
d
in
g 
fo
r 
o
u
r 
co
re
 s
er
vi
ce
 w
h
ic
h
 is
 t
h
e
 

fo
u
nd
a
tio
n
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
he
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 is
 b
u
ilt
. 

 A
 5
0
%
 c
u
t 
(£
7
5
,0
0
0
) 
w
o
u
ld
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
re
a
u
’s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 d
ra
s
ti
c
a
ll
y
 c
u
t 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
n
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
. 
 

 T
h
e
 c
u
t 
c
o
u
ld
 m
e
a
n
:-
 

•
 
C
lo
si
n
g 
th
e
 B
rix
h
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

•
 
C
lo
si
n
g 
th
e
 T
o
rq
u
a
y 
D
e
b
t 
U
n
it 
 

•
 
P
ro
vi
d
in
g 
a
 v
a
st
ly
 r
e
d
u
ce
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
t P

a
ig
n
to
n
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
d
ro
p
 in
 a
d
vi
ce
 s
e
ss
io
n
s 
a
nd
 s
om

e 
a
p
po
in
tm
en
ts
.  

•
 
C
lo
si
n
g 
th
e
 t
e
le
p
ho
ne
 a
d
vi
ce
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

•
 
E
n
d
 o
f 
st
a
n
db
y 
su
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 s
o
 th
e 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 b
u
re
a
u
 w
ill
 h
a
ve
 t
o
 c
lo
se
 o
n 
d
a
ys
 w
h
e
n
 t
he
 M
a
n
a
ge
r 
is
 s
ic
k 
o
r 
on
 le
a
ve
 

•
 
N
o
 t
ra
in
in
g 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 

Page 266



 

•
 
T
he
 s
tr
a
te
gi
c 
m
an
a
ge
m
e
nt
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
re
a
u 
w
o
u
ld
 n
o
 lo
n
ge
r 
be
 p
o
ss
ib
le
. T

he
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o 
o
p
po
rt
u
n
ity
 t
o
 n
e
tw
o
rk
, 
d
e
ve
lo
p
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s 
an
d
 r
a
is
e 
e
xt
ra
 f
un
d
in
g 
fo
r 
a
d
vi
ce
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 b
e
ne
fit
 o
f 
th
e
 lo
ca
l c
om

m
u
n
ity
. 
It
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 m
e
an
 it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

im
p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o 
m
e
e
t 
st
a
tu
to
ry
 g
o
ve
rn
a
n
ce
 r
e
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 e
ss
e
n
tia
l f
o
r 
o
u
r 
ch
a
rit
y 
to
 c
o
n
tin
u
e
 o
p
e
ra
tin
g.
  

•
 
E
n
d
in
g 
a
ll 
cu
rr
en
t 
tim

e
 li
m
ite
d
 r
in
g 
fe
n
ce
d 
p
ro
je
ct
s 
fu
n
de
d
 f
ro
m
 s
u
cc
e
ss
fu
l b
id
s 
a
s 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n 
co
u
ld
 n
ot
 p
ro
ve
 f
in
an
ci
a
l 

su
st
a
in
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 f
u
nd
e
rs
 o
r 
h
a
ve
 t
he
 n
e
ce
ss
a
ry
 s
tr
a
te
gi
c 
m
a
n
a
ge
m
en
t 
to
 b
e 
a
b
le
 t
o 
b
id
 fo
r 
co
n
tin
u
a
tio
n
 f
un
d
in
g.
  

 
A
ft
e
r 
ta
ki
n
g 
a
cc
o
un
t o
f 
fix
e
d
 r
u
nn
in
g 
co
st
s 
w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 le
ft
 w
ith
 o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 p
a
rt
 t
im
e 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
of
 s
ta
ff
 to
 m
a
na
ge
 a
nd
 s
u
pe
rv
is
e
 t
h
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
ki
n
g 
bo
th
 a
 s
tr
a
te
gi
c 
a
nd
 o
p
e
ra
tio
na
l r
o
le
. W

e 
w
o
u
ld
 n
o
 lo
n
ge
r 
b
e
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
lly
 r
e
si
lie
n
t 
o
r 
ha
ve
 t
h
e 
re
so
u
rc
e
s 
to
 m
e
et
 t
he
 

le
ga
l a
n
d
 g
o
ve
rn
a
n
ce
 r
e
qu
ire
m
e
nt
s 
fo
r 
ru
n
n
in
g 
a
 c
h
a
rit
y.
 

 C
A
B
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

W
e 
w
ou
ld
 th
e
re
fo
re
 a
sk
 t
h
a
t t
he
 p
ro
p
o
sa
l t
h
at
 w
o
u
ld
 m

a
ke
 o
u
r 
b
u
re
au
 u
n
su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 is
 w
ith
d
ra
w
n
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
fo
r 
u
s 
to
 c
o
nt
in
u
e 
to
 m
e
e
t t
h
e 

gr
o
w
in
g 
a
d
vi
ce
 n
e
e
d
s 
of
 t
he
 p
e
op
le
 o
f T

o
rb
ay
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 a
sk
 th
a
t t
he
 c
u
t 
is
 r
ed
u
ce
d
 to
 £
3
0,
0
0
0 
co
ve
rin
g 
th
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
nd
 

2
0
15
/1
6 
(i.
e
. 
th
e
 c
o
re
 g
ra
n
t 
re
d
u
ci
n
g 
fr
om

 £
15
0
,1
0
0
 to
 £
1
20
,1
0
0
 in
 e
a
ch
 o
f 
th
e
 tw

o
 y
e
a
rs
).
 T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 e
na
b
le
 th
e 
b
u
re
au
 to
 r
em

a
in
 

su
st
a
in
a
b
le
 a
n
d 
p
ro
vi
d
e
 u
s 
w
ith
 t
he
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
ity
 t
o
 e
xp
lo
re
 m
o
re
 r
e
si
lie
n
t,
 s
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 a
nd
 e
n
te
rp
ris
in
g 
a
d
vi
ce
 m

od
e
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 o
f 

so
ci
a
l w

e
lfa
re
 la
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
to
 m
ee
t 
th
e
 n
ee
d
s 
of
 t
he
 T
o
rb
a
y 
C
o
m
m
u
ni
ty
.”
 

Page 267



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

a
y
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 D

o
m

ic
il
ia

ry
 C

a
re

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
a
m

e
: 

E
la

in
e
 A

tk
in

s
o

n
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

: 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

  
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

: 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
a
te

 s
ta

rt
e
d

: 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

 /
 H

e
a
d

 S
ig

n
 o

ff
  

 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
) 

K
e
n

 P
ri

tc
h

a
rd

 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d

: 
R

ic
h

a
rd

 W
il

li
a
m

s
 

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te

: 
 

6
th

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 10

Page 268



 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
  

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 

In
c
o

m
e
 

£
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

a
y
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 

D
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 C

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

o
f 
c
a
re
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 

s
e
t.
 A
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 

 

 
1
7
6
,0
0
0
 

 
R
e
v
is
e
d
 t
o
 

£
1
2
4
,0
0
0
 

(r
e
v
ie
w
 

e
le
m
e
n
t 

o
n
ly
) 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 

s
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
ill
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
c
e
iv
e
 

s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
s
o
m
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 

e
x
p
lo
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 A
n
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

  X
 

Page 269



 

   S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
: 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l/

s
tr

a
te

g
y
/d

e
c
is

io
n

 
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
. 

F
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
d
a
y
 

c
a
re
 a
n
d
 d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
  

 P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
h
o
rt
 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
; 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 
 D
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 g
ra
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 
 

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
t’
s
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
e
a
rl
ie
r 
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
-a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
, 
s
o
m
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
 b
u
t 
d
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 h
a
s
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

m
e
t.
  
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
: 
 

 

•
 

T
e
rm

in
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
id
w
e
ll 

B
ro
o
k
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
1
4
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 e
v
e
ry
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
t 
o
n
 

a
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 l
if
e
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 a
d
u
lt
h
o
o
d
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
1
2
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 t
e
rm

in
a
te
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 g
iv
e
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 

fo
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

T
e
rm

in
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 

to
 h
e
lp
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
g
e
d
 0
 t
o
 1
8
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
la
im
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

fu
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 t
e
rm

in
a
te
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 

c
la
im
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 m

a
x
im
u
m
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
. 
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
re
m
a
in
in
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
d
a
y
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

e
e
t 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

2
. 

W
h

o
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi

t 
 

Page 270



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

/ 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
?
 

•
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
lie
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 
  

•
 

P
a
re
n
ts
 /
 C
a
re
rs
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 o
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
. 
  

•
 

L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
id
w
e
ll 
B
ro
o
k
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 –
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 

•
 

C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 –
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
  

 
 

 
  

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 2
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
?

  
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
0
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
. 
  

 A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
0
0
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
e
, 
w
h
ile
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
0
0
 a
re
 u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
 

 K
o

o
l 
C

lu
b

: 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 e
ig
h
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
 T
h
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 e
v
e
ry
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
t 
o
n
 a
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
. 
  

 Q
u

id
s
 f

o
r 

K
id

s
: 

F
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

Page 271



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

D
a
te

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p

e
a
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 
T

o
ta

l 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
1
 t
o
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
1
 

5
7
 

N
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
 

5
7
 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
2
 t
o
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
2
  

9
8
 

2
9
 

1
2
7
 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
3
 t
o
 d
a
te
 (
N
o
v
) 

4
7
 

6
6
 

1
1
3
 

 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
, 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
lla
te
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 

a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 
 

 
4

. 
H

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 
o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l?

 
   

 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
  
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 

 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

•
 

P
a
re
n
t 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
ru
m
 (
P
P
F
) 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
L
if
e
w
o
rk
s
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
) 

•
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
u
b
lic
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
. 
 

 P
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
y
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
m
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 o
u
tl
in
e
 

w
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
. 

 T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fu
tu
re
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
y
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 a
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
lin
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
 p
a
p
e
r 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
8
 w
e
e
k
s
 a
n
d
 c
lo
s
e
 o
n
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
. 
 

 In
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 n
e
w
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
t 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

F
o
ru
m
 (
P
P
F
) 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 f
e
e
l 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

 

Page 272



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

  

7
5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
’ 
to
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 P
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
rs
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
ir
 S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 C
a
re
 P
la
n
 a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 f
a
m
ily
’s
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
ir
 o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 s
h
o
u
ld
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
to
p
, 
o
r 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
n
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 f
a
m
ily
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 i
f 
th
is
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
, 
a
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
fa
m
ily
 o
r 
m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
, 
a
 r
is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s
tr
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
, 
 

h
o
w
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
o
w
 l
o
n
g
. 

2
5
%
 e
it
h
e
r 
d
id
n
’t
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
o
w
 o
r 
h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

w
h
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 d
id
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 T
e
a
m
 w
h
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
c
ti
v
a
te
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 f
o
r 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
d
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
h
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 r
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 
m
e
t.
  
 

F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
e
 w
ill
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
ir
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
S
ig
n
 P
o
s
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
. 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

in
c
lu
s
iv
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 

  
 

 

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

  
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
n

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 

 
P

o
s
it

iv
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
u

tr
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

S
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

  

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 
 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

a
y
 c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 

  

Page 273



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

S
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
if
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 l
e
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

S
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

a
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 
 A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

a
y
 c
a
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
x
p
lo
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

Page 274



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
  

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.  

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
if
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 l
e
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

  

8
a
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 w

id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 N
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 O
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 C
it
iz
e
n
’s
 A
d
v
ic
e
 B
u
re
a
u
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

 
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 3
: 

M
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

9
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

?
 

 

 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 K
o
o
l 
c
lu
b
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t.
 

 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 t
o
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
im
ila
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

Page 275



 

a
d
v
ic
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im
s
. 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
w
h
o
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
. 
  

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 Q
u
id
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 l
a
te
r 
in
 2
0
1
4
 f
o
r 
a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
. 

 

  
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 4
: 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
 

 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
h
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 r
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 A
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 o
r 
re
n
e
w
e
d
 S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 
m
e
t.
 T
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 l
im
it
e
d
. 
F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 p
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 r
e
g
is
te
rs
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
 

  

 S
e
c
ti

o
n

 5
: 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 –
  

 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
ic

k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o

n
s
/j
u

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
c
ti

o
n
 

1
1
. 

         

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 
c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

�
 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

Page 276



 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

    A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 D
a
ta

: 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

a
y
 C

a
re

 a
n

d
 D

o
m

ic
il
ia

ry
 C

a
re

 
 1
. 

F
a
m

il
ie

s
 w

it
h

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 0
y
rs

 t
o

 1
8
y
rs

 w
it

h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 o

r 
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 

 1
.1

 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

 A
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
ile
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
A
ls
o
 a
 m

a
il 
s
h
o
t 
to
 a
ll 
th
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
‘D
e
C
iD
e
’.
  

 T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 g
a
v
e
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 w
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
to
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
9

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 w
it
h
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 d
a
te
 o
f 
th
e
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
0
0
 m

a
il 
o
u
ts
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 1
9

th
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
. 
U
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4
 

1
5
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
. 
 

  T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 D
a
y
 C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 P
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 C
lu
b
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 g
ro
u
p
, 

T
o
rb
a
y
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 P
ro
je
c
t,
 T
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
IS
 B
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 &
  
Q
u
id
s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 P
ro
je
c
t.
 

  1
.2

 
K

e
y
 T

h
e
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
  

Page 277



 

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
ll 
b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 &
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 1
.  

W
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
o
 y
o
u
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
r 
fa
m
ily
 i
.e
. 
S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 C
lu
b
, 
P
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
B
e
fr
ie
n
d
in
g
 e
tc
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 7
5
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 u
s
e
d
, 
2
5
%
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
y
 d
o
n
’t
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 D
a
y
 C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 2
 

W
e
re
 y
o
u
 g
iv
e
n
 a
 c
h
o
ic
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 y
o
u
?
 I
f 
s
o
, 
w
h
y
 d
id
 y
o
u
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
?
  

 
 

 7
0
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 g
iv
e
n
 a
 c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
’s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
. 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 3
 

W
h
a
t 
d
o
 y
o
u
 l
ik
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 y
o
u
r 
c
h
ild
 a
tt
e
n
d
s
?
 

 8
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
im
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
, 
th
e
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
th
e
 s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 4
  
 W

h
a
t 
d
o
n
’t
 y
o
u
 l
ik
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 y
o
u
r 
c
h
ild
 a
tt
e
n
d
s
?
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
  

d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
s
t.
  
2
0
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 3
0
%
 s
ta
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 d
is
lik
e
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 u
s
e
. 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 5
 

 W
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
/h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 y
o
u
r 
c
h
ild
 o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 g
a
in
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
?
 H
o
w
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
 h
e
lp
e
d
 

y
o
u
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
r 
fa
m
ily
?
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8
0
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 a
im
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
a
 p
a
c
e
 o
f 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 e
s
te
e
m
 i
s
 g
a
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
h
ild
 a
t 
s
ta
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
ta
k
e
 i
n
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
2
0
%
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 6
 

If
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
n
e
?
 A
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
d
o
 y
o
u
 t
h
in
k
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 t
o
 y
o
u
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
r 

fa
m
ily
?
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

lu
s
 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 7
 

 W
h
a
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 i
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
fa
m
ily
?
 

 
 

 
 

 T
h
e
s
e
 2
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
9
0
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
t 
a
re
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 f
a
m
ily
’s
 

w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 o
f 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 f
a
m
ily
, 
if
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
t 
a
 l
e
v
e
l 
th
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
ild
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
. 
1
0
%
 f
e
lt
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 w
o
u
ld
 s
u
ff
e
r 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 f
u
llt
im
e
 c
a
re
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
ild
. 

 

Page 278



 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u
s
in
g
 a
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 c
o
lla
te
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
. 

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

: 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
 –

 d
o

 y
o

u
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
 I
f 

n
o

 p
le

a
s
e
 t

e
ll
 u

s
 w

h
y
 y

o
u

 d
o

 n
o

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
 

 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
a
v
e
 £
3
4
,0
0
0
 o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

  
D

o
 y

o
u

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l?

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

Y
e
s
 

1
9
3
 

4
7
.2
 

N
o
 

1
7
4
 

4
2
.5
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

4
2
 

1
0
.0
 

T
o

ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0

 

 O
f 
th
e
 1
7
4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 ‘
N
o
’ 
th
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l,
 1
4
6
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 b
e
lo
w
: 

       

Page 279



 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 –

 w
h

e
re

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 s

a
id

 ‘
N

o
’ 
a
b

o
v
e
 

W
il
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 

 “.
..
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
a
s
y
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 

T
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
.”
 

 “B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 e
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 

d
e
liv
e
rs
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 r
e
a
l 
te
rm

s
.”
 

 “C
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
is
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 

s
o
c
ie
ty
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
w
a
y
, 
p
u
tt
in
g
 a
 

s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
.”
 

 

M
a
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

“L
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

 t
h
is
 i
s
 c
o
u
n
te
r-
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 k
in
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
ri
s
is
, 
re
s
p
it
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
.”
 

 “…
T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r.
” 

V
it

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

“I
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
.”
 

 “T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 n
e
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 

a
ll 
th
e
 t
im
e
.”
 

S
m

a
ll
 c

o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 

 “I
t 
is
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 s
m
a
ll 
s
u
m
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
  
..
.b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
 w
e
ll.
” 

“T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
w
o
rt
h
 i
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
.”
 

  

Page 280



 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 

 T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 w
it
h
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 Q
u
id
’s
 f
o
r 
K
id
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 K
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
h
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 r
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 
m
e
t.
  

 F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
e
 w
ill
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
ir
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
S
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 b
o
th
 D
a
y
 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 O
v
e
r 
n
ig
h
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
q
u
it
a
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

S
im
u
lt
a
n
e
o
u
s
ly
 a
ll 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 .
 

   

Page 281



  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

N
a
m
e
: 
A
n
n
e
-M
a
ri
e
 B
o
n
d
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
D
e
re
k
 M
il
ls
 

D
a
te
: 
6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 
*T
y
p
e
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
  

•
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
 -
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 /
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
-s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

•
 
M
in
o
r 
–
 L
o
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

•
 
M
a
jo
r 
- 
H
ig
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m

e
 

£
’s

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
’s

 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
. 
V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
rs

  
 (
0
.8

 f
te

) 
in

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

  

 0
 

 
2

1
,7

0
0

 
 

N
o

n
e

 
 

0
1

.0
4

.1
3

 
 

Im
p

a
c

t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

b
s

o
rb

e
d

. 
R

e
d

u
c

e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 s
tr

a
in

e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
C

le
a

r 
e

x
p

e
c

ta
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 2
. 
V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
rs

  
(0

.2
 f
te

) 
in

 L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
  

      

 0
 

 
4

,7
0

0
 

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0

1
.1

2
.1

3
 

M
u

lt
i-

s
k

ill
in

g
 o

f 
s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 
w

ill
 p

ro
v

id
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

 t
e

a
m

 t
o

 c
o

p
e

 
w

it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s

in
g

 d
e

m
a

n
d

. 
 

      

 X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 11

Page 282



  

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m

e
 

£
’s

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
’s

 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 3
. 
R

e
-s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 (
6
 p

o
s
ts

) 

 0
 

 
2

1
1

,7
0

0
 

 
1

 x
 v

a
c

a
n

t 
p

o
s

t 
–

 n
o

 
c

o
s

ts
 

 5
 x

 p
o

s
ts

 –
 a

s
s

o
c

ia
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
c

y
 c

o
s

ts
 

 

 
V

a
ri

o
u

s
 u

n
ti

l 
3

1
.0

3
.1

4
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y

 t
o

 a
c

ro
s

s
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

s
. 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

im
p

a
c

t 
u

p
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 C
le

a
r 

e
x

p
e

c
ta

ti
o

n
s

 w
it

h
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
s

ta
b

lis
h

e
d

 a
s

 t
o

 
th

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 
g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
 

 X
 

 
 

 4
. 
T
ig

h
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
n
o
n
 p

a
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 

 0
 

 
6

,4
0

0
 

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
In

 p
la

c
e

 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

lim
it

e
d

 n
o

n
 p

a
y

 r
e

la
te

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

lin
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 l

im
it

s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

te
c

h
n

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 
le

g
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

. 
  

 X
 

 
 

 5
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
in

c
o
m

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
  

 
6

5
,0

0
0

 
 0
  

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0

1
.0

4
.1

4
 

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 
m

a
rk

e
t 

h
a

s
 s

e
e

n
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

d
 f

e
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
fe

e
s

 b
e

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

. 

 X
 

 
 

 7
. 
S
a
v
in

g
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 m

e
rg

e
r 

o
f 
C

o
ro

n
ia

l 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 w

it
h
 

P
ly

m
o
u
th

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

 0
 

 
2

0
,0

0
0

 
 

N
o

n
e

 
 

0
1

.0
4

.1
4

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
J

u
s

ti
c

e
 d

e
c

is
io

n
 t

o
 

m
e

rg
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
ro

n
ia

l 
a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 

T
o

rb
a

y
, 

w
o

rk
 i

s
 p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
v

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v

e
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

e
s

u
lt

 i
n

 
s

a
v

in
g

s
. 

G
iv

e
n

 t
im

in
g

s
, 

th
e

s
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 w
ill

 
b

e
 s

ta
g

g
e

re
d

, 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

v
in

g
s

 
is

 s
p

lit
 o

v
e

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

. 

 X
 

 
 

 8
. 
R

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

 0
 

 
2

,0
0

0
 

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0

1
.0

4
.1

4
 

T
h

is
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
lin

e
 c

o
v

e
rs

 a
n

c
ill

a
ry

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
ti

o
n

s
. 

In
 p

ra
c

ti
c

e
 t

h
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

lin
e

 i
s

 n
o

t 
u

s
e

d
, 

a
s

 e
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

 a
re

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 T

e
a

m
’s

 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

   

 X
 

 
 

Page 283



  

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m

e
 

£
’s

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
’s

 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 9
. 
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
a
 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
y
 

A
ll
o
w

a
n
c
e
 (
S
R

A
) 

 0
 

 
6

,5
0

0
 

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0

1
.0

4
.1

4
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 c
la

im
 o

n
e

 S
R

A
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 

fu
ll 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

h
a

s
 a

lw
a

y
s

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i

n
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s

. 
T

h
e

 d
e

p
u

ty
 m

a
y

o
r 

h
a

s
 a

lw
a

y
s

 h
a

d
 a

 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

, 
a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

D
e

p
u

ty
 M

a
y

o
r 

w
o

u
ld

 e
v

e
r 

n
o

t 
h

a
v

e
 a

 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

. 
T

h
e

 S
R

A
 t

h
a

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

e
 

d
e

le
te

d
 h

a
s

 n
e

v
e

r 
b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
. 

 X
 

 
 

 1
0
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
R

e
g
is

tr
a
rs

  
 

 
7

,5
0

0
 

 0
  

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0

1
.0

4
.1

3
 

 In
c

re
a

s
e

 f
e

e
s

 f
o

r 
w

e
d

d
in

g
s

 i
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s

, 
s

o
 t

h
a

t 
fe

e
s

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 w
it

h
 

th
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 i
n

 D
e

v
o

n
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 C
u

rr
e

n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

 M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

  
  

  
  

£
3

2
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 £

4
0

0
 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y

  
  

  
  

 £
3

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 £

4
2

5
 

S
u

n
d

a
y

  
  

  
  

  
 £

4
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 £
4

7
5

 
 P

a
rt

 y
e

a
r 

im
p

a
c

t.
 T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
w

e
d

d
in

g
s

 
a

re
 b

o
o

k
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 a

 y
e

a
r 

in
 a

d
v

a
n

c
e

, 
s

o
 a

 
fu

ll 
y

e
a

r 
e

ff
e

c
t 

w
ill

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 i

n
 y

e
a

r 
tw

o
. 

 
X
 

 

 1
1
. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

o
n
-p

a
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

  
 

 0
 

 
2

3
,0

0
0

 
 

N
o

n
e

 
 

0
1

.0
4

.1
4

 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

lim
it

e
d

 n
o

n
 p

a
y

 r
e

la
te

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

lin
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 

lim
it

s
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 
fo

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s

e
 

o
f 

te
c

h
n

ic
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

. 
  

    

 X
 

 
 

Page 284



  

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m

e
 

£
’s

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
’s

 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1
2
. 
R

e
-s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
te

a
m

s
  

 0
 

 
1

4
3

,0
0

0
 

(a
p

p
ro

x
) 

 
A

s
s

o
c

ia
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
c

y
 c

o
s

ts
 

 
A

u
tu

m
n

 2
0

1
4

 
–

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1

5
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 c
a

p
a

c
it

y
. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 
s

tr
a

in
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
s

 s
to

p
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

. 
C

le
a

r 
e

x
p

e
c

ta
ti

o
n

s
/s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

it
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

 X
 

 
 

 1
3
. 
S
a
v
in

g
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 

m
e
rg

e
r 
o
f 
C

o
ro

n
ia

l 
d
is

tr
ic

ts
 w

it
h
 

P
ly

m
o
u
th

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

 0
 

 
1

7
,5

0
0

 
 

N
o

n
e

 
 

0
1

.0
4

.1
5

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
J

u
s

ti
c

e
 d

e
c

is
io

n
 t

o
 

m
e

rg
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
ro

n
ia

l 
a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 

T
o

rb
a

y
, 

w
o

rk
 i

s
 p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
v

e
 t

o
  

o
n

e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v

e
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

e
s

u
lt

  
in

 s
a

v
in

g
s

. 
G

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 m
e

rg
e

r,
 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
ta

g
g

e
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
tw

o
 

y
e

a
rs

. 
 

  X
 

 
 

 1
4
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
 

6
0

,0
0

0
 

 0
 

 
N

o
n

e
 

 
0
1
.0
4
.1
5
 

T
h

e
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 f

ig
u

re
s

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 f
o

r 
y

e
a

r 
1

 w
e

re
 

c
a

u
ti

o
u

s
. 

It
 i

s
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 1
4

/1
5

 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
 

 X
 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

in
c

o
m

e
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
  

7
2
,5
0
0
 

2
9
6
,0
0
0
 

T
o

ta
l 

in
c

o
m

e
 /

 s
a

v
in

g
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

6
0
,0
0
0
 

1
6
0
,5
0
0
 

S
U

B
 T

O
T
A

L
  

£
1
3
2
,5
0
0
 
£
4
5
6
,5
0
0
 

T
O
T
A
L
  

£
5
8
9
,0
0
0
 

 
    

Page 285



  

IN
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 F
U
N
D
 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
a
rg
e
t 
s
e
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
e
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 f
in
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
5
%
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
 5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 e
q
u
a
te
s
 t
o
 £
5
0
,0
0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
is
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 M
a
rt
in
 P
h
ill
ip
s
, 
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

re
c
e
n
t 
a
c
tu
a
ri
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
b
ro
k
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 a
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
la
im
s
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
s
e
rv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t.
  
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 £
9
0
,0
0
0
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t.
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
ra
d
in
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 T
o
ta
l 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
in
 Y
e
a
r 
1
: 
£
1
4
0
,0
0
0
 

  C
O
N
C
L
U
S
IO
N
 

 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
a
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
£
6
8
5
,0
0
0
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g

e
t,

 o
n
e

 o
ff

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

£
4
0

,0
0
0

 w
a

s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t,
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 b
a

la
n

c
e
d

 b
u

d
g
e

t,
 t
o

ta
l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
7
4
5
,0
0
0

 w
e

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
 T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
 d
e
ta
il
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 £
7
4
6
,0
0
0
, 
w
it
h
 £
5
0
8
,5
0
0
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
1
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
) 
a
n
d
 £
2
3
6
,5
0
0
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
2
. 

         
  

Page 286



 

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

 

N
a
m

e
: 

F
ra

n
 H

u
g

h
e
s
 

P
o

s
it

io
n

: 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
):

 
C

o
u

n
c
il

lo
r 

R
o

b
e
rt

 E
x
c
e
ll
 

D
a
te

: 
6
th

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
(£

2
0
0
k
).

  
W

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
. 

 H
o

w
e
v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 n

e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 s
k
ill

s
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 r

e
m

it
. 

 
*T

y
p

e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n

  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 /

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

 0
 

 
1
1
2
,6

0
0
 

 
P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 

 
£
2
7
,6

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
8
5
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 S
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 (
£
2
7
,6

0
0
) 
a
ri
s
e
n
 f
ro

m
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 
T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 
p
o
s
t.
  

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re

s
tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

in
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
  

   

 X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 12

Page 287



 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
2
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
re
m
a
to
ri
u
m
 

in
c
o
m
e
 

 
9
0
,0

0
0
 

 

 0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
£
7
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
2
0
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/2

0
1
5
 

 

 
N

o
 r
is

k
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 t
h
is

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
R

P
I 
u
p
lif

t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in

c
o
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
. 

X
 

 
 

 
3
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

ri
n
g
 f
e
n
c
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

s
a
fe
ty
 g
ra
n
t:
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

W
a
rd

e
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

 

 
5
0
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
1
4
 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
W

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
W

a
rd

e
n
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 
o
n
 k

e
y
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

d
is

o
rd

e
r 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

ro
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 

in
to

 o
th

e
r 
k
e
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

X
 

 
 

 
4
. 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
(E
H
O
) 
in
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
  

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

s
tr
e
a
m

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

 
4
6
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/2

0
1
4
 

 T
h
is

 w
ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 1
 F

T
E
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
lly

 
q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 
to

 r
e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 t
e
a
m

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
te

 
to

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 
d
e
a
th

s
, 

fu
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 o

u
r 
m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

      

  X
 

 
 

Page 288



 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
5
. 
C
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

to
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
  

 0
 

 
3
4
,5

0
0
 

  

 
N

IL
 

 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
u
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 b

y
 5

0
%

. 
 I
t 
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 n

o
w

 c
e
a
s
e
s
 a

lt
o
g
e
th

e
r.
 

 

 
X

 
 

 
6
. 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
ru
s
t 

 

 0
 

 
1
8
,9

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r
is

k
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
liv

e
rs

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
T
ru

s
t.
 

 

X
 

 
 

 
7
. 
C
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

m
e
a
ls
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
T
h
is

 i
s
 c

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
 

 

 0
 

 
-7

,7
0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 t
o
 

c
o
in

c
id

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
e
a
ls

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is

 d
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
d
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 h

o
w

 
th

e
y
 w

is
h
 t
o
 s

e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
e
a
ls

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
 f
o
o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill
 s

ti
ll 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f
o
o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 f
o
o
d
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
8
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
N
H
S
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 

 T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r
e
-t
e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

 0
 

 
2
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 r
e
-

te
n
d
e
re

d
. 
 I
t 
is

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

u
n
d
e
r 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
t 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
it
 o

n
 

1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 
 I
n
 A

p
ri
l 
w

e
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 a
 

 X
 

 
 

Page 289



 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 s
e
e
n
 f
o
r 
th

is
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 
o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 
a
t 
a
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 
£
4
9
k
 (
th

is
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
c
o
s
t 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
).
  
T
h
is

 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 i
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 r
e
a
lit

y
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 i
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

, 
a
n
d
 h

e
n
c
e
 a

 
s
a
v
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 
  

 

 
9
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 n
e
w
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

fe
e
s
. 
  

 

 
1
7
,0

0
0
 

 0
  

 
N

IL
 

 
£
9
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
8
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 O
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 
th

a
n
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

h
a
v
in

g
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 f
ro

m
 w

it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 s

o
 

th
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 r
e
la

te
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 u
p
lif

t 
o
n
ly

. 
W

it
h
 n

e
w

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 S

c
ra

p
 

M
e
ta

l 
A
c
t 
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 H
o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 i
n
to

 
fo

rc
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
th

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

m
a
y
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
b
u
t 
u
n
ti
l 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 w

e
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 m
o
d
e
l 
th

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 s

o
m

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 f
e
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

e
.g

. 
s
e
x
 s

h
o
p
 f
e
e
s
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
1
0
. 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
li
n
e
s
. 

 0
 

 
1
0
,7

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
£
5
,7

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 
£
5
,0

0
0
 

0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

 
T
h
is

 w
ill
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
if
 i
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 s

ta
g
g
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 
th

e
 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 t
e
a
m

s
 o

p
e
ra

te
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

 

 X
  

 
 

Page 290



 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 

 
1
1
. 
P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

 

 
3
8
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

 T
h
is

 m
o
n
e
y
 h

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 

     

 X
 

 
 

 
1
2
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
 

in
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 

 
5
,0

0
0
 

 
1
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r
is

k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
X

 
 

 

 
1
3
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 

w
a
rd
e
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

 0
 

 
2
2
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

5
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

w
a
rd

e
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
. 
A
n
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

 X
 

 
1
4
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 R
o
g
u
e
 

L
a
n
d
lo
rd
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

 0
 

 
1
0
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
0
1
/0

4
/1

4
 

T
h
is

 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

£
9
0
,0

0
0
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a
s
 t
h
is

 £
1
0
,0

0
0
 w

a
s
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 
le

g
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

 X
 

 
 

Page 291



 

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p
lie

d
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
o
g
u
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

h
ic

h
, 

if
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l,
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
s
p
e
n
t 

o
v
e
ra

ll.
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

2
1
8
,0

0
0
 

1
1
9
,0

0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

2
8
,0

0
0
 

1
1
2
,0

0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

£
4
7
7
,0

0
0
 

 N
o
te

: 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
1
6
k
 r

in
g
 f

e
n
c
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

to
 t

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 o
n
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 n

a
m

e
ly

: 
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
/d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
; 
fo

o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
/n

u
tr

it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

    

Page 292



 

 
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
  

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
F
ra
n
 H
u
g
h
e
s
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 E
x
c
e
ll
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 E
x
c
e
ll
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 H
u
g
h
e
s
 

D
a
te
: 

 
D
a
te
: 
 
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 13

Page 293



 

 
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 C
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

 

  
3
4
,5
0
0
 

  

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 
L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 5
0
%
. 
 I
t 
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 n
o
w
 c
e
a
s
e
s
 

a
lt
o
g
e
th
e
r.
 

  

 
X
 

 

Page 294



 

 
 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
s
 a
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 e
v
e
ry
 W

a
rd
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
, 
th
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 l
iv
e
 o
r 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
, 
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
. 
 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
0
 y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
. 

In
 t
h
e
 1
2
/1
3
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 5
0
%
 t
o
 £
3
2
,0
0
0
. 
 T
h
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
 t
o
 a
llo
c
a
te
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
lt
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

S
in
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 u
p
 a
s
 a
 L
im
it
e
d
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 a
c
ti
v
e
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
is
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t,
 a
n
d
 r
e
ly
 

o
n
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
l 
a
re
a
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
o
rk
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 f
ro
m
 1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 L
im
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
a
c
h
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
lly
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 –
a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
. 
 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 g
iv
e
 a
 v
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

g
ro
u
p
s
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
s
 e
a
s
ily
 i
f 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
o
u
rc
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 
 

 

 
 

Page 295



 

 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 a
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 e
v
e
ry
 W

a
rd
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 1
6
 i
n
 

to
ta
l;
 9
 i
n
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
, 
5
 i
n
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
 a
n
d
 2
 i
n
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
. 

 T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 r
u
n
 b
y
 1
6
0
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
, 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 a
s
 a
n
 i
n
 k
in
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
£
3
5
,0
0
0
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 v
a
ri
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
im
e
 t
o
 t
im
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
re
a
s
, 
b
u
t 
a
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 

2
,0
0
1
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
0
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
4
9
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 k
n
e
w
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

a
n
d
 1
5
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
d
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
r 
e
v
e
n
t.
 A
t 
to
d
a
y
’s
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 

1
0
,0
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 (
T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
s
s
u
m
in
g
 

m
a
x
im
u
m
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 w
a
s
 +
/-
 2
.1
%
 a
t 
9
5
%
).
  

 In
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
0
 y
e
a
rs
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
o
v
e
r 
£
6
0
0
,0
0
0
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
, 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
u
ilt
 2
 p
a
rk
s
, 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 2
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
a
lm
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 p
ro
je
c
ts
, 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
w
o
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
s
e
t 
u
p
 o
n
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
h
o
p
, 
a
n
d
 r
u
n
 o
v
e
r 
1
0
0
 

o
th
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
 

 T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
e
re
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 b
y
 P
ri
c
e
W
a
te
rh
o
u
s
e
C
o
o
p
e
rs
 i
n
 2
0
0
4
 a
n
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 o
f 

th
e
 S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t 
in
 2
0
1
0
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 s
e
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 u
p
 a
s
 a
 l
im
it
e
d
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
 m

o
re
 s
ta
b
le
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 t
h
a
n
 w
a
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 r
e
lia
n
t 
o
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 a
d
m
in
is
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 ~
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
ir
s
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lly
. 
–
T
h
e
y
 a
ls
o
 a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 

k
e
y
 c
o
n
d
u
it
 f
o
r 
c
e
rt
a
in
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 e
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
ir
s
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
A
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

Page 296



 

 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

lo
c
a
lit
ie
s
 w
it
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
fo
r 
m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
rs
 t
o
 w
id
e
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
d
ie
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
 e
.g
. 
P
o
lic
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

(C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
),
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 B
o
a
rd
, 
A
g
e
in
g
 B
e
tt
e
r 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
  

4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

  O
n
 t
h
e
 2
8
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
th
e
 T
ru
s
te
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
d
 a
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

it
e
m
s
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w
a
s
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 a
n
 e
m
a
il 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 1
6
0
 

S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
3
rd
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 c
e
a
s
e
 (
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
v
e
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 e
v
e
n
t)
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 n
o
t 
to
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
  

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 –
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 

w
e
re
  
g
iv
e
n
: 
 

 

  
D
o
 y
o
u
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

P
e
rc
e
n
t 

Y
e
s
 

2
7
7
 

6
7
.7
 

N
o
 

8
0
 

1
9
.6
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

5
2
 

1
2
.5
 

T
o
ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0
 

  P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 –
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

   

Page 297



 

 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 N
o
n
e
  

 

 
 

 

Page 298



 

 
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
T
h
e
 d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 b
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
y
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
. 

A
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
v
e
 

n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
s
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

le
g
a
l 
e
n
ti
ty
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
lf
 s
u
s
ta
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
te
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

T
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
. 
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
. 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
. 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

  
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

Page 299



 

 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
T
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 f
u
n
n
e
l 
fo
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
a
c
k
le
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
o
c
io
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
, 
T
h
e
 

re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 

lim
it
e
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
u
it
 f
o
r 

m
u
c
h
 w
id
e
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
.g
. 
in
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 p
la
n
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
fo
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
. 
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
T
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 f
u
n
n
e
l 
fo
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
a
c
k
le
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
, 
T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 

o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h
a
v
in
g
 l
im
it
e
d
 

c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 r
e
a
lly
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 s
e
rv
e
. 
 T
h
e
y
 k
n
o
w
 

w
h
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
re
, 
w
h
e
re
 

th
e
re
 a
re
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
s
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 

e
x
is
t 
a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l.
 A
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 s
o
u
rc
e
 

o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 m

a
y
 b
e
 l
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 d
id
 n
o
t 
e
x
is
t.
 

 

Page 300



 

 
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
k
n
o
w
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 m

a
y
 l
o
s
e
 a
n
 a
v
e
n
u
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
t 
a
 W

a
rd
 L
e
v
e
l.
  
T
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs
 i
n
 a
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 w
a
y
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

lo
s
t.
 T
h
is
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e
 u
s
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
  

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

   T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 k
n
o
w
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
ru
s
t 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 w
id
e
r 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

a
lly
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
e
x
is
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
ru
s
t.
  
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
s
 a
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
. 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 

. 
 
 R
e
g
u
la
r 
lia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 L
im
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
ru
s
t.
 

Page 301



 

 
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

�
 

 N
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

       

Page 302



 

  

APPENDIX ONE:  

 
Community Safety Budget Proposals:  
 
Community Safety: Current Net Budget 2013/14: £2.24 million 
 
Savings proposed for 2014/15 and 2015/16: £477,000 
 
Q7)  Cease to provide funding for Community Partnerships 
 
The proposal is to cease to provide funding to the Community Partnerships. This is 
expected to save £34,500 over two years. 
 

  Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 277 67.7 

No 80 19.6 

No response 52 12.5 

Total 409 100.0 

 
 
73 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 
into themes below: 
 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Represents the 

community  

“These are another low cost way of achieving things at the local 
level. With imagination, they could take up some of the gap left by 
reductions in other services, especially those relating to the 
environment, and harness the increased input of local people.” 

“Community partnerships represent the communities’ interest and 
should be funded.” 

“Community Partnerships are now a key part of local organisation, 
including local plans.” 

Vital service 

“Community Partnerships have only just become established and 
are a useful tool of communication with the council.” 

“The unpaid work in support, help, guidance and community 
involvement given by these organisations is too great to abandon 
and is the key to family and individual support.” 

Other “Minimal savings, what impact on the community?” 

 
 

Page 303



  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

e
ts

  
 

N
a
m

e
: 

P
a
u
l 
L
o
o
b
y
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

M
a
y
o
r 

 
D

a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 

*T
y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
. 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 0
 

 
3
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

 
X
 

 
 

 
2
. 
In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
  

 

 0
 

 
1
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

 
N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

X
 

 
 

 
3
. 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
 T
o
w
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

C
T
S
S
 G
ra
n
t 

 0
  

 
3
7
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
4
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

B
ri
x
h
a
m
 T
o
w
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t.
 

 
X
 

 

 
4
. 
R
iv
ie
ra
 I
n
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 (
R
IC
C
) 

 

 0
 

 
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
IL
 

£
2
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
3
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

R
IC
C
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
s
id
y
. 

 
X
 

 

 
5
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
  

 0
 

 
1
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

 
£
2
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
1
,0
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
e
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
  

  

 
X
 

 Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 14

Page 304



  

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

0
 

7
9
7
,0
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
 

1
,0
8
0
,0
0
0
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 i
n
c
o
m
e
/s
a
v
in
g
: 
 

0
 

1
,8

7
7
,0

0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
  

£
1
,8

7
7
,0

0
0
 

 

Page 305



  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

F
in

a
n

c
e
  
 

 

N
a
m

e
: 

P
a
u
l 
L
o
o
b
y
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

M
a
y
o
r 

 
D

a
te

: 
6
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 *T
y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

1
. 
R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
: 

 R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 W

it
h
in

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
F
in

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m

. 
 D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
 p

o
s
ts

 
1
.1

 f
te

 (
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
.)
 

  D
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l,
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 

p
o
s
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 (
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
3
) 

 

      
0
     

0
 

      
2
4
,0

0
0
     

3
9
,0

0
0
 

       
N

IL
 

     

 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

 
 

 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
. 
  

•
 

D
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

•
 

K
e
y
 r
is

k
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

s
lo

w
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 

fo
r 
n
e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
  

    

X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 15

Page 306



  

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
2
. 
In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
  

 

 
0
 

 
1
0
1
,0

0
0
 

  
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
p
a
rt
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

•
 

K
e
y
 r
is

k
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

s
lo

w
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 

fo
r 
n
e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

X
 

 
 

 
3
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 D
e
v
o
n
 A
u
d
it
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
D
A
P
) 
B
u
d
g
e
t 

 
T
o
rb

a
y
, 
D

e
v
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

ly
m

o
u
th

 h
a
v
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 f
u
tu

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
th

e
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
lly

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

 3
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
o
v
e
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 o
u
tl
in

e
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
. 
  

       

 
0
 

 
5
4
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
£
2
7
,0

0
0
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

 
£
2
7
,0

0
0
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
 

 

•
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 D

e
v
o
n
 

A
u
d
it
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

•
 

D
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
h
e
re

 
is

 a
 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
D

A
P
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 
 

 
X

 
 

 

Page 307



  

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

4
. 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
o
n
 p
a
y
  

b
u
d
g
e
ts
  

I.
e
. 
p
ri
n
ti
n
g
, 
s
ta

ti
o
n
e
ry

, 
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 e

n
ti
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
. 

 

 
0
 

 
1
5
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

N
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 u

s
e
 o

f 
IT

 
a
n
d
 e

le
c
tr
o
n
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
d
a
ta

. 
 

X
 

 
 

5
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

  

1
5
,0

0
0
 

0
 

N
IL

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

N
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
 

X
 

 
 

6
. 
C
h
a
rg
e
 a
ll
 h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 c
la
im
s
, 

a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

fu
n
d
. 
  

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 e
n
a
b
le

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

a
tt
ra

c
t 
a
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

n
y
 w

ri
te

 o
ff
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 F

ir
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

  

 
0
 

 
1
5
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

N
o
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

 X
 

 
 

7
. 
R
e
m
o
v
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 

w
h
ic
h
 n
o
w
 f
o
rm
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
C
T
S
S
).
  

T
h
is

 w
ill
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 
d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

s
 t
h
e
 C

T
S
S
 m

a
k
e
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
  
  
 

 
0
 

 
5
6
,0

0
0
 

 
N

IL
 

 
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 
 

2
0
1
3
 

 

•
 

N
o
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

 X
 

 
 

Page 308



  

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
8
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 
  

 
0
 

 
1
4
4
,0

0
0
 

 
A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

  

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

•
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 q

u
e
ri
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 s
lo

w
e
r 
a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
. 

•
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 d

e
b
t.
 

•
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 w

it
h
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

e
lf
a
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

•
 

If
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f
a
ils

 t
o
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir
 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

c
la

im
s
 n

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

 X
 

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

1
5
,0

0
0
 

2
7
7
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

0
 

1
7
1
,0

0
0
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 S
a
v
in
g
  

£
1
5
,0
0
0
 

£
4
4
8
,0
0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

£
4
6
3
,0

0
0
 

 

Page 309



 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

N
a
m
e

: 
B
o
b
 C
la
rk
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 
E
x
e
c
 H
e
a
d
 –
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
C
IO
; 
S
IR
O
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):

 
C
ll
r 
D
e
re
k
 M
il
ls
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 

*T
y
p
e
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
  

•
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 
M
in
o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 
M
a
jo
r 

- 
H

ig
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
1
. 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

w
it
h
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 h
o
u
rs
 w
it
h
in
 

IC
T
  

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
o
t 
fi
lli
n
g
 o
f 

p
o
s
ts
 –
 a
p
p
ro
x
 4
 F
T
E
 

   

 0
 

 
1
2
9
,0
0
0
 

             
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

            
 

 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

             
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
C
T
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
s
k
 a
n
d
 P
C
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
re
a
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

te
a
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 

s
y
s
te
m
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
u
t 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 i
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

   

 X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 16

Page 310



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
2
. 
 I
C
T
 –
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 
T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 U
P
S
 s
y
s
te
m
  

•
 
R
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 d
a
ta
 c
ir
c
u
it
 

re
n
ta
ls
  

•
 
C
a
n
c
e
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

W
e
b
s
e
n
s
e
 E
-m

a
il 
V
ir
tu
a
l 

Im
a
g
e
 A
g
e
n
t 
s
c
a
n
n
in
g
 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
  

 It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
f 
a
ro
u
n
d
 

£
7
0
0
0
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

h
a
rd
w
a
re
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

S
m
a
rt
p
h
o
n
e
 e
n
c
ry
p
ti
o
n
 

            

 0
 

 
4
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
a
n
c
e
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 W

e
b
s
e
n
s
e
 V
ir
tu
a
l 

Im
a
g
e
 A
g
e
n
t 
s
c
a
n
n
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 m

e
a
n
 

th
a
t 
e
-m

a
ils
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
m
a
g
e
s
..
 I
C
T
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 

w
a
y
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 s
to
p
p
in
g
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

     

 X
 

 
 

Page 311



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
3
. 
 I
C
T
 –
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 

o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
s
  

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

£
1
,0
0
0
 s
a
v
in
g
  

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
n
 m

ile
a
g
e
, 

p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
; 

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
, 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 

H
&
S
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t;
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

ro
o
m
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t/
c
o
n
s
u
m
a
b
le
s
; 

s
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 (
£
4
,5
0
0
) 

 0
 

 
5
,5
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

   T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
IC
T
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

s
k
ill
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
 i
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 I
C
T
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
T
ra
in
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
. 

X
 

 
 

 
4
. 
 I
C
T
 –
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
s
  

 •
 
R
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c
a
ll 
ra
te
s
 f
ro
m
 

B
T
 (
N
e
w
 O
G
C
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t)
 

(£
5
,0
0
0
) 
 

•
 
D
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lin
e
 r
e
n
ta
ls
 f
o
r 

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 O
ld
 T
o
w
n
 h
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

O
ld
w
a
y
 (
£
1
0
,0
0
0
) 

•
 
C
a
n
c
e
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
k
it
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 O
ld
 

T
o
w
n
 h
a
ll 
a
n
d
 O
ld
w
a
y
 £
7
,0
0
0
 

   

 0
 

 
2
2
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

 
N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 B
T
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
1
 y
e
a
r.
 W

ill
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 r
e
-n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 X
 

 
 

Page 312



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

  
5
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
In
c
o
m
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 –
 I
T
 t
ra
in
in
g
  

 •
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 b
y
 s
e
lli
n
g
 

IC
T
 M
O
S
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 /
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
. 

  

  
2
5
,0
0
0
 

  0
 

  
N
o
n
e
 

   

  
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

      

  If
 w
e
 a
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
t 
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 (
ta
rg
e
t 

£
5
0
k
 y
r 
2
.)
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

IC
T
 B
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

 X
 

 
 

 6
. 
 R
e
v
ie
w
 I
C
T
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
e
lf
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

•
 
E
v
a
lu
a
te
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 I
C
T
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
s
 a
 

tr
a
d
in
g
 u
n
it
  

      

 0
 

 
7
0
,0
0
0
 

 
C
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 i
f 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
r 
tr
u
s
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 

p
e
rs
u
e
d
. 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
5
 

 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
b
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 

a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
d
in
g
 u
n
it
 c
o
s
ts
 a
re
 m

o
v
e
d
 

to
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 s
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 m

a
y
 b
e
 m

in
im
a
l.
 

 
D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 I
C
T
 T
ra
in
in
g
 v
ia
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
r 
s
e
m
i-
o
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

w
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
. 
C
o
s
t 
o
f 
IC
T
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
u
ld
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 

        

 X
 

 
 

Page 313



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
7
. 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

w
it
h
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
o
t 
fi
lli
n
g
 o
f 

p
o
s
ts
 –
 a
p
p
ro
x
 2
 F
T
E
 

  

 0
 

 
6
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
B
y
 0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
C
a
ll 
c
e
n
tr
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
ra
te
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l.
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
a
k
e
-o
n
 

o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

    

 
X
 

 

 
8
. 
F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
–
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
T
O
R
2
 c
a
ll
 

h
a
n
d
li
n
g
  

 
 

 0
 

 
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 

 
 

N
IL
  

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

•
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
a
ll 
c
e
n
tr
e
 m

a
y
 s
ti
ll 
h
a
v
e
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 c
a
lls
 f
ro
m
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 r
e
-

d
ir
e
c
t.
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 b
e
 s
o
m
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 I
C
T
 

S
y
s
te
m
s
; 
W
e
b
 s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  
a
n
d
 C
a
ll 

c
e
n
tr
e
 r
e
p
u
rp
o
s
in
g
 

        

 

 X
 

 

Page 314



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
9
. 
 R
e
v
ie
w
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l.
  

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
ff
ic
e
s
. 
A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 

b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 2
0
1
4
. 

 0
 

 
5
4
,0
0
0
 

a
p
p
ro
x
 

       
 

 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
o
 b
e
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 

  

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
5
 

      
 

 A
 s
e
t 
o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
ff
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 f
u
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
  

  
 

 
X

 

 
1
0
. 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
o
ll
 o
u
t 
th
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
C
A
IP
) 
 

  

 0
 

 
6
0
,0
0
0
 

  

 
T
B
C
 

 
0
1
/0
4
/1
5
 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 t
o
 s
e
e
 i
f 
th
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
lly
 f
e
a
s
ib
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
y
 n
o
t 

d
e
liv
e
r 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 

X
 

 
 

 
1
1
. 
P
o
s
t 
 R
o
o
m
 -
 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
 

 D
o
 n
o
t 
fi
ll 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
d
m
in
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 (
1
 f
te
) 

      

 0
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
B
y
 0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
o
s
t 

 

 X
 

 
 

Page 315



 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le

a
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 /
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 (

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
) 

w
it
h
in

 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

d
a
te
 

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
1
2
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

 
 

 0
 

 
1
9
8
,0
0
0
 

 
T
B
C
  

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

 X
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

2
5
,0
0
0
 

2
8
0
,5
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
 

3
8
2
,0
0
0
 

S
u
b
 T
o
ta
l 
 

£
2
5
,0
0
0
 

£
6
6
2
,5
0
0
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

£
6
8
7
,5
0
0
 

   

Page 316



 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 V

is
it

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

N
a
m

e
: 

S
u
e
 C

h
e
ri

to
n
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
R

V
S
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 V

is
it
o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

C
ll
r 

E
x
c
e
ll
, 
C

ll
r 

B
u
tt
, 
C

ll
r 

H
il
l,
 C

ll
r 

R
ic

h
a
rd

s
  

D
a
te

: 
6
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 *T
y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
C
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 
1
. 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
(P
la
c
e
) 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
s
  

 

 0
 

 
7
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

 N
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

X
 

 
 

 
2
. 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
/C
C
T
V
 

In
c
o
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 
1
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
t 
u
p
 

c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 

e
x
te
rn
a
lis
in
g
/ 

tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
p
p
ro
x
 £
2
0
K
) 
 

 
£
2
0
k
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
1
2
0
k
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

T
h
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 o
f 
a
 p
ri
v
a
te
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

p
ri
v
a
te
 w
o
rk
 m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ri
v
a
te
 c
lie
n
ts
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 N
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

   

 X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 17

Page 317



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
3
. 
P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

(C
o
u
n
c
il
 F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
(F
S
P
))
 

B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 p
a
tr
o
ls
 

 

 0
 

 
7
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

p
a
tr
o
ls
 –
 j
o
in
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 R
V
S
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

 X
 

 
 

 
4
. 
L
G
P
S
  

S
a
v
in
g
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 b
y
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
in
g
 u
p
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
P
e
n
s
io
n
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
  

 

 0
 

 
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
n
e
w
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

w
is
h
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

  

 X
 

 
 

 
5
. 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

in
c
o
m
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 f
u
n
d
 f
o
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 

 0
 

 
1
1
3
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 

B
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 h
a
s
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 f
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 n
il.
  
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
/m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 If
 p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 l
o
w
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 
 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
6
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
In
c
o
m
e
: 

G
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 R
iv
ie
ra
 

W
h
e
e
l,
 t
h
e
 f
a
ir
 a
n
d
 

e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 

 
3
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
e
rm
is
s
io
n
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 g
ra
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 R
iv
ie
ra
 W
h
e
e
l.
 

  

 
 X
 

 

Page 318



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
7
. 
T
C
C
T
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
(T
C
C
T
) 

 0
 

 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
T
C
C
T
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
O
c
c
o
m
b
e
 F
a
rm
. 
 

 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
la
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 

 

 
 

 X
 

 
8
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
(P
C
N
’s
) 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 

 0
 

 
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
 

in
c
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 i
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 N
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
9
. 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
p
p
e
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
IT
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 

 
 

 0
 

 
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 
A
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
 

IT
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 (
T
B
C
) 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
it
 m
a
y
 t
a
k
e
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
. 

 T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 I
T
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
n
 E
IA
. 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
1
0
. 
E
R
T
C
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 (
E
R
T
C
) 

 0
 

 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

 
S
o
m
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 b
e
 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

 
£
1
5
k
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
8
5
K
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
th
e
 v
is
it
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

        

 
 

 X
 

Page 319



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
1
. 
T
O
R
2
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 •
 
F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
(F
S
P
) 
–
 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
a
v
in
g
 

 

•
 
C
lie
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
F
S
P
) 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

T
O
R
2
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

 0
 

 
2
1
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
1
9
0
,5
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
1
9
,5
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 F
S
P
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

b
y
 T
O
R
2
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
F
S
P
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
re
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 

T
O
R
2
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 P
u
b
lic
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 b
y
 

T
O
R
2
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
1
2
. 
O
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rk
in
g
  

In
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 

 
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 In
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 n
e
w
 

a
re
a
s
  

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
. 
 

 

 

 X
 

 

 
1
3
. 
O
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rk
in
g
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

 

 0
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

to
 o
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rk
in
g
. 
 

  

 
 X
 

 

Page 320



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
4
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 p
u
b
li
c
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

  

 0
 

 
1
5
0
,5
0
0
 

 
T
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 
£
1
5
0
,5
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 
  

 T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
  

 

 
 

 X
 

 
1
5
. 
A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 G
ra
n
t 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
  

 0
 

 
5
1
,5
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 n
o
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
  

 T
o
 m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 o
f 

£
2
5
,0
0
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 d
ra
w
n
 u
p
o
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
la
n
s
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

it
s
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 a
lle
v
ia
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 
 

 

 
 

 X
 

 
1
6
. 
S
p
o
rt
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 
(F
S
P
) 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
s
p
o
rt
s
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
g
u
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 T
O
R
2
 

o
r 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 

 0
 

 
2
6
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
1
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
5
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 T
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 

lo
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
 o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 
th
is
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 c
lu
b
s
 

o
r 
th
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
ru
s
t.
 

  

 
 X
 

 

Page 321



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
7
. 
P
a
la
c
e
 T
h
e
a
tr
e
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
it
h
 n
il 
s
u
b
s
id
y
  

 0
 

 
4
4
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
2
2
,0
0
0
  

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
2
,0
0
0
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

in
c
o
m
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
. 

    

 
 X
 

 

 
1
8
. 
A
rt
s
 a
n
d
 E
v
e
n
ts
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

A
rt
s
 –
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

g
ra
n
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
1
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
1
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

g
ra
n
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 A
rt
s
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
G
ra
n
t 
fr
o
m
 2
0
1
5
 c
o
u
ld
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

o
f 
w
o
rk
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
1
9
. 
E
v
e
n
ts
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ly
in
g
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 e
v
e
n
ts
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

 

  
 

2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
  

 
£
2
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 

 X
 

 
 

 
2
0
. 
T
o
rr
e
 A
b
b
e
y
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
3
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

b
o
o
k
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

in
c
o
m
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
  

     

 
 X
 

 

Page 322



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
2
1
. 
M
u
s
e
u
m
s
 G
ra
n
ts
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

F
u
tu
re
 M
u
s
e
u
m
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 

 0
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
if
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 F
u
tu
re
 

M
u
s
e
u
m
 P
ro
je
c
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
2
2
. 
S
p
o
rt
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

R
e
m
o
v
e
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
fo
r 
T
e
n
n
is
 

T
o
u
rn
a
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
lie
d
 f
o
r 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 

 0
 

 
2
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 R
e
m
o
v
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 T
e
n
n
is
 T
o
u
rn
a
m
e
n
t 

w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
la
im
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
  

   

 
 X
 

 

L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

2
3
. R

e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
li
b
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 
V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 i
n
 

s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

•
 
C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 
O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

  
 

 0
 

 
3
6
4
,5
0
0
 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

 
£
1
2
7
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
3
7
,5
0
0
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 A
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

v
e
h
ic
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
it
s
 

u
s
e
fu
l 
lif
e
. 
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
. 

 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 m
e
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
 x
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 1
 x
 

p
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
in
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 

T
h
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
/w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
im
ila
te
d
 b
y
 

o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

 
 

    X
 

Page 323



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 e
n
ti
re
ty
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 P
la
c
e
 

 
2
4
. 
B
e
a
c
h
e
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 b
e
a
c
h
 

h
u
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

in
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

jo
in
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
F
u
tu
re
 

S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t)
 

 

 
3
0
,0
0
0
 

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
3
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

  
£
2
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

in
c
o
m
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
. 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
2
5
. 
B
e
a
c
h
e
s
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 

fo
r 
c
a
te
ri
n
g
 

 

 
1
0
,0
0
0
 

 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
t 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 b
e
a
c
h
e
s
: 
P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 /
 H
o
lli
c
o
m
b
e
 /
 

A
b
b
e
y
 w
it
h
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
b
e
a
c
h
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
2
6
. 
E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

 
 

 
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 m
o
re
 w
o
rk
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
if
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

th
e
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
2
7
. 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

e
le
m
e
n
ts
 –
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 o
rd
e
re
d
 

/ 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
w
o
rk
 v
a
lu
e
s
 /
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 

 0
 

 
1
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
£
5
5
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
9
5
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

m
a
y
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 

 
  

 X
 

Page 324



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

th
ro
u
g
h
 c
y
c
lic
a
l 
a
n
d
 o
rd
e
re
d
 

w
o
rk
s
 

 P
a
rt
 F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 

(F
S
P
) 

 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 e
le
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
fo
o
tw
a
y
 a
n
d
 c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
. 

 

 
2
8
. 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  
 

C
y
c
lic
a
l 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 –
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
IT
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

c
y
c
lic
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
 l
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

s
u
rf
a
c
e
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
  

 P
a
rt
 F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 

(F
S
P
) 

 

 0
 

 
8
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

   

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 n
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

ro
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
, 
c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 o
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
. 
O
n
ly
 

h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
. 

 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
rt
y
 w
it
h
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 o
n
ly
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
rt
y
 i
t 
is
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
w
o
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
to
 

re
v
ie
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 r
o
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

        

 
 X
 

 

Page 325



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
2
9
. 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 

    

 0
 

 
7
5
,0
0
0
 

 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
5
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
o
u
ta
g
e
s
 i
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 /
 m
o
re
 f
a
u
lt
s
 /
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

ti
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
a
fr
o
n
t 
Il
lu
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

 
 X
 

 

 
3
0
. 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
8
 C
o
m
m
u
te
d
 S
u
m
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
  

   

 
2
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 v
o
lu
m
e
s
 i
n
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
8
 c
o
m
m
u
te
d
 s
u
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 

th
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
. 
 

 
 X
 

 

 
3
1
. 
C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

 0
 

 
1
9
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
1
5
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
4
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
le
s
s
 r
e
lin
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
a
tc
h
in
g
 i
n
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
s
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
. 

   

 
 X
 

 

 
3
2
. 
B
e
a
c
h
e
s
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 

 0
 

 
3
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
le
s
s
 r
e
p
a
in
ti
n
g
 o
f 

ra
ili
n
g
s
, 
b
in
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 

w
o
rk
s
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 m
in
o
r 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
b
e
a
c
h
e
s
. 

  

 
 X
 

 

Page 326



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
3
3
. 
P
u
b
li
c
 T
o
il
e
ts
 

W
a
te
r 
u
s
a
g
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 

c
is
te
rn
s
  

 

 0
 

 
1
5
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
  

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
u
s
e
. 

    

 X
 

 
 

 
3
4
. 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 

A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
re
 (
T
re
e
s
) 
 

 
  

 0
 

 
3
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
re
e
 w
o
rk
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 

re
a
c
ti
v
e
 t
re
e
 w
o
rk
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 A
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 o
n
ly
 

o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
. 
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 (
F
S
P
).
  

 

 
 X
 

 

 
3
5
. 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 F
a
c
il
it
ie
s
 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 –
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
F
u
tu
re
 S
ta
te
 P
ro
je
c
t 

(F
S
P
) 
 

 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 c
lu
b
s
 o
f 
re
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 

p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 c
y
c
lic
a
l 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 

 0
 

 
9
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
4
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
le
a
s
e
s
 m
a
y
 t
a
k
e
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
 

 S
a
v
in
g
 r
e
lie
s
 o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 f
o
u
n
d
 b
y
 

T
O
R
2
/G
le
n
d
a
le
. 

   

 
 X
 

 

Page 327



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
3
6
. 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

 0
 

 
7
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
o
n
e
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
p
a
rk
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 v
is
ib
le
 g
ra
s
s
 

c
u
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
fl
o
w
e
r 
b
e
d
s
. 

 
 X
 

  

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

1
7
0
,0
0
0
 
1
,0
5
5
,5
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
0
,0
0
0
 

9
5
5
,0
0
0
 

 O
v
e
ra
ll
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 S
a
v
in
g
  

3
7
0
,0
0
0
 

2
,0
1
0
,5
0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
  

£
2
,3

8
0
,5

0
0
 

  

Page 328



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
–
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 T

ru
s
t 
 

 
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
a
m

e
: 

S
u

e
 C

h
e
ri

to
n

 
P

o
s
it

io
n

: 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
&

 V
is

it
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
R

e
s
id

e
n

t 
&

 V
is

it
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
P

la
c
e
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
):
 

C
ll

r 
R

a
y
 H

il
l 

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

 /
 H

e
a
d

 S
ig

n
 o

ff
: 

 
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
) 

 C
ll

r 
R

a
y
 H

il
l 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d

: 
 S

u
e
 C

h
e
ri

to
n

 

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te

: 
 

6
th

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 18

Page 329



 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
  

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 T
C
C
T
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
(T
C
C
T
) 

0
 

1
0
0
,0
0
0
 
 

N
o
n
e
 

 

£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
T
C
C
T
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
O
c
c
o
m
b
e
 F
a
rm

. 
 

 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 330



 

   S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
: 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l/

s
tr

a
te

g
y
/d

e
c
is

io
n

 
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 –
 T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
s
u
b
s
id
y
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
b
y
 £
1
0
0
k
 o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
(T
C
C
T
) 
a
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
p
a
rt
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 r
ig
h
ts
 o
f 
w
a
y
 (
S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t 
C
o
a
s
t 
P
a
th
) 
a
re
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
R
O
W
 A
c
t 

2
0
0
0
 a
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
la
n
d
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 S
S
S
I 
o
r 
th
e
 A
N
O
B
. 
B
e
rr
y
h
e
a
d
 h
a
s
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 M
o
n
u
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
tu
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
  
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t.
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
a
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 1
9
9
9
 a
n
d
 t
o
o
k
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 e
s
ta
te
, 
it
 w
a
s
 p
a
id
 a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fe
e
 o
f 
£
2
0
0
,0
0
0
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 l
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 1
2
0
0
 a
c
re
s
. 
 T
h
is
 f
e
e
 

h
a
s
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 1
3
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o
n
 r
o
u
te
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 

o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
la
n
d
 (
th
e
 e
s
ta
te
 i
s
 n
o
w
 1
7
5
0
 a
c
re
s
) 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
-g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
in
fl
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 e
s
ta
te
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
 7
6
%
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 P
u
b
lic
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 f
u
lly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
it
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 o
v
e
r 
£
8
m
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 e
s
ta
te
. 
 I
n
 

1
9
9
9
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 j
u
s
t 
9
 p
e
o
p
le
; 
it
 n
o
w
 e
m
p
lo
y
s
 3
2
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
1
0
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
. 

 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
rs
 T
C
C
T
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
s
t 
n
e
u
tr
a
l 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
th
e
ir
 s
it
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
te
e
s
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

th
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ru
s
t 
to
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 n
e
w
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 i
n
d
e
b
te
d
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
rd
ra
ft
 a
n
d
 l
o
a
n
s
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
n
k
 t
o
ta
lli
n
g
 £
9
0
0
k
 (
v
a
ri
e
s
 a
s
 o
v
e
rd
ra
ft
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
a
id
 £
8
0
0
k
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
la
n
d
 a
t 
P
re
s
to
n
 D
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 s
e
ll 
th
e
 P
re
s
to
n
 D
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
 s
it
e
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
 a
s
 a
 s
it
e
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
  
A
s
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 a
 l
e
a
s
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t 
(p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
).
 

 T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 t
a
k
e
 b
a
c
k
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
s
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
le
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

s
o
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
le
a
ri
n
g
 s
o
m
e
 o
r 
a
ll 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 d
e
b
ts
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 

c
re
a
te
d
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
. 

 

Page 331



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 w
ill
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 s
e
e
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 a
n
d
/o
r 
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t.
  
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
a
s
ta
l 
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 l
a
n
d
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
e
h
a
lf
. 

 
T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
d
o
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
/s
u
rp
lu
s
 b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 t
ra
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
 I
f 
th
is
 i
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
it
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fe
e
. 

 
 

Page 332



 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 2
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
, 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
  

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
C
C
T
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
w
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
: 

 
1
. 
A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
a
s
 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
) 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
; 
o
r 

2
. 
If
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 T
ru
s
t 
c
a
n
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
in
g
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 d
e
b
ts
 i
n
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
la
n
d
 

w
it
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l,
 t
h
e
y
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ra
n
t.
  

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
  
n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
. 
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 F
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 L
o
tt
e
ry
 F
u
n
d
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 T
C
C
T
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

   
P
e
ri

o
d
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

N
o
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
a
s
t 
p
a
th

  

Q
2
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

4
 

4
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 a
 3
 y
e
a
r 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
la
n
 

a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
h
o
ld
in
g
s
 i
n
 

lin
e

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

9
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

V
a
lu
e
 o
f 
g
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 -
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

2
8
%

 
3
0
%

 

Page 333



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
C
C
T
 -
 %

 a
c
tu
a
l 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

1
0
6
%

 
1
0
0
%

 

%
 p
ro
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
tu
rn
o
v
e
r 

 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

1
5
%

 
1
2
%

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

9
2
%

 
8
0
%

 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

B
io
-D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

8
5
%

 
8
0
%

 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
h
o
u
rs
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

  
Q

2
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

9
,7

7
1
 

6
,2

5
0
 

M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 G
re
e
n
 F
la
g
 A
w
a
rd
 f
o
r 
C
o
c
k
in
g
to
n
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
a
rk

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 2
0
1
0
-1
2

  

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

9
0
%

 
9
0
%

 

  
4

. 
H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?

 
   

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
T
C
C
T
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
e
 c
u
ts
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 i
f 
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
.  

 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
: 

 

•
 

A
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

       

Page 334



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D
e
ta
il
s
 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

  T
h
e
 T
C
C
T
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
a
y
o
r’
s
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 –
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
s
k
e
d
: 
 

 Q
. 
It
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 T
ru
s
t 
b
y
 £
5
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 b
y
 £
5
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 s
a
v
e
 £
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 
D
o
 y
o
u
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
  

 

D
o

 y
o

u
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l?

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

Y
e
s
 

2
4
9
 

6
0
.9
 

N
o
 

1
3
1
 

3
2
.0
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

2
9
 

7
.1
 

T
o

ta
l 

4
0
9
 

1
0
0
.0

 

  1
2
4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
ls
o
 m
a
d
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 d
id
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
 w
it
h
 i
t.
 T
h
e
s
e
 

a
re
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a
t 
a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 

  

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
 (
a
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 w
it
h
in
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

is
 s
ti
ll 
to
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 
 

 

Page 335



 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

  
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u

tr
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

N
o
 D
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

Page 336



 

N
o

 
Q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
  

8
a

. 
C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 T
C
C
T
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
la
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
le
a
s
e
 t
o
 T
C
C
T
 m

a
y
 s
u
ff
e
r.
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
a
ll 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 S
W
 C
o
a
s
t 
P
a
th
 i
f 
th
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 l
a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 M
o
n
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
N
O
B
 a
re
a
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 i
f 
th
is
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
to
 a
llo
w
 p
u
b
lic
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

 

8
b

. 
C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 T
C
C
T
. 

  

 S
e
c
ti

o
n

 3
: 

M
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

T
h
e
 b
ig
g
e
s
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
c
a
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
re
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
re
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
lp
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 v
a
lu
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

 

 
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 4
: 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  
 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
D

e
ta

il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 
  

T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
O
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 s
e
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
y
 

a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
n
th
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
r.
 

 

 

Page 337



 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 5
: 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 –
  

 

N
o

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
ic

k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o

n
s
/j
u

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
c
ti

o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 
c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

o
n

 
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

�
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 d
o
 n

o
t 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
to

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o

n
, 
e

it
h

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
t 
o
r 

in
d

ir
e
c
t.
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 338



 

APPENDIX ONE:  

 
Grant to Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust 
 
It is proposed to reduce the grant to the Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust by £50,000 
in 2014/15 and by £50,000 in 2015/16. This is expected to save £100,000 over two years. 

Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 249 60.9 

No 131 32.0 

No response 29 7.1 

Total 409 100.0 

 
124 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised 
into themes below: 
 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will affect tourism 

“We need to keep investing in our coast for tourism and coastal 
erosion reasons.” 
 

“Tourism is important to this area and I can see this might impact 
on visitors and the environment.” 
 

“Massively important part of our economy is tourism. Coast and 
countryside is a major factor in this.” 

Protect the 

environment 

“The conservation of the environment is fundamental to 
sustainable development to protect natural resources.” 
 
“This organisation is working to conserve and enhance the very 
natural assets that make Torbay special and attract visitors to this 
area at all times of year, quite apart from the very real long-term 
need to save the environment for future generations.” 

Vital resource 

“We need to protect and care for our coast and countryside, they 
are valuable assets.” 
 

“It is important for both residents and tourists to have access to a 
well maintained coast path and parkland.” 

 

Page 339



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 E
n
g
li
s
h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 T

o
u
ri

s
m

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
R
V
S
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

R
V
S
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

P
a
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
J
e
a
n
e
tt
e
 R
ic
h
a
rd
s
 (
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
ll
r 
B
u
tt
) 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
ll
r 
J
e
a
n
e
tt
e
 R
ic
h
a
rd
s
 (
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
ll
r 
B
u
tt
) 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 19

Page 340



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

E
R
T
C
 -
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g
ra
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 

th
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 (
E
R
T
C
) 

0
 

1
0
0
,0
0
0
 
S
o
m
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 b
e
 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

£
1
5
k
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
8
5
K
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

o
f 
th
e
 v
is
it
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  

 
 

X
 

Page 341



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

It
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 F
e
e
 o
f 
£
5
0
5
,2
0
0
 (
2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 
g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 (
E
R
T
C
) 
b
y
 £
1
5
,0
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 £
8
5
,0
0
0
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
n
d
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
 

E
R
T
C
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
h
o
 r
e
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

•
 

A
tt
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
g
e
tt
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

•
 

F
e
w
e
r 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 v
ia
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
, 
p
h
o
n
e
 o
r 
e
m
a
il.
 S
o
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
v
is
it
o
rs
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

le
s
s
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll.
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
  

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 j
o
b
s
 r
e
ly
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 
in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 s
e
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
 v
it
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
  

 

 
 

Page 342



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
: 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 –
 2
0
1
2
 f
o
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
 (
V
is
it
 E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
–
 l
a
te
s
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

 
1
. 

2
0
1
2
 s
a
w
 a
 1
%
 u
p
lif
t 
in
 t
o
ta
l 
v
is
it
o
rs
 (
tr
ip
s
) 
to
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 0
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
D
e
v
o
n
  

 
2
. 

2
0
1
2
 s
a
w
 a
 1
6
%
 u
p
lif
t 
in
 t
o
ta
l 
s
ta
y
in
g
 v
is
it
o
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 1
5
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 

D
e
v
o
n
  

 
3
. 

2
0
1
2
 s
a
w
 a
 1
8
%
 u
p
lif
t 
in
 t
o
ta
l 
o
v
e
rs
e
a
s
 v
is
it
o
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 1
0
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
D
e
v
o
n
  

 
4
. 

2
0
1
2
 s
a
w
 a
 2
8
%
 u
p
lif
t 
in
 t
o
ta
l 
d
a
y
 v
is
it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 9
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
D
e
v
o
n
  

 
•
   
   
   
T
o
ta
l 
d
ir
e
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
to
u
ri
s
m
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
 w
a
s
: 
£
4
2
7
,8
7
0
,0
0
0
 

 •
   
   
   
T
o
ta
l 
in
d
ir
e
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
to
u
ri
s
m
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
 w
a
s
: 
£
5
6
3
,2
1
7
,0
0
0
 

 •
   
   
   
T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
jo
b
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
 w
a
s
: 
1
2
,0
2
0
 

 •
   
   
   
2
1
%
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
 w
e
re
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

  T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
to
u
ri
s
m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 i
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
: 

Page 343



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
a
m
p
le
 =
 5
1
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
m
o
n
th
ly
 

 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 (
to
 d
a
te
) 

N
o
te
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

th
e
ir
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
e
/b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r 

  5
1
%
 

 7
5
%
 

 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 u
p
 t
o
 S
e
p
t 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

tu
rn
o
v
e
r 
is
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 o
f 

h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
la
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

 4
7
%
 

  

 9
2
%
 

 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 u
p
 t
o
 S
e
p
t 

A
tt
ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

th
e
ir
 v
is
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
w
e
re
 

th
e
 s
a
m
e
 o
r 
h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r 

 7
1
%
 

 1
0
0
%
 

 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 u
p
 t
o
 S
e
p
t 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 

fu
tu
re
 b
o
o
k
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 

3
8
%
 

7
6
%
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 u
p
 t
o
 S
e
p
t 

  

4
. 

H
o
w
 w
il
l 
/ 
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 T
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
P
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
s
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
’s
 C
E
O
, 
C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 a
n
d
 B
o
a
rd
 D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
V
is
it
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 t
w
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 –
 o
n
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 a
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
o
n
lin
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
h
ic
h
 a
s
k
e
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  

 T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 w
a
s
 a
n
 o
n
lin
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 e
m
a
ile
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 (
3
0
7
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
R
T
C
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
) 
o
f 
th
e
 E
R
T
C
 w
h
ic
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
ll 
th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
lf
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 b
o
th
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 B
o
th
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
0

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

  

Page 344



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

O
n
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 o
n
 d
o
 y
o
u
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 :
 4
0
9
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
: 

 2
8
8
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

9
0
 d
id
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
  

3
1
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 n
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 9
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
d
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
to
u
ri
s
m
 

•
 

T
h
a
t 
it
 w
a
s
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
 v
it
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
o
 m

u
c
h
 

•
 

T
h
o
u
g
h
ts
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
ff
e
c
t 

 T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 3
0
0
+
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
h
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
. 

 O
n
ly
 7
4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
m
a
lle
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
re
 c
lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
in
te
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
w
a
y
. 
 

 C
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs
 w
e
re
 D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(7
5
%
) 
a
n
d
 P
R
 a
n
d
 M

e
d
ia
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
3
9
.1
%
).
  

 T
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
v
is
it
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
o
r 
v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
b
y
 4
0
.5
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
w
e
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
, 
in
d
u
s
tr
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
ik
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
s
. 
W
it
h
 m

a
rk
e
t 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 v
a
lu
e
d
 b
y
 a
s
 m

a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 n
o
t.
 5
2
 o
f 
th
e
 7
5
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 ‘
H
o
w
’s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
rv
e
y
’ 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
m
a
rk
e
t 
p
la
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
g
a
th
a
 C
h
ri
s
ti
e
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
w
a
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
f 
lo
w
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 m

ix
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l,
 b
u
t 
d
id
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 g
o
o
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
a
y
. 

 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 a
p
p
e
ti
te
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
r 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
a
n
y
 t
im

e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 d
o
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 n
o
t 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t.
 

Page 345



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 T
h
e
 D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 G

u
id
e
 a
n
d
 W

e
b
 S
it
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
p
ri
n
g
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt
a
n
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
(T
B
ID
) 
o
r 
B
a
y
 w
id
e
 B
ID
 

(r
e
ta
il,
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 B
ID
 e
tc
) 
w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 
a
 T
B
ID
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
l 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 w
e
re
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
a
 B
a
y
 w
id
e
 B
ID
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
ID
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
re
a
s
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 
th
e
 E
R
T
C
 h
a
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 t
h
a
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 w
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
in
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

 
 

 

Page 346



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
te
r/
p
h
o
n
e
 V
is
it
o
r 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
if
 t
h
is
 w
e
re
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
m
o
v
e
d
) 
w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 w
e
b
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 
N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
 1
8
%
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

in
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 r
e
la
te
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
. 
If
 

v
is
it
o
rs
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

in
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

Page 347



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
. 
 

  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
f 
n
o
 o
th
e
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 t
h
e
 o
n
ly
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 

im
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
m
. 

 
  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 T
h
e
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
f 
n
o
 o
th
e
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
R
T
C
. 

 F
o
r 
th
e
 G

e
n
e
ra
l 
S
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
is
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
o
w
’s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th
 b
y
 S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 

E
R
T
C
. 
V
is
it
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 j
o
b
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
to
u
ri
s
m
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r.
  

 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 l
ik
e
 s
e
c
to
ri
a
l 
ta
x
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

Page 348



 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
o
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
o
w
’s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th
 b
y
 S
o
u
th
 w
e
s
t 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
E
R
T
C
. 
V
is
it
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 j
o
b
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
to
u
ri
s
m
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r.
 F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

�
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
im

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
d
 n

o
t 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
. 

T
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
re

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 349



 
 

Appendix One:  
 
Consultation Data:  English Riviera Tourism Company (ERTC) 

  Service Evaluation 
 
1. Torbay tourism industry businesses 
 
 
1.1 Methodology 
 
An online survey was developed which was supported by information about the 
proposal.   
 
The online survey opened on the 14th December 2013 with a closing date of 15th 
January 2014. 
 
A total of 74 responses were received. 
 
Tables were constructed and percentages calculated using the overall number of 
questionnaires received (74) as the denominator unless otherwise stated. 
 
 
1.2 Results 
 
The following tables show the consultation results to a standard set of questions 
which were sent to Torbay tourism industry businesses for a response.  The 
responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any comments made. 
 
 
 
Tourism Strategy Development 
 
Q1.  The current adopted Tourism Strategy is titled “Turning the Tide for 

Tourism in Torbay”. Have you read the strategy? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   17 23.0% 

Yes 55 74.3% 

No response 2 2.7% 

Total 74 100% 

 
  

Page 350



 
 

Q2.  If you have read it, do you support what the strategy is trying to 
achieve? (This question was only asked of those that said yes to Q1). 

 
 

  Number Percent 

No   0 0% 

Yes 55 74.3% 

No response 19 25.7% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q2a If you don't support the strategy, please tell us why. 

No comments were received in response to this question. 

Page 351



 
  E
R
T
C
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 Q
3
. 
 
H
o
w
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 E
R
T
C
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
?
 

 

  

V
e
ry
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

Im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
e
it
h
e
r 
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

o
r 

u
n
im
p
o
rt
a

n
t 

U
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
o
t 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
t 

a
ll
 

N
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
o
ta
l 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 V
is
it
o
r 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 (
c
o
u
n
te
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 

T
o
rq
u
a
y
) 

3
0
 
4
0
.5
%
 
3
1
 
4
1
.8
%
 
5
 

6
.7
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

6
 

8
.1
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 (
w
e
b
 s
it
e
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 

a
n
d
 g
u
id
e
) 

5
6
 
7
5
.6
%
 
1
4
 
1
8
.9
%
 
2
 

2
.7
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

0
 

0
.0
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 (
H
o
w
’s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 V
is
it
o
r 
S
u
rv
e
y
s
) 

1
3
 
1
7
.5
%
 
2
3
 
3
1
.0
%
 
3
0
 
4
0
.5
%
 
3
 

4
.0
%
 

4
 

5
.4
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

P
R
 a
n
d
 M
e
d
ia
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
P
re
s
s
 

R
e
le
a
s
e
s
, 
J
o
u
rn
a
lis
t 
V
is
it
s
) 

2
9
 
3
9
.1
%
 
2
4
 
3
2
.0
%
 
1
3
 
1
7
.5
%
 
4
 

5
.4
%
 

2
 

2
.7
%
 

2
 

2
.7
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

W
e
lc
o
m
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 R
iv
ie
ra
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  
 

6
 

8
.1
%
 

1
5
 
2
0
.2
%
 
2
7
 
3
6
.4
%
 
1
6
 

2
1
.6
%
 
9
 

1
2
.1
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

In
d
u
s
tr
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
A
d
v
ic
e
, 

U
p
d
a
te
s
, 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
, 

N
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
, 
E
x
h
ib
it
io
n
) 

1
8
 
2
4
.3
%
 
3
1
 
4
1
.8
%
 
1
3
 
1
7
.5
%
 
5
 

6
.7
%
 

6
 

8
.1
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 A
g
a
th
a
 C
h
ri
s
ti
e
 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

1
8
 
2
4
.3
%
 
2
1
 
2
8
.3
%
 
2
2
 
2
9
.7
%
 
8
 

1
0
.8
%
 
4
 

5
.4
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

   

Page 352



 
 

Visitor Information (English Riviera Visitor Information Centre) 
 
 
Q4.  If there were no counter service available in central Torquay, how do 

you believe this would affect your business? 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Negative 

 
"May badly impact the guest experience in the bay resulting in 
less returning guests."                                                                                                      
 
"It would reflect very badly on Torquay."                                                                                    
 
"It would be unthinkable to have no counter service tourism is 
based on the personal touch and as my business is based on 
Torquay harbour I would say that during the summer season at 
large number of customers ask to be directed to tourist office for 
details of where to stay and what to do. Also very noticeable this 
year when office was closed on Sundays."                                                                                     
 

Neutral 

 
"We already supply guests with visitor information. We organise 
days out for them, taxis, restaurants, theatres. We advise them 
of places to see and of activities coming up. We collect guests 
from both the coach and railway stations by arrangement.  We 
cater for special dietary requirements, by prior arrangement. We 
pamper our guests in the same way as many of our colleagues 
do."                                                                                                                         
 
"As we currently have good return visits from a lot of our guests, 
and our website seems to work very well at home and 
worldwide, to be honest the loss of a counter service would not 
affect us directly. Although I do appreciate that they do a good 
job with a lot of accommodation providers, and with visitor 
attractions."                                                                                                                
 
"Not much as we are in Paignton. Certainly our guests are 
unimpressed at losing their Tourist Info Centre in Paignton so 
no doubt a similar view will be felt if the Torquay branch were to 
close."                      
                                                                                                                             

Not much Impact 

 
"Would not make much impact" 
                                                                                                                             
"I do not believe it would affect trade, we would however need to 
provide further information to guests about the local area, this 
would be manageable."                                                                                                            
 

Page 353



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

"Marginally but I suggest an e-platform system could replace it - 
strategically placed around the Bay with touch screen and 
intelligent interface system to allow visitors to easily access all 
the information required"     
                                                                                                                                                                    

 
 
Q5.  Would you be willing to contribute to this service in any of the following 

ways? (Please tick as many as you like). 
 
 

  Number 
 
% 

No 
response 

 
% 

Financially e.g. sponsorship, membership 
fee, annual donation 19 25.6% 55 74.32 

As a volunteer e.g. assist in the office or 
on the counter at visitor information 12 16.2% 62 83.7% 

Provide extended Visitor Information 
Service (providing a visitor information 
point within your business) 22 29.7% 52 70.2% 

Other 6 8.1% 68 91.8% 

Total     

 
*Respondents were allowed to choose more than one answer therefore this 

percentage is not applicable. 

 
Q5a.  Please tell us how you would be willing to contribute in other ways 

below. 
 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

BID 
“Prepared to consider membership / support for the tourism 
BID” 

Rates “If we all had to pay a percentage of our rates to it” 

Website 
“Provide a link to my own website and feature the centre in our 
guest information packs” 

Page 354



 
 V
is
it
o
r 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 L
it
e
ra
tu
re
 

 Q
6
a
. 
 
H
o
w
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
r 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
?
 

  

  

V
e
ry
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

Im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
e
it
h
e
r 
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
o
r 

u
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

U
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
o
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

a
t 
a
ll
 

N
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
o
ta
l 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 
%
 

F
re

e
  
T

e
a
r 

o
ff

 M
a
p
s
 

3
3
 

4
4
.5
%
 

2
6
 

3
5
.1
%
 
7
 

9
.4
%
 

4
 

5
.4
%
 

3
 

4
.0
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

A
g
a
th

a
 C

h
ri
s
ti
e
 L

e
a
fl
e
t 

1
3
 

1
7
.5
%
 

2
3
 

3
1
.0
%
 
2
3
 

3
1
.0
%
 
7
 

9
.4
%
 

7
 

9
.4
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

G
lo

b
a
l 
G

e
o
p
a
rk

 L
e
a
fl
e
t 

5
 

6
.7
%
 

1
6
 

2
1
.6
%
 
3
4
 

4
5
.9
%
 
8
 

1
0
.8
%
 
9
 

1
2
.1
%
 

2
 

2
.7
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

E
v
e
n
ts

 L
e
a
fl
e
t 

3
2
 

4
3
.2
%
 

2
3
 

3
1
.0
%
 
1
4
 

1
8
.9
%
 
1
 

1
.3
%
 

3
 

4
.0
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

                 

Page 355



 
 D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

 T
h
e
 E

R
T

C
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 b

ra
n
d
 t
o
 g

ro
w

 v
is

it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

o
 t
h
is

 i
n
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
y
s
. 

 Q
7
. 
 
P
le
a
s
e
 t
e
ll
 u
s
 h
o
w
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 a
re
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
?
 

  

  

V
e
ry
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

Im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
e
it
h
e
r 
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
o
r 

u
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

U
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

N
o
t 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

a
t 
a
ll
 

N
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
o
ta
l 

N
o
 
%
 

N
o
 
%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 

%
 

N
o
 
%
 

N
o
 
%
 

N
o
 

%
 

T
h
e
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 
E

n
g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 

D
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
 

3
5
 

4
7
.2
%
 
3
0
 
4
1
.1
%
 
5
 

6
.7
%
 

2
 

2
.7
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

T
h
e
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 
E

n
g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 W

e
b
 

S
it
e
 

5
6
 

7
5
.6
%
 
1
6
 
2
1
.9
%
 
0
 

0
.0
%
 

0
 

0
.0
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

T
h
e
 M

y
 R

iv
ie

ra
 A

p
p
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
M

e
d
ia

 
2
1
 

2
8
.3
%
 
3
4
 
4
6
.6
%
 
9
 

1
2
.1
%
 
6
 

8
.1
%
 

3
 

4
.0
%
 

1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 

1
0
 

1
3
.5
%
 
2
3
 
1
3
.5
%
 
2
4
 

3
2
.4
%
 
5
 

6
.7
%
 

1
1
 

1
4
.8
%
 
1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

Y
o
u
T

u
b
e
 

1
0
 

1
3
.5
%
 
1
8
 
1
3
.5
%
 
2
8
 

3
7
.8
%
 
5
 

6
.7
%
 

1
1
 

1
4
.8
%
 
2
 

2
.7
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

T
w

it
te

r 
9
 

1
2
.1
%
 
1
8
 
1
2
.1
%
 
2
7
 

3
6
.4
%
 
9
 

1
2
.1
%
 

1
0
 

1
3
.5
%
 
1
 

1
.3
%
 

7
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

 

Page 356



 
 

 
Q8.  How important is it to your business that the Official English Riviera 

Destination Guide is promoted nationally? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

Very important 50 67.5% 

Important 19 25.6% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 2 2.7% 

Unimportant 1 1.3% 

Not important at all 1 1.3% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
 
Q9.  Does your business use the following? (Please tick as many as you like) 
 
 

  
No 

response Percent 
 
Number 

 
Percent 

ERTC Widgets on your website 
(What’s On, Things To Do etc.) 49 66.2% 25 33.7% 

ERTC Official Image Library 40 54.0% 34 45.9% 

Total     

 
* Please note the % is calculated from 74 the total number of respondents 
therefore the total percentage is most applicable. 

 
 
Seasonal Marketing Campaigns 
 
Q10.  Which is the most important season for the ERTC to assist your 

business with marketing campaigns? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

Spring 38 51.3% 

Summer 23 31.0% 

Autumn 2 2.7% 

Winter 7 9.4% 

No response 4 5.40% 

Total 74 100% 

 

Page 357



 
 

Q11.  How important is the WE (Winter Escapes) campaign to your business? 
 
 
 

 
 
Q12.  If the Seasonal Marketing Campaigns were not available, what impact, if 

any, do you feel this would have on your business? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Negative 

 
"lower trade in a difficult season"                                                                                          
 
"Winter accommodation sales would become even more 
depressing!"                                                                                                                                                                            
 
"Huge impact as we are open all year and rely totally on guests 
staying as our income as we don't have a pension or other 
jobs."                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

Neutral 

 
"Not sure as I have no idea of whether my guests have seen 
them or been influenced to book by seeing them."                                                                             
 
"Not aware of the Winter Escapes campaign"                                                                   
 
"Hard to tell to be honest as it is hard to assess their 
effectiveness.  The summer months are normally fine as long as 
the weather plays its part however the shoulder months I find 
make or break your season. If there is more focus on attracting 
visitors throughout the year I think this is key to the success of 
all Torbay businesses, not just accommodation providers."                              
 

Not at all  

 
"I think that it is more important to get Torbay on the National 
weather map. To report news stories good or not so good on 
T.V. and radio as well as within the National press. Beyond that 
visitors will look at Trip Advisor and other similar sites to find 
accommodation within the resort area during the Spring and 

  Number Percent 

Very important 8 10.81% 

Important 17 22.97% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 22 29.7% 

Unimportant 14 18.91% 

Not important at all 12 16.21% 

No response 1 1.35% 

Total 74 100% 

Page 358



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Summer. Like most seaside resorts Torbay is very quiet in the 
late Autumn and Winter." 
 
"We are closed for 2-3 months in the winter when we take a 
break and renovate rooms so winter marketing does us no 
good. What we really want is many more reasons for visitors to 
come in the spring, Feb, March April and May and autumn, Oct 
and Nov.  Visitors must have a compelling reason for coming 
here so marketing campaigns are not much good without more 
attractions that do not rely on sunshine." 
 
"Very little. At the moment virtually all of our winter business 
(such as it is) is people visiting friends /family or people coming 
for work. We really need to get away from "turkey and tinsel" 
and "cheap deals" and give other visitors a good reason to 
come during the winter with some major events. E.g. a walking 
festival in January/February."                                                         
 

 
 
Market Research 
 
Q13.  Does your business take part in the monthly How’s Business Survey? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   20 27.02% 

Yes 52 70.27% 

No response 2 2.70% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
 
Q14.  How important is it for you to understand how your business is 

performing?   
 

  Number Percent 

Very important 36 48.64% 

Important 27 36.48% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 8 10.81% 

Unimportant 0 0.00% 

Not important at all 2 2.70% 

No response 1 1.35% 

Total 74 100% 

Page 359



 
 

Q15.  How important is it to your business in being able to access Market 
Research and Intelligence Data? 

 
 

  Number Percent 

Very important 14 18.9% 

Important 22 39.7% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 28 37.8% 

Unimportant 5 6.7% 

Not important at all 4 5.4% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q16.  Have you ever accessed Market Research data from the ERTC to assist 

you with your own Business Development? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   58 78.37% 

Yes 13 17.56% 

No response 3 4.05% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q17.  If yes, please tell us how this information was used. 

 

Theme Examples of comments  

Performance 
management 

 
"We use the data to bench mark against other businesses and 
to help make decisions when it comes to special offers at 
different points of the year etc. It has also been vital in helping 
us make decisions about increasing investment in our 
business."                                                                                                  
 

Promotion 
"Deciding on out of season campaigns."                                                                                       
 

Strategic planning 
"To help in guest targeting/segmentation strategy."                                                                          
 

Page 360



 
 

Skills and Training 
 
 
Q18.  Has your business attended any ERTC training? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   48 64.8% 

Yes 25 33.7% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q19.  Has your business taken part in the Welcome English Riviera Customer 

Service Course? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   10 13.5% 

Yes 15 20.2% 

No response 49 66.2% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q20.  How important is it to you that the ERTC provides relevant Training 

Programmes? 

 

  Number Percent 

Very important 4 5.4% 

Important 13 17.5% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 36 48.6% 

Unimportant 8 10.8% 

Not important at all 12 16.2% 

No response 1 1.35% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
  

Page 361



 
 

Q21.  Would your business be prepared to pay for your staff to attend specific 
Tourism Training Programmes? (E.g. Welcome Riviera course £40) 

 

  Number Percent 

No   46 62.1% 

Yes 24 32.4% 

No response 4 5.4% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q22.  Are there any particular Training Courses that you would like to see the 

ERTC offer, please tell us which below? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Marketing 

 
"Accounting and web site design" 
                                                                                                                  
"Social media marketing"                                                                                                     
 

Accommodation 
and hospitality 
courses 

"hospitality sales: Housekeeping, Food and Hygiene - all the 
basic accommodation and hospitality courses"                                       
 

Don't employ staff 

"Have no staff "                                                                                                             
 
"We can't afford staff".                                                                                    
 

 
 
 
Industry Support 
 
 
Q23.  Do you attend the ERTC Industry Updates? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   23 31.0% 

Yes 50 67.5% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
  

Page 362



 
 

Q24.  How important are these updates to your business? 
 

  Number Percent 

Very important 4 5.4% 

Important 13 17.5% 

Neither  important or 
unimportant 36 48.6% 

Unimportant 8 10.8% 

Not important at all 12 16.2% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q25.  Would you be prepared to pay to attend these events? (In the region of 

£50 to £100 per delegate) 
 

  Number Percent 

No   62 83.7% 

Yes 10 13.5% 

No response 2 2.7% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q26.  Do you attend the annual Tourism Exhibition in the spring? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   18 24.3% 

Yes 55 74.3% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q27.  How important is this event to your business? 
 

  Number Percent 

Very important 14 18.9% 

Important 21 28.3% 

Neither important or 
unimportant 31 41.8% 

Unimportant 5 6.7% 

Not important at all 2 2.7% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

Page 363



 
 

Q28.  Do you receive the ERTC Industry Newsletters? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   11 17.1% 

Yes 62 83.7% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q29.  If yes, how useful do you find the Industry Newsletters? 
 

  Number Percent 

Very useful 7 9.4% 

Useful 42 57.5% 

Neither  useful or not 
useful 13 17.8% 

Not useful 0 0.0% 

Not useful at all 0 0.0% 

No response 12 16.2% 

Total 74 100% 

 

Q30.  Have you visited the ERTC’s Promotional Partner web site? 

 

  Number Percent 

No   27 36.4% 

Yes 46 62.1% 

No response 1 1.3% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q31.  If yes, how useful did you find the site? 
 

  Number Percent 

Very useful 8 10.8% 

Useful 28 37.8% 

Neither  useful or not 
useful 9 12.1% 

Not useful 1 1.3% 

Not useful at all 0 0.0% 

No response 28 37.8% 

Total 74 100% 

Page 364



 
 

Agatha Christie Festival   
 
 
Q32.  Do you feel your business benefits from the Agatha Christie Festival? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   39 52.7% 

Yes 33 44.5% 

No response 2 2.7% 

Total 74 100 

 
 
Q33.  If the Agatha Christie Festival were to stop, what impact, if any, do you 

feel this would this have on your business? 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Negative 

 
“Detrimental to bookings and international awareness." 
 
 "A lot of people attend specifically for the Agatha Christie week. 
We would lose about 75% of bookings for that week. "                                                                         
                                                                                                                             
"Reduced bookings and income."                                                                                               
 

Neutral 

 
"Honestly we have had guests make trips to see the house etc 
at all times of year but never had anyone book specifically for 
the festival. 
                        
"Again, difficult to judge. Although we do not benefit, the whole 
area does benefit ."                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                    
"Not dependant on it "                                                                        
 

None at all 

 
"Very minimal impact."                                                                                                       
 
"None at all. Agatha is clearly a draw to Torquay but seems to 
happen all year round. We have never had any guests staying 
during Agatha week that mention the festival "                
                                            
"Nil, although it would be sad since anything that promotes the 
area must be of indirect benefit."                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                               
 

 
 
  

Page 365



 
 

Future Funding 
 
The ERTC are exploring the opportunities that could be presented by developing a 
TBID across Torbay to generate increased funds to market the English Riviera as a 
year round destination. This would mean that all tourism businesses 
(accommodation, attractions, and activities) would be asked to contribute an 
additional levy on their Business Rates. This is yet to be decided but the levy is 
typically 1.5% annually. 
 
 
Q34.  Would you in principle support this new initiative of a TBID? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   26 35.1% 

Yes 45 60.8% 

No response 3 4.0% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
Q35. Please tell us why you have answered yes / no to question Q34. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

In support 

 
“It would be good to be able to extend the season."                        
    
"It might encourage attractions / activity providers to stay open 
all year round and so provide better opportunities for the guests 
we have staying with us."                                                                                                   
    
"Yes with reservations. There would need to be some sort of 
guarantee that a fair proportion of the monies raised in Paignton 
and Brixham would go to promoting those towns and not just all 
going to support initiatives in Torquay. There is already (rightly 
or wrongly) a perception that areas outside of Torquay do not 
get a fair share of existing available resources.  Unless 
addressed I fear that a Bay wide TBID would not be supported. "                                                              
 
                                                                                                                             
 

Neutral 

 
"We are not based in Torbay but just outside the area, therefore 
would not benefit from TBID - we are happy to continue to pay 
for Membership as it is an important tool in our marketing 
strategy."                                                                                                                                                                                         
 
"The devil will be in the detail i.e. the cost and outcomes of such 
a venture, but ERTC activities need to be maintained if Torbay  
 

Page 366



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

is going to continue to grow as a tourist destination. "                                                                     
 
"thank heavens I'm registered as a private house, so don't pay 
commercial business rates, so feel it would be unfair to say 
either way."                                                                                                                                                                                           
 

Not in support 

 
“our rates are excessive already, I cannot justify a further 
increase"                                                                                                                    
 
"We are only a B & B and times are hard enough with 
overheads and we only trade ~March till Oct and do not trade in 
the winter due to the high heating costs etc. As do a lot of local 
B & Bs. So we would not benefit from year round trade hence 
we would be funding the larger hotels who do stay open doing 
turkey and tinsel etc."                                                                                                                                                           
 
"Can't afford any more costs."                                                                                               
 

 
 
 
Q36.  Would you in principle support a Bay Wide Business Improvement 

District? 

  Number Percent 

No   35 47.2% 

Yes 32 43.2% 

No response 7 9.4% 

Total 74 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 367



 
 

Q37. Please tell us why you have answered yes / no to question Q36 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

In support 

 
"It would bring new ventures to Torbay."        
                                                               
"Anything that would increase tourism to The Bay!"                                                                           
                                                                                                                             
"Again, certain areas of the bay lack investment,  A bay wide 
project would allow a balanced approach to support the wide 
range of business which exists through the tourist industry."                                                                      
 

Neutral 

 
"I think the different areas of Torbay have different priorities and 
it would be difficult to bring together improvement ideas that 
please businesses in all areas."      
 
"Unsure.  I think Paignton may suffer and not get its fair share. 
Apart from the play park which is great for children, our trade 
however is mainly 40 - 80 year olds!!  The only developments 
we seem to see are 3 new accommodation providers with a 
fourth on its way(oldway) coming into the town causing the 
smaller hotels/b & b loss of trade and more price wars to try and 
compete with their prices."                                                                                                  
                                
"Support in principle but concerned about the lack of support for 
the Traditional English Bed and Breakfast.   We have a lot of 
Swiss Guests and they really appreciate the personal attention 
and homely feel of a small guest house, as well as the 
authenticity of these kind of establishments.  The standard of a 
small guest House can be as good or even better then a Brand 
Hotel.  An English Bed and Breakfast is a brand in itself.  
Naturally, the accommodation needs to be clean, comfortable 
and up to date."                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Not in support 

 
"I prefer to spend my money marketing my own business rather 
than paying so that others may benefit."                                                                                     
 
"I do not feel that the ERTC has done anything for my 
business."                                                                                                                             
 
"The areas of the bay are different - each with its own character 
- I would not support a "one deal fits all" solution. In addition 
many of the holiday businesses are not in a single area or belt 
and the bay would benefit from attracting an assortment of 
businesses so that more locals work for a living and so increase 
the councils revenues rather than expenditure."                                                                                                                                       
 

 

Page 368



 
 

2. Feedback from correspondence 

In total 8 Emails and written letters were received. In summary the 
representations made addressed the following: 

 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

In Support of the 
ERTC 

 

• "In support of the ERTC without their input we 
would undoubtedly see a decline in the number of 
visitors." 
 

• "This would lead  to lower secondary spend in the 
area and almost certainly a reduction in the number 
of people we could afford to employee, and this in 
turn would have a negative impact on the economy 
of Torbay itself." 

 

• "Tourism in Torbay and Torquay is vital to the 
prosperity of the bay and that the local population 
and local service benefit from the income and 
employment tourism brings with it." 
 

• "The Council should provide practical resources and 
support for any bids for 3rd party money to assist 
with the regeneration of the area and tourism... 
after all it is our main asset!” 
 

• "ERTC seems to have unified the tourism industry 
in Torbay. It also seems to have been effective, has 
the support of notable attractions in the bay, 
together with the support of a number of 
associations in the bay and seems to have a very 
effective board of directors." 
 

• "I am against any cuts in the ERTC Budget as their 
fantastic work is of great benefit to the bay and 
employment." 
 

• "The parks need to be cared for, the beaches kept clean 
and the huts repainted. We need to entice more 
holidaymakers to Torquay, not more homeless people. 
The hotels and B & B's employ many unskilled and lower 
paid workers, who would otherwise be unemployed; they 
use local builders and tradesmen, and send guests to 
the restaurants and attractions. The hotels bring money 
into the area. We have supported the ERTC’s work, and 
have been pleased with their tireless work to raise 
Torquay’s profile as a tourist destination." 

Page 369



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

 

• "Reducing the spend on the ERTC is not in the best 
interests of the economy of the Bay due to the high 
number of jobs both direct and indirect that are 
linked to a successful ERTC and hence Torbay 
tourism" 

 

• "Large cuts to the ERTC budget will mean the company 
will cease to exist. And with the ERTC, a number of 
tourism businesses will not survive, the economy will 
worsen and unemployment will inevitably rise." 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 370



 
 

3.  Mayor’s Budget Consultation Results:  

 
3.1 Methodology 
 

A questionnaire was produced and was distributed, in hard copy, to all 
Connections offices and libraries – this was open to all members of the public 
to complete.  
 
An online version was made available on the Torbay Council website on 22nd 
November. The questionnaire was advertised via posters and the local media.  
The survey had a closing date of 16th January 2014. A total of 409 responses 
have been received. 

 
The following question was asked within this questionnaire regarding the 
ERTC Proposal:  
 
Grant to English Riviera Tourism Company 

 
It is proposed to reduce the grant to the English Riviera Tourism Company by 
£15,000 in 2014/15 and £85,000 in 2015/16. This is expected to save 
£100,000 over two years. 
 
 
 

Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 288 70.4 

No 90 22.0 

No response 31 7.6 

Total 409 100.0 

 
 

95 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been 
summarised into themes below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 371



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Will affect tourism 

“You need tourism to bring in more money and the tourist needs to 
be nurtured for them to want to come back.” 
 

“Tourism is an essential part of Torbay’s economy and needs to be 
supported.” 
 

“Torbay relies on tourism for a large amount of its income. We 
should be doing what we can to promote Torbay as a holiday 
destination, the cost of this should outweigh the expenses.” 
 

“Tourism is the life blood of the bay, without an efficient and well 
run tourist company tourist numbers might drop… having negative 
effects on the well being of the area.” 

Vital service 

“The ERTC provides vital services to enhance the Bay's tourist 
trade.” 
 

“The ERTC has been enormously successful in improving tourism 
in Torbay and should be supported in order to continue.” 
 

“Tourism is vital to Torbay's economy. Many businesses rely on it. 
Jobs rely on it. Tourism is our main economy provider and with no 
marketing, tourism will decline and unemployment will rise.” 

Other 
“I agree in a reduction but not so extreme.” 
“Short term economies for a much greater loss in the long term...” 

 
 

Page 372



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
- 
A

c
o
rn

 C
e
n
tr

e
 G

ra
n
t 

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
R
V
S
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

R
V
S
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

P
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):
 
C
ll
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 E
x
c
e
ll
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
 C
ll
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 E
x
c
e
ll
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

 S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 20

Page 373



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 
If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 G
ra
n
t 

 C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

0
 

5
1
,5
0
0
 

N
o
n
e
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 n
o
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
  

 T
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 o
f 

£
2
5
,0
0
0
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 d
ra
w
n
 u
p
o
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
la
n
s
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

it
s
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 a
lle
v
ia
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 
 

  

 
 

X
 

Page 374



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 

th
e
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
p
a
id
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 h
is
to
ri
c
 g
ra
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
a
id
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
fo
r 

te
n
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
a
la
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 v
e
n
u
e
 c
o
u
ld
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 s
p
o
rt
s
 u
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 g
ra
n
t 
a
id
e
d
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
S
in
c
e
 

th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
a
ls
o
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 l
e
s
s
 v
ia
b
le
 a
s
 a
 s
p
o
rt
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
lo
tt
e
ry
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 c
lo
s
u
re
 m

a
y
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
is
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
  

 T
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 f
u
tu
re
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
e
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
id
e
 s
p
o
rt
s
 

p
it
c
h
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
is
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
It
 i
s
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm

  
th
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t.
  

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
  
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
fa
c
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
a
rt
o
n
 a
n
d
 W

a
tc
o
m
b
e
 a
re
a
 –
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
L
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
u
ld
 l
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 

if
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
ts
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 u
n
v
ia
b
le
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 h
a
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
. 
L
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 a
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
b
a
d
m
in
to
n
/d
ry
 s
id
e
 s
p
o
rt
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 f
o
r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ra
n
t.
 S
o
m
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
ru
n
n
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
e
c
a
m
e
 u
n
v
ia
b
le
. 
If
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 c
lo
s
e
d
 t
h
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
v
e
n
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
v
e
rt
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
(a
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 d
a
te
d
 M
a
y
 1
9
6
5
 w
it
h
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 1
1
/1
9
8
8
, 
1
/1
9
9
3
 a
n
d
 1
2
/1
9
9
9
).
 T
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 w
e
re
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 a
s
 a
 ‘
y
o
u
th
 c
lu
b
’ 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
ti
ll 
fo
rm

s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 

  
 

 

Page 375



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 h
e
ld
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
y
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
o
r 
th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
O
ri
g
in
a
lly
 (
fr
o
m
 1
9
9
3
) 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
ra
n
 

th
e
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 s
p
o
rt
s
 h
a
ll,
 b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
ts
e
lf
. 

 
4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 t
w
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
d
 o
f 
a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
e
a
s
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 

 A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
n
lin
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 
R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
b
le
 

to
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 a
n
d
 i
t 

s
o
u
g
h
t 
w
id
e
r 
v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 s
it
e
 o
r 
th
e
 l
e
a
s
in
g
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

. 
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 1
1

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
lo
s
e
d
 o
n
 1
6

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
ls
o
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 
th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 b
o
th
 h
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
is
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
it
e
m
. 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
re
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

    

Page 376



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

F
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
 o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 4
0
9
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 w
e
re
: 

 
•
 

2
2
5
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

•
 

1
3
9
 d
id
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
 

•
 

4
5
 d
id
 n
o
t 
g
iv
e
 a
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
e
ll 
in
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 b
ro
a
d
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
: 

T
h
a
t 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
: 

 

•
 

it
 w
a
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

•
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
rt
 a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 

  O
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
3
9
 i
n
 t
o
ta
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
e
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
r 
n
o
t 
–
 2
3
4
 s
a
id
 t
h
e
y
 d
id
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 4
 s
a
id
 t
h
e
y
 d
id
 a
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 1
 p
e
rs
o
n
 g
a
v
e
 n
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 c
a
m
e
 f
ro
m
 f
e
m
a
le
s
 (
5
7
.7
%
).
 T
h
e
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
ir
ly
 s
p
re
a
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
2
4
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
7
4
 y
e
a
r 
o
f 
a
g
e
. 

3
3
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 l
iv
e
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 r
e
s
id
in
g
 i
n
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 p
o
s
tc
o
d
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

 F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 d
id
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
  
th
e
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
: 

 

•
 

L
o
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 y
o
u
th
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
) 
 =
 3
5
 

•
 

L
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 =
 2
4
 

•
 

A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
s
u
rv
iv
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
g
ra
n
t 
a
id
 =
 1
1
 

•
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 (
o
th
e
r)
 =
 9
 

•
 

O
th
e
r 
=
 4
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 :
 

 T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
th
e
 s
p
o
rt
 f
ie
ld
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
: 

 

Page 377



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 

3
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 –
 Y
E
S
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

•
 

1
9
9
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 –
 N
O
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

•
 

2
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 n
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 F
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 d
id
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
a
s
o
n
in
g
: 

 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 =
 1
2
 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
h
o
u
ld
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 =
 8
 

•
 

O
th
e
r 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 =
 1
9
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
a
y
s
 t
h
e
y
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 s
a
v
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 –
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 A
c
o
rn
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 =
 1
4
 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
it
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

o
re
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 r
u
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 =
 1
6
 

•
 

S
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
th
e
rs
 =
 6
 

•
 

O
th
e
r 
=
1
2
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  
 

 
 

Page 378



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
L
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
s
, 
y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
L
o
s
s
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
o
 

a
re
 i
n
 c
a
re
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
L
o
s
s
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
f 
th
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

u
n
v
ia
b
le
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

a
re
a
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

 
T
h
e
 B
a
rt
o
n
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
e
r 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
in
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 f
o
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

w
e
llb
e
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
f 
th
is
 

 

Page 379



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

b
e
c
a
m
e
 u
n
v
ia
b
le
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
o
s
e
 

liv
in
g
 l
o
c
a
lly
  

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
u
s
e
s
, 
b
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
fé
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
ra
te
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
e
v
ie
d
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 o
ff
s
e
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
a
s
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
rt
s
 f
ie
ld
s
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
. 
 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
A
 f
a
s
t 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts
 –
 s
p
o
rt
s
 f
ie
ld
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 

   

Page 380



 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m
a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

�
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t,
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 

o
f 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

T
h
is
 g
ra
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

it
ig
a
te
d
 

a
s
 f
a
r 
a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 A
c
o
rn
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
k
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
. 
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  
 

Page 381



 
 

APPENDIX ONE:  

 
Consultation Data:  Acorn Centre Grant 
 
1. Acorn Centre Service Users 
 
1.1 Methodology 
 
An online survey was developed to ask respondents their views on the budget 
proposal to reduce the Acorn Centre Grant by 100% (£50,300) in the financial year 
2015/16. 
 
The online survey opened 11th December 2013 with a closing date of 16th January 
2014. 
 
A total of 239 responses were received. 
 
1.2 Results 
 
The following tables show the consultation results of the online survey, for which the 
link was sent to the Acorn Centre who forwarded it to users of the service for a 
response.  The responses have been grouped into themes with examples of any 
comments made. 
 
The proposal is to cease funding of The Acorn Centre Community and 
Sports Centre in 2015/16. This is expected to save £50,300. 
 
Q1.  Do you support the proposed reduction to the Acorn centre Grant? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   234 97.9% 

Yes 4 1.7% 

No response 1 0.4% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
Q2.  If you do not support the proposal, please tell us why. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Community (35) 

“This centre provides and invaluable service to the whole 
community, it needs supporting for all the good work it does for 
all ages.” 

“This is at the centre of the community they have been a 
massive support to myself and many others. It’s all in the news 
about community spirit being non-existent and this is why the 
closure of so many local support networks. Keep children off the 
streets and many fantastic workshops and classes. A huge plus 
for a local community.” 

Page 382



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

“Having to explain or justify the significant important social and 
community contribution such a centre makes is not only short 
sighted but extremely unfair and narrow in perspective. If we are 
to encourage and maintain a social inclusive policy that enables 
local people to work together and improve their health, 
education, community and environment then the amount of 
funding should be increased not reduced or cut completely. 
There is little doubt that such a small short term saving is 
nothing more than long term false economy which will have far 
reaching consequences not only in financial terms but in the 
negative impact to the overall quality of life for the whole 
community.” 

Activities/Amenity/
Service (24) 

“The Acorn Centre is a valuable source for education, sport and 
recreation in the Barton and Hele area of Torquay. Kids are 
always told they need to find somewhere to be to keep them off 
the streets and out of trouble and if the Acorn was to close, the 
streets are exactly where they would go. The amount of clubs 
and sports organisations that use the Centre would lose their 
training/meeting point.” 

“Lots of people use the Acorn Centre from the very young to the 
old. It has helped a lot of children who have problems not only in 
families but children with behaviour problems as well. 
Something going on all the time and you are always made 
welcome.” 

“The Acorn Centre provides an amazing cross-sectional facility.  
Such a wide range of different activities for all ages.  I would 
have been totally stuck without the centre for childcare in the 
holidays.  Both my boys loved it and the staff are all fantastically 
dedicated.  I see it as an essential part of the community.  To 
provide such opportunities for local children that they would be 
otherwise unable to obtain is priceless.” 

Support (11) 

“The reduction of grant support will not only impact on the loss 
of much needed community support but also mean likely loss of 
jobs for Acorn staff. The Acorn Centre sits within some of the 
most deprived wards in Torbay, Watcombe, Hele, Barton and 
supports thousands of individuals, most of which are on low 
income and rely on the support provided by the centre.” 

“It is a vital support to the community in Watcombe Barton and 
Hele. They have over a thousand people a week in and it's not 
just seen as a community centre. Are you cutting leisure centres 
budgets that probably don't do the work that Acorn Centre 
does? Probably not but this centre does more.” 

Financial (9) 
“The Centre needs longer to realise its ambitions to redevelop 
the buildings and increase its earned income. Tapering the 
grant would enable this to happen.” 

Page 383



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

“Because with the amount of cuts the council are making 
£50,300 is a drop in the ocean.  Other job positions and funding 
allocation has been kept that I do not feel benefit Torbay as a 
community as much as The Acorn Centre does. Why not take 
the 50 thousand of Parkfield’s budget as it is so massively under 
used for a building that size.” 

Other (4) “Where will all the local children go?” 

 
 
 
To enable the Acorn Centre to become self funding, Torbay Council also propose to 
transfer the associated fields and car park areas under lease to the Acorn Centre. 
 
 
Q3 Do you support the proposal to enable the Acorn Centre to become self 

funding? 
 

  Number Percent 

No   199 83.3% 

Yes 38 15.9% 

No response 2 0.8% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
Q4 If you do not support the proposal, please tell us why. 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Other (19) 

“Because your version of self funding isn't the right 
version. Help them with their new build so they can 
become a new greener, cleaner, self funding centre.” 

“It would be heart breaking to think my children won’t have this 
place to go to growing up, as I did when I was. It was great and 
is a place I still talk about with friends from years ago, Its 
memories. Please don’t, it would be stupid!” 

Income Issues (12) 

“If they do go self funding it is possible that they may not 
survive and we would lose the most welcomed facility.” 

“The Acorn Centre does not have the funds to provide the 
upkeep for the fields and car parks especially as the car 
parks need work.” 

Council funding (8) 
“The council should fund local centres to help with keeping 
children off the streets, so they can have fun with friends, 
meet new friends, and build confidence and discipline.” 

Page 384



 
 

 
Q5 If you have any other suggestions about possible ways to save money 

for The Acorn Centre please tell us below: 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Increase income 
(16) 

“Use and run the building much more as a business to bring in 
revenue.  Place community workers and support workers at the 
centre rather than in other offices so as they are in the heart of 
the community they are working in and more accessible.  Much 
more partnership working with other agencies for example Play 
Torbay and people that actually have money. Review program 
and fill it up with activities that benefit everyone and that more 
internal funding can be accessed for. Do a needs analysis 
around the surrounding area to provide activities and support 
that people will want and use.” 

“Give them the freedom to tender for services. Ask them - surely 
those involved are in the best position to say.” 

Divert Funding 
from elsewhere 

(14) 

“Yes stop giving Tax payers money to businesses like Riviera 
Centre and give more to the Acorn which is a charity.” 

“Re-direct funds from non-essential projects.” 

Other (12) 

“Rather than take away the funding all together the council 
should continue to provide the funding and only consider 
reducing/removing it once the Acorn Centre IS self funding.  The 
idea to transfer the fields and car park to the Acorn Centre is a 
good idea as this would help them increase their income and 
consequently improve the facilities for the communities use. 
Removing the funding in a big bang approach could result in the 
Acorn centre closing and that would be a great loss for Torbay.” 

“Invest more into the local community.” 
 

Save money (6) 

“There is a lot of smaller groups for children and the Acorn 
Centre is a lot bigger than most, maybe take the cuts from 
smaller groups and get other groups to work with the centre 
then instead of cutting all different groups, it's funding with just 
one big Acorn Centre which covers all aspects of family support 
already.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 385



 
 

 
Q6 Are you male or female? 
 

  Number Percent 

Male   97 40.6% 

Female 138 57.7% 

No response 4 1.7% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
 
Q7 Which of the following age groups apply to you? 
 

  Number Percent 

0 - 15  5 2.1% 

16 - 24 15 6.3% 

25 - 34 40 16.7% 

35 - 44 52 21.8% 

45 - 54 35 14.6% 

55 - 64 51 21.3% 

65 - 74 34 14.2% 

75 - 84 6 2.5% 

85 + 0 0.0% 

No response 1 0.4% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
 
Q8 What is your home postcode? 
 

  Number Percent 

TQ2 95 39.7% 

TQ1 60 25.1% 

Outside of Torbay 33 13.8% 

TQ3 24 10.0% 

TQ4 6 2.5% 

TQ4 5 2.1% 

No response 16 6.7% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 386



 
 

 
Q9 Do you consider yourself to be disabled in any way? 
 
 

  Number Percent 

No   215 90.0% 

Yes 15 6.3% 

No response 9 3.8% 

Total 239 100.0% 

 
 
 
 
Q10 Please tell us how your disability affects you (respondents could tick 

more than one answer). 
 

  Number Percent 

Mobility 11 47.8% 

Another way 9 39.1% 

Vision 2 8.7% 

Hearing 1 4.3% 

Total 23 100.0% 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 387



 
 

2.  Mayor’s Budget Consultation Results:  

 
2.1 Methodology 
 

A questionnaire was produced and was distributed, in hard copy, to all 
Connections offices and libraries – this was open to all members of the public 
to complete.  
 
An online version was made available on the Torbay Council website on 22nd 
November. The questionnaire was advertised via posters and the local media.  
The survey had a closing date of 16th January 2014. A total of 409 responses 
have been received. 

 
The following question was asked within this questionnaire regarding the 
Acorn Centre Proposal:  

 
Acorn Centre Grant 

 
The proposal is to cease funding of the Acorn Community and Sports Centre 
in 2015/16. This is expected to save £51,500 over two years. 

 

Do you 
support this 
proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 225 55.0 

No 139 34.0 

No response 45 10.8 

Total 409 100.0 

 
124 respondents made comments related to the proposal. These have been 
summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Essential 
community 
resource 

“This is important to the local community.” 
 

“The Acorn Centre is one of the most active and progressive 
centres in the Bay, and has been providing valuable support to its 
local area for many years with the support of committed voluntary 
workers.” 
 

“Young people in particular need sports venues and a community 
centre is vital for informal education and personal development and 
gives residents a sense of community.” 

Page 388



 
 

Category Examples of comments – where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Supports an area 
of high 

deprivation 

“The Acorn centre is a brilliant local resource in a highly deprived 
area.” 
 

“Provides a valuable service to an area of high deprivation.” 
 

“The service is highly valuable to people in one of our most 
deprived areas.” 

Health & sport 
“Community and sport needs more not less governmental support.” 
 

“There is little provision within this area for sporting activities.” 

Other “It could be reduced but not by as much. Does an important job.” 

 
 
 

Page 389



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
  

 
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
N
a
m
e
: 
S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
/N
ic
k
 N
il
e
s
  

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 H
e
a
d
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 &
 V
is
it
o
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/L
ib
ra
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 &
 V
is
it
o
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

P
la
c
e
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 :
 
C
ll
r 
D
a
v
e
 B
u
tt
  

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
ll
r 
D
a
v
e
 B
u
tt
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

S
u
e
 C
h
e
ri
to
n
/N
ic
k
 N
il
e
s
 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 21

Page 390



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o

m
e
 

£
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
li
b

ra
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

•
 

V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 i
n
 

s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

•
 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
0
 

3
6
4
,5
0
0
 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

£
1
2
7
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 
£
2
3
7
,5
0
0
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 A
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

v
e
h
ic
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
it
s
 

u
s
e
fu
l 
lif
e
. 
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
. 

 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
 x
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 1
 

x
 p
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
in
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
/w
ill
 b
e
 

a
s
s
im
ila
te
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 

T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 e
n
ti
re
ty
 o
f 
fu
tu
re
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

 
 

x
 

Page 391



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
. 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
o
u
g
h
t 
to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 B
a
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 -
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 L
ib
ra
ry
, 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
, 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
 

L
ib
ra
ry
, 
C
h
u
rs
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 M
o
b
ile
 L
ib
ra
ry
, 
w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
  
a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f:
  

 

•
 

V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 a
n
d
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 v
e
h
ic
le
. 

 A
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
: 

 
1
. 
O
n
ly
 a
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 (
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
%
) 
o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
liv
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 2
 m

ile
s
 f
ro
m
 a
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ry
. 

T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 o
f 
o
th
e
rs
 w
h
o
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
lib
ra
ry
 f
o
r 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 m

o
b
ili
ty
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
s
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

2
. 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 i
ts
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
le
a
s
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
7
 y
e
a
rs
, 
a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 t
o
ta
lli
n
g
 3
 y
e
a
rs
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
it
s
 u
s
e
fu
l 
lif
e
. 

3
. 
A
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
n
e
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
d
e
fi
n
it
e
ly
. 
£
2
7
5
0
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
£
2
3
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 

4
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 g
e
ts
 o
ld
e
r 
it
 i
s
, 
in
e
v
it
a
b
ly
, 
in
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
b
o
th
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 

u
n
fo
re
s
e
e
n
, 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
t 
is
 r
o
a
d
w
o
rt
h
y
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
, 
a
s
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
 w
h
e
n
 £
5
,0
0
0
 

o
f 
u
n
fo
re
s
e
e
n
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
fa
ilu
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 

a
 l
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

5
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 g
e
ts
 o
ld
e
r,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 l
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 w
ill
 f
a
il 
c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
. 
T
o
rb
a
y
 h
a
s
 n
o
 b
a
c
k
 u
p
 

v
e
h
ic
le
 a
n
d
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 T
O
R
2
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

e
th
o
d
, 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 a
re
 n
o
t 
ro
b
u
s
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
c
h
 a
 f
a
ilu
re
. 
 

6
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
a
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 o
f 
£
1
1
5
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
m
it
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
7
 y
e
a
rs
 m

in
im
u
m
 

 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 m

e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
 x
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 1
 x
 p
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
in
 A
p
ri
l 

Page 392



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
/w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
im
ila
te
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 

b
e
 n
o
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

 

2
. 

W
h

o
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
?
 

 T
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r;
 a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 m

a
y
 

a
ff
e
c
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
fr
ie
n
d
s
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
, 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
u
s
e
 

th
e
 l
ib
ra
ry
 v
e
n
u
e
 i
.e
. 
p
a
re
n
ts
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 
 

 In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
o
s
ts
, 
th
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
im
ila
te
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

 In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
 

   

 
 

Page 393



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
?

  
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
D

a
ta
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 4
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 T
o
rb
a
y
 –
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
, 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
, 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
, 
C
h
u
rs
to
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
lo
w
 o
u
tl
in
e
 l
ib
ra
ry
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 t
im
e
s
. 

o
 
h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
/y
o
u
rs
e
rv
ic
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ry
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
/t
o
rq
u
a
y
lib
ra
ry
.h
tm
 

o
 
h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
/y
o
u
rs
e
rv
ic
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ry
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
/p
a
ig
n
to
n
lib
ra
ry
.h
tm
 

o
 
h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
/y
o
u
rs
e
rv
ic
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ry
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
/b
ri
x
h
a
m
lib
ra
ry
.h
tm
 

o
 
h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
/y
o
u
rs
e
rv
ic
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ry
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
/c
h
u
rs
to
n
lib
ra
ry
.h
tm

  

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 M
o
b
ile
 L
ib
ra
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 L
in
k
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 f
o
r 
a
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 p
o
s
tc
o
d
e
 a
re
a
 –
  

o
 
h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/i
n
d
e
x
/y
o
u
rs
e
rv
ic
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
/l
ib
ra
ry
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
.h
tm

  
 A
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
x
is
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
  
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t:
 

 

•
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
a
ta
 –
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 

1
. 
U
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 d
e
c
lin
in
g
 b
o
th
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
it
e
m
s
 b
e
in
g
 b
o
rr
o
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 v
is
it
in
g
 

th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
. 
 

 
2
0
1
0
 

2
0
1
1
 

2
0
1
2
 

2
0
1
3
 t
o
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

It
e
m
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

3
7
,7
0
5
 

3
0
,3
3
6
 

2
7
,8
0
3
 

2
1
,3
2
0
 

V
is
it
s
 

1
2
,5
7
9
 

1
0
,3
0
2
 

1
0
,1
1
8
 

7
,3
3
4
 

 
2
. 
T
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 (
m
e
a
n
) 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
is
it
s
 p
e
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
is
 1
0
, 
ra
n
g
in
g
 f
ro
m
 1
 t
o
 4
6
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 

 
3
. 
T
o
rb
a
y
 h
a
s
 a
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
1
3
1
,0
0
0
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 7
4
0
 a
c
ti
v
e
 b
o
rr
o
w
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 

lib
ra
ry
, 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
s
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 b
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
: 

Page 394



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 

•
 
A
d
u
lt
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
6
5
6
 

•
 
A
g
e
 1
6
/1
7
  
  
  
  
  
2
 

•
 
A
g
e
 5
 –
 1
5
  
  
  
 4
4
 

•
 
U
n
d
e
r 
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
4
 

•
 
P
la
y
g
ro
u
p
  
  
  
  
  
4
 

•
 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
 

 
4
. 
O
v
e
r 
7
5
%
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 6
0
 o
r 
a
b
o
v
e
. 
O
v
e
r 
6
0
%
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 7
0
 o
r 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

5
. 
6
9
%
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 f
e
m
a
le
 

6
. 
T
o
rb
a
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
a
s
 4
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 
9
7
.2
%
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 l
iv
e
 w
it
h
in
 a
 2
 m

ile
 r
a
d
iu
s
 o
f 
a
 

s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 4
5
.9
%
 l
iv
e
 w
it
h
in
 a
 1
 m

ile
 r
a
d
iu
s
 a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
  

 

4
. 

H
o

w
 w

il
l 
/ 
h

a
v
e
 y

o
u

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l?
 

  

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 v
ia
 a
n
 o
n
lin
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 l
ib
ra
ry
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
u
b
lic
 f
ro
m
 1
1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
is
 w
a
s
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
h
ic
h
 r
a
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 a
 

m
o
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
u
rv
e
y
. 
2
0
3
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 s
u
rv
e
y
. 

 1
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 3
7
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s
, 
w
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 F
ri
e
n
d
s
 o
f 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
. 

 2
9
 l
e
tt
e
rs
/e
m
a
ils
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 S
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 m

e
t 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 a
n
d
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
, 
a
t 
th
e
ir
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t,
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

  

 

•
 

9
9
.2
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
e
re
 f
ro
m
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
o
 m

a
d
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

O
v
e
r 
h
a
lf
 (
5
2
.9
%
) 
o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 u
s
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
o
n
c
e
 a
 w
e
e
k
. 
8
1
.8
%
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 u
s
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 

o
n
c
e
 a
 m

o
n
th
. 

•
 

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 b
o
o
k
s
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 
u
s
in
g
 a
 l
ib
ra
ry
 (
7
0
%
) 

•
 

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
u
s
e
d
 l
ib
ra
ry
 b
y
 a
ll 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 (
4
8
.7
7
%
),
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 (
4
6
.8
6
%
),
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
(3
6
.6
5
),
 

C
h
u
rs
to
n
 (
3
2
.1
9
%
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 (
9
.6
7
%
) 

Page 395



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 l
ib
ra
ry
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 s
tr
o
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
h
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
m
u
lt
i-
u
s
e
 o
f 
p
re
m
is
e
s
, 
th
o
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
ls
o
 

a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
 a
n
d
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 w
e
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
x
im
is
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
-l
o
c
a
te
d
. 
 

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
th
o
u
g
h
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 d
e
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
a
 l
ib
ra
ry
. 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 (
a
ro
u
n
d
 2
0
%
) 
th
is
 w
a
s
 t
e
m
p
e
re
d
 b
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
 s
a
la
m
i 
s
lic
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 l
e
s
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
, 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
. 

 L
ib
ra
ry
 c
lo
s
u
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 n
e
g
lig
ib
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
B
ri
x
h
a
m
, 
P
a
ig
n
to
n
 a
n
d
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 w
e
re
 h
ig
h
e
r 
fo
r 
C
h
u
rs
to
n
 –
 

(8
.5
%
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 (
7
.1
%
) 
–
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ils
. 
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 o
n
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
 

 

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
p
p
o
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
/p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 
 

 
 

 

Page 396



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
n

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 

 
P

o
s
it

iv
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

A
 l
a
rg
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 

o
v
e
r 
6
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 b
a
rr
ie
r 
in
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 
m
o
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
. 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

fi
n
d
 i
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 

T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 R
N
IB
 

ta
lk
in
g
 b
o
o
k
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
u
s
e
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 

o
r 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
e
-

b
o
o
k
s
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
. 
N
o
 

fi
g
u
re
s
 a
re
 k
n
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
is
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 
  

T
ra
v
e
lli
n
g
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 

b
a
rr
ie
r 
fo
r 
s
o
m
e
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 (
le
v
e
l/
ra
m
p
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
, 

a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 d
o
o
rs
, 
lif
ts
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 f
in
d
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 

c
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 R
N
IB
 

ta
lk
in
g
 b
o
o
k
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
u
s
e
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 

o
r 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

e
-b
o
o
k
s
. 

  

Page 397



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
 

T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

a
re
 w
o
m
e
n
. 
B
o
th
 g
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
. 

P
re
g
n
a
n
t 
w
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
 o
n
 

m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 m

a
y
 f
in
d
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
n
 

g
e
tt
in
g
 t
o
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

  
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

  
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

  

T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
m
o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

a
re
 w
o
m
e
n
. 
P
re
g
n
a
n
t 
w
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 

w
o
m
e
n
 o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 m

a
y
 f
in
d
 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
n
 g
e
tt
in
g
 t
o
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
.  

 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
o
w
n
 c
a
r 
o
r 
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
ff
o
rd
 

p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 N
o
n
e
 

8
a
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 w

id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

  T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

Page 398



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 

8
b
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
k
n
o
w
n
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

?
 

 

 L
o
s
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
lly
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 ,
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
ld
e
rl
y
, 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 s
ta
ti
c
 l
ib
ra
ry
 f
o
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 o
f 
m
o
b
ili
ty
 

  A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 r
e
a
s
o
n
: 

 

•
 

re
p
lic
a
te
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
’ 
h
o
m
e
s
 v
ia
 l
ib
ra
ry
 c
o
u
ri
e
r 
v
a
n
 

•
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 B
ri
x
h
a
m
 D
o
e
s
 C
a
re
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
a
 

•
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 h
o
m
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

e
x
p
lo
re
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 e
-b
o
o
k
s
 a
n
d
 R
N
IB
 T
a
lk
in
g
 B
o
o
k
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 h
o
u
s
e
b
o
u
n
d
 t
ic
k
e
t 
w
h
e
re
b
y
 f
ri
e
n
d
/r
e
la
ti
o
n
 e
tc
 c
a
n
 c
o
lle
c
t 
b
o
o
k
s
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

•
 

o
ff
e
r 
o
u
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
m
e
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
d
 b
y
 a
 m

o
b
ile
 l
ib
ra
ry
 s
to
p
 

•
 

e
x
p
lo
re
 d
e
p
o
s
it
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 –
 p
o
s
t 
o
ff
ic
e
/s
h
o
p
/p
u
b
/c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 e
tc
 

 

 
      

Page 399



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls
 

  

  M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

e
th
o
d
s
 b
y
 L
ib
ra
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m
a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

�
 

 A
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

to
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

re
 o

ff
e

re
d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
w

h
e

re
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a
b

le
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l.
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

  
 

Page 400



 
 

APPENDIX ONE:  
 
Consultation Data: Review of Library Services 
 
1. Review of Library Services 
 
 
1.1 Methodology 
 
The consultation was conducted via online and paper surveys which were made 
available to the general public. 
 
The online survey opened on 11 December 2013 and closed on 16 January 2014. 
412 responses were received. 
 
Paper copies were made available in all of the libraries: Brixham, Churston, 
Paignton, Torquay and the mobile library, from 13 December 2013 to 16 January 
2014. 1,626 completed questionnaires were returned. 
 
2,038 responses were received in total. 
 

1.2 Results 

The following set of tables show the consultation results of the Review of Library 
Services survey.  
 
The percentages in data tables have been calculated using the overall number of 
responses received (2,038) as the denominator unless otherwise stated. 
 
For free text (open ended questions) the responses have been categorised into 
popular themes with the most frequent listed first. The numbers in brackets indicate 
the number of responses in that category. Individual comments may be classified 
under more than one category. 
 
 
Using the Library 
 
Q1) How often do you use a Library in Torbay?  

  Number Percent 

Every day 189 9.3% 

At least once a week 1,078 52.9% 

At least once a month 589 28.9% 

A few times a year 120 5.9% 

Never 17 0.8% 

No response 45 2.2% 

Total 2,038 100% 

Page 401



 
 

 
Q2) Which library do you use the most? 

  Number Percent 

Torquay 612 30.0% 

Brixham 500 24.5% 

Churston 401 19.7% 

Paignton 314 15.4% 

Mobile 113 5.5% 

No response 98 4.8% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 
 
Q3) Which library(ies) do you also use?  

 

  Number Percent 

Paignton 680 33.4% 

Torquay 343 16.8% 

Churston 255 12.5% 

Brixham 247 12.1% 

Mobile 84 4.1% 

 
Q4)  What is the main reason(s) you visit the library 
 

  Number Percent 

Fiction books 1,613 79.1% 

Non-fiction books 1,242 60.9% 

Reference information from various sources 594 29.1% 

Read newspapers and magazines 569 27.9% 

Films / DVDs 552 27.1% 

Use computers 497 24.4% 

Ask for information or advice 462 22.7% 

Children’s books 438 21.5% 

Use photocopier or fax machine 391 19.2% 

Music 315 15.5% 

Family or local history 285 14.0% 

To study 235 11.5% 

Audio books 199 9.8% 

Get help using a computer 168 8.2% 

Use online databases 153 7.5% 

Use meeting rooms 150 7.4% 

Page 402



 
 

  Number Percent 

To look for jobs 142 7.0% 

Other 133 6.5% 

Torquay Local Studies Library 129 6.3% 

Use WIFI 106 5.2% 

 
Frequent responses in the other category included: childrens activities (49), to use 
the café or coffee mornings (18) and part of a library “friends” group (14). 
 
Q5) Do you take part in any of the following groups? 

 

  Number Percent 

Library “Friends” group 293 14.4% 

Activities for the under 5 years 242 11.9% 

Reader groups 118 5.8% 

Local history group 82 4.0% 

Prime Time Club for Older Adults 40 2.0% 

Poetry for Pleasure 38 1.9% 

The Red Fox Club 17 0.8% 

Book Club for the blind and visually impaired 11 0.5% 

 
 
Q6) When do you prefer to visit the library? 
 

All respondents: 

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 49.7% 37.6% 14.3% 

Tuesday 46.7% 31.1% 12.6% 

Wednesday 46.6% 31.8% 12.9% 

Thursday 45.7% 33.6% 13.7% 

Friday 45.6% 34.6% 13.9% 

Saturday 47.0% 27.1% 

 

  

Page 403



 
 

Respondents who use Brixham Library the most:  

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 57.6% 40.2% 12.8% 

Tuesday 54.4% 38.4% 14.8% 

Wednesday 55.0% 29.8% 12.0% 

Thursday 52.2% 38.2% 12.2% 

Friday 56.6% 29.8% 14.6% 

Saturday 60.8% 24.4% 

 

Percentages calculated as a proportion of those respondents who named Brixham as the 

library they used the most. 

Respondents who use Churston Library the most: 

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 52.4% 40.6% 12.7% 

Tuesday 53.4% 33.9% 12.0% 

Wednesday 48.6% 29.9% 10.2% 

Thursday 52.1% 43.9% 18.0% 

Friday 46.6% 41.6% 11.0% 

Saturday 43.9% 22.2% 

 

Percentages calculated as a proportion of those respondents who named Churston as the 

library they used the most. 

Respondents who use Paignton Library the most: 

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 44.9% 33.8% 11.8% 

Tuesday 39.2% 32.5% 11.1% 

Wednesday 38.9% 32.8% 8.6% 

Thursday 42.4% 35.4% 13.1% 

Friday 40.8% 33.1% 8.6% 

Saturday 51.9% 30.6% 

 

Percentages calculated as a proportion of those respondents who named Paignton as the 

library they used the most. 

  

Page 404



 
 

Respondents who use Torquay Library the most: 

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 51.6% 40.7% 20.4% 

Tuesday 44.8% 26.8% 14.1% 

Wednesday 48.0% 38.2% 19.6% 

Thursday 44.1% 26.3% 14.9% 

Friday 45.9% 37.9% 19.9% 

Saturday 45.1% 35.6% 

 

Percentages calculated as a proportion of those respondents who named Torquay as the 

library they used the most. 

Respondents who use the Mobile Library the most: 

  09:30 – 13:00 13:00 – 17:00 17:00 - 18:00 

Monday 24.8% 18.6% 1.8% 

Tuesday 27.4% 16.8% 1.8% 

Wednesday 21.2% 14.2% 0.9% 

Thursday 24.8% 22.1% 1.8% 

Friday 15.9% 20.4% 2.7% 

Saturday 4.4% 3.5% 

 

Percentages calculated as a proportion of those respondents who named the Mobile Library 

as the library they used the most. 

Q7) What time of day are you least likely to want to use the library? 
 

  
All 

respondents 
Brixham Churston Paignton Torquay Mobile 

09:30 – 10:30 29.4% 25.8% 33.9% 32.8% 32.4% 30.1% 

10:30 – 11:30 11.7% 11.4% 12.5% 13.4% 12.6% 11.5% 

11:30 – 12:30 9.8% 12.4% 10.2% 11.1% 8.8% 6.2% 

12:30 – 13:30 14.3% 15.2% 18.0% 15.3% 13.1% 14.2% 

13:30 – 14:30 14.0% 16.6% 15.2% 15.6% 12.9% 12.4% 

14:30 – 15:30 12.3% 16.4% 10.0% 14.6% 11.1% 12.4% 

15:30 – 16:30 17.8% 23.6% 16.0% 19.4% 16.0% 18.6% 

16:30 – 17:30 31.8% 35.6% 32.2% 37.3% 29.9% 36.3% 

17:30 – 18:00 53.6% 58.4% 56.1% 57.6% 51.3% 70.8% 

 

  

Page 405



 
 

Proposals for Library Services 

Q8) For the library in Brixham would you support any of the following options? 
 

 Yes No No answer 

  Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

A reduction in opening hours 418 20.5% 755 37.0% 865 42.4% 

Partnership delivery of service 
e.g. volunteers / community 
run library / community 
interest company 

558 27.4% 479 23.5% 1,001 49.1% 

Re-development of library site 
e.g. to permit other usage 

329 16.1% 700 34.3% 1,009 49.5% 

Multi-use of library site e.g. 
additional services also 
provided from the library site 

940 46.1% 225 11.0% 873 42.8% 

Close the library 43 2.1% 1,121 55.0% 874 42.9% 

 
Q9) If you do not support any of the options for Brixham Library please tell us 
why. 

 

Theme 
Comments made by respondents who did not support one or more 

of the options for Brixham Library. 

Don’t close the 
library 
(190) 

“Closure must be the very very last resort, because once they go, 
they will never return. All other options must be duly considered 
first.” 

“For the people of Brixham it would be a great loss.” 

“DO NOT CLOSE. It is a valuable community resource - about the 
only one left.” 

Community 
asset / hub 

(176) 

“Libraries are a very important community resource a life line to 
many older and vulnerable people and should be preserved at all 
costs.” 

“Library is part of our community and is an asset which we cannot 
lose.” 

“The library is more than a collection of books. It is and always has been 
the hub of the community. By all means add other services if you need to, 
but closure is NOT an option.” 
 

Opening hours 
(95) 

“A library is in my opinion such a valuable part of a community. 
Opening of the library has been cut enough already.” 

“Recent opening hours reduction have curbed access- further cuts 
may reduce footfall.” 

Page 406



 
 

 
Partnership 

delivery / 
volunteers 

(55) 
 

“I rely on specialist help - you will not get this from volunteers. Do 
not put volunteers in libraries - what happens when they don’t turn 
up? Volunteers are ok for small libraries but not for Brixham, 
Paignton or Torquay.” 

“The library is far too important to consider closing and the help 
given in the library needs to be of a high standard which might not 
be possible if it is run by volunteers.” 

Children’s / 
family 

resource 
(53) 

“I visit the library with my children and it is difficult since the 
reduction in hours last year. We cannot take another cut in hours. I 
rely on their books to help my children with reading and 
development we need the library to help with education and 
support.” 

“It is important to have libraries in town. It encourages children to 
read a variety of books and provides a quiet place for students to 
study.” 

Multi-use 
(45) 

“Brixham already multi-use & further sub-letting would restrict book 
areas.” 

“Brixham Library is already used for connections and can't support 
additional services without impacting on the service provided.” 

Educational / 
cultural 

resource 
(41) 

“Library facilities are an essential cultural asset that must not be 
allowed to close.” 

“Because libraries are very important to the whole community and 
reading should be encouraged if we want a literate and well-
educated society.” 

Older people 
(28) 

“An important meeting/social place particularly for the elderly, 
somewhere warm and safe and a good all round information centre.” 

“Accessible local service essential for children’s and elderly 
resident’s` use”. 

Re-
development 

(23) 

“Closing the library is not a reasonable option and it is not big 
enough to redevelop or to consider multi-use.” 

“I am against closure/redevelopment as it provides an invaluable 
service to the community.  Access to books and computers are one 
of the most valuable services you supply.” 

 

  

Page 407



 
 

Q10) For the library in Churston would you support any of the following 
options? 
 

 Yes No No answer 

  Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

A reduction in opening hours 475 23.3% 597 29.3% 966 47.4% 

Partnership delivery of service 
e.g. volunteers / community run 
library / community interest 
company 

562 27.6% 401 19.7% 1,075 52.7% 

Re-development of library site 
e.g. to permit other usage 

361 17.7% 586 28.8% 1,091 53.5% 

Multi-use of library site e.g. 
additional services also 
provided from the library site 

861 42.2% 206 10.1% 971 47.6% 

Close the library 173 8.5% 936 45.9% 929 45.6% 

 
Q11) If you do not support any of the options for Churston Library please tell 
us why. 

 

Theme 
Comments made by respondents who did not support one or more 

of the options for Churston Library. 

Community 
asset / hub 

(112) 

“Library is v important community service and is always busy when 
we come here - should not be closed down. Staff are excellent. 
Service is very valuable to both children and elderly in local area. 
Accessible on foot by lots of people.” 

“The library service is too good to lose and is part of the local 
community. It serves all age groups and is a great asset to Torbay.” 

“I feel that the library is a community hub and should not be 
interfered with”. 

Don’t close the 
library 

(92) 

“Churston is well supported by its local community therefore its 
closure would be wrong.” 

“Invaluable resource - used extensively closure is not an option to be 
considered.” 

Parking / 
Accessibility 

(49) 

A lovely little library for local users, with some car parking for those 
visiting from outside the area.  For those living in the area, closing 
the library would mean a long and, for some, difficult trip to find 
another library to use. 

“Churston library is the only one to have its own car park (and free) - 
invaluable for people with small children and elderly/disabled 
people.” 

Page 408



 
 

Children’s / 
family 

resource 
(42) 

“For the children the activities are brilliant as on a small scale and 
the children are known to the staff as we go regularly so they feel 
important and want to share their reading experiences.” 

“If reducing hours saved money and kept the library open, I would 
volunteer. Libraries are too important for our children to close and for 
my older parents.” 

Older people 
(40) 

“Churston is vital part of local community, vital for local residents & 
elderly.” 

“Many elderly residents live in the Churston area. The library is a 
source of social contact for them.” 

Opening hours 
(38) 

“The opening hours are already at the minimum requirement.” 

“The library needs to keep open for as many hours as possible so 
that working people or people in education can also use the 
facilities.” 

Partnership 
delivery / 

volunteers 
(33) 

“Libraries should be run by trained professional staff.” 

“Volunteers would not have the same commitment as the staff.” 

Re-
development 

(18) 

“If the site were redeveloped that would be the end of the library.” 

“Wouldn't support closure or redevelopment of the site as it would 
take away resources from the local community.” 

Cut / close 
Churston 
Library 

(16) 

“Churston is probably the best to cut as without it people in the bay 
still aren’t that far from a library.” 

“If the costs savings are sufficient, then closure would enable the 
larger libraries to survive with all their extra reference facilities. 
Retired people have access to public transport to Paignton.” 

Multi-use 
(13) 

“Because you have already cut back the opening hours and the site 
is too small for mixed usage. Please leave Churston alone.” 

“It is not large enough to have other services too.” 

Leave it as it is 
(13) 

“The library should be left as it is.” 

“Churston is an excellent library run by excellent staff. It would be a 
shame to change it or close it.” 

 

  

Page 409



 
 

Q12) For the library in Paignton would you support any of the following 
options? 
 

 Yes No No answer 

  Number Percent Number Percent Number  Percent 

A reduction in opening hours 406 19.9% 731 35.9% 901 44.2% 

Partnership delivery of service 
e.g. volunteers / community run 
library / community interest 
company 

594 29.1% 442 21.7% 1,002 49.2% 

Re-development of library site 
e.g. to permit other usage 

374 18.4% 624 30.6% 1,040 51.0% 

Multi-use of library site e.g. 
additional services also provided 
from the library site 

940 46.1% 197 9.7% 901 44.2% 

Close the library 30 1.5% 1,102 54.1% 906 44.5% 

 
Q13) If you do not support any of the options for Paignton Library please tell 
us why. 

 

Theme 
Comments made by respondents who did not support one or more 

of the options for Paignton Library. 

Community 
asset / hub 

(107) 

“Libraries are extremely important to the community.” 

“It’s an essential amenity for all ages - when opened there was a 
public need and I don’t think that has changed.” 

“The library acts as a hub for the local community & it is paramount 
that this venue continues to be supported & accessible.” 

 

Recently 
opened 

(72) 

“Sad to waste money spent on such a recent investment.” 

“So much money was spent on that library; I can't justify any 
changes or losing it.” 

Don’t close the 
library 

(69) 

“I would not support the closure of the library.” 

“Paignton is a fabulous library and should NOT be closed for any 
reason at all.” 

Multi-use 
(39) 

“Paignton has multi functions already.” 

“Paignton library already provides a home for other community 
services and is a valuable resource.” 

Page 410



 
 

Opening hours 
(37) 

“Library is a valuable community resource and should be accessible 
to all at various times of the day; reduction in staff hours seems 
extreme.” 

“To reduce the hours means less access for the public and 
ultimately less usage.” 

Leave it as it is 
(13) 

“Paignton library is needed as it is, with all its staff and resources, no 
cuts!” 

“Paignton library is a valuable service to the community and should 
left as it is.” 

Partnership 
delivery / 

volunteers 
(26) 

“Properly qualified and paid librarians are needed not cheap 
volunteers.” 

“Paignton really needs a library and such a large one cannot be 
managed by volunteers.” 

Children’s / 
family 

resource 
(25) 

“Used by family, daughter, son and family extensively increasing as 
family grow library should be developed as key resources and 
community resource centre.” 

“It is a vital lifeline for many especially older/elderly folk and 
children.” 

Educational / 
cultural 

resource 
(20) 

“Excellent learning resource for children and adults.” 

“Reading is learning – invaluable for education.” 

 

Q14) For the library in Torquay would you support any of the following 

options? 

 

 Yes No No answer 

  Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

A reduction in opening hours 399 19.6% 789 38.7% 850 41.7% 

Partnership delivery of service 
e.g. volunteers / community run 
library / community interest 
company 

586 28.8% 485 23.8% 967 47.4% 

Re-development of library site 
e.g. to permit other usage 

392 19.2% 664 32.6% 982 48.2% 

Multi-use of library site e.g. 
additional services also provided 
from the library site 

929 45.6% 251 12.3% 858 42.1% 

Close the library 31 1.5% 1,143 56.1% 864 42.4% 

 
  

Page 411



 
 

Q15) If you do not support any of the options for Torquay Library please tell us 
why. 

 

Theme 
Comments made by respondents who did not support one or more 

of the options for Torquay Library. 

Community 
asset / hub 

(113) 

“The library is a vital part of the local community and needs to be 
available to the public without the need to travel further.” 

“The library is a vital part of our community and I (we) c/o don’t want 
any reductions in any of its services.” 

“Torquay library is an important facility which offers a varies amount of 
facilities to people who could struggle without them i.e. computers, use of 
meeting rooms.” 

Don’t close the 
library 

(70) 

“Wouldn't support closure or redevelopment of the site as it would 
take away resources from the local community.” 

“Torquay Library should not be closed - how can a town like Torquay 
not have a Library - however, multi-use should be a viable option.” 

Opening hours 
(40) 

“The library is vital for Torquay, it is well supported, it should not 
have its opening hours reduced - many working people can only use 
it evenings.” 

“The library offers services to the young and old in the community. 
As a working person, I sometimes find it difficult to get to the library 
during the week and reducing hours (again) would make that more 
of a problem for me.” 

Leave it as it is 
(30) 

“Generally, I know it's all very difficult but you really must leave the 
libraries alone. To damage our libraries is to damage our cultural 
scene.” 

“I think you should leave Torquay library as it is.” 

Service 
provided / staff 

(25) 

“The staff are really helpful; please don't get rid of them. I love going 
to the library, please don't close it.” 

“The library offers very good service in all departments and the staff 
are always helpful and polite.” 

Children’s / 
family 

resource 
(24) 

“Because the support libraries provide makes a big difference to the 
progress of children's reading and writing, especially those from 
disadvantaged families.” 

“The library is valuable in promoting children's literacy and it runs 
lots of free activities for families, which are all very well attended.” 

Partnership 
delivery / 

volunteers 
(20) 

“Volunteers not always available or reliable.” 

“The library should be run by professionals, not volunteers who are 
not reliable and poor knowledge.” 

Page 412



 
 

Computers / 
Internet 

(14) 

“Torquay library is an important facility which offers a varies amount 
of facilities to people who could struggle without them i.e. 
computers.” 

“The library service is a life line for many people…a great number of 
the residents of Torbay only have access to computers and books 
via the library.” 

Educational / 
cultural 

resource 
(12) 

“A Library is a precious facility providing a wealth of opportunities for 
learning and development and should be available to all as an 
investment in every ones future.” 

“Libraries are very important for education and leisure and should 
remain open with no cuts to hours or services.” 

 

Q16) For the mobile library would you support any of the following options? 

 

 Yes No No answer 

  Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

A reduction in opening hours 372 18.3% 662 32.5% 1,004 49.3% 

Partnership delivery of service e.g. 
volunteers / community run library / 
community interest company 

613 30.1% 378 18.5% 1,047 51.4% 

Multi-use of library site e.g. 
additional services also provided 
from the library site 

805 39.5% 243 11.9% 990 48.6% 

Close the library 144 7.1% 945 46.4% 949 46.6% 

 
Q17) If you do not support any of the options for the mobile library please tell 
us why. 

 

Theme 
Comments made by respondents who did not support one or more 

of the options for the mobile library. 

Vital service 
for people 

unable to visit 
static libraries 

(145) 

“As my husband and I are both in our 80s we would find it difficult to 
get to the main library regularly, so we'd like to keep the mobile 
library running.” 

“The mobile library is a cohesive community facility that provides 
access to library facilities to those who are unable to access the 
static library service”.  

 “I believe the mobile library provides a vital lifeline to outlying areas 
and to those members of 'our' society who do not have transport, 
access to transport or who are unable to travel for other reasons.” 

 

Page 413



 
 

Older people 
(49) 

“A free outreach service meeting the need of elderly and vulnerable 
out in the community.” 

“The mobile library is a real lifeline to the elderly and those without 
transport.  Most of the people who use this service would be unable 
to carry heavy books using public transport. It is also a meeting 
place for local people. Please do not abolish this service.” 

Don’t close the 
library 

(44) 

“Do not close the library as it is the only easy access to the library 
facilities for those without transport and for those with physical 
difficulties in getting to a main library.” 

“I would not want the mobile library to close, but could understand if 
it is reduced to every other week.” 

Partnership 
delivery / 

volunteers 
(17) 

“All Libraries need experienced professional staff.” 

“A professional experienced person is essential.” 

Leave it as it is 
(17) 

“I think the mobile library should be left as it is as it performs a 
specific role.” 

“Once again it is a wonderful service so would not like to see it 
changed.” 

Meeting place / 
social 
(15) 

“This is the only physical contact many communities have with the 
rest of the area. It is their focal point for meeting like minded people 
to discuss books etc. It is a vital service to the community.” 

“The Mobile Library is excellent at making contact with isolated 
people.” 

 

Q18) If you have any other suggestions about possible ways to save money or 
generate income for library services please tell us. 
 

Theme Suggestions 

Membership / 
hire charges 

(53) 

“I would support an annual charge for use of library services 
something in the region of £5.” 

“Many of us, I`m sure would agree to a small charge for annual 
library usage, though I can see that this works against the 
unemployed and those on low wages. Politically not desirable. Still, 
I`d rather pay something than have the service severely reduced.” 

“Charge a very modest fee and I mean modest, for borrowing books 
etc.” 

Increase multi 
usage 
(49) 

“Introduce a retail approach to each library - hire the premises out, 
when library is closed to create multifunctional community buildings.” 

“Use the venue for night school type courses but available during the 
day. Toddler activities. Coffee shop for Churston and Torquay 
libraries. 

Page 414



 
 

Sell 
refreshments 

(44) 

“Possibility of cafe - generates income and gets people into libraries 
- possibly run by volunteers (keeps costs down).” 

“Drinks / vending machines so you can sit and read and have a 
drink” 

Charge for 
sessions / 
activities 

(42) 

“Start charging people to attend toddler groups.” 

“Establish regular talks and short courses from communities and 
organisation. Charge a small fee to attend.” 

Library shop 
(25) 

“Sell some books and DVDs.” 

“You could have a library shop of some sort e.g. book exchanges / 
DVD / music. Leaflet drop to advertise what the library does. Very 
active promotion in schools or is this already done.” 

Book 
donations 

(24) 

“Request more book donations to save buying costs?” 

“Encourage users to donate recent issue books/unwanted presents, 
and separate sponsor publications to avoid library purchases.(this 
book was donated by.....).” 

Charge for 
computer / 
WIFI use 

(24) 

“Charge everybody a pound to use the computer”. 

“If any Torbay libraries are faced with shorter open hours or staff 
cuts it is surely time to charge for computer usage, even 50p per 
hour would generate an income (ticket holders included).” 

Make savings 
elsewhere 

(20) 

“Life is not just about money but I would support putting Council Tax 
up if it meant leaving the libraries alone.” 

“Cut other services, cut non-vital services, libraries are vital.” 

Charge more 
for meeting 

rooms 
(18) 

“Charge more for the meeting rooms in Paignton.” 

“Try to rent out the rooms a bit more especially the smart new ones 
in Paignton - charging people access public insurance puts them off 
renting.” 

Use volunteers 
(18) 

“Try to enlist the help of more volunteers maybe.” 

“It might be possible to have a partnership of volunteers etc.” 

Reduce 
opening hours 

(16) 

“Overall, I suppose a reduction in opening hours might be 
acceptable.” 

“As a last resort reduce opening hours am/pm.” 

Close 
Churston 
Library 

(15) 

“I would just like to emphasise that the most sensible and economic 
proposal is to close Churston library as there are two suitable 
alternatives - Paignton and Brixham libraries within a reasonable 
distance from Churston.” 

“Perhaps selling off Churston library as it’s a valuable site and you 
would still have the library in the town centres.”  

 

  

Page 415



 
 

Respondent Profile 

 
Q19) Gender 

  Number Percent 

Male 710 34.8% 

Female 1,237 60.7% 

No response 91 4.5% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 
 
Q20) Age 

  Number Percent 

0 – 15 62 3.0% 

16 – 24 49 2.4% 

25 – 34 117 5.7% 

35 – 44 214 10.5% 

45 – 54 232 11.4% 

55 – 64 410 20.1% 

65 – 74  545 26.7% 

75+ 377 18.5% 

No response 32 1.6% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 
  

Page 416



 
 

Q21) Postcode 

   

 Number Percent 

TQ5 (Brixham) 612 30.0% 

TQ4 (Paignton)  346 17.0% 

TQ1 (Torquay) 340 16.7% 

TQ2 (Torquay) 291 14.3% 

TQ3 (Preston/Paignton) 194 9.5% 

TQ9 (Totnes) 6 0.3% 

TQ6 (Dartmouth) 5 0.2% 

EX7 (Dawlish) 2 0.1% 

TQ7 (Kingsbridge) 2 0.1% 

BA20 (Yeovil) 1 0.1% 

EX9 (Budleigh Salterton) 1 0.1% 

PL2 (Plymouth) 1 0.1% 

TA5 (Bridgwater) 1 0.1% 

TQ12 (Newton Abbot) 1 0.1% 

No response 235 11.5% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 
 
Q22) Employment status 

   

 Number Percent 

Retired 981 48.1% 

Employed part time  271 13.3% 

Employed full time 260 12.8% 

Self-employed 120 5.9% 

Full time education 78 3.8% 

Looking after the home 75 3.7% 

Unemployed 73 3.6% 

Sick / disabled 50 2.5% 

Other 26 1.3% 

Full time carer 21 1.0% 

On a gov’t supported training programme 3 0.1% 

No response 80 3.9% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 

 

Page 417



 
 

Q23) Disability – Do you consider yourself to be disabled in any way? 

 

  Number Percent 

Yes 294 14.4% 

No 1,625 79.7% 

No response 119 5.8% 

Total 2,038 100% 

 
If yes, please tell us how it affects you:  
(respondents could tick more than one box) 

 

  Number Percent 

Mobility 215 10.5% 

Hearing 73 3.6% 

Vision 58 2.8% 

Other 43 2.1% 

 
 
2. Feedback from other correspondence. 

1 petition was received from the ‘Friends of Paignton Library’ this contained 37 
signatures against the proposed reductions to the library service.  
 
29 letters/emails were also received against the proposed reductions to the library 
service.  
 

Theme Examples of comments  

Against the 
proposed 

reductions to the 
library service 

(29)  

• “I am very concerned about the proposed cuts to funding 
to this excellent library. The library has become a 
community hub for Paignton with many amenities 
offered….”  

 

• “….we would ask you to consider new ways of providing 
a library service it for the 21st century which offers more 
choice and increased activities rather then reductions 
that will ultimately make the service non-viable….” 
 

• “….I feel that it must be a very difficult position that your 
Council is in but please be fairer when making cuts to the 
library service in Torbay and think of the valuable service 
that they endeavour to provide to the public….”  
 

• “…please do not reduce the library service – the loss of 
even one librarian would be tragic”  
 

Page 418



 
 

Theme Examples of comments  

• “I am dismayed to hear of the proposed drastic cuts to 
Torbay library service. This facility is of great importance 
to our community….”   
 
 

  
 

  

Page 419



 
 

APPENDIX 2 

 

Distribution of current mobile library customers 
 

 

Page 420



 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
: 

S
p

a
ti

a
l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

 

N
a
m

e
: 

C
h
a
rl

e
s
 U

z
z
e
ll
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
: 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

S
p
a
ti
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
P

la
c
e
 &

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

):
 

C
ll
rs

 D
a
v
id

 T
h
o
m

a
s
, 
R

a
y
 H

il
l 

D
a
te

: 
6
th

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 *T
y
p
e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n
  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 

H
ig

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
1
. 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 R
o
a
d
 

(S
D
L
R
) 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

 0
 

 
1
0
1
,0
0
0
 

 
N
il 
–
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

tr
a
n
s
fe
r 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
D
L
R
. 
 S
a
v
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 i
n
 S
p
a
ti
a
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
th
e
n
 

S
D
L
R
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 &
 

V
is
it
o
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 S
a
v
in
g
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 

le
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
£
6
 

m
ill
io
n
 o
f 
p
ru
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
. 

       

X
 

 
 Agenda Item 3b

Appendix 22

Page 421



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
2
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

 
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 s
o
 f
a
r 
in
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
m
a
jo
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
e
re
 p
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
 

fi
g
u
re
 o
f 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 i
s
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
 B
u
ild
in
g
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
o
m
e
 £
3
0
,0
0
0
 

b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 b
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 u
p
lif
t 
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
ill
 f
in
d
 i
ts
 w
a
y
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 b
u
ild
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 

fe
w
 y
e
a
rs
 s
o
 s
ta
n
d
s
ti
ll 
fi
g
u
re
s
 a
re
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
. 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
in
g
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 
In
c
o
m
e
 

is
 c
o
n
s
ta
n
tl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
th
a
t 

re
c
e
ip
ts
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
n
o
t 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

le
v
e
ls
, 
in
-y
e
a
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
, 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
tc
. 

          

X
 

 
 

Page 422



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
3
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 

B
u
il
d
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

 0
 

 
4
0
,0
0
0
  

 
(£
2
5
k
 i
n
 

1
4
/1
5
 £
1
5
k
 

in
 1
5
/1
6
) 

 
N
il 
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
4
/1
5
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
u
ts
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 

fo
r 
jo
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 D
e
v
o
n
 B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 

b
e
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 v
e
ry
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 

a
re
 l
it
tl
e
 t
o
 n
o
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 

jo
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 I
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 n
o
w
, 
th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
n
o
n
-f
e
e
 

e
a
rn
in
g
 w
o
rk
 d
o
n
e
 b
y
 B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
fe
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
ri
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
  

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
. 

             

 
X
 

 

Page 423



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
4
. 
D
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
o
s
t 

 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 0
 

 
3
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
il 
 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
w
h
e
re
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
is
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
 

C
a
n
d
id
a
te
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
e
e
d
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 p
o
lic
in
g
 t
y
p
e
 

s
k
ill
s
. 
 I
t 
is
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

to
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
to
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
in
g
 t
y
p
e
 d
u
ti
e
s
 w
it
h
 

te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

m
a
tt
e
rs
 c
o
m
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
. 
 T
h
e
re
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 f
ill
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
t 
in
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 i
f 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
n
 b
e
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
lf
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
. 
 I
t 
is
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
g
ra
n
t 
m
o
n
ie
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 d
e
liv
e
r 

a
n
 H
IM
O
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
 f
ix
e
d
 

te
rm

. 
 T
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
c
a
n
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 

        

X
 

 
 

Page 424



 

 P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 A

N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 

y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

&
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

 
5
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
la
ry
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

in
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
le
s
s
 n
e
w
 

in
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

 0
 

 
1
2
6
,0
0
0
 

 
N
il 
 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 S
p
a
ti
a
l 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 a
re
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
u
ld
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 b
u
t 
s
ti
ll 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 I
t 

is
 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
a
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

re
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
a
m
in
e
d
 

th
o
ro
u
g
h
ly
 i
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 

s
a
v
in
g
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
. 
  

   

 
X
 

 

 
6
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
In
c
o
m
e
  

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 v
ia
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

  

 
9
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 
X
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

5
0
,0
0
0
 

1
5
6
,0
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

9
,0
0
0
 

1
4
1
,0
0
0
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 S
a
v
in
g
  

£
5
9
,0
0
0
 

£
2
9
7
,0
0
0
 

T
O

T
A

L
  

£
3
5
6
,0

0
0
 

 

Page 425



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
: 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  
 

 
N
a
m
e
: 

F
ra
n
c
e
s
 M
a
s
o
n
 

P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
):

 
C
ll
r 
S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

 *T
y
p
e
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
  

•
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 /

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 
M
in
o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 
  

•
 
M
a
jo
r 

- 
H

ig
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t/

in
te

re
s
t 

  
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

1
. 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
: 
4
5
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
1
6
-2
4
) 

w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 o
th
e
rw

is
e
 

b
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
5
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
1
3
5
,8
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 1
7
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
u
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 1
6
-2
4
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
. 
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
h
ild
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 1
6
 &
 1
7
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
  

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

   

 
 

X
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 23

Page 426



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 
2
. 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
1
4
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

a
n
d
 6
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 u
n
it
s
 

fo
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
n
u
a
l.
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 o
v
e
r 

2
 y
e
a
rs
  

 0
 

 0
 

 
8
7
,4
0
0
 

 
4
3
,7
0
0
 

 
N

il 
 

A
u
g
 2
0
1
4
 
•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 4
 A
u
g
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 m

a
y
 

s
ta
y
 o
n
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
.g
. 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

X
 

3
. 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 t
o
 

re
m
a
in
 s
a
fe
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 -
 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 

re
s
e
rv
e
s
 

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
1
0
5
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
. 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 

s
te
e
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
 

     

 X
 

 
 

Page 427



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

  
 

 4
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t:

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

(L
D
) 
- 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
it
h
 a
s
p
e
rg
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
a
u
ti
s
ti
c
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
. 
In
c
lu
d
e
s
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
e
a
rc
h
 w
h
ic
h
 

is
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
o
lle
g
e
. 
 

 R
e
m
o
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
re
ta
in
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
s
e
a
rc
h
 e
le
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

     

 0
 

 0
 

 
3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

 
N
il 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 •
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 L
D
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
s
p
e
rg
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
u
ti
s
m
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 J
o
b
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

P
lu
s
, 
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 c
o
lle
g
e
 w
h
o
 m

a
k
e
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

   

 
 

  X
 

Page 428



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

    5
. 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 :
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 

a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 

In
c
lu
d
e
s
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
ro
u
g
h
 

s
le
e
p
e
rs
 (
2
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
) 
A
ll 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

  R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 £
1
5
0
,0
0
0
 

    

  0
 

  0
 

  
1
5
0
,0
0
0
 

  0
 

  
N
il 

  
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
  

•
 

T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
in
g
le
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
u
ty
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

       
 

 
 

 
 

  X
 

Page 429



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 6
. 
J
a
ti
s
 x
2
  

2
5
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 m

u
s
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

T
o
rb
a
y
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

  0
 

  0
 

  
2
3
9
,8
0
0
 

  0
 

  
N
il 

  
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
lif
ic
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 X
 

 7
. 
S
o
c
ia
l 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 

fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
S
IF
S
) 
  
  
  

B
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 c
ri
s
is
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

 0
 

 0
 

 
3
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
e
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

 
 

 X
 

Page 430



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 8
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
O
S
S
) 

G
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
s
e
e
 7
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

 
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 
  

 0
 

 0
 

 
3
5
8
,7
0
0
 

 0
  

 
N
il 

 
M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 X
 

9
. 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
J
A
S
) 

 
1
0
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
n
 l
ic
e
n
c
e
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
6
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

w
h
o
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 

n
e
e
d
s
 (
e
.g
. 
p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
).

 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 M

A
P
P
A
 

d
u
ty
 t
o
 c
o
-o
p
e
ra
te
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

 
 

 X
 

Page 431



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

1
0
. 
R
e
a
c
h
in
g
 O
u
t 

S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t:
 P
ro
v
id
e
d
 

b
y
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
7
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
C
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 

p
re
-e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

m
o
s
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t.
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
4
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
 

 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
ir
e
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 
(D

P
T
) 

a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 X
 

 1
1
. 
F
o
lk
s
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

o
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 t
o
 

e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 4
8
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
9
5
,4
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

 X
 

 1
2
. 
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
: 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

  0
 

  0
 

  
3
0
5
,7
0
0
 

  0
 

  
N
il 

  
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 e
x
p
ir
e
 1
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 

 
 

  X
 

Page 432



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
c
to
r.

 
  R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
lo
n
e
lin
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

is
o
la
ti
o
n
 a
m
o
n
g
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

1
3
. 
E
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
: 
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
s
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
u
rs
in
g
 

c
a
re
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

h
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 o
n
 

s
it
e
. 
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

£
1
1
,0
0
0
 

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
1
1
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 j
o
in
tl
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
(T
S
D
C
T
).
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
S
P
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 c
o
u
ld
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

•
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

to
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

•
 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
llo
w
e
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

to
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
n
d
  
w
it
h
o
u
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 
 

 
  

 X
 

1
4
. 
L
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
3
9
,4
0
0
 

 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

 

•
 

S
ta
ff
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 b
y
 T
S
D
H
C
T
 a
n
d
 D
P
T
, 

th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
s
t 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 

 
 

 X
 

Page 433



 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 

d
e
ta
il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N
D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 (
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 

in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t-
 

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

D
a
te
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 
  

Minor 
  

Major 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

  
•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
1
5
. 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
e
d
s
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 
re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
u
t 
o
f 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
to
 

e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
. 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%

 

 0
 

 0
 

 
2
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 0
 

 
N
il 

 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
n
s
. 

•
 

S
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 m

e
a
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

 X
 

1
6
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

m
a
tc
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
  

0
 

0
 

5
3
,2
0
0
 

1
8
6
,0
0
0
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 

c
o
s
ts

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
je
c
ts
. 
 

 
X

 
 

 

S
U
B
 T
O
T
A
L
 

0
 

0
 

2
,5
4
1
,4
0
0
 

6
7
9
,7
0
0
 

T
O
T
A
L
  

£
3
,2
2
1
,1
0
0
 

 

Page 434



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
1
2
/0
8
/1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
/0
2
/1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
 

D
a
te
: 

6
/0
2
/1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 24

Page 435



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
: 
4
5
 u
n
it
s
 

o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

(1
6
-2
4
) 
w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 o
th
e
rw

is
e
 b
e
 

s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 

n
e
e
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

  A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
/ 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 

£
2
4
6
,9
5
0
 

 

 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

5
5
%
 

£
1
3
5
,7
9
5
 

 

      M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 1
7
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 D
u
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

1
6
-2
4
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
h
ild
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 1
6
 &
 1
7
 

y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
  

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 
 

X
 

Page 436



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 p
re
-e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 (
1
6
-2
4
) 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
y
 e
n
te
r 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
v
e
rt
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 r
e
-s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 m
o
v
e
 i
n
to
 m
o
re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
. 
E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
y
 i
s
 1
8
 m
o
n
th
s
 i
n
 p
ip
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
9
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 a
lt
e
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
u
tu
re
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 p
ro
v
id
e
r,
 w
it
h
 W
e
s
tc
o
u
n
tr
y
 a
n
d
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 i
n
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  

•
 
T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

•
 
T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 4
5
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
n
it
s
, 
s
p
lit
 o
v
e
r 
4
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
it
ia
lly
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

In
 t
o
ta
l 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
rs
 1
2
0
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 h
o
u
rs
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 i
n
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 (
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
d
 a
t 
1
0
 

c
lie
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
is
 E
IA
).
 

•
 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
it
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 p
ip
e
lin
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 l
o
d
g
in
g
s
. 
 

•
 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 5
5
%
. 
T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
A
 o
f 
£
1
3
5
,7
9
5
 

   O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

R
e
-n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

  

Page 437



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 o
r 
le
a
v
in
g
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 f
ro
m
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

th
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

•
 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 1
6
 &
 1
7
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
, 
 

•
 
1
6
 &
 1
7
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 c
a
re
  

•
 
1
6
-2
4
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

•
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
if
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

 C
lie
n
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
re
: 
 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
: 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

•
 
T
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r;
 s
ta
ff
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
  

•
 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
it
h
e
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
ir
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w
o
rk
 

•
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 ‘
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
’ 
u
n
d
e
r 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
0
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 A
c
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 c
a
re
. 

 

 
  S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

Page 438



 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 4
5
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

T
o
rq
u
a
y
 a
n
d
 P
a
ig
n
to
n
 i
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
, 
p
lu
s
 i
n
it
ia
l 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
re
 3
7
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
B
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 

o
n
 2
1
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
4
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 3
4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
3
6
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 d
id
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

m
e
a
n
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 a
v
o
id
e
d
. 

9
2
.3
%
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 N
E
E
T
 (
N
o
t 
in
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
) 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 E
E
T
 w
h
ils
t 
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
1
2
/1
3
).
  

T
w
o
 c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 a
n
d
 2
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 c
u
s
p
 o
f 
c
a
re
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
D
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

s
h
o
w
s
 5
 c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
. 
  

 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 d
a
ta
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
.
 W
h
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
a
c
h
 a
g
e
 1
6
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
 o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
A
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
it
s
 m
a
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 m
e
a
n
in
g
 a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 a
n
d
 

m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-2
4
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
x
 1
2
7
0
0
 (
c
e
n
s
u
s
 2
0
1
1
).
 2
1
7
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-1
7
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
 1
9
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
re
tu
rn
 h
o
m
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
a
m
ily
 m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n
 m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 L
a
te
s
t 
fi
g
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 

2
4
%
. 
T
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
t 
5
2
.2
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 1
5
-1
7
 

Page 439



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 
L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
lf
 h
a
rm
 a
re
 

w
o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 b
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 v
a
ry
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
. 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
):
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
1
2
2
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
9
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
/Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
2
7
.6
%
 (
2
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w
it
h
 1
5
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
 o
w
e
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
, 
a
n
o
th
e
r 

1
3
7
 (
1
2
.9
%
)w
e
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
3
1
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M
A
R
A
C
 

(M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
) 

 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1
s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T

o
rb

a
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0
1

3
, 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
2
4

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

, 
w

w
w

.h
e

a
lt
h

p
ro

fi
le

s
.i
n
fo

  

Page 440



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

Page 441



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

Page 442



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 

c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 8
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 5
5
%
 w
ill
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t.
 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
b
le
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
ill
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 i
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 l
if
e
 s
k
ill
s
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
th
e
re
. 

M
a
n
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
-o
n
e
 e
ls
e
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 t
o
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 b
y
 4
 o
f 
th
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
, 
w
h
o
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
s
ti
ll 
b
e
 a
liv
e
 i
f 
it
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
M
a
n
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 f
in
d
 i
t 
m
o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 g
a
in
 t
h
e
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 w
ill
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
ts
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 

in
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 u
s
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
, 
h
ig
h
e
r 
c
o
s
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 i
ts
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
s
ta
ff
, 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
f 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
n
t 
to
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

th
a
t 
is
 s
a
fe
, 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 v
e
ry
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
: 
N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
re
m
a
in
in
g
 4
6
%
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
p
o
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 
 

 

 

Page 443



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 m
e
e
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 

 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 m
a
y
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 w
h
ils
t 
lo
n
g
e
r 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

s
o
u
rc
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

te
a
m
. 

9
4
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
 t
o
 

1
8
 (
o
n
ly
 h
a
v
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
1
8
 o
u
t 
o
f 
3
7
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
lie
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 b
e
lo
w
 

s
ta
ts
) 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 c
a
re
rs
 u
s
in
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
a
b
le
. 
N
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 c
lie
n
t 
re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
s
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 u
s
in
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
ild
re
n
. 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 
 

 
N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
. 

 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
 

8
9
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

in
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
  

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
 

Page 444



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fr
o
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 

re
c
o
rd
 d
a
ta
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

  
S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 

k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 c
h
ild
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
- 
L
a
te
s
t 

fi
g
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

in
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
a
 l
o
w
 

in
c
o
m
e
) 
to
 l
iv
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 

g
a
in
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

  

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 

o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
lf
 h
a
rm
 a
re
 w
o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

Page 445



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 v
a
ry
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 a
n
d
 g
a
in
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
it
s
 w
ill
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
 t
o
 2
4
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
u
ty
. 
T
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 5
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 m
it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
  

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  N
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 a
d
d
 t
o
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

  

 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
 a
b
o
v
e
: 

•
 
9
4
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
 t
o
 1
8
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

•
 
8
9
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
. 
 F
e
m
a
le
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

•
 

In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

Page 446



 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
  
p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 

 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
 b
e
lo
w
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

 O
th
e
r 
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 

•
 
A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m
a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
h
ild
re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
u
n
d
e
r 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
0
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 A
c
t 
- 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
o
 

s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 -
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 r
is
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
o
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 
th
is
 w
ill
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
 

 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 •
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 i
n
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 N
e
e
d
 b
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 I
n
it
ia
l 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 i
f 
th
e
y
 a
re
 ‘
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
’ 
 

•
 
W
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

   

Page 447



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 

X
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 (
o
v
e
r 
1
8
’s
),
 

th
e
y
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 

S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 i
f 
a
n
y
 1
6
 –
 1
7
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
. 
 

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 

g
iv
e
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 n
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 o
n
e
 o
ff
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 

o
f 
£
7
4
,7
0
0
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

Page 448



 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 
T
h
is
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
n
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

    A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
Y
P
A
S
)-
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
5
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 8
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
u
tu
re
s
, 
w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
u
b
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 t
o
 W
e
s
tw
a
rd
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 

G
u
e
s
th
o
u
s
e
. 
 

 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

 “T
h
e
 5
5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 c
re
a
te
 r
is
k
s
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
ill
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 w
h
ils
t 
d
e
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
” 

 T
h
is
 i
s
 i
llu
s
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r,
 

th
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 e
tc
. 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
lie
fs
 

•
 
A
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

•
 
S
k
ill
s
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

Page 449



 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

•
 
V
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

•
 
B
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

 T
w
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 Y
P
A
S
. 
 T
h
e
y
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 

th
e
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 o
f 

s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
S
o
m
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 

lif
e
 s
k
ill
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 h
a
d
 g
ro
w
n
. 
F
o
u
r 
o
u
t 

o
f 
e
ig
h
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 s
ti
ll 
a
liv
e
 i
f 
it
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 O
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
n
o
w
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
o
ru
m
 o
f 
a
 

S
o
u
th
 W
e
s
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
d
it
o
ri
a
l 
p
a
n
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r.
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
  

“W
h
e
n
 I
 f
ir
s
t 
m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
 I
 w
a
s
 d
e
p
re
s
s
e
d
, 
p
re
g
n
a
n
t,
 s
e
lf
 h
a
rm
in
g
. 
I 
h
a
d
 n
o
 

fa
m
ily
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
. 
I 
h
a
d
 n
o
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
te
d
 m
y
s
e
lf
. 
I 
jo
in
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
s
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
d
 t
h
in
g
s
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
o
.”
 

 “T
e
a
c
h
in
g
 m
e
 h
o
w
 t
o
 s
u
rv
iv
e
 o
n
 m
y
 o
w
n
” 

 “I
f 
th
is
 w
o
u
ld
 d
im
in
is
h
 I
 c
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 m
a
n
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 m
y
s
e
lf
 

w
a
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 l
if
e
 a
w
a
y
 w
h
ile
 b
e
in
g
 m
is
e
ra
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 

m
e
a
n
in
g
le
s
s
 e
x
is
te
n
c
e
.”
 

 “A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
o
u
s
e
d
 i
t 
is
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 I
 g
e
t 
th
a
t 
g
iv
e
s
 m
e
 a
 

g
re
a
te
r 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
lif
e
 l
a
te
r 
o
n
” 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

“T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 w
ill
 a
lm
o
s
t 
c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
o
s
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 u
s
e
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
, 
h
ig
h
 c
o
s
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”

 

Page 450



 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“W
e
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 v
ie
w
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
s
ta
ff
, 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
la
ri
fy
 w
h
a
t 
s
o
rt
 o
f 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 m
a
n
y
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
b
e
fo
re
 w
e
 c
a
n
 m
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
.”

 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g

 

“W
e
 w
a
n
t 
to
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 s
a
fe
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 t
w
o
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
W
e
 

w
a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
h
a
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
.”

 

 

Page 451



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
2
0

th
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 w

h
ile

 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w

ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo

w
 C

o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m

a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
F
ra
n
 M
a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 25

Page 452



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 In
te
g
ra
te
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
: 
  
(a
ls
o
 

k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 S
to
n
e
 C
o
u
rt
) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
1
4
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 6
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
n
u
a
l.
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 o
v
e
r 
2
 y
e
a
rs
  

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 
£
1
2
6
,5
8
0
 

 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 

8
4
,3
8
7
  

E
q
u
a
te
s
 t
o
 

8
 m

o
n
th
s
 

s
a
v
in
g
 

 
A
u
g
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 4
 A
u
g
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 

m
a
y
 s
ta
y
 o
n
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
.g
. 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

x
 

Page 453



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 
•
 

T
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
S
to
n
e
 C

o
u
rt
) 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 1
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 1
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
m
 f
ro
m
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 

m
o
v
e
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 b
y
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 o
n
-s
it
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 b
e
fo
re
 m

o
v
in
g
 o
n
to
 

liv
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
  

•
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 6
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
ill
 e
n
d
 a
lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 e
le
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 

m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
 p
o
rt
fo
lio

 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
n
d
. 
  

•
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
4
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
2
 y
e
a
rs
. 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
c
u
ri
n
g
 a
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4
. 
In
it
ia
l 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
  

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
ily
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
£
1
2
6
,5
8
0
 (
in
it
ia
l 
p
a
rt
 y
e
a
r 

e
ff
e
c
t 
- 
8
 m

o
n
th
s
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 =
 £
8
4
,3
8
7
) 
 

  
2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

  T
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 1
4
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
t 
a
n
y
 o
n
e
 t
im

e
 a
n
d
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
4
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
t 
a
n
y
 o
n
e
 t
im

e
. 
A
ll 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
re
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
a
re
 m

o
v
in
g
 o
n
 

fr
o
m
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
E
a
c
h
 f
a
m
ily
 c
a
n
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
a
 m

a
x
im

u
m
 

o
f 
9
 m

o
n
th
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
9
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

o
rk
in
g
 w

it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
t 
a
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 l
e
v
e
l 
(i
.e
. 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 o
n
 c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 C

o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 p
la
n
s
).
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 a
d
h
e
re
 t
o
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
. 
 

Page 454



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 H

u
b
 E
n
q
u
ir
y
 F
o
rm

 (
S
H
E
F
) 
w
h
ic
h
 m

e
a
n
s
 e
a
c
h
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
is
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v
ia
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
n
e
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T
h
is
 m

e
a
n
s
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
h
a
re
d
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 m

o
s
t 
in
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
. 
 

 K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
re
: 

 

•
 

F
a
m
ily
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 C

e
n
tr
e
s
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 V
is
it
o
rs
 

•
 

M
id
w
iv
e
s
  

•
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r;
 s
ta
ff
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

a
y
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
. 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 &
 o
th
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 U

s
e
rs
  

•
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O

u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
  
b
y
 1
0
0
%
, 
s
e
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 E
IA
) 

 
 

 

Page 455



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m

o
ra
l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim

in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w

e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D

u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 1
6
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 (
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 d
a
te
 o
f 
7
/8
/1
2
) 

 1
8
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 (
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 d
a
te
 o
f 
7
/8
/1
2
) 
o
f 
w
h
o
m
 9
4
%
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 m

o
v
e
d
 

o
n
 t
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
, 
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
, 
o
r 
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
in
g
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
lie

n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
):
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
1
2
2
 w

e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
9
 w

e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
/Y
o
u
th
 O

ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
2
7
.6
%
 (
2
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w

it
h
 1
5
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
 o
w
e
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
, 
a
n
o
th
e
r 

1
3
7
 (
1
2
.9
%
)w

e
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
3
1
 w

e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M

A
R
A
C
 

(M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 R

is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
) 

 L
a
te
s
t 
fi
g
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 

2
4
%
. 
T
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
t 
5
2
.2
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 1
5
-1
7
 

y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 
L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
m
o
k
in
g
 i
n
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
, 
b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
, 
a
d
u
lt
 o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm

 a
re
 w

o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
. 1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 b
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 v
a
ry
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 o
n
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
.  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T

o
rb

a
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0
1

3
, 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
2
4

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

, 
w

w
w

.h
e

a
lt
h

p
ro

fi
le

s
.i
n
fo

  

Page 456



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 
4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w

e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin

e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 S
P
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w

a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im

e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w

ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie

n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w

a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie

n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 w

e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

e
re
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo

w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w

e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w

h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie

n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w

e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie

n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie

n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie

n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 

Page 457



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w

it
h
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w

a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w

e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w

e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w

e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie

n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie

n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w

e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w

e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D

e
v
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C

a
re
 N

H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C

o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

S
o
u
th
 D

e
v
o
n
 C

lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
o
lic
e
 

Page 458



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im

e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN

D
 a
n
d
 M

e
n
c
a
p
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie

n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 
5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

T
h
e
re
 w

e
re
 4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w

h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie

n
ts
 

w
h
e
re
 6
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
li
e
n
ts
 

 It
 w

a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
e
lp
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 w

a
y
s
: 

 • 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 

• 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

• 
P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

• 
B
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
/d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 d
e
b
t 

• 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

Page 459



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w

e
re
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w

ill
 c
re
a
te
 a
 r
is
k
 t
o
 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
w
h
o
s
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 c
o
u
ld
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 m

is
s
e
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
k
ill
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
 i
t 
w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 l
ik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
  

“T
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
's
 c
lo
s
u
re
 w

o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 l
iv
e
s
 w

h
o
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
rg
in
a
lis
e
d
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 f
e
a
re
d
 b
y
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild

re
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 v
e
ry
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s
, 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 u
n
s
a
fe
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
.”
 

 It
 i
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 c
u
ts
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w

o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 t
o
o
 h
ig
h
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
fa
ilu

re
 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
 u
n
v
ia
b
le
. 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
: 
N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
u
s
e
 t
o
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 
 

 
 

Page 460



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

 
 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
A
ll 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 
 

 
N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 
 

6
8
%
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w

e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
. 
 

C
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

d
e
tr
im

e
n
ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
w
h
o
m
 a
re
 s
in
g
le
 

m
o
th
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 a
v
o
id
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
ie
s
. 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

 
R
a
te
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 

 

Page 461



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
.1
 

T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 h
e
lp
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
 

th
e
 c
y
c
le
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 

k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt
y
- 
L
a
te
s
t 

fi
g
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 (
m
o
s
tl
y
 o
f 
a
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
) 
to
 

liv
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 g
a
in
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 f
a
m
ily
 

b
re
a
k
-u
p
, 
a
n
d
 a
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
n
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
a
ll 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h
ig
h
e
r 
c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 a
re
: 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
£
3
3
6
 a
 w
e
e
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
In
d
ic
a
to
rs
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 

s
m
o
k
in
g
 i
n
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
, 

b
re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in
g
, 
a
d
u
lt
 o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm

 
a
re
 w

o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

 

Page 462



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

fa
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
. 

T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
.  

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 S
P
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 w

ill
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 

  

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
 a
b
o
v
e
: 

•
 

A
ll 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 

d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

•
 

6
8
%
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w

e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 f
e
m
a
le
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

•
 

In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
  
p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 w
e
lf
a
re
 

Page 463



 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
.  

 
It
 w

ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

in
im

is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 
W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
 b
e
lo
w
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 

 
O
th
e
r 
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
: 

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c
h
ild

re
n
 o
n
 c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
  
in
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
ti
m
e
 o
n
 C

h
ild

 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r.
  
 -
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
lie

n
ts
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m
ili
e
s
. 

 •
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 -

th
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
lie

n
ts
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 r
is
k
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

h
o
 p
la
n
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
 p
o
rt
fo
lio

 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 
th
is
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 w

h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 v
is
it
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
lie

n
ts
 -
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
lie

n
ts
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

m
e
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 v
is
it
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
C
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
  

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
 f
o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
y
p
e
 

Page 464



 

o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
/a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
w
a
it
in
g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
  

 

  S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
X
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 

Page 465



 

g
iv
e
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
is
 n
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 o
n
e
 o
ff
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 

o
f 
£
7
8
,7
0
0
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w

ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 
T
h
is
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
.  

 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

     A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
a
ls
o
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 S
to
n
e
 C
o
u
rt
) 
- 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w

e
re
 4
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w

h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie

n
ts
 w

h
e
re
 6
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
u
tu
re
s
. 

 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

T
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 w

h
ic
h
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w
e
llb

e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
lie

n
ts
.T
h
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w

h
ic
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 e
tc
. 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

Page 466



 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

•
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

•
 

B
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
/d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 d
e
b
t 

•
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 O
n
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w

a
s
 h
e
ld
 w

it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
In
 t
h
e
ir
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
o
w
e
ri
n
g
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
k
e
e
p
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r.
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 h
ig
h
lig

h
te
d
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
lle

g
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
, 
c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
 a
ls
o
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w

it
h
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
. 

 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
  

“S
to
n
e
 C

o
u
rt
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 w

h
o
 i
n
s
ti
l 
s
e
lf
 

w
o
rt
h
, 
d
e
te
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 t
o
 v
e
ry
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
.”
 

 “
S
to
n
e
 C

o
u
rt
 w

o
rk
 c
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 a
 v
e
ry
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
m
a
n
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
ft
e
n
 a
re
 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
m
e
d
iu
m
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
t 
ti
m
e
s
 o
f 
g
re
a
t 
s
tr
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
a
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
.”
  

 “O
u
r 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 a
 c
h
ild

 m
a
y
 b
e
 m

is
s
e
d
 i
f 
w
e
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

p
ic
k
 u
p
 o
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
.”
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

 

“T
h
e
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
ill
 c
re
a
te
 a
 r
is
k
 t
o
 c
h
ild

re
n
, 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
ik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
  

“T
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
's
 c
lo
s
u
re
 w

o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 m

a
jo
r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 

liv
e
s
 w

h
o
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m

a
rg
in
a
lis
e
d
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 f
e
a
re
d
 

b
y
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild

re
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 v
e
ry
 d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s
, 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 u
n
s
a
fe
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
.”
 

Page 467



 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

“T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 w

ill
 a
lm

o
s
t 
c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
o
s
ts
 

in
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
s
 c
lie

n
ts
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 u
s
e
 m

o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
, 
h
ig
h
 c
o
s
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“W
e
 w

ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 v
ie
w
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
lie

n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
, 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
W
e
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
ry
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

it
h
 u
n
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 r
is
k
s
. 
W
e
 

b
e
lie

v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
o
 r
is
k
y
 a
n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
f 
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
q
u
a
lit
y
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 

to
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
h
ild

 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
, 
d
ru
g
 

a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
e
fo
re
 w

e
 c
a
n
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
.”

 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g

 

“W
e
 w

a
n
t 
to
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 s
a
fe
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 t
w
o
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie

n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 

W
e
 w

a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 w

h
a
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
.”

 

 

Page 468



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
  

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
3
0

th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 26

Page 469



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t:
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 (
L

D
) 

- 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
it

h
 a

s
p

e
rg

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
. 

In
c

lu
d

e
s

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

e
a

rc
h

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s

 a
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il,
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 C

o
lle

g
e

. 
 

 T
o

ta
l 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

£
3

3
8

,0
0

0
 (

£
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
£

3
8

,0
0

0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

S
e

a
rc

h
) 
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
u
t 
re
ta
in
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
e
a
rc
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 

£
3
0
0
,0
0
0
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 i

n
 

k
in

d
 

fr
o

m
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
&

 S
o

u
th

 
D

e
v

o
n

 
C

o
lle

g
e
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
y

 
£

3
0

0
,0

0
0
 

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 

 •
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 L

D
, 

e
s

p
e

c
ia

lly
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
it

h
 

a
s

p
e

rg
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
u

ti
s

m
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 
c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
. 

•
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

n
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s

 s
u

c
h

 a
s

 J
o

b
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

, 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 c

o
lle

g
e

 
w

h
o

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

•
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 a
s

s
e

s
s

 
th

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l.
 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 470



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

is
 t

o
 a

lt
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 E

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
. 
 

 T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 P

lu
s

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s

is
ts

 o
f 

2
 p

a
rt

s
: 
 

•
 

T
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

5
5

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 

•
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

S
e

a
rc

h
, 

a
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
it

h
 T

o
rb

a
y

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 D
e

v
o

n
 c

o
lle

g
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s

 i
n

te
rn

s
h

ip
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 j
o

b
 s

e
a

rc
h

in
g

, 
b

a
s

e
d

 a
t 

T
o

rb
a

y
 h

o
s

p
it

a
l,

 f
o

r 
1

1
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
a

g
e

d
 1

8
-2

5
) 

w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

is
 t

o
 e

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 b

a
s

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
u

t 
re

ta
in

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

e
a

rc
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i

n
 a

 
£

3
0

0
,0

0
0

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
o

le
ly

 b
y

 t
h

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 b

a
s

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
o

rk
s

 w
it

h
 5

5
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 
h

a
v

e
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

. 
W

it
h

in
 t

h
is

, 
a

 l
a

rg
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
s

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 A
s

p
e

rg
e

rs
 (

h
ig

h
e

r 
fu

n
c

ti
o

n
in

g
 

a
u

ti
s

m
) 

w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 g

re
a

t 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

to
 w

o
rk

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 a
b

ili
ty

, 
b

u
t 

s
tr

u
g

g
le

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

e
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
 j

o
b

 m
a

rk
e

t 
d

u
e

 
to

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 d

if
fi

c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

E
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 a

ls
o

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 
s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a

lly
 A

s
p

e
rg

e
rs

. 
 R

e
ta

in
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

S
e

a
rc

h
 w

o
u

ld
 l

e
a

v
e

 a
n

 a
v

e
n

u
e

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 
c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 t

o
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t,

 b
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
n

ly
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 1
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 o

n
ly

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 1

8
-2

5
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 O

v
e

ra
ll 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a

lly
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

a
g

e
 o

f 
2

5
. 

 
 

    

Page 471



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 A
ro

u
n

d
 3

0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 h

a
v

e
 a

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 m
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v

e
 a

 m
ild

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

. 
T

h
is

 i
s

 a
b

o
v

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

 7
5

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 a

re
 c

o
u

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 G

P
 a

s
 h

a
v

in
g

 a
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
. 

4
5

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c

ia
lis

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 T

e
a

m
. 
 

 A
ro

u
n

d
 1

5
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 A
u

ti
s

ti
c

 S
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 a

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 w
h

o
 a

re
 e

m
p

lo
y

e
d

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 i

s
 4

.9
%

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 7

.2
%

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
. 

A
ro

u
n

d
 1

5
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 A
u

ti
s

ti
c

 S
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
. 

 In
c

lu
d

e
d

 a
s

 a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 i

s
 t

h
e

 A
u

ti
s

m
 s

e
lf

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
, 

w
h

ic
h

  
lis

ts
 t

h
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
s

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

n
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

s
 

w
it

h
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

. 
4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

  P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1
s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

Page 472



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

 A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

Page 473



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 T
w
o
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

 •
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 

Page 474



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

 A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 
5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

  T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
6
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 4
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 

c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
e
re
 4
8
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 v
ie
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

fu
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
/ 
o
r 
a
u
ti
s
m
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 

in
to
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
a
t 
a
 j
o
b
 a
n
d
 a
 w
o
rk
in
g
 l
if
e
 b
ri
n
g
s
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 h
o
p
e
 s
in
c
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
ta
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 a
re
 m
o
ti
v
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 b
u
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
d
o
 s
o
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
It
 w
a
s
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 A
u
ti
s
ti
c
 

S
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 (
A
S
C
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 o
r 
a
u
ti
s
ti
c
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 a
s
k
e
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
t 

o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
f 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
th
in
g
 a
ft
e
rw
a
rd
s
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 t
o
 

p
re
p
a
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
?
 

 

Page 475



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
in
g
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
y
s
 a
 k
e
y
 r
o
le
 i
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 w
h
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
. 
 

 It
 w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 e
.g
. 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

te
a
m
s
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 G
P
's
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
p
re
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
in
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 f
e
e
l 
a
n
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 

s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
a
v
e
d
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 g
o
t 
w
o
rk
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 r
e
lia
n
t 

o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
T
h
is
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
e
d
 b
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s
ta
ti
n
g
 “
..
.f
o
r 
e
v
e
ry
 £
1
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 m
o
d
e
ra
te
 

c
a
re
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
£
1
.3
0
 w
ill
 g
o
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 O
ff
ic
e
 (
2
0
0
9
) 
a
ls
o
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 j
u
s
t 
4
%
 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in
g
 a
u
ti
s
m
 a
n
d
 A
s
p
e
rg
e
r 
s
y
n
d
ro
m
e
, 
th
e
 o
u
tl
a
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 c
o
s
t 
n
e
u
tr
a
l 
o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
.”
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
ly
 4
.9
%
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 a
re
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
” 

 It
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
s
 h
a
v
e
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ro
le
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

in
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
, 
a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 A
u
ti
s
m
 A
c
t.
 

 It
 w
a
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
is
 k
e
e
n
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
a
rt
-f
u
n
d
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
, 
b
u
t 
th
is
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 g
iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

T
h
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 I
f 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
b
y
 r
e
ta
in
in
g
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
a
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

o
f 
ti
m
e
 p
e
n
d
in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 
 

 

Page 476



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le
 

 
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

a
g

e
 o

f 
2

5
, 

a
s

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

e
a

rc
h

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
, 

o
n

ly
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 u

p
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
2

5
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

n
y

o
n

e
 

o
v

e
r 

th
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
2

5
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
h

a
v

e
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

m
 i

n
 T

o
rb

a
y

. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
 

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i

s
 

b
e

c
a

u
s

e
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i

s
 f

re
e

 o
f 

c
h

a
rg

e
 

a
n

d
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 
R

A
S

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
f 

th
e

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

(s
) 

w
e

re
 t

o
 e

n
d

, 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

 
w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

 a
n

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
m

e
a

n
in

g
 a

n
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 

s
p

e
n

t 
c

a
ri

n
g

 f
o

r 
th

o
s

e
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
. 
 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 

a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
ff

e
c

te
d

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
re

 t
h

e
 o
n
ly
 

s
p

e
c

ia
lis

t 
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 
a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
s

e
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
o

 w
a

n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

h
is

 t
y

p
e

  
o

f 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

(W
o

rk
 C

h
o

ic
e

 h
a

s
 l

im
it

e
d

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

p
la

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
s

 o
n

ly
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
n

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 p

o
s

it
io

n
 t

o
 

  

Page 477



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

w
o

rk
 1

6
 h

o
u

rs
 a

 w
e

e
k

 o
r 

m
o

re
) 

T
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 
a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 b
u

t 
n

e
e

d
 m

o
re

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
 t

h
is

 g
o

a
l.
 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 b

la
c

k
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b

a
c

k
g

ro
u

n
d

 (
B

M
E

) 
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
 

  
R

e
lig

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c

k
 o

f 
b

e
lie

f)
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 l

e
s

b
ia

n
, 

g
a

y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x

u
a

l 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

tr
a

n
s

g
e

n
d

e
re

d
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i

n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 o

r 
c

iv
il 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
 

 
W

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 p

re
g

n
a

n
t 

/ 
o

n
 m

a
te

rn
it

y
 l

e
a

v
e
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
 

 
S

o
c

io
-e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 
(I

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 c
h

ild
 

p
o

v
e

rt
y

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 

d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 

th
e

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 

s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
re

 
c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
to

 
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t.
 

 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt

h
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 (

H
o

w
 

w
ill

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

) 

     

 
N

o
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

 T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
re
 b
e
in
g
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 A
u
ti
s
ti
c
 S
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

 

Page 478



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

a
b

o
v

e
) 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
a

b
o

v
e

) 
 

 W
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 

 
1
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
ly

 o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

2
5

, 
a

s
 P

ro
je

c
t 

S
e

a
rc

h
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
ta

in
e

d
, 

o
n

ly
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
2

5
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
a

n
y

o
n

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

2
5

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 a
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
m

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
. 

2
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

w
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i

s
 b

e
c

a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s

 f
re

e
 o

f 
c

h
a

rg
e

 a
n

d
 

d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

’s
 R

A
S

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
(s

) 
w

e
re

 t
o

 e
n

d
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 
e

n
ti

tl
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
m

e
a

n
in

g
 a

n
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

c
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 w
it

h
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti

e
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

. 
3
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c

te
d

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
re

 t
h

e
 o
n
ly
 

s
p

e
c

ia
lis

t 
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 s
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 i

n
 T

o
rb

a
y

. 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

s
e

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti

e
s

 w
h

o
 w

a
n

t 
to

 w
o

rk
 i

n
 T

o
rb

a
y

 w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 t
h

is
 t

y
p

e
  

o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
(W

o
rk

 C
h

o
ic

e
 h

a
s

 l
im

it
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

la
c

e
s

 a
n

d
 i

s
 o

n
ly

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
n

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 

p
o

s
it

io
n

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 1

6
 h

o
u

rs
 a

 w
e

e
k

 o
r 

m
o

re
) 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
o

rk
s

 w
it

h
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 b
u

t 
n

e
e

d
 m

o
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

 t
h

is
 g

o
a

l.
 

4
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

ti
s

ti
c

 
s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 a
s

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

 
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
h

is
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
 

Page 479



 

W
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
 C
a
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 w
e
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
m
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
o
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 T
e
a
m
. 
T
h
is
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
is
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
, 
a
s
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 f
re
e
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 

p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 R
A
S
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
in
 m
o
s
t 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 h
a
lf
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
u
ti
s
ti
c
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
p
a
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
th
e
m
 t
o
. 

W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 t
a
lk
 t
o
 t
h
e
 J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

P
lu
s
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 t
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 e
m
e
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
. 

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t:
 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r:
 

 
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
  

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 A
u
ti
s
ti
c
 S
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 (
th
is
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 s
o
u
rc
e
) 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

  
•
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 –

 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 b

y
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

d
a

ta
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

•
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 a

u
ti

s
ti

c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 –
 i

t 
is

 n
o

t 
k

n
o

w
n

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 d
a

ta
 i

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

A
s

 m
a

n
y

 a
d

u
lt

s
 w

it
h

 A
u

ti
s

ti
c

 S
p

e
c

tr
u

m
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 f

o
rm

a
l 

d
ia

g
n

o
s

is
, 

th
is

 d
a

ta
 m

a
y

 b
e

 d
if

fi
c

u
lt

 t
o

 
o

b
ta

in
. 

W
e

 w
ill

 t
ry

 t
o

 o
b

ta
in

 f
ro

m
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

. 
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

Page 480



 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
X
 

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

is
 n

o
t 

to
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

te
 d

ir
e

c
tl

y
 o

r 
in

d
ir

e
c

tl
y

, 
a

n
d

 d
o

e
s

 n
o

t 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
to

 u
n

la
w

fu
l 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 d
o

in
g

 s
o

 
h

a
s

 t
o

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
s

e
 i

ts
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti

e
s

. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 d

e
ri

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

o
s

e
 w

h
o

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

re
c

e
iv

e
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

th
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i

s
 n

o
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
w

ill
 e

n
d

e
a

v
o

u
r,

 w
it

h
 i

ts
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

to
 

m
it

ig
a

te
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

n
y

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

. 
If

 a
n

y
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 F

A
C

S
 c

ri
te

ri
a

, 
th

e
y

 w
ill

 
re

c
e

iv
e

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s

 f
ro

m
 T

o
rb

a
y

 &
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
 

D
e

v
o

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t.

  
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

       

Page 481



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t-
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
6
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 4
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 w
h
e
re
 4
8
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
lu
s
s
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

fu
ll 
d
e
ta
ils
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E
IA
. 

  

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

“T
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
ll 
fu
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
/ 
o
r 
a
u
ti
s
m
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 i
n
to
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
a
t 
a
 j
o
b
 a
n
d
 a
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

lif
e
 b
ri
n
g
s
.”
 

  “
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 m
y
 d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
ta
lk
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t,
 “
w
h
e
n
 I
 g
e
t 
a
 j
o
b
”,
 I
 w
e
p
t 
w
it
h
 

jo
y
.”
  

  “
T
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
lu
s
s
 t
o
 m
y
 d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
y
 o
th
e
rs
, 
n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 

m
e
a
n
s
 o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
h
e
lp
s
 t
h
e
m
 g
a
in
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

g
iv
e
s
 h
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
.”
  

 “…
w
e
 a
re
 j
u
s
t 
s
o
 p
le
a
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 m
a
y
 s
o
o
n
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
o
 s
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
 

a
n
d
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
o
c
ie
ty
.”
  

  “
H
e
 n
o
w
 h
a
s
 a
 p
ro
p
e
r 
p
a
id
 p
a
rt
 t
im
e
 j
o
b
 a
n
d
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
o
re
 s
e
lf
 r
e
lia
n
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t.
  
H
e
 l
o
v
e
s
 h
is
 w
o
rk
…
 P
lu
s
s
 h
e
lp
e
d
 h
im
 i
n
 

e
v
e
ry
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
o
w
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
it
 h
a
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 h
is
 l
if
e
.”
  

Page 482



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

  “
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 m
o
ti
v
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
h
a
v
in
g
 h
o
p
e
 s
in
c
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

fr
o
m
 P
lu
s
s
. 
M
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
a
n
te
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 

a
n
y
th
in
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
, 
s
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
is
h
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 b
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
re
s
s
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
w
o
rk
. 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

“S
u
c
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
s
 h
a
v
e
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ro
le
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 

w
o
rk
: 
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 W
o
rk
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

(D
W
P
, 
2
0
0
6
):
  

V
a
lu
in
g
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
N
o
w
 (
H
M
 G
o
v
t,
 2
0
0
9
):
  

R
e
a
lis
in
g
 A
m
b
it
io
n
 (
D
W
P
, 
2
0
0
9
)”
 

  “
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
ri
v
e
r 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
lly
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

(A
S
C
O
F
).
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
le
a
rl
y
 h
a
s
 a
 r
e
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
n
ly
 

4
.9
%
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 a
re
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 p
a
id
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
” 

 “T
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 i
ts
 o
ff
e
r 
c
le
a
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
it
s
 

o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 A
u
ti
s
m
 A
c
t 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 s
e
rv
e
s
 t
o
 

re
in
fo
rc
e
 t
h
e
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

it
s
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 o
ff
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 

d
a
m
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
.”
 

  “
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 -
 I
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 i
ts
 c
lo
s
u
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 

a
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 i
n
 b
re
a
c
h
 o
f 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
0
(3
) 
o
f 
th
e
 A
c
t 
(p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
h
e
n
 s
e
e
n
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 b
a
c
k
d
ro
p
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 

Page 483



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

in
te
g
ra
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
).
” 
 

  “
It
 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 m
a
k
e
 s
e
n
s
e
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 w
e
 a
w
a
it
 a
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

p
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 l
o
o
k
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
ff
e
r 

to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 E
H
C
 p
la
n
s
.”
  

 “I
t 
fe
e
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
re
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
to
 b
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 e
g
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
s
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 G
P
's
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
p
re
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

s
tr
a
in
 w
e
 w
ill
 f
e
e
l.
” 
 

 S
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 

d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
n
’t
 w
it
h
 P
lu
s
s
. 
O
n
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 w
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
a
re
a
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
h
e
r 
s
o
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 c
o
s
t 
£
7
5
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
fo
r 
3
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 a
s
k
e
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
f 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
th
in
g
 a
ft
e
rw
a
rd
s
 –
 s
u
re
ly
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 t
h
e
re
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 y
o
u
 f
o
r 
w
o
rk
?
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

“I
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 l
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

c
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
u
rr
e
d
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
b
o
th
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
…
 w
ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly
 s
e
e
 a
 d
is
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 “.
..
fo
r 
e
v
e
ry
 £
1
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 m
o
d
e
ra
te
 c
a
re
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 

£
1
.3
0
 w
ill
 g
o
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 O
ff
ic
e
 (
2
0
0
9
) 
a
ls
o
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 j
u
s
t 
4
%
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in
g
 

a
u
ti
s
m
 a
n
d
 a
s
p
e
rg
e
r 
s
y
n
d
ro
m
e
, 
th
e
 o
u
tl
a
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 c
o
s
t 
n
e
u
tr
a
l 

Page 484



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
a
v
e
d
 i
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 g
o
t 
w
o
rk
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 r
e
lia
n
t 
o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
A
ls
o
, 
s
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
d
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
O
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
s
p
o
k
e
 p
ro
u
d
ly
 o
f 

p
a
y
in
g
 t
a
x
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 o
th
e
rs
 n
o
w
 h
e
 h
a
s
 a
 j
o
b
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

W
id
e
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 “
T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 (
im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
) 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 

b
e
 m
o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ily
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 n
e
e
d
 m
o
re
 h
e
lp
.”
 

  “
C
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
a
re
ly
 c
a
u
s
e
 a
 r
ip
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
k
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 s
e
ld
o
m
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
o
u
d
 v
o
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
ir
 p
ro
te
s
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
a
s
ily
 c
u
rt
a
ile
d
 

o
r 
d
is
m
is
s
e
d
.”
 

 “P
lu
s
s
 h
a
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 .
..
th
is
 i
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
fo
r 
a
ll 
fu
tu
re
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 (
n
o
t 
ju
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
u
ti
s
m
),
 a
s
 i
t 
m
a
k
e
s
 a
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 

m
o
re
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
.”
  

 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

“W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 P
lu
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 p
a
rt
-f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 

w
it
h
in
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
” 
 

 “W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 P
lu
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 p
a
rt
-f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
.”
 

 “P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 

v
a
lu
a
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

a
u
ti
s
ti
c
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 r
e
a
lis
ti
c
 l
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 o
f 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
.”
 

 “P
lu
s
s
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 e
a
g
e
r 
to
 m
e
e
t 
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 e
le
c
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 

Page 485



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

T
o
rb
a
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
, 
a
n
d
, 
c
o
u
ld
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
b
u
rd
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 f
a
c
e
 i
f 
it
 d
e
c
id
e
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
c
e
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
” 

 “I
 a
m
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
to
 s
a
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
 a
b
s
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 t
h
in
k
in
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
ts
 w
h
e
n
 i
t 
c
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 

P
lu
s
s
's
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
  

 

N
o
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

to
 C
li
e
n
ts
 

“W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
P
lu
s
s
, 
w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
v
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
o
 

e
v
e
n
 '
th
in
k
' a
b
o
u
t 
h
im
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 
H
e
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 j
o
b
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
” 
 

  “
W
e
 a
s
 p
a
re
n
ts
/c
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
e
v
e
r,
 s
o
 i
t 
is
 v
it
a
l 
th
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 

lik
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
, 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
a
b
le
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
t 
P
lu
s
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
lo
w
ly
 b
u
t 
s
u
re
ly
. 
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
o
in
te
d
 o
u
t 
th
a
t 
P
lu
s
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 w
it
h
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
in
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 f
u
lly
 i
f 
th
e
y
 d
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
 

s
o
m
e
o
n
e
. 
T
h
is
 t
h
e
n
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 e
m
p
lo
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

  It
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 s
ta
te
d
 o
u
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 

fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 A
u
ti
s
ti
c
 S
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 C
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 (
A
S
C
) 
a
n
d
 P
lu
s
s
 i
s
 i
n
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 

in
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 A
S
C
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
s
 i
t 
is
 

a
 ‘
h
id
d
e
n
’ 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
w
h
ic
h
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 o
ft
e
n
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
. 

  P
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 o
r 
a
u
ti
s
ti
c
 s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
. 
 

 
 

Page 486



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

  
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
3
0

th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
 6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 27

Page 487



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 :
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
o
r 

m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
In
c
lu
d
e
s
 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 

(2
4
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
) 
A
ll 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 £
3
0
5
,6
6
2
.5
0
  
p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
. 

  T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
b
y
 5
0
%
 t
o
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
1
5
3
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
. 

 
£
1
5
3
,0
0
0
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
  

 •
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
  

•
 

T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in
 s
o
u
rc
e
 

o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

s
in
g
le
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
u
ty
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 
X
 

Page 488



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 

th
e
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 a
n
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
t 
F
a
c
to
ry
 R
o
w
 i
n
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
. 
It
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 2
4
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
t 
a
n
y
 t
im
e
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 r
u
n
 b
y
 C
h
a
p
te
r 
O
n
e
, 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
h
e
k
in
a
h
 M
is
s
io
n
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
a
s
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
le
d
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 d
ru
g
 o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 

e
n
tr
e
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ta
ff
 o
n
 s
it
e
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 a
 d
a
y
, 
7
 d
a
y
s
 a
 w
e
e
k
. 
 S
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 m
o
v
e
 f
ro
m
 

L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 h
a
v
e
 m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
 t
o
 m
o
re
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

J
a
ti
s
, 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 w
h
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 
A
 

s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 1
4
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 6
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 t
h
e
y
 

h
a
d
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
, 
u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
p
la
c
e
d
 a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 (
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 £
3
3
6
 a
 w
e
e
k
1
).
  
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
S
e
v
e
re
 W
e
a
th
e
r 
W
a
tc
h
 (
fo
rm
e
rl
y
 W
in
te
r 
W
a
tc
h
),
 w
h
ic
h
 g
iv
e
s
 

o
v
e
rn
ig
h
t 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
n
y
o
n
e
 w
h
o
 i
s
 s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 w
e
a
th
e
r,
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
d
e
a
th
s
, 
is
 r
u
n
 

fr
o
m
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 
T
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
ts
’ 
‘N
o
 S
e
c
o
n
d
 N
ig
h
t 
O
u
t’
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
w
h
ic
h
 a
im
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 

s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
b
e
in
g
 s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
) 
is
 a
ls
o
 r
u
n
 f
ro
m
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
y
 5
0
%
, 
fr
o
m
 i
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 

£
3
0
5
,6
6
2
.5
0
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
1
5
3
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

  I
n
it
ia
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 w
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 5
0
%
, 

th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
a
fe
ly
 w
h
ils
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
it
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
. 

 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
, 
a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
T
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
1
th
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 R
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 T
o
o
l,
 C
a
p
 G
e
m
in
i.
 T
h
e
 t
o
o
l 
a
d
d
s
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 

Page 489



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
is
 2
5
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 s
tr
e
e
t 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 s
ti
ll 
h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 

•
 
If
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
ts
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
w
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
It
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
if
 

th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 w
a
it
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
fo
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 

o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

•
 
If
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 w
e
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
u
ld
 e
it
h
e
r 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
t 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
o
r 
b
e
 ‘
s
o
fa
 s
u
rf
in
g
’ 
o
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 s
o
m
e
 

o
f 
th
e
s
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t,
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 

fo
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 (
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 £
3
3
6
 a
 

w
e
e
k
2
).
 A
 s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 1
4
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 6
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
d
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
, 
p
la
c
e
d
 a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
) 
T
h
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
ir
 v
ie
w
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 s
o
u
rc
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w
ill
in
g
 t
o
 

h
o
u
s
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 h
o
u
s
e
 a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 
 

 

 

•
 
It
 i
s
  
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
f 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
  
th
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 l
a
w
 t
o
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
u
s
e
d
 a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
, 
it
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
, 
w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
. 
F
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 

7
4
 o
f 
th
e
 1
0
6
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 (
s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
) 
w
h
e
n
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ry
 a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
: 

 

1
. 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 –
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
le
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
T
h
is
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 R
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 T
o
o
l,
 C
a
p
 G
e
m
in
i.
 T
h
e
 t
o
o
l 
a
d
d
s
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 

Page 490



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

 

2
. 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
–
 A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

s
tr
e
e
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
u
e
 t
o
 m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 v
is
ib
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
. 
 

 

•
 
If
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 ‘
S
e
v
e
re
 

W
e
a
th
e
r 
W
a
tc
h
’ 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
h
e
lt
e
r 
fo
r 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
 i
n
 s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 d
e
a
th
s
. 

 

•
 
If
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
th
is
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
ts
 ‘
N
o
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
o
u
t’
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
u
n
 f
ro
m
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
rr
ie
s
 o
u
t 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
ry
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
. 
 E
v
e
n
 i
f 
th
e
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
, 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
m
 

s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
o
u
t.
 

 

  
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  
  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

th
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  
  

Page 491



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 g
e
a
re
d
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm
 (
1
3
 w
e
e
k
) 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
1
0
2
 c
lie
n
ts
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
- 
m
o
s
t 

(6
4
) 
s
ta
y
e
d
 f
o
r 
u
p
 t
o
 1
3
 w
e
e
k
s
/ 
3
 m
o
n
th
s
, 
2
4
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r,
 s
ta
y
in
g
 f
o
r 
3
-6
 m
o
n
th
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
4
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r 
w
it
h
 2
 

o
v
e
r 
2
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 1
0
6
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
T
h
e
 a
g
e
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 i
s
 b
e
lo
w
 

 

A
g
e
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

1
8
-3
0
 

3
5
 

3
1
-4
0
 

3
2
 

4
1
-5
0
 

2
4
 

5
1
-6
0
 

1
0
 

6
1
+
 

5
 

T
o
ta
l 

1
0
6
 

  T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
8
%
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 s
ic
k
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
. 
 

 7
4
 o
f 
th
e
 1
0
6
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 w
h
e
n
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
1
0
 o
th
e
rs
 h
a
d
 a
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 n
e
e
d
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 1
4
 o
th
e
rs
 h
a
d
 a
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 n
e
e
d
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
/o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
 

 

Y
e
a
r 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 L
S
C
 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

9
1
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

1
2
1
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

9
1
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

1
0
6
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 9
5
.8
%
 f
u
ll 
in
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 9
5
%
 f
u
ll 
in
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 T
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1
0
0
%
 i
s
 n
o
t 

d
u
e
 t
o
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
d
e
m
a
n
d
, 
b
u
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
o
 c
le
a
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
a
ir
 r
o
o
m
s
. 

  

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

Page 492



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

   

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1
s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

Page 493



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

Page 494



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 3
1
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
h
o
w
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 g
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
o
o
f 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
ir
 

h
e
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
 w
a
rm
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
m
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 i
n
 l
if
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
o
m
e
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 

liv
e
, 
in
 t
h
is
 c
a
s
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 S
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
ie
d
 i
f 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
th
e
re
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
o
w
n
w
a
rd
 s
p
ir
a
l 
o
f 
d
ru
g
 u
s
e
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
It
 w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 b
e
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
ta
l 
to
 t
h
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
le
e
p
in
g
 r
o
u
g
h
 b
u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
lly
, 
it
 w
a
s
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
is
 s
o
rt
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 k
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
 p
ri
s
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
. 
It
 w
a
s
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t,
 b
o
th
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
im
e
. 

Page 495



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 h
a
s
 r
o
o
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

a
d
a
p
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 
3
8
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
s
ic
k
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
. 

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

F
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
8
9
%
 o
f 

th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
d
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 

w
e
re
 m

e
n
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 b
o
th
 m

e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

  N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 
 

 
N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

Page 496



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
Im

p
a
c
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 m

a
n
y
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 

ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 (
7
4
 o
f 
1
0
6
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
).
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
ri
m
e
 a
s
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
- 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g

3
. 
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

     

C
lie
n
ts
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 t
o
  

G
P
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
d
ru
g
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
e
tc
. 
T
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 

c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 

c
h
a
o
ti
c
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
.  

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 m
a
in
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
. 

 T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
in
g
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 a
 

p
ri
v
a
te
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 
n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 e
tc
 

  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
in
g
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
: 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
M
in
is
tr
y
 o
f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
S
e
ri
e
s
, 
2
0
1
3
, 
p
5
, 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w
w
w
.g
o
v
.u
k
/g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t/
u
p
lo
a
d
s
/s
y
s
te
m
/u
p
lo
a
d
s
/a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t_
d
a
ta
/f
ile
/2
4
3
7
1
8
/e
v
id
e
n
c
e
-r
e
d
u
c
e
-r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
.p
d
f 
 

Page 497



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 

  

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
  
im
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 
 

 
1
. 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 h
a
s
 r
o
o
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
d
a
p
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 
3
8
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 s
ic
k
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
. 

2
. 
Im
p
a
c
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 m
a
n
y
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 

S
to
c
k
s
 (
7
4
 o
f 
1
0
6
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
).
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
ri
m
e
 a
s
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
- 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

3
. 
C
lie
n
ts
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 t
o
  
G
P
S
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
d
ru
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
e
tc
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 

w
h
o
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
. 

  It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
  

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
  

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
 

Page 498



 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

 T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  
- 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
–
 

th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
a
fe
ty
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 c
o
u
n
t,
 o
r 
‘N
o
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 n
ig
h
t 
o
u
t’
 i
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

Page 499



 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 

x
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 

g
iv
e
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 n
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 o
n
e
 o
ff
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 

o
f 
£
1
3
5
,0
0
0
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 
T
h
is
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

Page 500



 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

       A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
- 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 3
1
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 C
h
a
p
te
r 
1
, 
w
it
h
 s
o
m
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 s
u
b
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 t
o
 S
h
e
k
in
a
h
 M
is
s
io
n
. 
 

   

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
h
o
w
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 g
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m
 

a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
o
o
f 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
ir
 h
e
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
 w
a
rm
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 “
m
is
e
ra
b
le
” 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
d
 l
iv
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
it
 w
a
s
 i
m
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 i
n
 l
if
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
o
m
e
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 l
iv
e
. 

“H
o
w
 c
a
n
 y
o
u
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
a
 j
o
b
 i
f 
y
o
u
 a
re
 f
ilt
h
y
?
” 

 S
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
ie
d
 i
f 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 

w
e
re
 n
o
t 
th
e
re
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
 a
 d
o
w
n
w
a
rd
 s
p
ir
a
l 
o
f 

d
ru
g
 u
s
e
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
O
n
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
, 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 s
u
ic
id
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

Page 501



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 “.
..
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 r
e
m
a
in
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 

p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r.
  
T
h
is
 m
a
y
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
e
 o
n
u
s
 t
h
e
n
 f
a
lls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 b
u
t 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
s
t 
to
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 h
a
d
 

s
to
p
p
e
d
 t
h
e
m
 u
s
in
g
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 A
&
E
 a
n
d
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 a
ls
o
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
in
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic
e
 m
o
re
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
o
n
e
y
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
n
’t
 i
n
 

L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 

 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
  

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 C
ri
m
e
 

“.
..
 i
s
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 u
s
u
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.”
  

 “T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 o
n
ly
 e
v
e
r 
b
e
 o
n
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t'l
l 

b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
. 
C
e
rt
a
in
ly
 n
o
t 
a
 g
o
o
d
 s
e
lli
n
g
 p
o
in
t 
fo
r 
to
u
ri
s
ts
 o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
“n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
a
l”
 w
it
h
 b
e
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
. 
S
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 e
n
d
 

u
p
 i
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
. 

Page 502



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 w
id
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

“T
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 o
ft
e
n
 t
h
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
n
d
in
g
 i
n
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 i
f 
a
 

d
e
fe
n
d
a
n
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 h
e
 o
r 
s
h
e
 c
a
n
, 
re
lia
b
ly
, 
b
e
 

b
a
ile
d
 .
If
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
s
 f
o
rc
e
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 s
im
p
ly
 b
e
 m
o
re
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 e
x
-o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
m
o
re
 r
is
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
  
a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r.
” 
 

 “I
t 
is
 o
n
ly
 a
n
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
t 
g
u
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 m
o
re
 c
ri
m
e
, 

p
e
tt
y
 t
h
e
ft
, 
b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s
, 
b
re
a
k
in
g
 i
n
to
 e
m
p
ty
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 s
q
u
a
t,
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

s
u
ic
id
e
s
 c
o
m
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
to
ta
l 
d
e
s
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

h
o
w
 a
ll 
th
is
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 a
ff
e
c
t 
e
v
e
ry
o
n
e
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
in
g
 

T
o
rb
a
y
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 

to
w
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
u
ri
s
m
 i
f 
m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 

c
ri
m
e
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
s
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
w
h
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
g
re
a
tl
y
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

“T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
ra
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 c
u
t 
c
o
u
ld
 c
lo
s
e
 a
 C
e
n
tr
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 a
 h
u
m
a
n
it
a
ri
a
n
 n
e
c
e
s
s
it
y
 b
u
t 
s
a
v
e
s
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
 g
re
a
t 
d
e
a
l 
in
 t
h
e
 

lo
n
g
 r
u
n
 b
y
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 h
o
n
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 

c
it
iz
e
n
s
.”
  

 “W
h
a
t 
o
n
 e
a
rt
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
th
in
k
in
g
 i
n
 c
u
tt
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
?
 P
le
a
s
e
 s
to
p
 w
a
s
ti
n
g
 m
o
n
e
y
 o
n
 p
a
lm
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
tu
p
id
 t
h
in
g
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
y
 a
n
d
 p
u
t 
it
 t
o
 g
o
o
d
 u
s
e
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
le
s
s
 i
t 

is
 o
u
r 
d
u
ty
.”
  

 

Page 503



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
1
2
/0
8
/1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
 

D
a
te
: 

0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 28

Page 504



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

J
a
ti
s
  

 2
5
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 –
 

1
0
 u
n
it
s
  
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
fo
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

u
s
e
. 
1
5
 u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
t.
  
R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 m
u
s
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 

£
2
3
9
,8
0
0
 

 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 

b
y
 1
0
0
%
: 

£
2
3
9
,8
0
0
 

 

    A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

(b
u
t 
th
e
re
 

w
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

3
 m
o
n
th
s
 

n
o
ti
c
e
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

e
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t)
 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
lif
ic
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
. 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
. 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

X
 

Page 505



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 

th
e
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 f
ro
m
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 J
a
ti
s
, 
a
 s
m
a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 

•
 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 1
5
 u
n
it
s
 (
b
e
d
s
) 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
fo
r 
d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 g
a
in
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 w
o
rk
/p
a
id
 w
o
rk
 o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
ro
u
n
d
 a
 

p
e
rs
o
n
s
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
. 

•
 
A
b
s
ti
n
e
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 –
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 1
0
 u
n
it
s
 (
b
e
d
s
) 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
fo
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
S
im
ila
rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 g
a
in
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
/t
ra
in
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 i
n
 b
o
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 1
8
 m
o
n
th
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
ll 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
u
s
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 (
p
le
a
s
e
 s
e
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
).
 

 J
a
ti
s
 a
ls
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 t
o
p
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

‘p
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t’
 w
o
rk
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
  
w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
m
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 (
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 w
h
ils
t 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 i
s
 w
a
it
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
).
 J
a
ti
s
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 m
a
n
y
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll 
a
n
d
 c
a
m
p
in
g
 t
ri
p
s
. 
 

  T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 e
n
d
 b
o
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 £
1
4
1
,2
7
8
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 £
9
8
,4
6
2
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 i
s
 £
2
3
9
,8
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

  T
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 f
ro
m
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 a
 

s
ta
b
le
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
. 
If
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 

to
 e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 f
ro
m
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 u
s
e
. 

Page 506



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

  P
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 i
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
m
 s
to
p
p
in
g
 u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
/a
lc
o
h
o
l,
 b
u
t 
th
e
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
, 
a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
..
 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
: 
 

 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
v
e
n
 l
in
k
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
J
a
ti
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 o
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
is
t 
fr
o
m
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
it
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 
 

•
 
A
s
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
rk
s
 

w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
In
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
it
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 i
s
 a
 m
a
jo
r 
fa
c
to
r 
in
 p
e
o
p
le
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
e
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
. 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
a
  
s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
ik
e
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 i
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
 

•
 
T
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 m
a
n
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
. 
S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
J
a
ti
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
b
u
ild
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
it
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
re
b
u
ild
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
d
ru
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
a
t 
J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 d
e
s
is
t 
fr
o
m
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 
 

  T
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

•
 
L
e
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
. 
A
s
 n
o
te
d
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
th
is
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
p
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
u
rt
s
, 
p
ri
s
o
n
).
 L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 o
n
ly
 s
m
a
ll 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 d
ru
g
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t,
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
ts
. 

•
 
If
 l
e
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
  
a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 J
a
ti
s
 f
ro
m
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 a
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 w
h
o
m
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
a
w
. 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 J
a
ti
s
, 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 h
o
u
s
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
If
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
d
e
d
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
e
 t
h
e
m
. 

•
 
J
a
ti
s
 a
re
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 
w
h
ic
h
 l
o
o
k
s
 a
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 

fr
o
m
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 u
s
e
. 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 p
a
n
e
l,
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
iv
e
rt
e
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 J
a
ti
s
, 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 s
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

Page 507



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

•
 
T
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 m
a
x
im
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
s
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
s
 i
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
 I
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
d
e
d
, 
th
is
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
b
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
. 
  

 
J
a
ti
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 s
ta
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 T
o
rb
a
y
 e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 s
e
e
k
 c
lie
n
ts
 

fr
o
m
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
3
6
 

p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 w
e
re
 3
1
 m
a
le
s
 a
n
d
 5
 f
e
m
a
le
s
. 
T
h
e
 a
g
e
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 w
a
s
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

A
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 

1
8
-2
4
 

1
 

2
5
-3
4
 

1
7
 

3
5
-4
4
 

1
3
 

4
5
-5
4
 

3
 

5
5
-6
4
 

2
 

T
o
ta
l 

3
6
 

 N
o
n
e
 h
a
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 y
e
a
rs
, 
s
h
o
w
in
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

re
m
a
in
e
d
 s
im
ila
r 
: 

 

Y
e
a
r 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

4
1
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

3
5
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

3
6
 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
3
8
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 9
6
%
 f
u
ll 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

le
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 w
a
s
 7
 m
o
n
th
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 9
7
%
 f
u
ll 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 

w
a
s
 8
.4
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
):
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
1
2
2
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
9
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
/Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
2
7
%
 (
2
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w
it
h
 1
5
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
 o
w
e
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
, 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
1
3
7
 (
1
3
%
) 

Page 508



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

w
e
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
3
1
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M
A
R
A
C
 (
M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
) 

 J
a
ti
s
 a
re
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
d
ru
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
. 

 

  
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

th
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 l
iv
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 f
ro
m
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 g
o
o
d
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 

n
e
e
d
 (
n
=
2
9
),
 7
2
.4
%
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 p
a
id
 w
o
rk
 w
h
ils
t 
in
 1
 o
f 
th
e
 2
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 8
8
.6
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 n
e
e
d
 (
n
=
3
5
) 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
d
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
).
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro
m
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 f
o
r 
3
7
 o
f 
th
e
 3
8
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 (
1
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
 w
a
s
 m
is
s
in
g
).
 

 In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
. 

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
: 
A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
 c
o
h
o
rt
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 J
a
ti
s
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
h
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
: 
 

 4
7
.5
%
 (
n
=
2
8
) 
a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t,
 e
v
id
e
n
c
in
g
 s
ta
b
ili
ty
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

Page 509



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 
J
A
T
IS
 c
lie
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 m
u
c
h
 l
o
w
e
r 
(t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
tt
e
r)
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 o
f 
u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 -
 1
7
.2
%
 v
s
 3
1
.1
%
. 
 

 

•
 
J
A
T
IS
 c
lie
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
, 
2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 -
 5
1
.7
%
 v
s
 4
6
.9
%
 

 
 F
ig
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
  
th
a
t 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
lf
 h
a
rm
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 

u
n
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 w
o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 b
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
, 
e
n
te
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
/e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 

  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T

o
rb

a
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0
1

3
, 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
2
4

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

, 
w

w
w

.h
e

a
lt
h

p
ro

fi
le

s
.i
n
fo

  

Page 510



 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 o
r 
b
o
th
; 

a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

 A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 

o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

Page 511



 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
•
 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
re
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

Page 512



 

 A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
s
k
in
g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 

1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

  

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 

2
1
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
o
s
e
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 o
ff
e
re
d
 w
a
s
 v
it
a
l 
in
 t
h
e
m
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ls
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
d
, 
g
iv
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m
o
re
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 w
o
rt
h
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
 d
ru
g
 f
re
e
 l
if
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
o
s
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
lo
s
e
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 s
u
ic
id
e
, 
e
n
d
in
g
 u
p
 a
s
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
in
 p
ri
s
o
n
 o
r 
re
la
p
s
in
g
 i
n
to
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
/o
r 
c
ri
m
in
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
. 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
th
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 

a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
u
ld
 d
im
in
is
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
. 

 It
 w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
ri
m
e
, 
d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 o
u
tw
e
ig
h
 a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
a
t 
c
lo
s
u
re
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

  
 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

 

Page 513



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

 A
ll 
b
u
t 
2
 o
f 
th
e
 3
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

1
8
 a
n
d
 5
4
. 
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
J
a
ti
s
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 

h
a
v
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 

s
o
 t
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 w
id
e
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
lo
s
in
g
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 

u
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ily
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 

m
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 (
8
6
%
) 
b
u
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 b
o
th
 g
e
n
d
e
rs
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 3
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
5
6
%
  
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 

th
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
o
c
io
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

im
p
a
c
t 
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 a
s
 

 

Page 514



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

J
a
ti
s
 a
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 t
ra
in
in
g
/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 p
e
o
p
le
s
’ 

re
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
, 
e
n
te
r 

tr
a
in
in
g
/e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 

th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
s
 i
t 
m
e
a
n
s
 

th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 u
s
in
g
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 

 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
re
 b
e
in
g
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
G
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 n
o
n
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 S
IF
s
 a
n
d
 C
O
S
S
, 
a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 (
s
e
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 E
IA
 f
o
r 
fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
).
 T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 m
o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 a
n
y
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 g
ro
u
p
. 

  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
.  

   
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

Page 515



 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 

 
1
. 
M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
J
a
ti
s
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 h
a
v
e
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
re
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 w
id
e
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
lo
s
in
g
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 u
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ily
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
, 
th
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 a
s
 a
 

p
a
re
n
t,
 a
n
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
. 
O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 3
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
5
6
%
  
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 

w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
o
c
io
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 a
s
 J
a
ti
s
 a
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 t
ra
in
in
g
/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 p
e
o
p
le
s
’ 
re
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

 
3

. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
, 
e
n
te
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
/e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
s
 i
t 
m
e
a
n
s
 

th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 u
s
in
g
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 

 
 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
  
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 u
s
e
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
&
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  
(C
o
u
n
c
il,
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
) 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
  
ro
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
in
g
  

•
 
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
  
o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 w
h
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 b
y
 J
a
ti
s
 f
o
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

 
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

Page 516



 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

  

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  
- 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
–
 t
h
is
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
–
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
d
a
ta
. 

•
 
N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 J
a
ti
s
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 -
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
g
h
 s
le
e
p
e
rs
 c
o
u
n
t,
 o
r 
‘N
o
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

n
ig
h
t 
o
u
t’
 i
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

 T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

       

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

 

 

Page 517



 

    

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l  
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

x
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
 i
f 

g
iv
e
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ti
m
e
 t
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
, 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 n
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 o
n
e
 o
ff
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
£
2
0
3
,8
0
0
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 
T
h
is
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
 i
s
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

   A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
J
a
ti
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

Page 518



 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 2
1
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 P
ro
je
c
t.
  

   

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

D
e
a
th
/s
u
ic
id
e
 

“W
e
ll 
p
la
in
 a
n
d
 s
im
p
ly
 I
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
a
d
 b
y
 n
o
w
. 
M
y
 d
ri
n
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
ru
g
 

ta
k
in
g
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
d
in
g
 m
e
 d
o
w
n
 a
 d
a
rk
 r
o
a
d
 w
it
h
 n
o
 r
e
tu
rn
. 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

lo
s
t 
m
y
 k
id
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
d
ri
n
k
 a
lo
n
e
 s
o
 I
 o
w
e
 J
a
ti
s
 m
y
 l
if
e
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

fo
llo
w
 u
p
 c
a
re
 I
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
o
o
d
 f
o
re
v
e
r 
n
o
w
.”
 

 “I
 d
o
n
't 
k
n
o
w
- 
e
x
p
e
c
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
d
e
a
d
 o
r 
in
 p
ri
s
o
n
.”
 

 “A
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 I
 c
a
m
e
 h
e
re
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 I
f 
I 
h
a
d
n
't
 I
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 w
o
u
ld
 o
f 

e
n
d
e
d
 u
p
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 i
ll 
o
r 
e
v
e
n
 d
e
a
d
” 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

“I
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
n
't
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
lo
s
t 
a
ll 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 m
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
.”
 

 “I
 w
o
u
ld
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 b
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
.”
 

 “I
 w
o
u
ld
 o
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
 a
 v
ic
io
u
s
 c
ir
c
le
 o
f 
d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 j
a
il.
” 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

Page 519



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

R
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

c
ri
m
e
 

“I
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
y
 a
d
d
ic
ts
, 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
c
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 l
o
o
k
 

fo
rw
a
rd
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le
 s
p
ir
a
l 
d
o
w
n
 i
n
to
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
tu
a
lly
 f
a
ta
l 
lif
e
s
ty
le
.”
 

 “.
..
w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
, 
m
a
n
y
 w
ill
 s
in
k
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 c
ri
m
e
, 

th
u
s
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 m
o
re
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
tr
a
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
, 
th
e
 p
o
lic
e
, 

p
ri
s
o
n
s
 ,
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

A
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 

a
n
d
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

“I
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
r 
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 m
a
n
y
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
. 
A
ll 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 s
in
g
le
 a
im
 o
f 
b
e
a
ti
n
g
 a
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
, 
s
e
rv
in
g
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 o
u
r 

re
s
o
lv
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
 o
f 
e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 e
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c
 a
n
d
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

s
ta
ff
, 
to
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
u
r 
fu
tu
re
 l
iv
e
s
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
 w
a
y
 a
s
 t
o
 r
e
n
d
e
r 
o
u
r 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
lia
n
c
e
 u
p
o
n
 a
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
.”
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

 

“A
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
s
 

lik
e
ly
 t
o
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
fa
r 
m
o
re
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 d
o
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
y
 

n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 r
e
m
a
in
 u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
u
c
h
 l
o
n
g
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 

c
o
s
t 
to
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
ill
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
b
e
 m
u
c
h
 g
re
a
te
r 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 m
e
a
n
 

th
a
t 
a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 n
e
g
a
te
d
.”
  

 “I
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
s
a
n
e
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
S
o
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 

c
ri
m
e
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
 d
ru
g
 h
a
b
it
s
 o
n
 d
a
ily
 b
a
s
is
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 m
e
a
n
 m
e
 u
s
in
g
 

m
o
re
 p
o
lic
e
, 
c
o
u
rt
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 u
s
in
g
 S
h
ru
b
la
n
d
s
 a
g
a
in
 a
n
d
 

a
g
a
in
 a
n
d
 a
g
a
in
.”
 

 “I
 w
o
u
ld
 o
f 
g
o
n
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
ru
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 I
 h
a
d
 d
o
n
e
 o
n
 

m
a
n
y
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 g
o
t 
a
 m
e
th
a
d
o
n
e
 

p
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
, 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
n
 u
s
in
g
 i
lli
c
it
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
d
e
d
 u
p
 i
n
 j
a
il 

c
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
 g
re
a
t 
d
e
a
l 
o
f 
m
o
n
e
y
.”
 

Page 520



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 o
f 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
  

“T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 d
ru
g
 f
re
e
 h
o
m
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

ta
ilo
re
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 I
 n
e
e
d
.”
 

 “I
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 m
y
s
e
lf
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
a
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
re
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 n
u
rt
u
re
d
 m
e
 i
n
 a
 g
o
o
d
 w
a
y
. 
T
h
a
t 
I 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
g
a
in
 t
h
e
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
I 
lik
e
 t
h
a
t 
it
s
 

a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
o
 n
o
-o
n
e
 c
a
n
 u
s
e
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
k
e
s
 i
t 
s
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
m
e
.”
 

 “B
e
in
g
 i
n
 a
 s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 f
e
llo
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 t
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
to
 s
o
c
ie
ty
. 
A
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
th
e
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 
M
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
 a
b
u
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
 s
o
lid
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 m
y
 e
s
tr
a
n
g
e
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
.”
 

 “H
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 t
o
 a
d
m
it
 t
h
a
t 
I 
h
a
d
 b
ig
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 h
a
rm
fu
l 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 d
a
ily
. 
H
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 m
in
im
is
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 

m
y
s
e
lf
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
. 
H
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 b
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 m
e
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 w
o
rk
.”
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
li
fe
 

a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 w
o
rt
h
 

“I
t 
h
a
s
 g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
lie
f 
th
a
t 
I 
c
a
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
y
th
in
g
; 

g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
 c
o
p
e
 w
it
h
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
; 
h
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
.”
 

 “T
h
e
y
 h
e
lp
 m
e
 w
it
h
 p
a
s
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
t,
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 

te
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
b
s
ti
n
e
n
t.
 A
lw
a
y
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 s
o
 I
 c
a
n
 g
e
t 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
, 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 h
o
n
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
m
 I
 d
o
n
't 
lik
e
 t
o
 t
h
in
k
 w
h
e
re
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

Page 521



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

e
n
d
e
d
 u
p
.”
 

 “F
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
u
re
. 
I 
fe
e
l 
v
e
ry
 s
e
tt
le
d
 h
e
re
 a
n
d
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 m
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 I
 a
m
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
 m
y
 e
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 l
if
e
, 
i.
e
. 

S
h
o
p
in
g
 f
o
r 
fo
o
d
, 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
, 
lo
o
k
in
g
 a
ft
e
r 
m
y
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 g
o
a
l 
o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
.”
 

 “I
 h
a
v
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 c
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 I
 h
a
v
e
 

a
ls
o
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 t
w
o
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
.”
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
-‘
a
 

li
fe
li
n
e
’ 

“I
t'
s
 s
a
v
e
d
 m
e
, 
if
 I
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
n
 u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
 m
y
 l
if
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
w
fu
l.
” 

 “I
 h
o
n
e
s
tl
y
 d
o
n
't
 k
n
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
n
e
; 
p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
, 
d
ri
n
k
in
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l,
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 m
o
re
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
tt
in
g
 m
o
re
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
A
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 
m
e
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 u
lt
im
a
te
ly
 m
y
 d
e
a
th
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 a
 l
if
e
lin
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
 m
a
n
y
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
w
h
ile
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
h
e
re
 d
o
 a
n
 u
tm
o
s
t 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
jo
b
 t
h
e
y
 

a
ll 
s
ti
ll 
w
a
rm
, 
fr
ie
n
d
ly
 a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 w
e
lc
o
m
in
g
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
 g
re
a
t 
d
e
a
l 
o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 s
o
rr
y
 t
a
le
 o
f 

a
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
.”
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 m
a
d
e
 s
im
ila
r 
p
o
in
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

Page 522



 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

 
A
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

a
n
d
 r
e
b
u
il
d
 l
if
e
 

“K
e
p
t 
m
e
 c
le
a
n
 f
ro
m
 d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

liv
e
 a
 n
o
rm
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 J
a
ti
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 w
it
h
 m
y
 d
ri
n
k
 a
n
d
 d
ru
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
h
e
lp
e
d
 

m
e
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 r
e
la
x
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 l
if
e
. 
H
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
in
g
 e
v
e
ry
 d
a
y
 l
if
e
. 
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 

h
o
u
s
e
k
e
e
p
in
g
, 
ti
m
e
 k
e
e
p
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 a
 m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
s
o
b
e
r 
lif
e
.”
 

 “I
t 
h
a
s
 g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
lie
f 
th
a
t 
I 
c
a
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
y
th
in
g
; 

g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
 c
o
p
e
 w
it
h
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
; 
h
e
lp
e
d
 m
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
.”
 

 

Page 523



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
1
2
/0
8
/1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 0
6
/0
2
/2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
S
c
o
u
le
r 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
 

D
a
te
: 

0
6
/0
2
/2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
0
6
/0
2
/2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 29

Page 524



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
.S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
S
IF
S
) 
  
B
ri
e
f 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 c
ri
s
is
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
. 

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 
£
3
5
0
,0
0
0
 

       2
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
O
S
S
) 

G
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 
£
3
5
8
,7
0
0
 

 

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 
 

£
3
5
0
,0
0
0
         

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 

£
3
5
8
,7
0
0
   

 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

               M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 
S
IF
S
 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
. 
C
O
S
S
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 1
7
 F
e
b
 

2
0
1
4
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 

o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

 

Page 525



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
S
IF
S
) 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
( 
C
O
S
S
) 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
+
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 t
o
 m
e
d
iu
m
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
. 

T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
o
ry
 i
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
ts
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 &
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 m
is
u
s
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
L
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 9
 

m
o
n
th
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 2
6
0
 h
o
u
rs
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
S
IF
S
 a
n
d
 3
0
0
 h
o
u
rs
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 f
o
r 
C
O
S
S
, 

to
ta
lli
n
g
 5
6
0
 h
o
u
rs
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l:
 T
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 b
y
 t
e
rm
in
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 W
e
s
t 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
S
IF
S
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

L
iv
in
g
’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
O
S
S
),
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
£
7
0
7
,6
3
6
 f
o
r 
2
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

.
 

 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 f
le
x
ib
le
, 
d
y
n
a
m
ic
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
 -
c
e
n
tr
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 l
if
e
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
im
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
iv
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 a
n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
; 
a
n
d
 a
re
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
b
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 u
s
e
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
u
te
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 O
ri
g
in
a
lly
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
b
u
t 
th
is
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 w
id
e
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

lo
w
-l
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 c
a
m
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
ff
e
r 
b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 (
ie
 v
e
ry
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
, 
ti
m
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
u
p
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
, 
o
r 
o
n
e
 

o
ff
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
) 
to
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 e
s
c
a
la
ti
n
g
 i
n
to
 a
 c
ri
s
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 A
ll 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 

w
h
o
lly
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm

 (
w
it
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 b
e
in
g
 

m
e
t 
in
 9
 m

o
n
th
s
) 
a
n
d
 t
o
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
e
re
b
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 

m
o
re
 a
c
u
te
 a
n
d
 m

o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
In
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
4
5
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
S
IF
s
 2
7
4
, 

C
O
S
S
 1
8
2
).
 

Page 526



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
re
: 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t/
p
re
v
io
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 
(D
P
T
) 

•
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

W
id
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 (
n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
) 

 

  
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 In
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
4
5
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
S
IF
s
 2
7
4
, 
C
O
S
S
 1
8
2
) 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 h
a
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

  O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 S
IF
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
2
7
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
6
%
 h
a
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
O
S
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
3
3
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
%
 h
a
d
 a
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 M
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
r 
a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 S
IF
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
1
7
%
 h
a
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 1
9
%
 w
e
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 &
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
O
S
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
2
1
%
 h
a
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 

Page 527



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

a
n
d
 1
2
%
 w
e
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
):
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
1
2
2
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
9
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
/Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
2
7
.6
%
 (
2
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w
it
h
 1
5
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
 o
w
e
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
, 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
1
3
7
 

(1
2
.9
%
)w
e
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
3
1
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M
A
R
A
C
 (
M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
) 

 T
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 s
h
o
w
s
 h
is
to
ri
c
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 S
IF
S
. 
N
o
te
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
C
O
S
S
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 S
IF
S
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

2
5
4
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
7
4
 

L
a
te
s
t 
fi
g
u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 
2
4
%
. 
L
e
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm

 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
lf
 h
a
rm

, 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 u
n
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 

w
o
rs
e
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 b
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

v
a
ry
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
te
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
/e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
. 

 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1
s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T

o
rb

a
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
fi
le

 2
0
1

3
, 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
2
4

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

, 
w

w
w

.h
e

a
lt
h

p
ro

fi
le

s
.i
n
fo

  

Page 528



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

 A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

Page 529



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 

O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

 

Page 530



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 L
iv
in
g
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 8
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

  T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
5
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 W
e
s
tw
a
rd
 H
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 8
8
 c
lie
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 1
4
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
, 
ta
c
k
le
 d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a
v
o
id
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 h
e
lp
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
 o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

d
e
b
t.
 A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
ru
g
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 i
t 
w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
. 
A
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
u
ic
id
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
re
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
. 

 It
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
, 
d
ru
g
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
e
a
m
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 s
o
o
n
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 m
o
re
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
lo
s
e
d
, 
th
e
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
t.
 I
t 
w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 

n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
m
a
in
e
d
 h
ig
h
, 
w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
5
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.
 

Page 531



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

 O
f 
th
o
s
e
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
: 
 

A
g
e
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
- 
7
8
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
-2
4
, 
1
8
1
 

a
g
e
d
 2
5
-4
4
, 
1
5
7
 a
g
e
d
 4
5
-6
0
 a
n
d
  
4
0
 

a
g
e
d
 6
1
+
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
1
8
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
, 

th
e
re
fo
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
d
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
d
u
lt
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 S
IF
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

in
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
2
7
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
6
%
 h
a
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 

s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
 

O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
O
S
S
  

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
3
3
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
%
 h
a
d
 a
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

Page 532



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

  
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 

k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

e
a
n
in
g
 e
a
rl
y
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
W
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
IF
S
 a
n
d
 C
O
S
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
a
re
 

fa
c
in
g
 s
im
ila
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 

G
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 e
s
c
a
la
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
v
o
id
 m

o
re
 c
o
s
tl
y
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
a
n
 n
o
w
. 

Page 533



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 

 
1
. 
1
8
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
d
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a
d
u
lt
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

2
. 
O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 S
IF
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
2
7
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
6
%
 h
a
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 

s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
O
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
O
S
S
  
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
3
3
%
 h
a
d
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
%
 

h
a
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
o
r 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

3
. 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

4
. 
T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
: 

 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 

a
d
v
ic
e
/a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 b
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t.
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
  

   

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

Page 534



 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
in
g
  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
- 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
m
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
 i
s
 o
w
e
d
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
a
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
lr
y
 

 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

         

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

Page 535



 

  

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
x
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
5
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 8
8
 c
lie
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 1
4
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 W
e
s
tw
a
rd
 H
o
u
s
in
g
. 

   

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

T
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w
e
llb
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
lie
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 e
tc
. 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

Page 536



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 d
e
b
t 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
/h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
A
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
 

 “E
x
a
c
e
rb
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
fe
w
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

re
g
a
in
/r
e
ta
in
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
.”
 

 “M
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
d
e
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
ic
id
e
s
. 

R
e
m
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
o
e
s
n
't
 j
u
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
m
e
 b
u
t 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 f
a
m
ily
.”
 

 “I
t 
w
ill
 s
to
p
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
to
p
 t
h
e
m
 b
e
in
g
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 

m
o
re
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
”.
 

 “I
 d
id
 h
a
v
e
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
 b
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
b
y
 l
iv
in
g
 o
n
 m
y
 

o
w
n
 b
u
t 
i 
d
o
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
, 
w
e
re
 I
 d
o
n
't
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 d
o
 

s
o
m
e
th
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
y
 I
 n
e
e
d
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 b
e
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t.
” 
 

 “I
f 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 h
e
lp
, 
y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
”.
 

  T
w
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 S
IF
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 o
r 

lit
e
ra
c
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 

w
it
h
 c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
ill
s
. 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s
k
ill
 i
n
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
n
d
/o
r 

lia
is
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
. 
O
n
e
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 g
iv
e
n
 w
a
s
 o
f 

a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
w
h
o
 w
a
s
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 t
ra
v
e
l 
c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
in
 L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
  

 

Page 537



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

“T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
to
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 w
ill
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
s
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
S
IF
S
 w
ill
 s
h
if
t 
th
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t-
p
re
s
s
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
-

d
e
m
a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

te
a
m
s
, 
D
ru
g
 &
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
T
e
a
m
s
, 
A
&
E
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
, 
p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
c
ri
m
in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
, 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
).
” 

 “W
ro
n
g
 o
n
 a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
, 
c
ri
m
e
 w
ill
 g
o
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
o
o
f 
a
s
 l
o
n
g
 a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 f
a
n
ta
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 r
u
n
 w
ill
 

s
a
v
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 l
e
s
s
 c
ri
m
e
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 e
tc
.”
  

 “B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 m
e
 a
n
d
 m
y
 f
a
m
ily
 w
o
u
ld
 e
n
d
 u
p
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
 o
n
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 m
e
 w
it
h
 b
ill
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
w
o
rk
.”
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

“I
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 

(s
u
c
h
 a
s
 i
n
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
in
 2
0
1
1
) 
th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

e
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
a
b
le
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 u
n
it
s
),
 a
n
d
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
.”
 

 P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 -
 8
8
 s
ig
n
a
tu
re
s
 -
 a
s
k
e
d
 w
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
d
e
d
 -
 1
1
 

in
d
ic
a
te
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 1
3
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
1
0
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
ri
s
o
n
. 
 

 “.
..
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 6
9
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
re
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.
 I
f 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 e
q
u
a
te
 t
o
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
£
1
8
4
,0
8
0
 

p
a
.”
  

 

Page 538



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 ‘
k
n
o
c
k
 

o
n
 e
ff
e
c
t’
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 w
h
ic
h
 s
h
a
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
IF
S
 t
e
a
m
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 ‘
k
n
o
c
k
 o
n
’ 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
W
e
s
tw
a
rd
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 I
T
, 
H
R
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
e
.”
 

 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

“W
e
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
tl
y
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t,
 w
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
it
h
in
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 –
 w
h
ils
t 
s
ti
ll 
re
ta
in
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 

d
o
n
e
 t
h
is
 i
n
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll,
 D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
ly
m
o
u
th
.”
 

 “W
e
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
, 
b
u
t 
w
e
 d
o
 n
e
e
d
 m
o
re
 t
im
e
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
 t
h
is
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
. 
 W
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 b
y
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 a
re
 p
u
tt
in
g
 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
y
 r
u
s
h
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

th
ro
u
g
h
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 a
s
k
 f
o
r 
a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
a
 

y
e
a
r 
to
 g
iv
e
 u
s
 t
im
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
u
ts
 n
e
e
d
e
d
.”
 

 “W
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
s
is
ti
n
g
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

m
e
e
ts
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
u
rg
e
n
tl
y
 t
o
 p
la
n
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
s
.”
 

 

  

 
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 3
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 8
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 L
iv
in
g
. 

 

Page 539



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

“C
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
 s
e
n
s
o
ry
 l
o
s
s
 w
e
 f
e
e
l 
w
it
h
 b
e
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 .
..
 w
ill
 l
o
s
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
w
o
 f
u
lly
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 B
S
L
 t
ra
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 

a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
.”
 

 “I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 u
s
in
g
 “
p
a
y
 d
a
y
 l
o
a
n
s
” 
a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 f
a
il 
to
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 

th
e
ir
 d
e
b
t.
 W
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
b
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
R
e
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 

in
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
lo
s
e
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
. 
C
A
B
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 o
v
e
r 
s
tr
e
tc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
o
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

a
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.
 T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 a
ro
u
n
d
 d
e
b
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 
is
 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 
9
0
%
 
in
 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 
d
e
b
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
7
6
%
.”
 

 “I
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
 g
o
in
g
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 t
e
rr
ib
le
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 f
a
c
e
 

c
ri
s
is
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
o
r 
s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 t
o
 t
a
lk
 t
o
 i
f 
th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 k
in
d
 

o
f 
b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
.”
 

 “I
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
s
e
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
x
a
c
e
rb
a
te
d
, 
d
e
b
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 

lo
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
, 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
ill
 b
re
a
k
 u
p
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
tu
a
lly
, 
s
o
m
e
 w
ill
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 l
if
e
” 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
  
 

“S
a
v
e
d
 m
y
 l
if
e
 r
e
a
lly
, 
I 
w
a
s
 g
iv
in
g
 u
p
. 
 U
n
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
ts
 I
 c
o
u
ld
 g
e
t,
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 c
la
im
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
s
o
rt
 b
ill
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
t 

m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
ff
a
ir
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r.
” 

 “W
it
h
 h
e
lp
 I
 s
ta
y
 o
n
 a
n
 e
v
e
n
 k
e
e
l 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
. 
A
ll 
th
is
 h
a
s
 

a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 m
y
 m
e
n
ta
l 
w
e
llb
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
to
p
s
 m
e
 h
a
v
in
g
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
.”
 

 “I
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
o
 I
 d
o
n
't
 l
o
s
e
 m
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
- 
I 
d
o
n
't 
w
a
n
t 
to
 

g
o
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 g
o
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
 h
o
m
e
” 

Page 540



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

  “
I 
d
o
n
't 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 o
r 
w
ri
te
. 
I 
d
o
n
't 
w
a
n
t 
to
 g
e
t 
b
e
h
in
d
 

o
n
 a
n
y
th
in
g
 o
r 
g
e
t 
in
to
 d
e
b
t 
o
r 
lo
s
e
 m
y
 f
la
t.
” 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 “
If
 y
o
u
 c
u
t 
th
e
 n
o
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
 d
ra
s
ti
c
 w
a
y
 i
t 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

h
u
g
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
k
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 e
ff
e
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 w
ill
 

c
o
s
t 
m
o
re
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 r
u
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

s
to
p
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
g
o
in
g
 
in
to
 
c
ri
s
is
 
a
n
d
 
d
ra
in
in
g
 
th
e
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

“T
h
is
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 t
e
a
m
 w
h
o
 

w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 m
o
re
 c
ri
s
is
 r
e
la
te
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 

re
s
o
lv
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
9
0
%
 a
re
 r
e
s
o
lv
a
b
le
 i
f 
ri
g
h
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 

g
iv
e
n
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 q
u
ic
k
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
.”
 

 “T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
to
ld
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 

T
h
e
y
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 n
o
w
, 
le
t 
a
lo
n
e
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
It
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
a
s
tr
o
u
s
 

fo
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
v
ic
te
d
 a
n
d
 l
o
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
 –
 

th
e
y
 w
ill
 g
e
t 
e
x
p
lo
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 e
n
d
 u
p
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 g
o
 i
n
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

h
o
m
e
s
 a
g
a
in
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

s
o
m
e
 f
o
rm
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
” 

 “I
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
ff
e
ri
n
g
 f
ro
m
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 d
e
p
re
s
s
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 m
e
 d
o
w
n
 a
 n
e
v
e
r 
e
n
d
in
g
 s
p
ir
a
l“
 

 “I
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
n
 m
o
re
 c
ri
m
e
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 s
h
o
p
 l
if
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 m
u
g
g
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 o
f 
a
n
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

p
e
o
p
le
's
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
u
ld
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 m
o
re
 s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

N
H
S
. 
T
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
h
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
.”
 

 “M
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
d
ri
n
k
in
g
, 
u
s
in
g
 d
ru
g
s
, 
in
 p
ri
s
o
n
 o
r 
d
e
a
d
 i
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 

Page 541



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

b
e
e
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
” 

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

“T
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 m
a
y
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 g
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
lin
e
 
fi
g
u
re
 
b
u
t 
th
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ts
 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 
c
u
ts
 
w
ill
 
h
a
v
e
 
fa
ir
 

re
a
c
h
in
g
 
e
ff
e
c
ts
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
tu
re
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 
a
n
d
 
th
a
t 
o
f 
it
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 C
u
ts
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 a
n
d
 F
ir
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
c
e
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
r 
u
s
e
 f
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
ill
 
m
e
a
n
 
th
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
w
ill
 
h
a
v
e
 
to
 
b
e
 
re
d
ir
e
c
te
d
 
to
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
b
a
la
n
c
e
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
it
h
 a
 7
0
%
 c
u
t 
b
e
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

o
n
ly
 a
 2
5
%
 c
u
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
.”
 

  “
..
.c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 6
9
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
re
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.
 I
f 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 e
q
u
a
te
 t
o
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
£
1
8
4
,0
8
0
 

p
a
.”
 

 “.
..
. 
c
u
ts
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s
o
 m
a
n
y
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
..
..
” 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“I
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 w
e
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 

s
e
e
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
1
2
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 f
a
c
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
O
S
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 f
u
tu
re
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

Page 542



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

n
e
e
d
s
 s
to
c
k
 f
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
te
n
a
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
re
 

w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 t
ra
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
te
n
a
n
ts
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
ir
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
.”
 

 “S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 
te
n
a
n
ts
 
in
 
n
e
e
d
 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
w
ill
 
ru
n
 
th
e
 
ri
s
k
 
o
f 
lo
s
in
g
 
th
e
ir
 

te
n
a
n
c
y
..
..
..
.o
th
e
r 
s
ta
ff
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 w
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
.”
 

 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

“C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 
2
5
2
 
c
lie
n
ts
 
h
a
v
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
in
c
e
 w
e
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
” 

 “D
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 h
ig
h
 a
n
d
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
, 
b
y
 t
h
e
 w
a
it
in
g
 

lis
t 
w
h
ic
h
 
s
ta
n
d
s
 
a
t 
5
0
, 
w
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
s
h
a
re
 
th
e
 
w
a
it
in
g
 
lis
t 
w
it
h
 

W
e
s
tc
o
u
n
tr
y
 S
IF
S
.”
 

 “M
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
e
r 
w
a
s
 a
lw
a
y
s
 p
le
a
s
a
n
t,
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
h
e
e
rf
u
l,
 s
h
e
 

w
a
s
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
, 
s
h
e
 l
is
te
n
s
 a
n
d
 I
 f
e
lt
 l
ik
e
 s
o
m
e
o
n
e
 c
a
re
s
” 

 T
w
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 C
O
S
S
. 
 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 B
e
d
ro
o
m
 T
a
x
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
. 
 

T
w
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

tr
u
s
t 
th
a
t 
b
u
ilt
 
u
p
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
w
o
rk
e
r.
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 f
e
lt
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
d
 b
e
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

  

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

“W
e
 
w
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 
th
e
 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 
to
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
o
rk
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
y
o
u
 
to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 W
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
o
p
e
n
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 

h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
c
u
re
d
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 
p
ro
b
le
m
 
w
ill
 
n
o
t 
b
e
 
s
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
 
it
 
c
a
n
 
o
n
ly
 
b
e
 

Page 543



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 b
o
th
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

th
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
s
a
v
in
g
 
o
r 
fu
tu
re
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 C
C
G
 i
ts
e
lf
 i
n
 i
ts
 l
e
tt
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
e
a
m
 o
n
 

th
e
 
1
7
th
 
o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 
th
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 
a
re
a
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
n
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 

fo
r 
m
o
re
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 
th
e
 
fu
tu
re
 
d
ir
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 

   

Page 544



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
1
2
/0
8
/1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
 

D
a
te
: 

0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
0
6
/0
2
/1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 30

Page 545



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 [
C
J
A
S
]-
  
1
0
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
n
 l
ic
e
n
c
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 
£
6
0
,0
0
0
 

 

 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 

£
6
0
,0
0
0
 

   

  
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 m
u
lt
ip
le
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 (
e
.g
. 
p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
).
 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 

o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 

M
A
P
P
A
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 c
o
-o
p
e
ra
te
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 

ri
s
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

   

 

X
 

Page 546



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
J
A
S
) 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 1
0
 u
n
it
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
re
e
 s
it
e
s
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
T
h
e
ir
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
o
rb
a
y
, 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 s
e
tt
le
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
m
 o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 f
o
r 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
R
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 f
ro
m
 D
e
v
o
n
 &
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
(D
P
T
),
 T
u
rn
a
ro
u
n
d
 (
th
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
ri
s
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 1
8
+
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
 m
a
le
 a
n
d
 f
e
m
a
le
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 f
ro
m
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
h
o
 

a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 b
y
 O
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
, 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
fo
r 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
-u
s
e
. 
L
e
n
g
th
 

o
f 
s
ta
y
 i
s
 a
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
2
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l:
 T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 1
0
0
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
J
A
S
).
 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 

th
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 £
6
0
,0
0
0
 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 If
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
e
rm
in
a
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
r-
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 .
  

K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
re
: 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 

•
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
lie
n
ts
, 
s
o
m
e
 o
f 
w
h
o
m
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
  

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 
M
A
P
P
A
 (
M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 

Page 547



 

T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 1
5
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
  

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 a
 f
ir
s
t 
s
te
p
 

to
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
lif
e
s
ty
le
 w
h
ic
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
d
  
p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 l
o
o
k
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 ‘
re
v
o
lv
in
g
 d
o
o
r’
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 B
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
s
t 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 3
1
s
t 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
, 
4
3
3
7
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
 O
rd
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t.
 O
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
6
9
6
 (
1
6
%
) 
a
re
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
. 

 O
f 
th
e
 6
9
6
: 
 m
a
le
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
re
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
, 
w
it
h
 8
6
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
:.
 

 
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
  

M
a
le
 

6
0
1
 

8
6
%
 

F
e
m
a
le
 

9
5
 

1
4
%
 

T
o
ta
l 

6
9
6
 

1
0
0
%
 

S
o
u
rc
e
: 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 C
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
D
a
ta
 -
 a
d
 h
o
c
 r
e
p
o
rt
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 A
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 

 
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
  

1
8
-2
4
 y
e
a
rs
 

1
7
8
 

2
6
%
 

2
5
 3
4
 y
e
a
rs
 

2
3
0
 

3
3
%
 

3
5
-4
4
 y
e
a
rs
 

1
6
1
 

2
3
%
 

4
5
-5
4
 y
e
a
rs
 

9
4
 

1
4
%
 

5
5
-6
4
 y
e
a
rs
 

2
0
 

3
%
 

6
5
+
 

1
3
 

2
%
 

T
o
ta
l 

6
9
6
 

1
0
0
%
 

S
o
u
rc
e
: 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 C
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
D
a
ta
 -
 a
d
 h
o
c
 r
e
p
o
rt
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

Page 548



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 R
a
c
e
  

 W
it
h
in
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
, 
th
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 W
h
it
e
 (
9
0
%
).
  

 O
ff
e
n
c
e
 T
y
p
e
 

 W
it
h
in
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
, 
th
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 a
n
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
V
io
le
n
c
e
 (
3
5
%
),
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 T
h
e
ft
 (
1
2
%
).
 

 
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
  

B
u
rg
la
ry
 

5
9
 

8
%
 

C
ri
m
in
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 

3
1
 

4
%
 

D
ri
v
in
g
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

7
0
 

1
0
%
 

D
ru
g
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

8
0
 

1
1
%
 

F
ra
u
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
rg
e
ry
 

5
8
 

8
%
 

P
u
b
li
c
 o
rd
e
r 
o
r 
ri
o
t 

4
5
 

6
%
 

R
o
b
b
e
ry
 

7
 

1
%
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 

2
9
 

4
%
 

T
h
e
ft
 

8
6
 

1
2
%
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
  

2
2
0
 

3
2
%
 

O
th
e
r 

9
 

1
%
 

U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 

2
 

- 

T
o
ta
l 

6
9
6
 

1
0
0
%
 

S
o
u
rc
e
: 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 C
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
D
a
ta
 -
 a
d
 h
o
c
 r
e
p
o
rt
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
is
 w
a
y
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
. 
 

 In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
):
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
1
2
2
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1
3
9
 w
e
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
/Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
2
7
.6
%
 (
2
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 w
it
h
 1
5
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
 o
w
e
d
 a
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 d
u
ty
, 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
1
3
7
 

(1
2
.9
%
)w
e
re
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
u
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 
W
h
e
re
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
3
1
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M
A
R
A
C
 (
M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
)  

Page 549



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 
A
 M
in
is
tr
y
 o
f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
 s
ta
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
‘O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 w
it
h
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
. 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
ta
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
in
 

e
n
a
b
lin
g
 e
x
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
. 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 f
a
m
ily
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
re
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 o
n
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 f
ro
m
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
in
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
.’

1
 

 

4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 o
r 
b
o
th
; 

a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
: 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
n
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
M
in
is
tr
y
 o
f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
S
e
ri
e
s
, 
2
0
1
3
, 
p
5
, 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w
w
w
.g
o
v
.u
k
/g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t/
u
p
lo
a
d
s
/s
y
s
te
m
/u
p
lo
a
d
s
/a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t_
d
a
ta
/f
ile
/2
4
3
7
1
8
/e
v
id
e
n
c
e
-r
e
d
u
c
e
-r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
.p
d
f 
 

Page 550



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 

o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 

Page 551



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
re
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
s
k
in
g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 

1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

  

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 1
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 3
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
e
lp
s
 t
o
: 

 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
ta
b
le
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

•
 
H
e
lp
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
. 
 

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 f
in
d
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

•
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 g
e
t 
in
to
 t
ra
in
in
g
/e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
/e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
  

•
 
G
iv
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
e
lf
 w
o
rt
h
  

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 c
ri
m
e
 

•
 
A
v
o
id
 r
e
la
p
s
e
 i
n
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
b
u
s
e
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
d
e
d
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t:
 

 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
o
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
/a
b
u
s
e
 

•
 
T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
c
a
ll 
to
 p
ri
s
o
n
. 

Page 552



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
e
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 f
e
lt
 t
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

 

•
 
G
P
s
, 
 

•
 
M
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 
P
o
lic
e
  

•
 
W
id
e
r 
c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
e
c
to
r 
(e
.g
. 
p
ri
s
o
n
).
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 w
e
re
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
to
 b
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
o
u
ld
 s
o
o
n
 b
e
 l
o
s
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
w
o
u
ld
 “
h
a
v
e
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 W
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
o
p
e
n
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
.”
 

 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 o
f 
2
 f
u
ll 
ti
m
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
. 

  

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

  
 

 
 

Page 553



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
+
 

O
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
3
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
 t
o
 2
4
, 

a
n
d
 1
2
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 2
5
 t
o
 4
5
. 

T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
, 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
s
h
o
w
n
 f
ro
m
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 

m
e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 

m
a
le
. 
(1
4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w
e
re
 m
a
le
).
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 m
a
le
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

  
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 

Page 554



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t  

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 

k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 

c
ri
m
e
 

 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
 

N
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 
lin
k
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
in
to
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 

lif
e
s
ty
le
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
. 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 7
0
%
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
r 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 
 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
u
t-
s
o
u
rc
e
d
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
k
n
o
w
n
. 
 

  

 

Page 555



 

  S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
 a
b
o
v
e
: 

 •
 
T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
+
. 
O
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
3
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
 t
o
 2
4
, 
a
n
d
 1
2
 w
e
re
 a
g
e
d
 2
5
 t
o
 4
5
.T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
, 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 m
e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
m
e
n
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 m
a
le
. 
 

T
h
e
re
fo
re
 m
a
le
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

•
 
In
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
w
h
e
re
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
ta
tu
s
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
, 
5
6
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 w
e
lf
a
re
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 
W
e
 w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
 b
e
lo
w
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 
T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 •
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
  

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
 f
o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ry
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ry
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
/a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 d
a
ta
 

•
 
M
o
n
it
o
r 
M
A
P
P
A
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
e
t 

 

Page 556



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 
X
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

    

 
  

Page 557



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 1
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 3
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 L
iv
in
g
. 

 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
L
if
e
 

o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

“W
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
th
e
re
 
is
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 
a
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
” 

 "H
a
v
in
g
 s
o
m
e
w
h
e
re
 s
ta
b
le
 w
it
h
 r
ig
h
t 
a
tm
o
s
p
h
e
re
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 -
 f
e
e
ls
 l
ik
e
 h
o
m
e
 -
 

s
ta
ff
 n
o
t 
o
n
 t
o
p
 o
f 
y
o
u
, 
th
e
re
 w
h
e
n
 y
o
u
 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
m
. 
L
if
e
s
ty
le
 d
if
fe
re
n
t"
 

 O
n
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 C
J
A
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
y
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
p
o
n
 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 
a
s
 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
w
 
it
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 
th
e
m
 
in
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
n
d
/o
r 
lia
is
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
 a
ls
o
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 g
e
t 
in
to
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
th
 i
n
 s
e
lf
 b
e
lie
f 
w
h
ic
h
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
m
 f
e
e
l 
m
o
re
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lin
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
it
 c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 

le
a
d
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 t
a
k
in
g
, 
c
ri
m
in
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 u
lt
im
a
te
ly
 a
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 p
ri
s
o
n
. 
  
 

  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

“C
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 r
e
s
o
rt
 o
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 f
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
, 

th
is
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b
o
th
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
G
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
d
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 “V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
, 
th
e
s
e
 r
is
k
 m
a
y
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 
o
r 
in
 
s
o
m
e
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
re
m
a
in
 
u
n
n
o
ti
c
e
d
 
b
y
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.”
 

 O
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
s
t 
ti
m
e
 h
e
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 
p
ri
s
o
n
 

o
n
 t
e
n
 y
e
a
rs
. 
A
ll 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
t 
w
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 t
o
 o
th
e
rs
 c
o
m
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
p
ri
s
o
n
 i
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 t
o
 e
n
d
. 
 T
h
e
y
 

Page 558



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

fe
lt
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 w
h
e
re
 t
o
 g
o
 f
o
r 
h
e
lp
, 
h
a
v
e
 n
o
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
ts
 f
o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 
a
n
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
w
o
u
ld
 
n
o
t 
b
e
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
c
o
p
e
. 
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
le
e
p
 r
o
u
g
h
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 t
o
 p
ri
s
o
n
. 
T
h
e
y
 f
e
lt
 

th
is
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic
e
, 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 c
o
s
t 
m
o
re
. 

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

“T
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
u
ts
 m
a
y
 g
iv
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 g
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
lin
e
 f
ig
u
re
 b
u
t 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
u
ts
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 f
a
ir
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
tu
re
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
it
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 C
u
ts
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 

C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t,
 “
a
n
d
 F
ir
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
r 
u
s
e
 f
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
ill
 
m
e
a
n
 
th
a
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
w
ill
 
h
a
v
e
 
to
 
b
e
 
re
d
ir
e
c
te
d
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
is
 
c
o
u
n
te
r 

b
a
la
n
c
e
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 a
 7
0
%
 c
u
t 
b
e
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 a
 2
5
%
 

c
u
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
.”
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“R
is
k
 o
f 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 -
 A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tw
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 …
..
” 

 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

/ 
S
o
u
rc
e
 O
th
e
r 

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

“W
e
 
w
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 
th
e
 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 
to
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
o
rk
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
y
o
u
 
to
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 W
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
o
p
e
n
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
h
o
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
.”
 

 “T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 p
ro
b
le
m
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 s
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 i
s
o
la
ti
o
n
 i
t 
c
a
n
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 b
o
th
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 

th
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
r 
fu
tu
re
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
.”
 

 

Page 559



 

 

Page 560



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

  
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
3
0

th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
:
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
 6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 31

Page 561



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

R
e
a
c
h
in
g
 O
u
t 
S
o
u
th
 W
e
s
t:
 

P
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
7
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
. 
C
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 p
re
-

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m

o
s
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 

£
4
5
0
,0
0
0
 

in
 y
e
a
r 
2
 

(f
ro
m
 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
5
) 

 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
5
 

(n
o
ti
c
e
 

w
o
u
ld
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 o
n
 

th
is
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
3
 

m
o
n
th
s
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

th
is
) 

 •
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
ir
e
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
5
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
ru
s
t 
(D
P
T
) 
a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

X
 

Page 562



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
n
d
 d
a
te
 o
f 
1
2

th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
. 

 T
h
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 ‘
R
e
a
c
h
in
g
 O
u
t 
S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t’
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
n
s
is
ts
 o
f 
C
h
a
p
te
r 
1
 (
le
a
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
r)
, 
J
a
ti
s
, 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
L
iv
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 (
S
IL
S
) 
a
n
d
 F
o
lk
s
 a
t 
H
o
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 t
h
e
 s
k
ill
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t,
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
7
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
a
n
y
 o
n
e
 t
im
e
, 
a
n
d
 1
0
0
 h
o
u
rs
 a
 w
e
e
k
 o
f 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 e
it
h
e
r 
c
o
m
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
o
r 
m
o
v
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 4
 –
 8
 w
e
e
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
-e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
h
a
s
e
, 
a
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
u
p
 t
o
 9
 

m
o
n
th
s
, 
a
n
d
 u
p
 t
o
 4
 m

o
n
th
s
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 a
 m

a
x
im
u
m
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
f 
1
5
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
h
a
v
e
 a
n
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 h
is
to
ry
, 
o
r 
d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
s
u
e
s
) 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
1
8
 t
o
 6
5
. 
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
te
ly
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 i
s
 a
 

re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 c
a
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
C
a
re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
s
, 
O
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

fr
o
m
 p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 e
tc
. 
P
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fe
r 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 a
 l
o
t 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
n
d
 d
a
te
 o
f 
1
2

th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
. 

 

Page 563



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
te
ly
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 w
h
ic
h
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 

  T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 e
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 

in
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
’ 
liv
e
s
, 
a
s
 l
iv
in
g
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
 

 O
n
 a
 w
id
e
r 
le
v
e
l,
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m
s
, 
w
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 

a
g
e
n
ts
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
(D
P
T
) 
h
a
s
 v
e
ry
 l
it
tl
e
 o
f 
it
s
 ‘
o
w
n
’ 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
y
s
 a
 k
e
y
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

 F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

o
v
e
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
ft
e
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
it
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 

m
o
v
e
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
. 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
it
e
d
. 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
in
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
. 
a
n
d
  
is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
d
u
c
iv
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 f
u
ll 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 
F
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
  
p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
s
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 .
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

  T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
ls
o
 w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 L
e
o
n
a
rd
 S
to
c
k
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

(w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
p
o
s
it
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
n
t 
in
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
) 
If
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
d
o
 t
h
is
, 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
 

 
 

Page 564



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 o
n
 1
9
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 
4
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
. 

 In
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 (
u
p
 u
n
ti
l 
6
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
) 
4
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
ir
 a
g
e
 

ra
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

A
g

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 

1
8
-2
4
 

9
 

2
5
-3
4
 

1
2
 

3
5
-4
4
 

9
 

4
5
-5
4
 

1
0
 

5
5
-6
4
 

1
 

6
5
+
 

1
 

T
o

ta
l 

4
2
 

 1
3
 (
3
1
%
) 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
 a
n
d
 2
9
 (
6
9
%
) 
w
e
re
 m

a
le
 

O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 4
2
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
5
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
 

 B
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
rt
 a
n
d
 6
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
1
6
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
ft
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
h
e
n
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 8
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
is
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 
1
1
 o
f 
th
e
 1
6
 (
6
9
%
) 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 b
e
tt
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
m
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
is
. 
1
1
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 s
e
tt
le
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

a
ll 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
is
. 

Page 565



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
-6
4
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
, 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 2
0
2
0

1
 

 

2
0
1
4
 

2
0
1
6
 

2
0
1
8
 

2
0
2
0
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 m

e
n
ta
l 
d
is
o
rd
e
r 

1
1
,9
8
4
 

1
1
,9
5
2
 

1
1
,9
7
7
 

1
1
,8
8
6
 

B
o
rd
e
rl
in
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lit
y
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

3
3
6
 

3
3
5
 

3
3
5
 

3
3
3
 

A
n
ti
s
o
c
ia
l 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lit
y
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

2
5
6
 

2
5
5
 

2
5
6
 

2
5
5
 

P
s
y
c
h
o
ti
c
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

2
9
8
 

2
9
7
 

2
9
8
 

2
9
5
 

T
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 p
s
y
c
h
ia
tr
ic
 d
is
o
rd
e
rs
 

5
,3
4
0
 

5
,3
2
5
 

5
,3
3
9
 

5
,3
0
2
 

 T
h
is
 t
a
b
le
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 A
d
u
lt
 p
s
y
c
h
ia
tr
ic
 m

o
rb
id
it
y
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
, 
2
0
0
7
: 
R
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
a
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 s
u
rv
e
y
, 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
b
o
v
e
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
: 

 

 %
 m

a
le
s
 

 %
 f
e
m
a
le
s
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 m

e
n
ta
l 
d
is
o
rd
e
r 

1
2
.5
 

1
9
.7
 

B
o
rd
e
rl
in
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lit
y
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

0
.3
 

0
.6
 

A
n
ti
s
o
c
ia
l 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lit
y
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

0
.6
 

0
.1
 

P
s
y
c
h
o
ti
c
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 

0
.3
 

0
.5
 

T
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 p
s
y
c
h
ia
tr
ic
 d
is
o
rd
e
rs
 

6
.9
 

7
.5
 

 ‘E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 h
ig
h
e
r 
ra
te
s
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
. 
T
o
rb
a
y
 i
s
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
in
ti
le
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
te
 o
f 
5
.8
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w
it
h
in
 T
o
rb
a
y
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
o
m
e
 2
,0
0
0
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.’

2
 

  
4
. 

H
o
w
  
h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 P
ro
je
c
ti
n
g
 A
d
u
lt
s
 N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
w
w
.p
a
n
s
i.
o
rg
.u
k
. 
T
h
e
 p
re
v
a
le
n
c
e
 r
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
 o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 1
8
-6
4
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

2
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 J
o
in
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 N
e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t,
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 

w
w
w
.t
o
rb
a
y
.g
o
v
.u
k
/j
s
n
a
 p
a
g
e
 3
2
 

Page 566



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

  
T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 o
r 
b
o
th
; 

a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 

o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

Page 567



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
o
lic
e
 

•
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
s
k
in
g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.  

Page 568



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 

1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 
5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 5
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
li
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 t
a
lk
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
s
e
lf
 w
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 e
s
te
e
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 g
iv
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 m

o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
s
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
. 
 S
o
m
e
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
. 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 d
ru
g
s
, 
c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
, 
in
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 

d
e
a
d
. 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
a
lk
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 w
id
e
r 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

A
ll 
b
u
t 
2
 o
f 
th
e
 4
2
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
5
5
. 

Page 569



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

N
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 4
2
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ts
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
1
7
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
a
d
 a
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 
 

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 

m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

le
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

in
 a
 m

a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 w
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

p
re
g
n
a
n
t/
o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 4
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
, 
6
9
%
 

h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 

e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
d
u
lt
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 m

a
y
 n
e
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 

Page 570



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

     

T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

lif
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 

c
h
a
o
ti
c
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
  
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
is
. 
 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
in
g
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
G
e
n
e
ri
c
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 n
o
n
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 S
IF
s
 a
n
d
 C
O
S
S
, 
a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 (
s
e
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 E
IA
 f
o
r 
fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
).
 

  

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
. 
 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 

 
1
. 
1
7
%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
a
d
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

2
. 
O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 4
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
re
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
, 
6
9
%
 h
a
d
 a
 s
ta
tu
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
a
n
t 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 

e
lig
ib
le
 f
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 

3
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 l
if
e
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 o
ft
e
n
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
a
o
ti
c
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
is
. 

 
It
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l:
 

Page 571



 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

D
e
la
y
s
 o
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

  

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 b
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
C
M
H
S
) 
–
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 C
M
H
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
ig
u
re
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 C
M
H
S
 o
r 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

D
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 C
M
H
T
 o
r 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

 

Page 572



 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 
X
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 

Page 573



 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
R
e
a
c
h
in
g
 O
u
t 
S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t 
- 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 5
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

  

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
li
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 t
a
lk
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
s
e
lf
 w
o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
 e
s
te
e
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 g
iv
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
s
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
. 
 S
o
m
e
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

g
o
o
d
 c
h
o
ic
e
s
. 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
  

W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 

d
ru
g
s
, 
c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
, 
in
 p
ri
s
o
n
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
d
e
a
d
. 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
a
lk
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
o
k
e
 o
f 
im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 p
ri
s
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 w
id
e
r 
T
o
rq
u
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

Page 574



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

  
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
  

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
3
0

th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 32

Page 575



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h
e
n
 w

ill
 

th
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis

e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 /
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m

e
 

£
 0

0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
 0

0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

F
o
lk

s
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

o
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 t
o
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 4
8
%
 

 
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

s
a
v
in
g
 

£
9
5
,4
0
0
 

 

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
s
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
, 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

X
 

Page 576



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 

 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 F
o
lk
s
 @

 H
o
m
e
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 4
8
%
 f
ro
m
 M
a
rc
h
 1
8

th
 2
0
1
4
  

 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 4
8
%
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
u
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 £
1
0
0
k
. 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w

h
o
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
?
 

  •
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 C
lie
n
ts
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
F
o
lk
s
 @

 H
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
u
ld
 c
a
u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
–
 r
is
k
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
D
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 C
a
re
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 s
tr
u
g
g
le
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 

th
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
–
 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
  
L
iv
in
g
 W

e
ll 
@
 H
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
),
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
5
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 b
e
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
. 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 n
o
w
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
h
e
a
v
ily
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 L
iv
in
g
 W

e
ll 
@
 H
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 l
im
it
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
. 

•
 

W
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 –
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
fu
tu
re
 c
lie
n
ts
  
c
o
u
ld
  
lo
s
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 m

o
re
 q
u
ic
k
ly
, 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
 m

a
y
  
b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 f
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
. 

•
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 –
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 m

o
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 p
u
t 

p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
im
it
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 s
in
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
  
re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 m

o
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
to
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 -
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 
w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 

If
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
it
 m

a
y
 b
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 r
e
-p
ro
c
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
n
d
e
r 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
ru
le
s
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

Page 577



 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
?
  

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
re
n
d
s
 p
o
in
t 
to
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 b
o
th
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 m

o
s
t 
lik
e
ly
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

 
4
. 

H
o
w

 h
a
v
e
 y

o
u
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

  

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1
s
t  
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

d
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 

o
r 
b
o
th
; 
a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 

Page 578



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 

to
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 

re
c
o
rd
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

  P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

Page 579



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 

A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

a
s
k
in
g
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

 
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 8
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 

Page 580



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
. 

 P
e
o
p
le
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
F
o
lk
s
 @
 h
o
m
e
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
‘f
ill
s
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
’ 
fo
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
o
m
e
s
 

o
r 
to
 m
o
v
e
 t
o
 m
o
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
a
s
k
s
 r
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 

h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 b
ill
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
id
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
d
a
p
ti
v
e
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
ls
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 

 W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
c
lie
n
t’
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
d
 i
n
 u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
a
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
n
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 

w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 r
e
ly
in
g
 o
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
v
in
g
 i
n
to
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
. 

 It
 i
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
o
m
ic
ili
a
ry
 c
a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 

fa
r 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

  
 

 
 

Page 581



 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

 

 
P
o
s
it
iv

e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

N
o
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
  
b
e
 a
t 
g
re
a
te
r 
ri
s
k
 o
f 

s
o
c
ia
l 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
, 
fa
lls
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
h
e
lp
 

fr
o
m
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
tc
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 l
iv
in
g
 

in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
y
 f
in
d
 i
t 
h
a
rd
e
r 
to
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 

A
s
 F
@
H
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 (
5
5
+
),
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
C
lie
n
t 

R
e
c
o
rd
 D
a
ta
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
6
2
%
 o
f 

c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
 

w
e
re
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
6
5
, 
w
it
h
 1
7
%
 

o
v
e
r 
8
5
. 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
re
s
p
it
e
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fo
r 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 i
n
fo
rm

a
lly
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
/s
ib
lin
g
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
. 

   

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
  

O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
re
 b
y
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 C
lie
n
t 
R
e
c
o
rd
 f
o
rm

s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
-

1
3
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
7
7
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
d
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 

o
f 
a
ll 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
-1
3
, 
w
h
o
 h
a
d
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
: 

M
o
b
ili
ty
 -
 4
6
%
 

C
h
ro
n
ic
 (
e
.g
. 
C
O
P
D
/ 
C
a
n
c
e
r 
e
tc
) 
–
 2
4
%
 

Page 582



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

V
is
u
a
l 
–
 1
7
%
 

M
e
n
ta
l 
(e
.g
. 
D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
) 
1
7
%
 

H
e
a
ri
n
g
 -
 8
%
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 –
 4
%
 

N
o
te
: 
s
o
m
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

 

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
5
4
%
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
-1
3
 w
e
re
 f
e
m
a
le
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
ro
a
d
ly
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w
it
h
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
re
n
d
s
 w
it
h
 w
o
m
e
n
 

liv
in
g
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 m

e
n
, 
b
u
t 
in
d
ic
a
te
s
 

th
a
t 
m
o
re
  
w
o
m
e
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
  

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 b
e
re
a
v
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 l
o
s
t,
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
is
 

c
o
u
ld
  
le
a
d
 t
o
 a
  
d
e
c
lin
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
  
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
rv
iv
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

 

W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

 N
o
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

liv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 

m
a
ln
u
tr
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 l
ik
e
ly
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

Page 583



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
C
G
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
. 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

     

T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
  
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w

id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 S
P
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 
w
ill
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
ta
te
s
 a
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
o
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
y
 

o
th
e
r 
g
e
n
e
ri
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

 

8
b
. 

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

  C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 r
e
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 

   
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 
1
. 
O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
t 
g
re
a
te
r 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
is
o
la
ti
o
n
, 
fa
lls
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
h
e
lp
 f
ro
m
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
tc
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 

liv
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
y
 f
in
d
 i
t 
h
a
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
. 

2
. 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
re
s
p
it
e
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 

3
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 i
n
fo
rm

a
lly
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
/s
ib
lin
g
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
. 

4
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 b
e
re
a
v
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 m

a
y
 b
e
 l
o
s
t,
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
is
 c
o
u
ld
  
le
a
d
 t
o
 a
  
d
e
c
lin
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
  
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
rv
iv
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
r.
 

Page 584



 

5
. 
T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
m
a
ln
u
tr
it
io
n
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

6
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 l
ik
e
ly
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 

u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
p
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
C
G
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
. 

7
. 
T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
ill
 o
ff
e
r 
s
o
m
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 o
ff
s
e
t 
th
e
 l
o
s
s
, 
th
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
th
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

. 
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
a
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
e
w
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
h
is
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 r
is
k
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

m
it
ig
a
te
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 

  

   
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in

e
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
C
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
: 

 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
it
e
 v
is
it
s
  

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
a
re
 

•
 

A
c
u
te
 r
is
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 w
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

 
 A
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
th
is
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 

Page 585



 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
/o
r 
th
e
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
o
u
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 o

n
e
 m

a
y
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l)
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 

s
e
le

c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 4

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

    
   

Page 586



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
F
o
lk
s
 @

 H
o
m
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 8
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 a
s
 c
lie
n
ts
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
.T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 F
o
lk
s
@
H
o
m
e
. 

 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

L
if
e
 o
f 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

 “F
o
lk
s
 @
 h
o
m
e
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
‘f
ill
s
 t
h
e
 g
a
p
’ 
fo
r 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
t 
th
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 “M
a
n
y
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
in
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
g
e
, 
th
e
ir
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 
 

W
it
h
o
u
t 
F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
, 
th
e
s
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
a
b
le
 

to
 m
o
v
e
 h
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 r
is
k
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 b
y
 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
” 

 “I
f 
F
o
lk
s
 a
t 
H
o
m
e
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 I
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
, 

th
e
ir
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
.”
 

  “
F
o
lk
s
 @
 h
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
o
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

in
ta
k
e
.”
 

 “I
 s
u
ff
e
r 
fr
o
m
 s
e
v
e
re
 a
n
x
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
re
s
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 I
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
s
o
c
ia
lis
in
g
 

w
a
s
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 m
y
 c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 b
u
t 
m
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 m
e
 

o
th
e
rw
is
e
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 g
iv
e
n
 m
e
 a
 n
e
w
 l
e
a
s
e
 o
f 
lif
e
.”
 

  “
W
e
 w
e
re
 i
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
n
 I
 m
e
t 
m
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r.
 

S
h
e
 r
e
-h
o
u
s
e
d
 u
s
, 
s
e
t 
u
s
 u
p
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
, 
lia
is
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 o
u
r 
la
n
d
lo
rd
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm
 c
a
m
e
 i
n
 t
o
 p
la
c
e
. 
S
h
e
 

Page 587



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 g
e
t 
u
s
 a
 f
ri
d
g
e
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
o
k
e
r.
 S
h
e
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 u
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
 O
T
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 g
e
t 
a
 s
h
o
w
e
r 
c
h
a
ir
 a
s
 I
 a
m
 a
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
fa
lle
r.
” 
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 “I
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 9
9
9
 c
a
lls
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 d
o
 n
o
t 

k
n
o
w
 w
h
o
 t
o
 t
u
rn
 t
o
.”
 

 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e
 F
o
lk
s
 a
t 
H
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

m
a
in
ly
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
. 
 

 “I
 t
h
in
k
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
n
 f
a
lli
n
g
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
” 

 “
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 I
 w
ill
 e
n
d
 u
p
 i
n
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
a
re
.”
 

“I
 w
ill
 f
in
d
 i
t 
m
o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 s
o
m
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
a
fe
ly
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 

a
c
u
te
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
b
e
d
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
u
n
w
e
ll,
 b
u
t 
w
h
o
 “
fa
ll 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
t”
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
.”
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

m
. 
..
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
b
e
d
 b
lo
c
k
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
la
y
e
d
.”
 

 “F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 l
if
e
 s
k
ill
s
, 
o
ft
e
n
 

e
lim
in
a
te
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

c
lie
n
ts
. 
  
W
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
ill
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
.”
 

 “F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 b
u
rd
e
n
 o
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

Page 588



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 o
u
tw
e
ig
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
’s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
.”
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
 f
a
c
e
s
 c
lo
s
u
re
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
u
t,
 a
s
 i
t 

w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 v
ia
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 i
ts
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
rm
.”
 

 “S
ix
 s
ta
ff
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
t 
if
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 f
o
rc
e
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
. 

T
h
e
ir
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 b
u
ilt
 o
v
e
r 
m
a
n
y
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 l
o
s
t.
” 

 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

“F
o
lk
s
@
h
o
m
e
 a
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 e
x
p
e
rt
s
, 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 i
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
, 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
e
x
p
e
rt
s
, 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
-l
o
c
a
to
rs
, 
e
n
a
b
le
rs
 

a
n
d
 s
k
ill
e
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 i
n
 a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 f
a
c
e
d
 b
y
 o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
.”
 

  “
I 
lik
e
 t
h
a
t 
m
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
h
a
s
 a
 c
le
a
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
m
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
w
a
y
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
 k
e
e
p
 m
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

m
y
 s
tr
e
s
s
.”
 

 “I
 a
m
 p
a
ra
ly
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
h
e
s
t 
d
o
w
n
 s
o
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 l
o
ts
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
, 
m
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
fr
o
m
 f
o
lk
s
 a
t 
h
o
m
e
 h
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 f
a
r 
le
s
s
 t
im
e
”.
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

“I
f 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
e
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
c
re
d
ib
le
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
p
e
ra
te
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 i
t 
h
e
lp
s
, 
a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.”
 

 

Page 589



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
  

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
  

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
a
te
 S
ta
rt
e
d
 :
 
1
9
th
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
v
e
rs
io
n
: 

 6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 

C
ll
r 
C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S
c
o
u
le
r 
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra
n
 M
a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 33

Page 590



 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 f
ro
m
 O
v
e
ra
ll
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
: 
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
  

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e

 b
ri
e

f 
o

u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

c
u

rr
e

d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

W
h

e
n

 w
ill

 
th

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
re

a
lis

e
 

in
c
o

m
e

 /
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

•
 

K
n

o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

to
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

s
e

 s
ta

te
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
A

c
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s

s
u

e
d

. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

£
 0
0
0
’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
: 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
v
a
lu
e
: 
£
3
0
5
,7
0
0
 

th
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 i
n
 o
u
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 

1
0
0
%

: 
£
3
0
5
,7

0
0
 

 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

•
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 e
x
p
ir
e
 1

7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
lo

n
e
lin

e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 i
s
o
la

ti
o
n
 a

m
o
n
g
 c

lie
n
ts

. 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 
 

X
 

Page 591



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
u
p
 t
o
 1

.5
 h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
) 

to
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 6

3
0
 a

n
d
 7

0
0
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
g
u
n
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

th
is

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

ro
u
n
d
 3

0
-4

0
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

 a
ll 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 1

8
th
 2

0
1
4
 (

4
 i
n
 

to
ta

l)
 w

o
rt

h
 £

3
0
5
,7

0
0
 

 If
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
le

a
r 

to
 w

h
a
t 
e
x
te

n
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

r 
a
p
p
e
ti
te

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 d
o
 s

o
. 

 

2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

  

•
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 –
 w

ill
 e

it
h
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p

a
y
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 .
  

•
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 
–
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

D
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 C
a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

•
 

C
lin

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 –

th
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 e

.g
. 
fo

r 
fa

lls
 

e
tc

  

•
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 
(A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

) 
–
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
  
L
iv

in
g
 W

e
ll@

H
o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

(w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
),

 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
5
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 
T

h
e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

e
ll 

a
t 
H

o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 j
o
in

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

b
o
th

 D
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 g
re

a
te

r 
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 n

o
w

 c
o
u
ld

 
im

p
a
c
t 
h
e
a
v
ily

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

e
ll 

@
 H

o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 l
im

it
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 
 

•
 

W
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 –

 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
fu

tu
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 m
a
y
 l
o
s
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
a
m

ily
 a

n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

. 
 

•
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 A

g
e
 U

K
 –

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 p
u
t 
m

o
re

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 .
 

 K
e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 a

re
: 

 

Page 592



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

•
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
  

•
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts
 

•
 

W
id

e
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

•
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

  

•
 

C
lin

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
  

•
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 A

g
e
 U

K
  

 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
re

n
d
s
 p

o
in

t 
to

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 b
o
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

o
s
t 
lik

e
ly

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
 

 
4
. 

H
o
w
 h
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 r

a
n
 f
ro

m
 T

h
u
rs

d
a
y
 2

1
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1

6
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2

1
s
t  N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
e
re

 s
e
n
t 
w

ri
tt
e
n
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

u
tl
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
(s

) 
a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 (
S

P
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
d
ra

ft
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 (
E

IA
s
) 

fo
r 

th
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
 E

IA
s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
lin

e
. 

In
it
ia

l 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c

o
n
v
e
rs

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 S

P
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
e
k
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
im

e
 t
o
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
(a

s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta

ff
) 
 

Page 593



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

A
 c

lie
n
t 
p
ro

fi
le

 t
e
m

p
la

te
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
t 
to

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 
a
ls

o
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 E

IA
s
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 
m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
  

T
h
e
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

e
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 p
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 e

m
a
il 

w
a
s
 s

e
n
t 
to

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
n
 8

th
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 a
s
k
in

g
 i
f 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

, 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 o
r 

b
o
th

; 
a
n
d
 a

s
k
in

g
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
. 

A
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tl
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

to
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 w

h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

r 
fa

c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te

rs
 w

e
re

 s
e
n
t 
to

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
W

h
e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

0
 c

lie
n
ts

 t
h
e
n
 2

 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re

 o
ff
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 i
f 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
m

. 
F

o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
d
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b

y
  
th

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

d
 t
h
is

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p
. 

  
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 T

o
rb

a
y
 V

o
ic

e
 w

it
h
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 S

P
 t
e
a
m

 p
re

s
e
n
t 
to

 r
e
c
o
rd

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

. 
W

h
e
re

 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 w

a
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

o
u
n
te

d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 (

w
it
h
 T

o
rb

a
y
 V

o
ic

e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
) 

o
r 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

e
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

h
o
o
s
in

g
 n

o
t 
to

 
o
r 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
s
 s

o
m

e
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a

 
fo

c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 

  P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
e
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c

lie
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 c

lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 S

P
 p

a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 o

f 
th

is
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

c
o
u
ld

 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 i
t,
 o

r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
t 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

Page 594



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

ri
tt
e
n
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

e
m

a
il 

a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
n
 e

m
a
il 

w
a
s
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
tt
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

P
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
S

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 l
in

k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

IA
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

 l
in

k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

m
a
il.
 

 S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
: 

•
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 D
e
v
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
ru

s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

•
 

S
o
u
th

 D
e
v
o
n
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

•
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

T
o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
o
lic

e
 

•
 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

s
, 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m

, 
T

o
rb

a
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
: 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 S

h
e
lt
e
r,

 T
h
e
 A

lz
h
e
im

e
rs

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
, 
M

IN
D

 a
n
d
 M

e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th
e
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
/n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

A
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

a
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

 a
s
k
in

g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
 S

P
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

 l
in

k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S

P
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

S
P

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 (

v
ia

 l
e
tt
e
r,

 e
m

a
il 

a
n
d
 p

e
ti
ti
o
n
) 

b
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 2

1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
, 
w

h
e
re

 
1
6
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 

Page 595



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

  T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 4
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l.
 T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 3

0
6
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
re

 
w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 4

 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 3
7
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 r
a
is

e
d
 b

y
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

u
t 
in

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a
lo

n
e
, 
is

o
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 n

o
 o

n
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

. 
T

h
e
y
 l
ik

e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 s
e
c
u
re

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 
is

 a
lw

a
y
s
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

e
lp

. 
M

a
n
y
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
y
 k

n
o
w

 s
o
m

e
o
n
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
f 
n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
im

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
lt
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 f
ro

m
 e

n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

n
p
la

n
n
e
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
ll 

o
n
 t
h
e
 a

m
b
u
la

n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
),

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l,
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
re

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
It
 w

a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

a
p
-g

e
m

in
i 
s
tu

d
y
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

e
re

 £
6
4
6
.9

m
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
£
1
9
8
.2

m
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
ri
p
le

 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
o
s
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 h

e
lp

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 o

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
e
re

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 t
h
e
y
 m

ig
h
t 
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 

o
th

e
rs

 o
r 

th
a
t 
o
th

e
r 

m
ig

h
t 
p
o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 w
h
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
c
k
-o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
p
p
ly

in
g
 

fo
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
h
ils

t 
th

e
y
 s

e
e
k
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 

 O
n
 a

 w
id

e
r 

b
a
s
is

 t
h
e
y
 a

ls
o
 r

a
is

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
h
o
w

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

if
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
. 

 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

e
, 
p
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 a

 d
e
la

y
 i
n
  
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
. 

 

 
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

 

Page 596



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 

 
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
g
re

a
te

r 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
, 
fa

lls
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
e
lp

 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

tc
. 
T

h
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
y
 f
in

d
 i
t 
h
a
rd

e
r 

to
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

 
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

re
s
p
it
e
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
fo

r 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 
 

  

  

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
 

W
o
m

e
n
 o

r 
m

e
n
 

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

la
c
k
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 (

B
M

E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

  
R

e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e
lie

f 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

 
 

N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip
 

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

lo
s
t.
  

  

W
o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

 N
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

 
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
 

T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

 

Page 597



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

(I
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

liv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 –

m
a
ln

u
tr

it
io

n
, 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 -

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 l
ik

e
ly

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
e
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 l
iv

in
g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
.  

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 (
H

o
w

 
w

ill
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
) 

 
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
ln

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
) 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 
o
n
 b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

is
o
la

ti
o
n
. 
 

 

8
a
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 f
lo

a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

) 
w

ill
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

  
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
ta

te
s
 a

 1
0
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
lo

a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
o
 c

lie
n
ts

 i
n
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 
to

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

g
e
n
e
ri
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

fo
r 

F
o
lk

s
@

h
o
m

e
, 

(a
 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 
fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
) 

is
 
to

 
re

d
u
c
e
 
b
y
 
4
8
%

. 
T

h
e
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

8
b
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

O
th
e
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

 
1
. 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
g
re

a
te

r 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
, 
fa

lls
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
e
lp

 f
ro

m
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

tc
. 
T

h
o
s
e
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
y
 f
in

d
 i
t 
h
a
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 

2
. 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

re
s
p
it
e
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

Page 598



 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 
 

3
. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 m
a
y
 b

e
 l
o
s
t.
 

4
. 

T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 –

m
a
ln

u
tr

it
io

n
, 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

5
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 l
ik

e
ly

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 l
iv

in
g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

6
. 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
ln

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
) 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 
o
n
 b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

is
o
la

ti
o
n
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 o

ff
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 o

ff
s
e
t 
th

a
t 
lo

s
t,
 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h

o
w

 m
u
c
h
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

. 
 A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

, 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
 c

lie
n
ts

 i
.e

. 
In

 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
la

rm
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
1
-1

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
. 
It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

in
c
o
m

e
, 
th

e
re

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 p

a
y
 f
o
r 

th
is

. 
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 p

a
y
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

e
w

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
is

. 
 

T
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 m

in
im

is
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
o
r 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
C

h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 p

la
n
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
: 

 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 v

is
it
in

g
 A

&
E
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
to

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
C

a
re
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 r

a
te

s
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
it
e
 c

a
re
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 

 T
h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
o
n
ly

 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

 a
n
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 T
o
rb

a
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
/o

r 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

Page 599



 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n

 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m

is
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
in

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

’.
  

 
 

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 n
o
t 
to

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
te

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

r 
in

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
to

 u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d

o
in

g
 s

o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,

 w
it
h
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
to

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 
If
 a

n
y
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 F

A
C

S
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 f
ro

m
 T

o
rb

a
y
 &

 S
o
u
th

e
rn

 
D

e
v
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t.
  

 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 o

r 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

   
 

Page 600



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

 
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
: 
S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
- 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 4
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 3
0
6
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 4
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
e
re
 3
7
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
W
e
s
tw
a
rd
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
G
u
in
n
e
s
s
 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
u
tu
re
s
. 
 

 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

         
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

a
n
d
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
L
if
e
 o
f 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
li
e
n
ts
 

 

 “T
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

T
h
e
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 e

tc
. 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 

b
e
lo

w
: 

 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
u
n
p
la

n
n
e
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
 f
a
lls

 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 &
 n

o
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y
s
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l.
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
re

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 i
n
to

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 c

a
re

. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
P

C
T

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 f
a
m

ily
 a

n
d
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
, 
if
 t
h
e
y
 l
iv

e
 l
o
c
a
lly

. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
e
a
r 

o
f 
c
ri
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
A

S
B

. 

•
 

R
is

k
 o

f 
lo

s
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
 a

s
 n

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 

te
n
a
n
c
y
. 
  

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

•
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
. 

•
 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.”
 

 C
lie

n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
n
e
lin

e
s
s
, 
lin

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
n
g
 m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
 

 

Page 601



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

“T
h
e
s
e
 c

u
ts

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a

ll 
o
f 
u
s
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

le
a
v
in

g
 u

s
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a
lo

n
e
, 
is

o
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 n

o
 o

n
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 u
s
”.
 

 F
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 F

in
a
n
c
e
s
, 
b
ill

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
p
e
rw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

ta
s
k
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 “O
th

e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
ie

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

b
y
 1

0
0
%

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
 

 • 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 p

a
ra

m
e
d
ic

s
. 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

. 
• 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
-a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
. 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
. 
“ 

M
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

lie
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 q

u
o
te

 b
e
lo

w
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
tw

a
rd

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
. 

 “M
a
n
y
 o

f 
u
s
 w

ill
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

e
n
ta

l,
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 w

ill
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
, 
a
s
 w

ill
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

  
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
u
r 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t'
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 u

n
-s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
h
e
lp

.”
  

 P
e
o
p
le

 a
t 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
d
 u

p
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

h
o
m

e
s
 o

r 
re

ly
 m

o
re

 o
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

u
rs

e
s
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 “T
h
e
 C

a
p
g
e
m

in
i 
s
tu

d
y
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

e
re

 £
6
4
6
.9

m
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
£
1
9
8
.2

m
. 
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o
s
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

re
 

tr
ip

le
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
” 
 

 

Page 602



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

“T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 t
e
a
m

 (
C

o
rn

w
a
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 T

h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 c

u
t 
b
y
 4

0
%

. 
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
w

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

u
t,
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 d
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 3

0
%

”.
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

“T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 f
a
c
e
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
 

tu
rn

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 a
s
 s

ta
ff
 s

e
e
k
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

.”
 

“O
n
 a

 w
id

e
r 

b
a
s
is

, 
th

e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S

a
n
c
tu

a
ry

. 
 W

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

3
5
0
 u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 h

o
w

 w
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
.”

 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 “I
 l
ik

e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
I 
c
a
n
 t
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 I
 a

m
 n

o
t 

ju
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
m

.”
  

 F
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
o
rk

e
r’
s
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
t 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 w
h
e
n
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 i
s
 “

n
o
t 
ri
g
h
t”

. 

S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

 “I
 l
ik

e
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
I 
a
m

 i
n
 a

 s
e
c
u
re

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 h

e
lp

 o
n
 s

ir
e
 a

n
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
ll 

2
4
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
I 
w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 m

y
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 i
f 
th

is
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

.”
  

 “H
e
lp

e
d
 m

e
 g

e
t 
o
n
 t
o
 m

y
 f
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 m

e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
. 
It
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 m

e
 f
e
e
l 

s
e
c
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
if
 I
 h

a
d
 a

n
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

r 
e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
, 
I 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
re

 f
o
r 

m
e
.”

  

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 /
 S
o
u
rc
e
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

 “W
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 m
e
e
ts

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

u
rg

e
n
tl
y
 t
o
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
o
s
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
.”
 

 “W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 

w
it
h
in

 o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
th

is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 

W
e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

o
p
e
n
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 y

o
u
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
h
o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
.”
 

Page 603



 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

E
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
  

 “T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

ro
b
le

m
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 s

o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 i
s
o
la

ti
o
n
 i
t 
c
a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

o
th

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 C
lin

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

r 
fu

tu
re

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

 

Page 604



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
):

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 L

in
k
 W

o
rk

e
rs

  
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

  
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

: 
A

d
u
lt
s
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

D
a
te

 S
ta

rt
e
d
 :
 

9
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te

 o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
v
e
rs

io
n
: 

 6
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
 /
 H

e
a
d
 S

ig
n
 o

ff
 :
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

) 
C

ll
r 

C
h
ri

s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
u
le

r 
 

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra

n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 
6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 34

Page 605



 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
  

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 

In
c
o

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0
’s

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n
 

£
 0

0
0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

L
in

k
 w

o
rk

e
rs
: 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
: 

£
3
9
,4

0
0
 

 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 
 

£
3
9
,4
0
0
 

 

 
•
 

S
ta
ff
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 b
y
 T
S
D
H
C
T
 a
n
d
 D
P
T
, 

th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
s
t 

•
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 606



 

 
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr

a
te

g
y
/d

e
c
is

io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
rt
  

fu
n
d
s
 b
o
th
 p
o
s
ts
 .
 T
h
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 p
a
id
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t.
  

T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
 i
s
: 
“t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
.”
 T
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 u
s
in
g
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
 t
h
e
s
e
 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

T
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m

o
v
e
 o
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

T
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
w
h
e
re
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 c
lie
n
ts
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

a
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

2
. 

W
h

o
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
?
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
lie
n
ts
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
. 
 

T
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
ta
ff
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 c
lie
n
ts
’ 
c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
. 
 

K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

•
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
  

•
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
in
k
 W

o
rk
e
rs
 

•
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 l
ia
is
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 

•
 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 l
ia
is
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
 i
n
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 r
is
k
 o
f 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 z
o
n
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 l
ia
is
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
 i
n
 m

it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 –
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
th
ro
u
g
h
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

: 
E

q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

Page 607



 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id

e
n
c
e
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
?

  
  T
h
e
 p
o
s
ts
 w
e
re
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 a
s
 a
 p
ilo
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
in
 2
0
0
8
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
s
 

a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 (
s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
s
ts
 h
a
v
e
 e
v
o
lv
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 t
o
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
s
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
  
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
b
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
a
re
 b
y
 p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 m

o
v
e
 

o
n
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 W

it
h
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 t
e
a
m
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
o
rk
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
o
 d
a
te
 b
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
th
o
ld
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

4
. 

H
o

w
 h

a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 
o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  N

o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

Page 608



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 o
r 
b
o
th
; 

a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u

rr
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
a
re

rs
, 
re

la
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
o

c
a
te

s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 

F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 
to
 

o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
, 
lo

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 

A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

Page 609



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

P
o
lic
e
 

•
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
/n

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
s
k
in
g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 
w
h
e
re
 

1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

 T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
it
a
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 h
o
lis
ti
c
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
a
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 

d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
d
e
la
y
 i
n
 s
te
p
p
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
, 
le
a
v
in
g
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
r 
m
o
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
r 
o
th
e
rw
is
e
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 w
o
rs
e
n
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
, 
h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 o
u
tw
e
ig
h
 a
n
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

Page 610



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 T
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
. 

 

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 
  

 P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 N

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

  
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
n

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 

 
P

o
s
it

iv
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr

a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t.
 C
lie
n
ts
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
re
 a
g
e
d
 1
8
-6
5
. 
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t.
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 

im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
  
b
y
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
s
ta
y
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
. 

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 

Page 611



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

 
R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

  
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m

a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

 N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
 

 
S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

8
a
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 w

id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
, 
 T
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
  
p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
  
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
fi
n
d
in
g
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
, 
th
u
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 b
e
 a
n
  

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
s
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
lie
n
ts
. 
 

8
b
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

Page 612



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 
   

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

9
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

?
 

 

  N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 s
e
c
ti

o
n

 7
  
- 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
, 
s
e
n
s
o
ry
 i
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
  
b
y
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
s
ta
y
s
 i
n
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
. 

 P
o
s
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 t
h
is
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
re
: 

 
1
. 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
 a
 m

o
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
 i
n
 s
o
u
rc
in
g
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m
s
 o
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
. 
 C
a
re
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 p
ro
m
p
t 
m
o
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 

b
y
 p
ro
m
p
t 
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
th
e
ir
 a
re
a
 o
f 
s
k
ill
, 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
. 
It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 r
o
le
 i
n
 f
in
d
in
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

 W
e
 w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 

 D
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
ft
e
r 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

D
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
t 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 4

: 
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
  

  T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
C
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 

Page 613



 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
  
- 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 s
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
–
 t
h
is
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

•
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
ft
e
r 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 –
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
a
n
e
c
d
o
ta
l 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m
s
 

a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 z
o
n
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

: 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –

  
 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
ic

k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 
x
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

Page 614



 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

    A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 

  L
in

k
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 -
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 1

0
0
%

 
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

   

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

  

 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W

e
ll
b
e
in

g
 

a
n
d
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if
e
 o

f 
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts

 
 

“.
..
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
g
e
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
ti
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 w
ill
 e
x
a
c
e
rb
a
te
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 r
is
k
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
.”
  
  

 “.
..
b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 t
re
m
e
n
d
o
u
s
 l
o
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r.
” 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
  

“T
h
e
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
re
 c
ru
c
ia
l 
in
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 q
u
a
lit
y
 h
o
lis
ti
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.”
  

Page 615



 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

  

Q
u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

“I
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
p
ra
is
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 .
..
 h
ig
h
ly
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 .
..
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

h
u
n
d
re
d
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie
s
, 
fi
n
d
in
g
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 l
e
g
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 m
a
tt
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 

th
e
n
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

re
c
o
v
e
ry
.”
  
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 

“M
o
v
e
 o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 i
n
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
b
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
te
p
 d
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 

re
a
d
y
 t
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 m
a
y
 w
e
ll 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 l
in
k
 w
o
rk
e
r 

a
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.”
 

 “T
h
is
 m
a
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
ta
y
in
g
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
in
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
-

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
u
n
it
s
, 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 

d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
liv
in
g
 i
n
 u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.”
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

 “
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 o
u
r 
te
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 i
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
o
lic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 a
 f
a
ls
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
.”
  

 

Page 616



 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
: 
E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

IA
) 

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
: 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

  
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

: 
A

d
u
lt
s
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

D
a
te

 S
ta

rt
e
d
 :
 

9
th
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
a
te

 o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
v
e
rs

io
n
: 

 6
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le
 o
f 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(E
IA
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
 t
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
 A
s
 a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 w
h
ile
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
is
 E
IA
 w
ill
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 E
IA
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 i
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  
 

   E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
 /
 H

e
a
d
 S

ig
n
 o

ff
 :
  

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
(s

) 
C

ll
r 

C
h
ri

s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
u
le

r 
 

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 

F
ra

n
 M

a
s
o
n
  

D
a
te

: 
6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te

: 
 
6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

   
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 35

Page 617



 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e
ra

ll
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl
in

e
  

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 

th
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

•
 

If
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

A
c
t 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
  

T
y
p
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 

In
c
o

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0
’s

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n
 

£
 0

0
0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

P
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
ts
: 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
e
re
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
.P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

a
re
 a
ls
o
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 

re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
to
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
. 
 

 

 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 

1
0
0
%
: 

£
2
5
0
,0
0
0
 

 

O
n
c
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
n
s
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

id
e
a
lly
 3
 

m
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

•
 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
s
. 

•
 
S
o
m
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 m
e
a
n
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

•
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 618



 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr

a
te

g
y
/d

e
c
is

io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
. 

  T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
y
 1
0
0
%
 (
£
2
5
0
,0
0
0
) 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
 (
P
B
) 
a
re
 a
 w
a
y
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 b
y
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
ilo
te
d
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 f
ro
m
 b
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
a
re
 (
i.
e
. 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
) 
to
 m
o
re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv
in
g
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
In
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
, 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

c
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 (
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

e
n
a
b
lin
g
),
 i
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
lig
ib
le
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
P
B
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
(T
S
D
H
C
T
) 
to
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
it
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
b
e
s
t.
 C
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
a
n
 t
h
e
n
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
, 
a
n
d
 d
e
ta
il 
in
 a
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
, 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
is
h
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 i
t 
(D
ir
e
c
t 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
m
ix
e
d
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
).
 

  

2
. 

W
h

o
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 
w

h
o

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
?
 

 A
ll 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 h
a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
lie
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

a
c
ro
s
s
  
s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
n
d
 a
c
ts
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
ly
 a
s
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
b
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
m
o
re
 

a
c
u
te
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
  
C
lie
n
ts
 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 

S
P
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 
K
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 

•
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

•
 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
in
k
 W
o
rk
e
rs
 (
w
h
o
 o
ft
e
n
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
) 

•
 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 –
 z
o
n
e
s
  

•
 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m
s
/D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
R
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
h
o
 o
ff
e
r 
P
B
’s
 

Page 619



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

•
 
A
n
y
o
n
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 T
S
D
H
C
T
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(S
S
A
) 
to
o
l 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

e
lig
ib
le
 c
a
re
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
y
 m
u
s
t 
a
ls
o
 h
a
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
£
2
3
,2
5
0
 (
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t)
. 

  S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

: 
E

q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 m
o
ra
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
lim
in
a
te
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 s
h
a
re
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t.
  
 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 a
s
 a
 c
o
u
n
c
il,
 w
e
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 D
u
ty
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 f
u
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
/p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 E
v
id

e
n
c
e
, 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
?

  
 T
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
in
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 i
s
 £
2
5
0
,0
0
0
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 f
o
r 
in
te
n
s
iv
e
 b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 w
h
ic
h
 l
a
s
ts
 

ty
p
ic
a
lly
 u
p
 t
o
 t
w
e
lv
e
 w
e
e
k
s
 (
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 2
4
 w
e
e
k
s
).
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 3
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 a
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 i
n
 p
e
rp
e
tu
it
y
; 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 

s
ti
ll 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 a
n
d
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
In
 a
ll 
s
u
c
h
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
is
 p
re
v
e
n
ts
 a
 c
o
s
t-
s
h
u
n
t 
to
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
T
h
is
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
ta
n
d
s
 a
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

 B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
t 
a
n
y
 o
n
e
 t
im
e
 t
h
e
re
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
n
y
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
in
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t,
 i
t 

is
 i
m
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 p
re
d
ic
t 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 p
a
tt
e
rn
s
. 
A
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
a
lm
o
s
t 
m
id
w
a
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r)
 

£
1
0
0
,0
7
0
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 s
o
m
e
 a
n
e
c
d
o
ta
l 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
-1
3
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
 l
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 f
o
r 
b
ri
e
f 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 m
e
t 
b
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

  
4
. 

H
o

w
 w

il
l 
/ 
h

a
v
e
 y

o
u

* 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

 
o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l?

 
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

Page 620



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

  *d
e
le
te
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 r
a
n
 f
ro
m
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 2
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

O
n
 2
1

s
t  N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l(
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
(s
) 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
S
P
) 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 (
E
IA
s
) 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
lin
e
. 

In
it
ia
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
 S
P
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
e
k
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
im
e
 t
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
(a
s
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 a
ff
e
c
t 
s
ta
ff
) 
 

A
 c
lie
n
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 

a
ls
o
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 E
IA
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
  

T
h
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

A
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
n
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
s
k
in
g
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
lly
 o
r 
b
o
th
; 

a
n
d
 a
s
k
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
u

rr
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
a
re

rs
, 
re

la
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
o

c
a
te

s
. 

A
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 c
o
u
ld
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
r 
fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
. 
 

 P
o
s
te
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t 
to
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
s
e
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 t
o
 s
iz
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
d
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 2
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
e
n
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 

o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
m
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
d
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 b
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 t
h
is
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
g
ro
u
p
. 

  
 
F
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 b
y
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 S
P
 t
e
a
m
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
h
e
re
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
u
n
te
d
. 

 F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 (
w
it
h
 T
o
rb
a
y
 V
o
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
o
r 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 w
e
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 n
o
t 

to
 o
r 
u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
s
 s
o
m
e
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
 

Page 621



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

fo
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 

 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
e
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lie
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 c
lie
n
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
 p
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
is
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 i
t,
 o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 (
e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r)
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
re
la
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
m
ily
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

 S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
, 
lo

c
a
l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 

 A
n
 e
m
a
il 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
tt
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
P
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 

a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
IA
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
m
a
il.
 

 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
P
o
lic
e
 

•
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m
, 

T
o
rb
a
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

 
O
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
: 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 S
h
e
lt
e
r,
 T
h
e
 A
lz
h
e
im
e
rs
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
M
IN
D
 a
n
d
 M
e
n
c
a
p
. 

 S
e
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 O
th

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
/n

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
 

Page 622



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

A
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 a
s
k
in
g
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 S
P
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 

th
e
 S
P
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
S
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 w
ri
ti
n
g
 (
v
ia
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 e
m
a
il 
a
n
d
 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
) 
b
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 
  

 A
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
2
8
5
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 2
1
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
, 

w
h
e
re
 1
6
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
. 
 

 
5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

  

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
F
o
lk
s
@
H
o
m
e
, 
S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 H
o
u
s
in
g
. 

 B
e
lo
w
 a
re
 a
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
g
ro
u
p
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
m
e
s
. 

 Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 H

e
a
lt

h
, 
W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if

e
 o

f 
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
C

li
e
n

ts
 

 “C
lie
n
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
it
h
 d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
e
n
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
..
. 
th
is
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
a
n
y
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 c
ri
s
is
, 
n
e
e
d
 u
rg
e
n
t 
re
-

h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
r 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
-h
o
u
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
to
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
  

 “S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
fr
o
m
 
s
ta
ff
 
is
 
fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
r’
s
 
a
b
ili
ty
 
to
 
liv
e
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 
in
 
a
 
s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

w
ill
 h
o
p
e
fu
lly
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
n
 m
o
v
e
 o
n
 t
o
 g
re
a
te
r 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.“
 

 “I
 a
m
 n
o
w
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
 o
n
 m
y
 o
w
n
 a
s
 s
h
e
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 m
y
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
-t
a
u
g
h
t 
m
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
k
ill
s
.”
  

 “I
t 
h
a
s
 b
u
ilt
 m
y
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 m
y
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 m
y
 l
iv
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
.”
  

 Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

 “W
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
..
. 
w
ill
 e
n
te
r 
a
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 a
lm
o
s
t 
c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 b
o
th
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
, 
a
t 
a
 c
o
s
t 
to
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
” 

Page 623



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

 “T
h
e
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
re
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 a
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 e
x
p
ir
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
3
. 
In
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 e
n
d
u
ri
n
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
lie
n
ts
, 
IB
’s
 w
e
re
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
, 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
d
is
a
p
p
e
a
r 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.”
 

  “
If
 I
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 w
a
y
 o
f 
le
a
v
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
, 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
b
t 
c
o
lle
c
to
rs
 a
ft
e
r 
m
e
. 
I 

th
in
k
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 g
o
n
e
 d
o
w
n
-h
ill
 v
e
ry
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 a
n
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
m
y
 s
e
lf
-

n
e
g
le
c
t.
” 

 “.
..
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
u
t 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 
a
 t
im
e
 w
h
e
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 b
y
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
” 

  F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 
 “T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
s
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 m
o
re
 i
n
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 w
ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly
 b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 b
u
rd
e
n
s
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
G
P
’s
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
e
a
m
s
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 T
e
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
o
lic
e
.”
 

 “W
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
ts
 i
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 1
0
0
%
 w
e
 f
e
e
l 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
is
 m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

c
lie
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
..
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
s
o
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
m
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 i
n
to
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 c
o
s
t 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
.”
 

 “I
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 S
P
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
-r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 D
P
T
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
o
s
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 b
e
 c
u
t.
” 

 Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 /
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

 “D
iv
e
rs
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
b
y
 
P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 
in
 
T
o
rb
a
y
 
a
re
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
b
e
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
re
s
u
lt
 o
f 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
 o
f 
s
c
a
le
. 
N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 

Page 624



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

“T
h
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 
w
ill
in
g
n
e
s
s
 
to
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs
 
h
a
s
 
e
n
s
u
re
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 
h
a
v
e
 
n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
o
f 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 S
P
, 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
C
M
H
T
’s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
re
fe
rr
in
g
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
to
 a
s
k
 f
o
r 
fo
rm
a
l 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
/c
o
m
p
la
in
 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 o
v
e
rl
y
 r
is
k
 a
v
e
rs
e
 w
it
h
 n
e
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
.”
 

 “M
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
is
 v
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 v
o
ic
e
.”
  

 

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
, 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
  
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
o
 

th
a
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

 

  P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 N

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 E

q
u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
ts

  
 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

n
d

 n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
n

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 

 
P

o
s
it

iv
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

N
e
u
tr

a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

 

 
C
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
g
e
s
 (
1
8
+
) 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
u
t 
m
o
s
t 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 

fr
o
m
 a
 m
in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 (
B
M
E
) 
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 

R
e
lig
io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie
f)
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 

o
r 
b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

Page 625



 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
  

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 

m
a
rr
ia
g
e
 o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
W
o
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 

o
n
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

 
 

N
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 

 
S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

 
C
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
g
e
s
 (
1
8
+
) 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
u
t 
m
o
s
t 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
a
n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 o
r 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

 
T
h
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

re
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 

 

8
a
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 w

id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 1
0
0
%
 c
u
t 
to
 S
P
 f
lo
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 m
it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
, 
a
v
o
id
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
 d
e
b
ts
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
ts
 c
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
rr
e
a
rs
, 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 p
a
y
 r
e
n
t 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
v
ic
ti
o
n
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
. 
 

I  
8
b
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 –
 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t 

w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
r 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
a
re
, 
le
s
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
  

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 A
&
E
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
v
is
it
s
. 
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 w
a
it
in
g
 t
im
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 S
P
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 .
  

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 p
o
lic
e
 ,
 p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

  
   

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

Page 626



 

9
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

?
 

 

 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
: 

 
1
. 
C
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
g
e
s
 (
1
8
+
) 
a
c
ro
s
s
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
u
t 
m
o
s
t 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 p
o
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
a
n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 o
r 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 

2
. 
T
h
e
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 d
ru
g
/a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 

 M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
is
 i
m
p
a
c
t:
 

 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fe
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
. 
W
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
 C
a
re
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/
C
a
re
 C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r,
 w
e
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
m
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
o
 t
h
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

th
is
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 i
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
  
m
e
t 
th
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
re
  
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 i
m
p
a
c
t:
 

 It
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 t
o
 t
ra
c
k
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 a
 r
a
p
id
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a
 p
o
o
r 
o
r 
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
n
g
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
n
 i
t 
is
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
th
a
t 
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
im
e
, 
o
r 
w
h
e
n
 a
 d
e
g
re
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
 t
a
k
e
s
 a
 c
lie
n
t 
o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rm
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
re
c
u
rr
in
g
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
o
 w
o
u
ld
 o
th
e
rw
is
e
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 t
o
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 &
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

fr
o
m
 m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
, 
c
o
s
tl
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
i.
e
. 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
, 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
to
 l
o
w
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

 A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
a
y
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 f
a
ll 
o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
m
o
re
 c
o
s
tl
y
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 c
ri
s
is
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 c
a
ll 
o
u
ts
, 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
in
 d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 a
d
d
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 

  

Page 627



 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

: 
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
  

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
, 
C
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

 T
ra
c
k
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 (
6
 m
o
n
th
s
) 
to
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 t
h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 A
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
th
is
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 a
n
y
 f
u
tu
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
/o
r 
th
e
 C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

   S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

: 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 –

  

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 

T
ic

k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E
IA
 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
y
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
  

ta
k
e
n
 o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
- 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 

h
a
v
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
/ 
m
is
s
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
. 
F
u
ll 
ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
, 
in
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 ‘
d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
’.
  

 

x
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
to
 d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
te
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 u
n
la
w
fu
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

Page 628



 

w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r,
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
to
 

m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
. 
If
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 F
A
C
S
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
 f
ro
m
 T
o
rb
a
y
 &
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 

D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
  

 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k
 –
 E
IA
 h
a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
c
tu
a
l 
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
la
w
fu
l 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 o
r 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

 

 

                                    A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 

               C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
: 
P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

 -
 R

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 1

0
0
%

 
 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
0
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
F
o
lk
s
@
H
o
m
e
, 
S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 H
o
u
s
in
g
. 

 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
W

e
ll
b
e
in

g
 

a
n
d
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

L
if
e
 o

f 
E

x
is

ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

C
li
e
n
ts

 
 

 “C
lie
n
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
w
it
h
 
d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
w
h
e
n
 
th
e
y
 
a
re
 
in
 
a
 
c
ri
s
is
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
..
. 
th
is
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
a
n
y
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 f
a
c
in
g
 

c
ri
s
is
, 
n
e
e
d
 
u
rg
e
n
t 
re
-h
o
u
s
in
g
 
o
r 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 
re
-h
o
u
s
e
d
 
fr
o
m
 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re
 i
n
to
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
  

 “S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
fr
o
m
 
s
ta
ff
 
is
 
fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
r’
s
 

a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 a
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

in
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 

Page 629



 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

  

th
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs
 
w
ill
 
h
o
p
e
fu
lly
 
b
e
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
th
e
n
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
to
 
g
re
a
te
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.“
 

 “I
 a
m
 n
o
w
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 m
y
 f
in
a
n
c
e
s
 o
n
 m
y
 o
w
n
 a
s
 s
h
e
 h
a
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 m
y
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
-t
a
u
g
h
t 
m
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
k
ill
s
.”
  

 “I
t 
h
a
s
 b
u
ilt
 m
y
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 m
y
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 m
y
 l
iv
in
g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
.”
  

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 

“W
it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
..
. 
w
ill
 e
n
te
r 
a
 c
ri
s
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 r
is
k
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 a
lm
o
s
t 
c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 b
o
th
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
, 
a
t 
a
 

c
o
s
t 
to
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
” 

 “T
h
e
 
c
lie
n
ts
 
w
e
re
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
P
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 
e
x
p
ir
e
d
 
in
 
M
a
rc
h
 
2
0
1
3
. 
In
 

re
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm
 e
n
d
u
ri
n
g
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

th
e
s
e
 
c
lie
n
ts
, 
IB
’s
 
w
e
re
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
to
 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
th
e
ir
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
lif
e
, 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

d
is
a
p
p
e
a
r 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.”
 

  “
If
 I
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
 w
a
y
 o
f 
le
a
v
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re
, 
I 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
b
t 
c
o
lle
c
to
rs
 a
ft
e
r 
m
e
. 
I 
th
in
k
 I
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 g
o
n
e
 

d
o
w
n
-h
ill
 v
e
ry
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 a
n
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
m
y
 s
e
lf
-n
e
g
le
c
t.
” 

 “.
..
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
u
t 
th
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 
a
 t
im
e
 w
h
e
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 b
y
 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
” 

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

“T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
s
t 
T
o
rb
a
y
 m
o
re
 i
n
 s
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 a
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
b
y
 
P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
w
ill
 

in
e
v
it
a
b
ly
 
b
e
 
re
p
la
c
e
d
 
b
y
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
 
b
u
rd
e
n
s
 
o
n
 
lo
c
a
l 
G
P
’s
, 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
s
, 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

T
e
a
m
s
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
rn
w
a
ll 
P
o
lic
e
.”
 

Page 630



 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

  

 “W
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
ts
 i
n
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
h
a
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
y
 a
 1
0
0
%
 w
e
 f
e
e
l 
in
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
is
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 
c
lie
n
ts
 
th
a
t 
w
e
 
a
re
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
s
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
..
. 
T
h
is
 
w
ill
 
re
s
o
rt
 
in
 
th
e
m
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 

h
a
v
in
g
 
to
 
m
o
v
e
 
in
to
 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
ill
 
c
o
s
t 
th
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
.”
 

 “I
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
o
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 S
P
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
-r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 D
P
T
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
o
s
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 b
e
 c
u
t.
” 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 /
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

“D
iv
e
rs
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
b
y
 
P
a
rk
v
ie
w
 
in
 

T
o
rb
a
y
 
a
re
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
b
e
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
 
o
f 
s
c
a
le
. 

N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 o
f 
o
u
r 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
s
ts
 

to
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
.”
 

 

Q
u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

“T
h
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 
w
ill
in
g
n
e
s
s
 
to
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs
 
h
a
s
 

e
n
s
u
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

S
P
, 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
C
M
H
T
’s
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 
re
fe
rr
in
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
to
 
a
s
k
 
fo
r 
fo
rm
a
l 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
/c
o
m
p
la
in
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 o
v
e
rl
y
 r
is
k
 a
v
e
rs
e
 w
it
h
 

n
e
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
.”
 

 “M
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
e
r 
is
 v
o
ic
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 v
o
ic
e
.”
  

 

Page 631



  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
: 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
: 
T
o
rb
a
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
  

 

N
a
m

e
: 

S
te

v
e
 P

a
rr

o
c
k
  

P
o

s
it

io
n

: 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 –

 T
D

A
  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

: 
T

o
rb

a
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 (

T
D

A
) 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

: 
P

la
c
e
  
 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d

(s
):
 

M
a

y
o

r 
 

D
a
te

: 
6
th

 F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 

 *T
y
p

e
 o

f 
D

e
c
is

io
n

  

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

 -
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 /
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
-s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

•
 

M
in

o
r 
–
 L
o
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

•
 

M
a
jo

r 
- 
H
ig
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t/
in
te
re
s
t 
  

 

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 

P
le
a
s
e
 o
u
tl
in
e
 w
h
ic
h
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
 

in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
 

A
N

D
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 

(a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
re
a
) 
w
it
h
in
 y
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 /
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
. 

 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

&
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

o
s
t 

In
c
lu
d
e
 b
ri
e
f 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

+
 y
e
a
r 
in
c
u
rr
e
d
 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
D

a
te

  
W
h
e
n
 w
ill
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

re
a
lis
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

/ 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

R
is

k
s
 /
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
•
 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 
K
n
o
c
k
 o
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

* 

In
c
o
m
e
 

£
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

£
  

Internal 

  
Minor 

  
Major 

 

1
. 
T
E
D
C
 –
 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 
0
 

7
7
,8
0
0
 
N
il 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

R
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 v
a
c
a
te
d
 p
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
. 

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
d
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
rs
 e
.g
. 
o
n
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 

X
 

 
 

2
. 
T
E
D
C
 -
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
  

0
 

1
0
,0
0
0
 
N
il 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

M
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

c
e
n
tr
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

X
 

 
 

3
. 
C
li
e
n
t 
S
id
e
 -
 R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
  

  
 

7
5
,0
0
0
 –
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

1
7
5
,0
0
0
 
–
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

 N
il 

       

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

A
n
y
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
re
p
a
ir
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
a
y
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 g
ra
d
u
a
l 
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
s
e
ts
 b
u
t 
n
o
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 

th
re
a
t 
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
s
u
rp
lu
s
 a
s
s
e
ts
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 m
it
ig
a
te
 

b
u
t 
th
is
 m
a
y
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 u
n
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
. 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 36

Page 632



  

4
. 
C
li
e
n
t 
S
id
e
 -
 B
u
il
d
in
g
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 –
 P
e
a
rl
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

&
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
e
 H
o
u
s
e
  

0
 

1
2
5
,0
0
0
 
 N
il 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

S
a
v
in
g
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 

v
a
c
a
te
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
s
. 

X
 

 
 

5
. 
T
E
D
C
 -
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
L
G
P
S
) 

0
 

6
,0
0
0
 
 N
il 

 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

N
e
w
 S
ta
ff
 j
o
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 T
D
A
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
lig
ib
le
 t
o
 

jo
in
 t
h
e
 L
G
P
S
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 

X
 

 
 

6
. 
T
E
D
C
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o
ff
ic
e
 

o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
s
  

0
 

7
,0
0
0
 
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

M
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
it
h
in
 

T
o
r 
H
ill
 H
o
u
s
e
. 

X
 

 
 

7
. 
T
E
D
C
 -
 P
a
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 f
o
r 

o
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

5
0
,0
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
 
N
il 

 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

T
h
e
 T
E
D
C
 w
o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 m
a
rk
e
t 
re
n
t 
(t
o
 

b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
) 
fo
r 
it
s
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 ‘
fr
e
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
’.
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
fe
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 m
ig
h
t 
n
o
t 
b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 p
a
y
 t
h
e
 

re
n
t 

X
 

 
 

8
. 
T
E
D
C
 –
  
P
a
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

fo
r 
s
o
m
e
 o
r 
a
ll
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

 

8
3
,7
0
0
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

1
2
9
,3
0
0
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

0
  
N
il 

 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 &
 

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 i
s
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 I
te
m
 7
 b
u
t 
re
fe
rs
 t
o
 

n
o
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 c
o
s
ts
 (
a
ls
o
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
, 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 H
R
, 
IT
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
).
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
fe
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 m
ig
h
t 
n
o
t 
b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

X
 

 
 

9
. 
C
li
e
n
t 
S
id
e
 –
 

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 E
s
ta
te
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 

0
 

7
5
,0
0
0
 
N
il 

 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

It
 i
s
 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
d
u
c
e
s
 i
ts
 h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 e
s
ta
te
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

X
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

1
3
3
,7
0
0
 

3
0
0
,8
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 /
 s
a
v
in
g
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

1
7
9
,3
0
0
 

2
5
0
,0
0
0
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 /
 S
a
v
in
g
  

£
3
1
3

,0
0
0
 

£
5
5
0
,8

0
0
 

T
O
T
A
L
  

£
8

6
3
,8

0
0
 

 

Page 633



Agenda Item 3c

Page 634



Page 635



Page 636



Page 637



Page 638



Page 639



Page 640



Page 641



�

��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

����������	
��

�����������

Agenda Item 3e

Page 642



�

��

�

�

����������������������������������������

��������� ����������!�

�"���#��$�%&��'����

������	��
�����
�������
�����������
��
���	�
��
������
���������������	�
�������
��	���������������������������

�������������������� ��������!� ��"�
��
���	����������#�������$������������
�������������
���%������

���� 
�� � ������ ����� ���� �� ����� ���
� �� ����&�'� �
�	����� ����������� ��
� ����� 
�������� ��� 	�����
�� ��� �����

�������������������
��
�����%� �

(���	�
�������	��
�����
�������)��
�������������������������
��������
�%��*����+������� ������������������,�

�� ��
��
� ��� 
���	����� ���� ����� ��� ��� ���
������ ��� �� ����� ������� ��
�������� � ����-� ���� ��
��
�� � ������

���
��������������������������������������������
��
�����
��������������
��	��������������
�������%��������������

����� ����#������� �������� �������� ����
��
����� ��������� ���� �������� �
����� ��� ���+� ��� ����� ���� ����� ���������

� ����������������
�����
���������������
�����
������������
���
�������
��������
������������ �����%�

��� �� 
�� ��-� ���� ��� .��
�� ��������� �� ��
��� ����� ���� � 
� ��� �� 	��� 
� �� ����� � ����� �)�
����� ��,��� �
� ��

/���,��
���� 0/'��,���1�� ����� ����� �������
����
���������
����� �
����
�������� ������������ ����� �����,����

���
�� �������������������	�������������������
�%�

�����*��� ��� ��
����� �� /����. ������ �� 
���� *� ��
�������� � ���
�����
�� ���� ����� ��������� ����� ��
������ ���

���
��������.
����%�������*�������������������������������������
��������
���
�2
���������������������-�����������

�
�	��������
�����	����
���������������� 

���
��������� ��� ����������
����
�������������
�������
����
��%�

�

#������������� ���� ������������� ���� ���� ���� �� 
����� ���
�-� �� 
���� ��� ������ �� ,��� ��
�� ��� ���� 3������ ��
�

��
��������� ���4�	����������� ���5������������ 
������
����������������� ���
����
�. �������� 
����������

�����,��������������
�	������������
����������������������������,�����
��������������
�������������
�����%���

�

������������������ ��������������������	��������
�����������
�����	���������� 
������
�� 
��������
�����

����.��%��*������������
,������������6���
�������������	�
�������������������
��������	�����������.��%�

�

����7��� 
������������������ ����������������������������� ����
���
��������8����� 
�	�
��
��������������

���� ���� ������ ��� ����� � ���
�� ���� �� 
���� �����
� ���������������
� ����������%� � .����9�:3�� ��� 7�������� �
��

�	��	������������������������������
��������
�����
��
�������������	���%�

�

����.��
�� �������� ����������'&�;������
��
��������� ��������� ��������������������������5��� 
�	�
���������

�
�������� ��
� ���� �)�� �� ���
�� �������� ���� ��������������� �� ���
�	����� �� �
����%� � ���� �
����� �������� ��� ����

�������
������������������������	���������������������
����������	����������,���%���

�

���������������������� ���5����� �������� �������� �����#�	����
����'-��	���������� � ����	��
�� �������

����� ���
���
������/���-�����	�
� ��
������
�-���������������� ��������������������2
��
����� �����;&������

������ �	������� ������
� 
����
�� ��� ��������� 
���� �������
���
������ ����� ��������� ���� �< �����%� � ����������

���� ���� 
�	� �� � ���
�� �
��� ��
� ���� ������� ��� /�;=-������ �� ����� ����� ��� ��� ���� ������� ��	��� �	�
-� ����
�

����������
����������������������%�

�

����.��
��������������������������
��������
�	����������
��
�������	������� ���
�����������������������������������

���,�������
�	��������	�
��������������
��
����%�

�

���)������

����
�

>� �
�����;�

Page 643



�

'�

�

��"����������

�������
���
�	�����������������������������

�(��������������$��������

"���)*��������������� ����
� ��0���
�)��-�����
� ������
-�����������1�����������-���
�����������
	�
�%�

����������-'����<����������
������������
��
���������������������������%�


����*��3)��������(�������.�
������������������-?���)��<����������
��������������
� ������
������
�������
%�

�������*���
���������&�
��,�� �&� �����
����@�'���������������
�������-� �����������
� �����
����
-�

 �����?�����
�
�������-����������A����<�������
������%�

���$�������)*�6������
���-� ���������������������
�������-��+���<�������
������%�

+�����,������������*��������&� �����
���0�1-��;���<�������������
������-�� ���������������������������

�
�;�����
�����������
����%�

3)����	��-���'����������������������� ���
����< ������� ����������������������,�������������%�

�����������������
�.����$���������/���
��	����B��
�	����� �����%�

�������/C�

����
����. 
�� -������������
,����C���������;�"�3�

3	������������-�����
������� ���
�C��'�������;"�3��� �������������� ������������
�< �
���

D���������.�
�C�(��������-�.�
��6����
������������E����"�3��� �������������� ������������
�< �
���

�(��	�������

0����*� � ���� " � ����� ����� 9�	�� ������-� �� ��� ��� �����
�5�� ����� �
��� ����� ����������� �������

������������������
���	� ��

�������C��6����
���� ��������������������-��������
�������
�< �
���

	�����&��*��A���������F���������� �����>�� GG��������������� ���� ���-��A���,���)�
�����
���-���
�����-�

4�������3)�
������� ����

�������C�6����
����+������E�A%��"�3����������������
�< �
���

���������*��=����	�
�����H��
���
����� ���
������������ 
��� �������

6���������"I(�6����
������'������E��"�3����������������
�< �
���

�(����  �����������������$�������

*������������������ ���
��������������� ���
���������
,����� ���
������������	����������������
���

,���/�)����F��
���6����
����� ������������
��������	���� ���"����������
����� ��������

7��� 
��J��������� ����������
��
� ������
�

���� ����1����������$��)���)�������������$��������2�'��������������������"I(������
������'������E�

'"�3�

"������34������C��������E�'"�3�

,����������������;������E�;"�3�

Page 644



�

;�

�

�����������+��������0A�"�3����
�)1��
��� 

������������������������
���� ����� �������������
�< �
��%��I	�
����������

 ���
����	�� 
�� ���� �������������	�
� ���� ������+������� 0���� �
������"�3� ������&��1� ������������
�	�� ���


�� ��������%�

�(5����������������$�	�����

�������������������� ��������������
��
��������������
����������%��#������������������������4�
����
�%������

����
������������������
����������� �����������
���������. �����������������������
�����������
��
����/���,�������

���������������������������:��������� 
������	����������������
����
�����������
��
������� 
���
�/��,���%�

����. �������������������
������ ���������������������������%��������
��7����&6����������
����������

��� 
���
������
�����
 ��
�����
������;-�������
�	�������������
��������
����� ���
�	� ��� ���
���
�������

�� ������
� ��� ���������
���%��F�	������������
���� 
���������. ����������������������������
�����
����� �����

�������
����
���� 
���������
���������������������������
�< �����������
�������������
���
��������� �������

 �����;�����
�%�

��
���&��������3��2�&���'����)����1� �����)�������$���������

�(��������������$��������

�������
����,���������
�������
�� �������������������������������.��%���?�����
��	����0��������������
����

������������1����,�����������������
��������&�'���������
�)���������+-���������������������-�������< ��������

������������;�-A'��������
������-����
����������
�)���������������/+%?���������.��%��03���������������
���

�;�� 
��	������������������������
���/������
����������
���1%��*��������� ���������
����������������������
���

�����������������
�E������������ ���������������
�	��� ������������������%�%���)����
��-�
���� 
��������

�

�������
���������������������;+���
����	����� 
�������&�'-�0�������
����
����	��������	�
�����������������
�

��������
�����1%�*��������������������������
�� ������
��A'�������������	������
�������� �������-����
���������

�
���������-����������������
�����-��� ����� 
���
�����������������������	��������������
������ ���-���
����

#(��7�����������������F
� �-�7�����#(���
 ������������4�%�

�

������	������� ��������� 
��������������
�������
����� ��
������	������������������������
����������

���
����������
�������������������.��%��" 
���
��	�����������������������������������������
�� � 
������
< ��%�

�

�������
�� ���������������	�
�������
����
��� ��
��,�������A���������� 
�#��������� 
����.��
������ ������

	�� ���������
���������	���%��������������������	�� �����������������	�������/������
�������
�����%������	�� ��

��
���
����������� ��������+A8���������������
�������/�=�-����
���������������������%����������� ����������
�������

� 

���	�� �������������K��%�8�L�/������
�������
�����%�#��� 
���
��������
����
������������������������

 ��
��,����������� ��
���������
������ ������ ����������
� ��%�

�

��������
��������	��������	���������������������������������������������.�������
������������/?�����/=��

�����
��������
�-� �����������	�������%�9������������� ��� ���
��������
��	�����������������*����������


�� �����
������������	�
�
��������
�-����
������������
�� ����������� ���
����������������������������

�	���-�������
����������������
���������
�� ����������
�������%�

�

�������
����������������
����	� ����
��	���-����
������������������
��������	���-���,���������
����

� �� 
������
�� �����������������%�

�

�������
����������
��������
���������� ����
��	����� ��������� �����	�������2���� ���2�	�����%�

�

�� �������� ���5��� ��������
�����
��������	��������/;'�,�0�%�%��������
������������&�'�������� ���������/A;�,1����

� ����������������������������������������0������,����������� ����������������/+%?���������������.��1%�

�

�

�

Page 645



�

��

�

�(��	�������

�

�(�(�0����� �
�	����� �� 	�� ����� �������� ��������� ��
� ���� .��������� ��� ��
����� ���
�� ��� ��� ������ ��� ���� ����%��

=A-A?�������� ���,������� �� ��������� ����� �����������
� 0�����'�
���	�
����=?-���1%� ��=;��������� ��������������

���,�������0'����
��	�
�����+=1%�=A��
�	������
�����
���������� 
��%�

�

9�	���� ���
����� ���
�������������� �����������	�����
������
����������
������������������������&����� ����

�����CJ�

• �������
���4��������

• �������
�����
�
��J��;?����������
�0'����
��	�
�����?�+1�

• 4��*4��*4�J�4�
����
����������
��������������������

• 7��
�
��B�7��� 
����
��@��+�'���������
�0'����
��	�
����'�=;1�

• #(���

• ��
����(�������(����
��#����
,��

• F
� ��������K�

• $��
�'M��J�F���
���

• � ���
��M7����M����
����7����
��
�

9�	��������
 �&������������������������������CJ�
�

• 9������6���������� 
���02����B�7��������1�

• F2�����

�����������02����B�7��������1�

• 3��������	��
�����
�������2�����
��

�

�(�(��	�����&���������	�
���������
�������
����'������A��@�0��� ��������
���
����K������
�1���,���������������

���
�� ���������������������
�������%��6����
�	���������������
��?'-�������#�J�����
�	�������'-A��E��
�	����

��
��  ����� �
��� �� ���� ��
�-��������-� ��� ��� 
���� ���9�..�� �
�������
�� A-'��E� ��	��� �� ������ ='-���� 	������

0�	�
���� ��
� ����� '� ���
�� ='-AA;1%� �6�
�� ���� A��� ������� ��	�� ��
���������� �� ���� F2� 
���

��� ������������ 'A=�

�����������������������������������������
�%��������������
���������
�����	�
�����
����	���������A=������

�������������
%�

�

"�����
�����" � 
�������� 
���
�,����������	�������� ���
�������7��������%�

�

	���������������������������7��� 
������������-������	����
�����
��
�� ��
��� �������� ���
������������ �����	����@�

������)���������� ��C��

• ��
������������"����	������6 ����0��
��
�����������2
���1��

• ��	�����
�������
��

• 7��������������

• ����
��I�������� ��������
����

• 4�	��"�
��B����� �������������
�����
���������

• �� ���4�	�������������I���$�	�
��������
����
�������

• ��
��������� 
�.�)���3	�����

• ��	�
�������������������
�&������������

• ��
������
���
 ������
���

• ��������� ���
�����
��

• "�
������ ���������
�����B�4�������

• ���� �����������������&��
 ��-�� �����E���	��I 
��������0������ �
�1E��"�
����
	����6������

�

���������������������� ��������	���
�	���������	�
��
��������� 
�������
�������%��2
���������������� 
������
����

�	�����������������
�	�������������������������
������
 �� 
�������)������
�	� �����
����������%�

�

Page 646



�

A�

�

�(������������

��������
� ��� ����.
����
������� ������� ������������� 
��� ���� ����� ���
� ��� ���
�	�� �����
�����������%� � "�
� �)������

� ����� �������	������������� ������������ �����������%�����F�������������������������������������������

���������
������%� ����.
����
��� ��� ������
�������
����� �� ������� ����%�I	�
��'����������� ��� ���,����
��

����
�������	�
�'?-����������������������
	�������������������A�-;;;�0'����
��	�
������-;+=1%�

�(5���  �������������

��������������������	����
,�����
���	�
�������������
����
�� ���������������� ������������������������

����������
�� ����������	�
��-������ ������
����	������������������������
������������������ ������
���	��

�
�	����%�

�

��))��&���������/�� � � �

� � � � �

� � ���3��

�����/�

� ���35�

+����������/�

J� ��	�������� 
�����

�������� �'-+=�� � A=-;?��

J� I ��� 
�������������� �+-���� � 'A-+?��

J� ����
 �� 
����������������� �''-''?� � �'=-;=��

J� ���� 
���������F������ A-���� � ��-����

J� ����
 �� 
���D������������ ;�-���� � ��-����

J� �����������"
������(� ���� ��
	����� �+-+��� � �A-+;��

J� ����
 �� 
���������3)�� ��	�������� �=-??�� � 'A-����

J� ����������9�	���� ��
	����� ��-���� � �A-����

J� ��� ��������7��������������� �'-�A?� � ��-����

J� *��
�	���� ���� ;?-�'�� � �;-�;��

J� ����
 �� 
���(������ ���
�� �-='�� � �;-����

J� #������
�������
����
�� ����� �=-'A�� � �=-'A��

� 6����� �!�157!� � 5771�8��

�

5���������� ��� ����������35���$�%�&��$��

. �������
���������
�����
����������
�	������������� �
���
�� ������������ �����
��������������
��������������

����������������������
�� 
��������������
����*� ��
�%�9����������
���������������������
����
�	�������

� 
����
����
��;&�������
����
����������������
��������< �
����B��
�	����������,������
���&�A�0�������������

����������������������&�'%�

�

3< �
������
���������
�����������	����������������
��� ����������	���
�������
�	�������� 
�������������,����-�


�����B��� ����� �
�� ���������� �� ��
����� �� ����  ��� ��� � 
� ������
� � ����� 
����� ��
��������� ��� �
�	����

���,���%�

��

����7��� 
��� ������ 
�������������������������� ������-������
�����������	�����
�%�6����
�����
������� ��

����(�������� ��
������������������
���	������������������������)��������������� ����	����������������

�����������%��$������ ����7��� 
������������
������������ ����� ���� ��������������
�����)��
������ 
�����������

�����-� ��� ���� �	������������
�� ����� �����,�� �� ���� ����� ���� 
��� �� ��&�'� ���� ���� �� �
������� ��
����� ���

��
������������
� ��
�%�

��

���� ����&� ����� ����
��� � ����� 
������ �� ���� ��� �	������� ����
�� �� � ��������� ���
�	����� �� ���� �
�����

���������������)������-�� ����������)����	����������� ������������7���6����������	����
�����
�� �������

��
�������
�����������������������%  

Page 647



�

?�

�

5(��0.6�
���&����

�����/�'�� 0��2�������

�

• ����
������������ ���
����
������ ������

• *	������� �� ���� ����������� ����
��������

����
��
��
��������
����
���
���������

�< �������������
����������
����
�����

��������������������
����

• ������ ��� �� ���� ����� 
�	� �� ���

� �������� ���
���
����� ����

�

�

�

• *������������� 
��
 �� 
���
������������

��� ���� 
� �� ���,���� �� ����&�'� B�

���'&�;�

• . ������ ����� � 
���
� �	������� ��

����
� 
����
�� �
��
����� ��� �����

 ��
�����

• 7��������� ��� � � ����� ��� �������

�)�������������� �����
��

• *������������)��������������� �������������

��������������������������� ��

�

.  ����������� 6'������

�

• �� �
�� ���
���� ��� ����� � �� ���


��������

• $�� 
� �� �	��� �< �
���� ��
� � � 
��

���
��

• $���������
,��� ��
� 
������� ��� ������

�	����

• . �������� 
��������������
����������

��������3������ 
������
������

• �� ��� 4�	�� 7�,� �����  ��
�

����
 �����

�

�

�

�

�

• *�
������ ����������� �
��� ����
�

	� �����������������������

• ����
���	�� ����������� ��
� ���� 
�� ���

���������������������

• �
��� ��
�����
� �	���� ��� ������� ��� ����

���
�� ��� ���� �� �
�� ��� 
�� ����� ��

������� ��
������������������������

�

5(��9�� �9����� �

����.��
������ ��
��,���� ��
��������������	��� ������������������� ����. ������������� 
�	�����
��
������ ��
�

�����.��
���������� 
������'&�;%�

�����
���
�������������������������������
,���������������
�����
�

•  ��
�������
��
�������
�������������������

• ������������ 
���
��
������
�
�� �������������

• �� 
�����
������� ��
����������������
,���������
������������ �������
����

• ���������������
��)������� ������

• ������������������������������
��	������������

��������
�� �����
���������)�
�������	�������
�

• �����
��������������� ��
��������
���������. ������ ��� ���� � 
���
������� 
�� ����-�����������
�������

� �����������
,��������
���������	����

• �����������������������
�	�������������������
��������

������������� ������
��������������

• ��	�������
,�����������
��������
��

• ��
���
� ���������������� ����F2���
����

• ����������� 
������������������
,������
����
�7���������

• �������������,�����
��
������������
���
�������������������� � 
����
��
������

Page 648



�

+�

�

F�	�����
���
�� ��,����������� 
���
�����
� ��������
����������������
�� �������)����������������������-���������

��� ���������������������������������������	������������
����	������
,����������
�������� 
������ ��������

��
����������
����	� 
����������������������
��
���������������
���	�
���%�

5(��,��2����/� ����

�����
�������������������
������������������������� �������
������
������� �����������
����������
����
�������

������������
�������� �����%����
�����	�
	�������� 
�6�
,���������	�������������������CJ�

����������� �������
� �����������
����. 
�� �����
�����������*����������3��������	��
�����������
����

���������������
� ��������*��5����
��
������
,���������
�������������� 
������������-�
��������	�����������������

� ������	�����������������*��%���

�������$��������������/���'���������$�����������,��2����/�

��������,��2����/�
����������

• ����
������
< ���
��
����������
����3��������	��
��

J 9�������
���	�������-�
����������������������0�����1�

J ��	�
�����������
����
����	�
���

J #����*������7�������������
�����

J #����)��������������

• *� ��
��#����
,�������
����������	��������)���������� ������*��
�����������)-����3*.�6�

J �
��������
,����-��
���
�����������
����������
�������� ����3�������

J ��������-���������
����-������������������� ��

• ��	�
������

J �� ��
��� ���������������
����
���-��������
���������������-�

J ��� ������	�
�������-��
���
����-��������������
��������

• �*�����������
���	��������

J ��
����������
�������
�������
������� ��������������������������%�

• 2�����������������C�������

������$�)��2����/�
����������

• #���*������	����
�I�����
C��� ���9����:� ������%��

J 3����-��
������%��
���
���������
��������
,����%�

• "�����2�����
�������
��*��������������

• ���� ����
��
�������������������������	�������������������
����3��������	�
��9�������

• I�������	����������������*���#�����������
������������������	��
�����
����������

• ���� ���������������	����
,���������	����

• #�������
����3��������	��
��.
��� 
���

�

	�������:���/������������,��2����/�

�

��������)��2����/�������������

������
,�������
�������������������	�
��������
�������
������4���
����C�.���.
����
��-�7���������(������B�"������

� ���-�9�	���7��� 
��2�����������
��������3	���%�������
�����������
����� ��
��������������
������������
��

�����	�������
�����
������
,���%��(���	�
-�� ����������������������������������������
���������
,�����������-�

�������������������-�������
�� ��������0�������
������� 
��1�����
�������������� 
�����
��������	�������������C��

�

• .
���������

J 2
����B�2 ����������

J ����������

���

Page 649



�

=�

�

• 7���
�� 
�&2I��

J 7�������-�.
��� 
��-�2����
��������

J 4��������

J . ��������
����

J 2������6�������������������������

• I ����
�

J �������

J . �������2����
��

J .��
��

• I����

J 9���7�������B�7�,���������������������������

J �������6����������������������������������������

J 9��������������������������������������������������

J 3�����&�#��������
���������������������������

• 6��������� ��

J ���� ���������������

J 2�����
�����&�4��������

J 6�
��������

J 4���� ���&�:� ���
��

J � �����
�� 
	����

J .�����
,���

• 2��

J #����
,���B�3)���������

J ���
�����	����0�
���������B��������1���������

J 2
�������������

������������������������������������������������������

������$�)��2����/�������������

������ ���������������	����)������
,��������������
�����4���
�������� ��������������C�

�

• :������

• :�
� ����� 
���

�

�

!�4�/'�������������������))��&���� ����������
��,������
���

!(�����)��

*������������� ������������������������
��������
���
���
����� ���������
��������� �������� ����������������

��� ������
����������� 
����� �������
�� ������&������������ ���������� ��
����������������%� ������ 

���6���
�

���������������
���
����������
������ ���������������� � 
�����. �������� 
����������.��%�����������< ����

�������� ���
�������������	�����������������
���������	�� �����/�-���-����������� 

��������������
%�

(���	�
� ���� ��������� �
���� ��������� ���� �
���� � ��� ����
� ����.�,��� �
����� ��� ��������
����+������ ������

����	���� �������� ��	�
���� ��� ����  ��
������ ��� �� ���� � � 
�� ��� ���� � ������ �� ����� 
���

��� ��� ���	�%� � ����

���� 
���� �������	����
���
�� ���� �������� ��������������� ��
� �������%� ����� ��
������ ��
� �����)�� ����

���
������������� ���%�

�

Page 650



�

���

�

�

!(��"�����������  �������)��'����������

����. �����������������
�< �
������������ ���
���
��������� �������� ����������������������������� ����

���������������
����
�	����
������� ��%�

*� 
����� ���
�� ���� ��� �� 
�< �
��� ��
������ ������������ ����� ���� �������� ��� 
�������-� ��������� ���� 
�� ���

��
������������������
�������
�	� ��%���������
�������� ��
��������
����������������������������������%��

!��
� ��	� �� ����������

�
���

������

��	� ��

� ���
��

F
���

F
�����

�����5��

��
���

��� ��������

�2*�

����
	��� ���

���
����

�������

��&�A� /�;�-���� � �;�-���� ?�;-���� 'A'-?��� �

�A&�?� /���-?��� � ���-?��� ?�A-���� �;�-=��� �

�?&�+� /�+�-'��� � �+�-'��� ?��-���� ���-'��� �

�+&�=�� � /�+�-���� ���-���� ?��-���� +�+-���� �+�-���� �����������
������
�����������������

����&�+���,��
�����

�=&��� /A��-���� � A��-���� ?�;-���� �?+-�;�� ����
	���
 ������������	���

��&��� /A��-���� ���-���� ?;�%���� +��-���� ;=-+'�� �����������
������
�������


��������

��&��� /A'�-����

�

���-����

?�-����

+�?-���� =�'-���� '-���� �����������
������
�������


����������>��B6�
���

�	�
���� � � � ?A=-�?�� � �

�����������#����������$�;�
 ��������

��&�'� /A;�-���� � A;�-���� AA;-���� A;-+��� �

�'&�;� /�==-���� � �==-���� �==-���� &�� �

�

�

���

����

����

����

����

'���

���=&�� ����&�� ����&�� ����&�' ���'&�; ���;&�� ����&�A

<
=�
�
�
�

>������ ���351���53!�:���!3�� ��$����$

����������������)�

���� 
�

�	���

�������

Page 651



�

���

�

�

��������+�������  ��������'����������!�����

�

�����
����������
�� ��������� �����
��� �� ���� ��	������ ������ ���5��
�	� ��� ���
�� ��
������������ ��
� ������

����&������� ���
������������ ������
������
��� ������
�������%�����������������������
���
	�����������������

���������
���/'A'-A+?����/'-������������������ �����������
��� 
�������������
���������� ����������
��� ��
���

����
����=&��%�

����� ��
��� ����-����� ���� ��� .��
�� ����� ���� ������-� �� 
�� ����� �� ���� ����� ��� ���� ���
�� ��� ���� ���� ����

��
� ��������
����
��������� ��������������� 
�������	�
�/���-��������� ��������������
������
E�� �������
�

���������,������������������� �-���
�� ��������/�?�-�������	�
�����������
���	�
������	������� ���
����
�����

� ��������
������
���������������	�
���������������+����%�

����������
�� �������
����������
�� ������;�,��������
�%�

�% ���� �������  ��
������ ���� ����
� 	� ��� 0����
� ���� ���� N3�� ���
�� �� 7���1� ���
���� �	���� ��
� ���

� �	����� 0� ������ ��
� ��������� ���
�����1� �
��� ���� 7����� �� ���%� � 3�� *�� ���  ��
������ .� 
��� ���

*��
������� ���
�� ���� � ���
���� ��� ���� � �� ��� /�%����� �� ���=&��� ��
� ��� � �	����%� � ��
���� ���� ���

�����������������������
������������������,���������
�����
������	���%�

�% ������
����
�����������
����
�����	���������
�����
�������
���������	������	��������� ��������&< ��������

����
�����������	���
���������� 
���������������������������������������%�

'% 6 ������� 7��� 
�� ����������� ��� �� ������ ���
����� ��� ��� ��	�
� ���
����� ������ ��
��� ��
��� �� ���� ����� ���

������������������������������������� ����
������
��������
�������� ����

;% (���� ��)��������� ���� ���� 
���� ������������������ ������ �� ����� 

���� �����-������ ����� ������������

� �����-�����������
�	� �����������
�������� 
�����������	���

����� ��������
�����
��������	�����-��������������
����
��-���� �����������
� ���������
�����������
��������

����
�������������
��
������������������ 
��� �����%�

!(����  ���������� ������? ��$������

������	��
�����
���������������
��
����/�����������
 �������������O+��%� �9������/'��������������� ������
� ���

����3 
�������������4�	��������" �-����
��
�������������
��	���������������� �������������������������

�< �	����� ����� ������ ��� ���� �
��
� ��� /'��%� � ���� � ���������� ��������
�� ���� ��� ���
�� ���� ��� ��� �����

�

���

���

'��

;��

���

A��

?��

+��

=��

����

<
=�
�
�
�

����������  ����/��������)����������������

��� ����
���������

*���������� �����������

�������
���
	��

Page 652



�

���

�

�	�������������
�
����
�����
������%�������������������
������	������������������ ���
���
��������� ���-����

�������
��������� �����-����	���������������������
����������� �����%�

���� ������ ������ ����������� ���� � ��� ����� �	�������� ��� ���� �� ���� �	�
� 
����� ���
�� ��� ������ ��
� ����

��
�����������
%�

!��
� ��������

�	�������

�������

��&�A� �A�-���� ����������������
 �������
������
���������
������� ��
����
��

�A&�?� ?+-���� �����
����������
���������
������� ��
����
��

�?&�+� �A�-���� ��
����������������

�+&�=�� � �� �

�=&��� �� �

��&��� ?-���� �
������� 
��������

��&��� �� �

�����������#����������$�;�
 ��������

��&�'� �'?-���� "����
�����
����
���������
���
 �� 
�����
,�

�'&�;� ??;-���� 2����
��������������< ������
�������

�;&��� ��=-���� 3< ������
�����E�
�� 
����������������
����
����
�

�

!(5��������������$����������������� ��� ����������'����?��!�&�����

�����*��������������
��� �����%��"�
��
�����,������
�����
��	���P�������I�����
����'��	�
������)����	�����
��

�
����
���������������C��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

���������	
�	���������������������������������
��������������������	�������������������	������������������
�����������

����
����������������������������������������������������������������������������

��� ������ ���
���� ������� ����
������ ��� ���� ���������  ������� ������ ���	������	�� !� "������ ���� ������ ��������� �

��������������
����������	����������� ��� ��������������������#������
��	�������������������������� ��"�����������

���������������������
�������������������$��%�%%�"��
��������
���	���������

�� ���������������
���+�-��������������������
���
���������	�
������)�������
�����������������)�����������
�����

��������������
������������
��������< �
��������
�������B���
�� �%�

�

������� ���3�� ���35� ��53!� ��!3��

���
������ �?��	���� ����	���� +��	���� ;��	����

��
������������� � � ?��	���

�

���	���

�

2
�	������� � � ?��	����

�

?��	����

�

������	�� � � ;��	����

�

����	����

�

������

����������

�+-�����

�

�=-�'�� �A-���� �?-����

3���������

������
�

������

;�-A'�� ;;-A'�PP� �'-?��� ��-����

�����)���

@��������

<�! ����5'��

�

<A(8)�

�

<8(�)PP�

�

<!()�

�

<(7)�

Page 653



�

�'�

�

����������	�� ����������	������������ ��������
������)��'����
�������������������������C�

������� ���35� ��53!� ��!3��

$���������� � �'A-?AA� �'A-+�'�

������	�� �-��=� ��;-�;�� '?'-+A=�

2
�	������� A-+'+� ��A-+?=� �;�-+=��

��
���� ?��� +'-��?� =A-A�+�

����
���� +�;-���� �=�-=+?� �+=-;�?�

��
������� A�-AAA� A?-++=� A?-++=�

. 
�� ������� ��-A=�� �'-?��� �'-?���

6����� <7��1��5� <75!1�A7� <1���1����

� � � �

�

���� �
�������� ��� ���������� ���	�� 
��
����� �� ��� 
����� � 
� �
� �� �� ��
� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ������ �����

���'&�;������
��
������������������������������5���
������������%��(���	�
���������������������
���������

�	����������
���< �������������-��������������������
������
�-�����������������������������
������� 

������ ����

��
,������������
���
����
�� ���%�
�

!(!�	���������������� ��� ����������'����?��!�&�����
�

����������	������������
��������
��������	�������������%�-�����7��� 
��� ����������������
��������%��(���	�
�

����������������� ������
������
������ 
������������'����
��� �����������������������
����������������
����������%��

. ��������9�:3�����	�
��������
�����������������������
�����������������
��)��
��������������
�������=J

����%�����'������ ����
��
�������������	�������������> ���� ����������
�������������������������
���������> ������

� � �����������������	�������� ������� 
���������������������%�

7�����������������������
���������� �������������
������
�� 
���	�
������������
%�

"�
������ 
���������������
��������
������)�������
���������������� ���������������������������������
������

������
������������������
������������������������
����������������������������
�������������� �������������������������� ��

����
��	������%�

�

��4�/'�������"���������������������35������!3��

�(���������%�$/�����B����)�����

�����
���
����� ��������
������ � 
�������������
���
�����������
����������
��
��������������� 
��� �����%��3	����

��8���
������������������������������������������������������-����
�����������
��	��������	����������
�

������%��(���	�
��	�
������
�������������������� 
�����������������������. �������
�����������������������������

��	����������� ��������������������
 �����������.��
���	�
�������������
%��������2�����
�����������������������


�� ����������%�

�

����.��
��� �
���
�� ��� �� ��� ���
���
�� ��� 
�� ���� ���� ����
���� ��� 3	���� �
��������� ���� ���
�� ��� �� 	� �� ��
�

7����-������������#�������3	���%�

���������������������� ������
����������)�����������������)����� 
����
������ 

������
�����)�������
�%�������

��� ���� ����� �
���������� ��� ��� ��
����� ���
�� ��� �� 
��������� �
������� ��� ������ �
����� �	�
� ����� ��
���%� ����

� ����� ���
��
����� ���� ��� ������� �
�������� �
��� ���� �� ���� ��� �
��� ���� ���� 
�	� �� � ���
�� ��
� ����

����������/�?=,������;&���������/�;=,�������&�A�������A&�?%�

6���
�����������������������
������������������������	��������� ���-���� �����
������
��������
�������������

������
,��������������������E������������ ��
� ��������������� ���
�	���������������� ������������
�-�� ���� � ���

���
�����
����������������������� ���������������E��
�	���������������������
����������������� ��
��������%�

Page 654



�

�;�

�

��@���
���6���
6�.�
	��.�"����������6����

6��$��/���$����������$�	����
���������))��&�

� � � � �

� � #��� .��
�� ���

�����
������

3���������

6�
�'�

3���������

"���;�

3���������

"���;�

3���������

"���;�

>����������,���'� � � � � � �

� ��3�� ���3�� ���35� ���35� ��53!� ��!3��

� 
������ 
������ ��$/��� "�������� ��$/��� ��$/���

� <� <� <� <� <� <�

6�������� � � � � � �

7��� 
�� �-�A=-='�� �-�;�-�?�� �-�;=-?A�� �-�'�-?=;� �-���-''�� �-�;;-?+��

����
���� �-��A-�'�� �-�;�-+�?� ===-''+� =�A-��;� =;�-'+=� �-�'�-��A�

I���
� ��-'=�� ��-��=� ��-��+� =-���� +-;��� +-;���

6�����6�������� �1A�15!7� �1�7A1�AA� �1��1���� �1�5�1�8�� �1�8�1�5� �1�A�1�A8�

� � � � � � �

�������������� � � � � � �

7��� 
�� �++-��;� �?+-'='� �;�-?A+� �;+-A;�� �;+-��'� ���-�A?�

����
���� �?=-?�?� �+;-='�� �'?-��=� ��?-���� ��'-�=�� �+�-'���

6������������������� 5�81AA� 5��1��!� �A�1878� �8!1A5�� �8187A� 5��1!8�

� ��%;8� ��%�8� �+%A8� �+%;8� �?%=8� �+%�8�

+������������ � � � � � �

7��� 
�� =+�-+�+� =A'-+?=� =�'-==�� =+�-���� =?;-�'�� =='-A�;�

����
���� ?�A-'?+� +��-+?�� ?A�-'�=� A?+-+�'� ?��-?=;� =;+-+�A�

I���
� ��-'=�� ��-��=� ��-��+� =-���� +-;��� +-;���

6�����+������������ 18A1!8A� 1A�518��� 1�8A15�7� 1�8�1���� 18�51���� 17!�1A8��

� ?+%A8� ?=%+8� +�%;8� +�%A8� +�%�8� +�%=8�

0�/���:���������� 18!1A�8� 15�81A�8� 1��81�8�� 1��515��� 1��51��A� 1��51787�

� +�%�8� A�%�8� A�%�8� �+%=8� �+%�8� �;%+8�

� � � � � � �


$)�������������? ������ 7�5178�� 1���15�� 1�5517�5� 1�5�18!�� 1�51A!A� 1�7!1A���

� ;�%;8� ;�%�8� ��%?8� ��%�8� ��%�8� ;A%�8�

� � � � � � �

6��$��/������ C7�A1��!D� C���15�!D� C��51A8D� C!8817AAD� C!51A��D� C557175!D�

� J;�%=8� J�?%'8� J'�%+8� J�+%�8� J�A%�8� J�+%=8�

� � � � � � �

��	� �� F
��� �
��� ��
����

�� ����

+�?-���� A;;-+��� �==-���� �==-���� �?=-���� �;=-����

�������� F
��� �
��� ��
����

�� ����

�� ;'-?��� �� �� �� ��

���
�����������F
���� ';-;��� �� �� �� �� ��

� � � � � � �

C	���D3�������%������6�?������ C5�18�!D� ��1���� C�!1A8D� �1��� �815�� 771�!!�

� J�%�8� �%?8� J�%?8� �%�8� �%+8� ;%�8�

����������
,���������
���
�������
�

� ���������
������ ����

� ='-;�'� ??'-+A�� ??'-+A�� ��=-���� �

9��,���������# ���
�� +'� �'� ��� ��� ��� ���

6������������# ���
�� ;�� ';� '�� '�� '�� '��

" ��������3< �	����� ���� ?�� A�� A�� A�� AA�

Page 655



�

���

�

�

� � � � �

�

���� �
���� � ������ ���� ���� ��� ���� �� ���� �� #�	����
&4������
� ���'����� ������ �� �
��������� �
���
��� ��

I�����
����'����������������������� ������ ����������%� �����.��
���)���������������������� �������
��������������

����� ��
� ���� � 

��� ���
� ��� ��� �� �� 
��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��� ����� �� ������ ������� ���������%� � ��	����� � ������ ��
�

���;&�������
�����������
�����&�A���	������������
���
��-�� �������� ����������������� ����������������������

�������
���������������
���
�����
��,%�

�(���� ����� ��/��))����B����)�����

���� ������� ��� ��������  ��� ���� 7����
�-� ���� �� ���� ��
� �������� �	������� �� ������������ 
����
�� ���

���
�	��������� ����2B7����� �� ��� ����-���� �����
����� ����-�������
����
��� 
���� ��
� ����%� ������� ��������

����� /�%����	�������� �
��� ���� � 

��� �������� 2��� ��� ����� ���� ���� ���� ��
� ���� �������� �
��
���� ��� ��� ��� ����

� ������

• ��
 �� 
���
����
��

• "����
�����
����
���������2��������������������������

• ��������������.����
�������
����������&������������

• 3���������< ������
�������������
�� 
����������������������

• �����
����
����������������������
,������
������;%�

F�	������� �������������	�
�������
�����-�� 
���
��	���������
�������������
�	�������������������%�����

������ ������ ����� � �� ����� ��� ������
�� 	����� �������� 
����
�� 
�< �
��� �	�
� ���� �)�� �� ���
�� ��� ���� ������� ���

���,�������� ���
����������� ������
�� ������� ��
��,����������
,���
������;&������
��%�

�

�

�

���

����

����

����

����

'���

<
=�
�
�
�
�

���������)����������

������� 
�	�


7��� 
�

����
���

Page 656



�

�A�

�

Item
Approx 
cost (all 
plus VAT)

Comment

Install air conditioning units for Lifestyle to manage 
temperature in the Gym 

£13,000 Current conditions lead to many 
complaints, especially at peak times. 

Replace obsolete lighting to Forum, Arena, Pool and 
Stairwells

£140,000 Forum - £44,215; Arena - £42,015; Pool - 
£25,215; Stairwell – £28,775 

Car Park – repair worn surfaces* £70,000 Various options for the work range from 
£30,000 - £150,000 

Swimming pool steelworks– inspect, repair & repaint 

AHU rods & brackets*
£50,000

Swimming pool steelworks – repaint roof structure* £120,000

Swimming pool – repair/repaint flume tower* £30,000

Replace obsolete ceiling tiles in the Forum (main 
conference auditorium) 

£62,000 Parts are no longer available for repairs to 
current ceiling tile system. 

Sanding & resealing Granwood flooring in Arena £16,000 An inspection will first be required to 
ascertain whether sufficient depth remains 
to carry out this work. If insufficient depth 
remains then at some stage the flooring 
will need to be completely replaced. 

Replace Forum Carpet £30,000 The current carpet is 14 or 15 years old 
and is heavily worn in places, with 
permanent stains in certain areas. 

Refurbish & modernise event toilet blocks £40,000 8 blocks at approx £5,000 per block. 
These toilets have not been refurbished 
during the Centres history and are badly in 
need of attention. 

Replace kitchen & bars AHU’s (on roof) £33,000

Upgrade public lift, replace cabling/control panel £28,000 There is an option to only replace 
cabling/control panel for approx £13k but 
this would not remove the risk of ongoing 
repairs. 

Pool circulation pumps & strainers £12,000 Spare parts/pumps are possibly being 
salvaged from Plymouth Pavilions following 

the closure of their pool, but it is yet 
unknown as to whether they will be 
compatible with RICC plant. 

Empty, clean, repair & refill pool water sand filters £11,000 It is recommended that this is carried out 
before too long. 

Replace flooring in staff corridor £3,500 Flooring has shrunk & become detached 
from ground in areas – cracks & splits 
currently being covered with tape. 

Replace fan coil units in Reception & Burdett £11,500 Could be done in stages – approx 5 will need 
replacing at a cost of £2,300 each. 

Replacement/refurb of refrigeration equipment £42,000 The majority of fridge/freezer equipment, inc 
the blast chillers and walk in fridge/freezers, 
run on a refrigerant which is being phased 
out and will become obsolete, this could be 
overcome with replacements parts.(Figure is 
worst case scenario). 

Replacement parts for ovens (plated system) £9,600 It is assumed that the ovens more than 5 
years life left in them, this figure is based on 
replacement fan motors for each unit. 

Replace/renew banquet chairs:- 
Phase 1 x 250
Phase 2 x 450

£7,500
£13,500

 Current banquet chairs were purchased 
when the building was first opened, many 
have been decommissioned due to 
weakness in the frame creating a risk of 
collapse. 

Total £742,600    

* As identified within TDA feasibility study�

�

Page 657



�

�?�

�

�

8�4�/'�������
�����������

�������������������������������������	�����
�� ���������������,����������	�����)��
������'����
����������
� ��

/�%��� ���������� ��� ���� ����� ����� ��� ���,��� �� � ���
�� �
��� �
��� ���� �� ���� ���	�� ���� ��	��� ��
���� ��
� ����

� 

������
%�

������������������������������������	��������
�C�

��*����������
,��������������� 
��� 
���
�� �������	�
�������	��� 

�����
�����%�

��*��������������������	������������������ 
������������
��������� ������������������������������������

������ ��������
���������� �����%�

'����������� ��������
�	������������
�����������. �������������
��
�����

;� $��
��,�� �
��
������� �	������� �� ,��� �
���� ��� ���� � ������ ��� ���
�	�� �
������������ �
� ��������

�	�
�������������.���.
����
���
���������������
�� ��� 
�� 
������������-��������������
�����������

��
�9�:3�-�Q�������	�������������R� ��
� ������� 
����-� �
�����������
� ��� �
����� ��������� ��
� 7��������%��

�����������������������������������2B7����� �������%��

������ ������
� ��
������������� �����-������������� ����
��������� ���������%�

A� ���,� ;�� ���
� ������ 
������ �
��� ���� �� ���� ��� �
�	���� ���� ��
�� ��� 
���� ��� ���� � �����-� ��� ����

���������������
�����
������
�� 
���
����
�	�����%�

�

A������������

����.��
���������� ���������	������
���������������������������������
,�������
���������������� 

������
�


��
��������������������������������������
� �������������
�%��*�������	��������� ���������������� ��������
���

������
��
����
������ ������������,��� ���
����
� ����
��������� �������������������
��������� �������,����

����
����
�� �������������������������� ��������������
����
�������%�

�

"��
 �
�����;�

�

Page 658



Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Board

 

At its meeting on 29 January 2014, 

draft Corporate Capital Strategy 

officers. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Board recommend
Corporate Capital Strategy be amended to highlight the opportunities 
available for releasing Council
provided by registered social 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Capital Strategy 

Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Board – January 2014

9 January 2014, the Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the

draft Corporate Capital Strategy and asked a range of questions of the Mayor and 

The Overview and Scrutiny Board recommend to the Council that the 
Corporate Capital Strategy be amended to highlight the opportunities 
available for releasing Council-owned land for affordable housing (to be 
provided by registered social landlands). 

January 2014 

the Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the 

and asked a range of questions of the Mayor and 

to the Council that the 
Corporate Capital Strategy be amended to highlight the opportunities 

owned land for affordable housing (to be 

Agenda Item 3f

Page 659


	Agenda
	3a Fees and Charges
	Parkfield 2013-14
	Parkfield - Hire tariff Sept 13
	Parkfield - activity poster
	Parkfield - Summer Holiday Programme 2013
	Parkfield - weekly climbing programme
	Parkfield - weekly youth club programme
	Land charges
	Registration
	Community Safety
	EDC Client
	Financial Services
	Planning
	Planning Applications
	Building Control
	Residents and Visitor Services
	Parking Charges

	3b Consultation and Equality Impact Assessments
	Adult Social Care Budget Proposals
	EIA Community Alarms
	EIA Learning Disability Development Fund
	EIA Voluntary Sector Block Contracts
	Business Services Budget Proposals
	Children's Services Budget Proposals
	EIA Action for Children
	EIA SEN School Transport
	EIA Citizens' Advice Bureau
	EIA Day Care and Domicilliary Care Services
	Commercial Services Budget Proposals
	Community Safety Budget Proposals
	EIA Community Partnerships
	Corporate Budgets Budget Proposals
	Finance Budget Proposals
	Information Services Budget Proposals
	Residents and Visitor Services Budget Proposals
	EIA Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust
	EIA English Riviera Tourism Company
	EIA Acorn Centre
	EIA Libraries
	Spatial Planning Budget Proposals
	Supporting People Budget Proposals
	EIA Young People Support and Accommodation Service
	EIA Integrated Families Service
	EIA Supported Employment
	EIA Leonard Stocks Centre
	EIA JATIS
	EIA Social Inclusion and Community Outreach Support Services
	EIA Criminal Justice Accommodation Service
	EIA Reaching Out South West
	EIA Folks@Home
	EIA Sheltered Housing
	EIA Link Workers
	EIA Personal Budgets
	Torbay Development Agency Budget Proposals

	3c National Non Domestic Rates Return 1
	3e Riviera International Conference Centre - Business Plan
	3f Corporate Capital Strategy - Recommendation of the Overview and Scrutiny Board

